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Adoption and confirmation of the minutes

MOTION
Moved Councillor Hollingsworth
Seconded Councillor Thompson
That the minutes of the Council meeting held on 30 June 2020 and the Special
meetings of Council held on 6 July 2020 and 20 July 2020 be adopted and
confirmed.
CARRIED
Councillor Ross entered the meeting at 6.48pm
2.

Declaration of conflict of interest of any councillor or council officer

Refer to Item 7.3 - Kew Heritage Gap Study - Amendment C294 (Part 2) - Adoption
of Amendment - Councillor Healey and Councillor Sinfield.
3.

Deputations, presentations, petitions and public submissions

3.1

Petitions

Council has received one (1) petition. Details of the petition is set out below.
No. Ref. no.

Title / Description

1

Requesting Council to stop the
installation of mobile infrastructure at
646 Riversdale Road, Camberwell
Victoria 3124

CAS792569

Legend:
DCD
DCXBT

Director Community Development
Director Customer Experience and
Business Transformation

DCP
DEI
GOV

No. of
signatures

Referred to

Over 150

DCP

Director City Planning
Director Environment and Infrastructure
Governance

MOTION
Moved Councillor Sinfield
Seconded Councillor Hollingsworth
That Council resolve:
1. To receive and note the petition.
2. To note that TPG advised on the 12 May 2020 it has suspended all roll outs
for telecommunications infrastructure in Boroondara at this time pending a
review of all proposed TPG mobile sites within the municipality.
City of Boroondara
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3. To note Council has written to TPG advising it does not support a
telecommunications facility at 646 Riversdale Road, Camberwell.
4. To note Council has written to the Federal Minister for Communications in
2018 to urge changing legislation to respond to the following:
•

•

•

•

•

•

Concern regarding the visual impact of the proposed locations of the
telecommunications facilities, including the disruption to the amenity
of the streetscape, the creation of a cluttered public realm and the
adverse impact on heritage precincts. TPG is proposing to install
mobile base stations on existing power poles which generally support
only cross beams and wires, adding significantly to visual bulk;
Residents’ concern regarding the negative impact of the
electromagnetic energy (EME) exposure from the proposed
telecommunications facilities located within residential streets, on the
safety and health of our community;
The need to require telecommunications infrastructure proposals to
include scientific evidence that emissions from the proposed facilities
and the cumulative impact of existing telecommunications
infrastructure within the surrounding area are safe to the health of
surrounding residents. The evidence should also demonstrate long
term exposure to emissions will not be detrimental to the health of
surrounding residents;
The consultation plans received by Council have given notice to
owners and occupiers within 10-20 metres of the proposed location. It
is requested the Industry Code is updated to increase the notification
to 50 metres to reflect the area with the highest exposure impact, as
identified in the Environmental Electromagnetic Energy (EME)
Reports provided to Council;
Require carriers to collocate facilities where possible to reduce
clutter. In the absence of this, we will continue to have separate
infrastructure installed with each successive roll out, impacting on
the amenity enjoyed by our residents; and
The need to update the Telecommunications (Low-impact Facilities)
Determination 2018 to prevent the location of Low Impact Facilities in
residential areas.

5. To note that Council has written to the Federal Member for Kooyong, the
Hon. Josh Frydenberg requesting a meeting to discuss concerns regarding
the roll-out of telecommunications infrastructure in Boroondara and has
been advised by Mr Frydenberg’s office that they have written to the
Minister for Communications, the Hon Paul Fletcher MP regarding the
request to meet.
6. To note that the first named signatory to the petition has been informed of
the abovementioned matters by officers.
7. To note that the petition has been referred to the Director City Planning for
consideration and a response.
CARRIED
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Assemblies of councillors

Section 80A of the Local Government Act 1989 requires that a written record of all
Assemblies of Councillors be kept and reported to an ordinary Council meeting as
soon as practicable.
The attached record of Assemblies of Councillors (Attachment 1) is reported to
Council in accordance with this requirement.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Hurd
Seconded Councillor Addis
That Council resolve to receive and note the record of Assemblies of
Councillors, as annexed to the minutes.
CARRIED
5.

Public question time
David Strang of Hawthorn East - Solar PV

PQT1

The Mayor, Councillor Watson read the following question submitted with notice.
The question was allowed in accordance with clause 60.2.2 of the Meeting
Procedure Local Law as the question has been previously put in writing to a member
of Council staff and Mr Strang had received a written response from the member of
Council staff.
"Could you please explain why solar PV has not been installed at all of the 13
Council buildings identified as suitable for this purpose in the EAGA Project?"
The Director Environment and Infrastructure responded as follows:
•

The Eastern Alliance for Greenhouse Action (EAGA) study was intended
to identify sites well suited for installation of solar PV. It did not represent a
commitment to install solar at the identified sites.

•

Installations were completed in 2019/20 in accordance with available
budget and expenditure on other alternative energy efficiency projects.

•

Five of the 13 sites identified in the EAGA study have not yet been
prioritised for the installation of solar PV for the following reasons:
o Watson Park Pavilion - Solar installation was deferred due to planned
roof renewal works.
o Ashburton Park Pavilion - Solar installation was deferred due to
planned roof renewal works.
o John Gardiner Reserve Pavilion - Building is not owned by City of
Boroondara.
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o Kew East Maternal Child Health - Multiple factors -Services provided
from this facility have changed since the feasibility study was
completed. Services are now on split metering. The facility now has
reduced electricity consumption. Onsite assessment identified that
installation was complex and less cost-effective than alternative sites.
o Balwyn Maternal and Child Health - Change in service delivery model.
Future site utilisation was not confirmed at time of contracting works.
o Hawthorn East Child Care Centre - Site was included in original
contract but was not delivered as part of a contract variation to
complete emerging higher priority solar PV upgrade at Camberwell
Municipal Offices.
•

With the exception of John Gardiner Reserve Pavilion, installation of solar
PV at these sites will be considered as part of future solar PV installation
programs.

The Mayor, Councillor Watson advised councillors had received a copy of the
question and a written response would be provided in due course.
PQT2&3

Ian Hundley of Balwyn North - North East Link (June 2020
Quarterly Performance Report)

The Mayor, Councillor Watson read the following questions submitted with notice.
The questions related to Item 7.1. on the Agenda - ‘June 2020 Quarterly
Performance Report’ and was allowed in accordance with Clause 60.2.1 of the
Meeting Procedure Local Law 2017.
“Please advise whether the content of the Memorandum of Understanding the
Council reports that it is negotiating with the Victorian Government’s North
East Link Project would inhibit full and frank disclosure by the Council on
details of the project to residents and ratepayers of Boroondara? If so, in
what way would the agreement restrict such disclosure?”
The Director Environment and Infrastructure responded as follows:
•

Council is negotiating a new Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with
the North East Link Project (NELP). All Councils impacted by the North
East Link (NEL) have entered into or are currently negotiating a new MoU
with NELP.

•

As advised in response to your question to the 25 May 2020 Council
meeting and the 9 June 2020 Council meeting, NELP required all Councils
impacted by the North East Link (NEL) to enter into a MoU and would not
share information about the project until the MoU was executed.

•

The MoU includes a confidentiality clause. This section of the MoU was
provided to Mr Hundley in August 2018. The confidentiality clause
requires all information passed between the two parties be treated as
confidential if it is not in the public domain.

•

The MoU is very clear. If information is not in the public domain, it cannot
be shared with the public by Council or NELP.
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Where information is in the public domain, Council is able to share it with
residents and ratepayers. We do so via our website and direct contact
with our community.

The Mayor, Councillor Watson advised councillors had received a copy of the
questions and a written response would be provided in due course.
PQT4&5

Ian Hundley of Balwyn North - Disallowed Questions

The Mayor, Councillor Watson informed Council that two further questions had
been submitted with notice from Mr Ian Hundley of Balwyn North.
The Mayor, Councillor Watson advised that the questions had been disallowed in
accordance with the Meeting Procedure Local Law 2017 because clause 59.2.1 of
the Meeting Procedure Local Law provides no person may submit more than two (2)
questions at any one Council meeting.
The Mayor, Councillor Watson advised councillors had received a copy of the
questions and a written response would be provided in due course.
6.

Notices of motion

Nil
7.

Presentation of officer reports

Procedural motion
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That the following items:
7.1
June 2020 Quarterly Performance Report
7.5
Final outcomes of 2020 General Valuation
7.11 Contract No. 2020/116, Canterbury Community Precinct Redevelopment
Works
7.12 Contract 2020/37, West Hawthorn Preschool: Additions and
Refurbishment Works
7.13 Statutory Planning Heritage Advisor Contract
7.16 Adoption - Councillor and Member of a delegated committee Expenses
Policy
7.18 Instrument of Delegation - Council to Members of Council Staff
be moved en bloc as per the officers' recommendations outlined in the
agenda.
CARRIED
City of Boroondara
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Councillor Ross requested the minutes reflect that she voted in opposition to the
motion.
7.1

June 2020 Quarterly Performance Report

The Quarterly Performance Report for June 2020 provides detailed reporting on
financial and non-financial performance against both the Budget and Council Plan for
the year.
Council achieved a full year operating surplus of $12.26 million which is $669,000
above the September Amended Budget of $11.59 million. The favourable variance
is attributable to a number of factors which are outlined in Section 3 of Attachment 1
– Financial Overview.
The overall financial position at 30 June 2020 is satisfactory with a working capital
ratio of 2.72 to 1 (includes reserve funds of $18.70 million and 0.5% cash
contingency for emergency response works).
For the year ended 30 June 2020, the 2019-20 annual commitments indicate 84% of
commitments have been completed. Achievements of the Strategic Indicators have
been assessed at 74%.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to:
1.

Receive and note the Quarterly Performance Report for June 2020 and
adopt the final forward commitment listing and amendments for capital
works and priority projects as outlined in (Attachment 1).

2.

Receive and note the results of the Local Government Performance
Reporting Framework (LGPRF) indicators and measures (Attachment 2).

3.

Review and note the evaluation of the Governance and Management
Checklist (Attachment 3).

CARRIED
7.5

Final outcomes of 2020 General Valuation

This report provides detailed information in relation to the 2020 general valuation of
all rateable property and recommends a Council resolution to receive the 1 January
2020 General Valuation in accordance with section 7AF of the Valuation of Land Act
1960.
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The overall movement in property valuations is as follows:
Site Value
2019 Valuations
2020 Valuations
Change
% Difference

Capital Improved
Net Annual
Value
Value
$82,606,592,900
$112,931,834,000
$5,713,810,200
$86,992,773,300
$116,769,664,000
$5,904,236,100
$4,386,180,400
$3,837,830,000
$190,425,800
5.31%
3.40%
3.33%

The level of value date is 1 January 2020 and the new valuation came into effect
from 1 July 2020 and is being used for apportioning rates for the 2020/21 financial
year.
The general valuation impacts the distribution of rating liability across the
municipality. It does not provide Council with any additional revenue. The
distribution of rates is affected each general valuation by the movement in the
various property classes. The important point from an equity consideration is that all
properties must be valued at a common date (i.e. 1 January 2020), so that all are
affected by the same market. Large shifts in an individual property’s rate liability only
occurs when there are large movements either in the value of a property category
(e.g. residential, office, shops, industrial) or the value of certain locations, which are
outside the general movements in value across all categories or locations.
The process consists of 4 stages and all stages were completed by the Valuer
General Victoria (VGV). The final certification, commonly known as "The Generally
True and Correct Certificate under section 7AF of the Valuation of Land Act 1960
(VLA)", has been received from VGV. See Attachment 1 for the declaration of the
Minister for Planning.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to receive the 1 January 2020 General Valuation effective
from 1 July 2020 in accordance with section 7AF of Valuation of Land Act
1960.
CARRIED
7.6

Notice of Intention to Lease - Boroondara Aged Services Society and the
East Camberwell Tennis Club Inc.

This report is presented in the context of Council fulfilling its obligations under
section 190 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act) in relation to lease terms for
the Boroondara Aged Services Society in Marwal Avenue, Balwyn North and the
East Camberwell Tennis Club Inc.
Section 190 of the Act requires where new leases have a term of more than one year
and the rent or market rent for any period of the lease term exceeds $50,000 per
annum, Council must give public notice of its intention to enter into such a lease and
consider any submissions received in accordance with section 223 of the Act prior to
entering into the lease.
City of Boroondara
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A public notice was published on the Council website and in The Age newspaper
advising of Council’s intention to lease land to the Boroondara Aged Services
Society and the East Camberwell Tennis Club Inc. No submissions have been
received.
Council is now in a position complete the formal process of leasing land to the
Boroondara Aged Services Society and the East Camberwell Tennis Club Inc.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to authorise the Chief Executive Officer or such other
person as the Chief Executive Officer approves, to undertake the necessary
procedural steps to complete the formal process to lease the land including
the execution of all relevant documentation with the Boroondara Aged
Services Society ABN 66 004 574 547 and the East Camberwell Tennis Club
Inc. ABN 36 078 762 853.
CARRIED
7.11

Contract No. 2020/116, Canterbury Community Precinct Redevelopment
Works

This report seeks Council endorsement for the award of Contract No. 2020/116,
Canterbury Community Precinct Redevelopment Works. This Contract is for the
redevelopment of the Canterbury Community Precinct, located at 2 Kendall Street,
Canterbury.
The redevelopment works are expected to commence in late September 2020 and
be completed by November 2021, pending COVID-19 restrictions.
The total cost of this Contract is $9,514,150 (excluding GST), which is in accordance
with Council’s adopted budget for Financial Year 2020-21 and foreshadowed budget
for Financial Year 2021-22.
Council invited select tenders from organisations shortlisted following an Expression
of Interest process, which is in accordance with the requirements of section 186 of
the Local Government Act 1989.
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MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve:
1.

To award Contract No. 2020/116, Canterbury Community Precinct
Redevelopment Works, to Harris HMC Construction Pty Ltd (ACN 119 426
952) as trustee for Harris HMC Construction Trust (ABN 11 938 385 442),
at a cost of $10,465,565 (including GST). The estimated cost to Council
after return of GST Input Credits is $9,514,150.

2.

To authorise the Director Environment and Infrastructure to execute the
contract agreement with the above Contractor.

3.

To note that anticipated expenditure under this Contract is in accordance
with Council's 2020/21 adopted budget and foreshadowed 2021/22
budget.

CARRIED
7.12 Contract 2020/37, West Hawthorn Preschool: Additions and
Refurbishment Works
This report seeks Council endorsement for the award of Contract No. 2020/37, West
Hawthorn Preschool - Refurbishment and Extension Works. This contract is for the
proposed refurbishment of the existing classroom and extension works which consist
of a new classroom, foyer and staff spaces as well as an upgrade to the external
outdoor spaces.
These redevelopment works are expected to commence in late September 2020 and
to be completed in May 2021, pending changes to COVID19 restrictions.
The total cost of this Contract is $1,352,822.50 (ex GST) which is a shortfall of
$327,076.43 from Council’s Adopted Budget for Financial Year 2020-21 of $693,119
and State Government grant of $500,000.
The budget shortfall has been addressed by a reduction to the scope of works and
will also be addressed in the September amended budget, subject to approval, or
alternatively from savings identified in the 2020-2021 Capital works program. This
will be known as project tenders continue to be finalised and pricing impacts are
more clearly understood.
A selective tender process was conducted from suppliers on the State Government
Construction Supplier Register, which is in accordance with the requirements of
section 186 of the Local Government Act 1989.
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MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to:
1.

Award Contract No. 2020/37, West Hawthorn Preschool - Refurbishment
and Extension Works, to:
•

Alchemy Construct Pty Ltd (ACN 604 483 105)

for a total cost of $1,488,104.75 (including GST). The cost to Council after
the return of the GST Tax Input Credits is $1,352,822.50.
CARRIED
7.13

Statutory Planning Heritage Advisor Contract

This report seeks Council endorsement for the award of Contract No 2020/121,
Statutory Planning Heritage Advisor - Consultancy Services. This contract will
provide Council with constructive expert advice and guidance about heritage matters
having regard to all Council's heritage policy and objectives, for an initial contract
term of three years and with a possible extension of a two year period, for a
maximum contract term of five years. This is a replacement for an existing contract
which has reached the end of its maximum term.
Expenditure under this contract will be determined by annual budget allocations and
the services required to be performed in any one year. The estimated annual cost of
this contract for 2020-2021 is $145,920 (excluding GST), which is covered by
Council’s budget. Because of the value of the contract, it was publicly advertised in
accordance with the requirements of Section 186 of the Local Government Act 1989.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to:
1. To award Contract No. 2020/121, Statutory Planning Heritage Advisor Consultancy Services, to Extent Heritage Pty Ltd (ACN 608 666 306), at their
tendered Schedule of Rates for an initial contract term of three years, with a
possible extension, at Council’s discretion for a further two years to a
maximum contract term of five years. The estimated contract cost for the
maximum five year term is $802,560 (including GST). The cost to Council
after the return of GST Tax Input Credits is $729,600.
2. To authorise the Director City Planning to execute the contract agreements
with the above consultants.
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3. To authorise the Director City Planning to negotiate extensions to the
contract with the above consultants to the maximum five year contract
term.
4. To note expenditure under this contract in 2020-21 is expected to be in
accordance with Council’s adopted budget, and expenditure in future years
is expected to be in accordance with future budget parameters.
CARRIED
7.16

Adoption - Councillor and Member of a delegated committee Expenses
Policy

The Local Government Act 2020 (Act) requires Council to adopt a policy by 1
September 2020 in relation to the reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses for
councillors and members of delegated committees.
Council prevously adopted the Councillor Support and Resources Policy on 26
August 2019 under the provisions of the Local Government Act 1989. This policy
has been reviewed in accordance with the requirements of the new Act and renamed
the Councillor and Member of a delegated committee Expenses Policy.
Officers have identified a number of changes which are considered prudent to
incorporate in the Councillor and Member of a delegated committee Expenses Policy
(proposed Policy) based upon the requirements of the new Act.
The proposed Policy was endorsed by Council for the purpose of community
engagement on 20 July 2020. At the Services Special Committee meeting on 17
August 2020 it was noted that no submissions had been received in regard to the
proposed Policy. The proposed Policy is now before Council for adoption.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to adopt the Councillor and Member of a delegated
committee Expenses Policy 2020 (as annexed to the Minutes).
CARRIED
7.18

Instrument of Delegation - Council to Members of Council Staff

By virtue of the operation of the Local Government Act 2020 (LGA 2020) the current
delegation from Council to Members of Council Staff made by Council under the
Local Government Act 1989 is repealed on 1 September 2020.
Council is required to make a new Instrument of Delegation from Council to
Members of Council Staff in accordance with the provisions of the LGA 2020 to
ensure statutory compliance and to enable the business of Council to be carried out
efficiently and in line with Council approved policies.
City of Boroondara
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Instruments of Delegation represent the formal delegation of powers by Council
under section 11 of the LGA 2020 and as previously mentioned enable the business
of Council to be carried out efficiently and in line with Council approved policies.
Council subscribes to the Maddocks Authorisations and Delegations Service, which
provides advice regarding legislative amendments and the provision of template
instruments which are then tailored to organisational requirements.
Officers have developed a new Instrument of Delegation from Council to Members of
Council Staff which reflects the recent changes announced to the organisation
structure, a small number of legislative changes and amendments put forward by
Maddocks as part of their continual review processes.
The new Instrument of Delegation from Council to Members of Council Staff is
presented to Council for consideration.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Hurd
In the exercise of the powers conferred by the legislation referred to in the
attached instrument of delegation, Boroondara City Council (Council) resolves
that:
1.

There be delegated to the members of Council staff holding, acting in or
performing the duties of the offices or positions referred to in the
attached Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council staff, and as
annexed to the minutes, the powers, duties and functions set out in that
instrument, subject to the conditions and limitations specified in that
Instrument.

2.

The instrument comes into force immediately the common seal of
Council is affixed to the instrument.

3.

On the coming into force of the instrument all previous delegations to
members of Council staff (other than the Chief Executive Officer) are
revoked.

4.

The duties and functions set out in the instrument must be performed,
and the powers set out in the instruments must be executed, in
accordance with any guidelines or policies of Council that it may from
time to time adopt.

CARRIED
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2020-21 Annual Community Strengthening Grant Allocations

This report contains the recommendations of the Community Strengthening Grants
Assessment Panel for the allocation of 2020-21 Annual Community Strengthening
Grants up to $10,000. The total funding pool this year is $547,152.75 with 75% or
$410,364.56 allocated to the Annual Grants up to $10,000 and $136,788.19 (25%)
allocated to the Small (Biannual) Grants up to $3,000. The Rotary Club of Balwyn
contributed $151,200.75 in accordance with the condition of the lease for the
Camberwell Sunday Market, and Council contributed the balance. .
The Panel has recommended funding allocations that closely align with Council’s
strategic objectives and priorities. The recommended applications focused on new
activities and projects, which will increase capacity, sustainability and participation
in local organisations and deliver practical community strengthening outcomes.
Council officers from eight Council departments provided support and advice to
applicants to strengthen the development of their proposals.
The Panel recommended full or partial funding for 62 applications out of a total of 70
applications received. The total amount allocated by the Panel is $292,407.07 with
$117,959.49 remaining.
The Panel requested that the remaining funds of $117,959.49 be allocated to the
COVID-19 Community Response Grants, and the second round of the Small
(Biannual) Grants opening towards the end of 2020. As both grants will be funded
within the Annual Community Strengthening Grants budget for 20-21, no formal
Council endorsement is required.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Wegman
Seconded Councillor Ross
That Council resolve to endorse the Annual Community Strengthening Grants
2020-21 funding recommendations (as provided in Attachment 2, annexed to
the minutes).
CARRIED
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Kew Heritage Gap Study - Amendment C294 (Part 2) - Adoption of
Amendment

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the independent Planning Panel’s
recommendations in respect to Amendment C294 to the Boroondara Planning
Scheme and to seek a decision of Council to adopt Amendment C294 (Part 2).
The amendment implements the recommendations of the Kew Heritage Gap Study.
Exhibition of the amendment occurred from 21 February to 25 March 2019. Council
received 95 submissions, including 28 supporting submissions, 11 partially
supporting submissions, 53 opposing submissions and three that either support or
oppose the amendment.
An independent Panel hearing was held on 17, 18, 21, 23 October and 6-7
November 2019. Thirty seven submitters were represented at the Panel hearing.
On 21 January 2020, officers received the Panel’s report for Amendment C294. The
Panel generally supports the amendment and recommends it be adopted subject to
the following key changes:
•

Abandon applying the Heritage Overlay to:
the west side of Bradford Avenue (Nos.7 to 15), 20 Bradford Avenue, 12
Stoke Avenue and 365 Cotham Road in the Bradford Estate Precinct.
o the Clifton Estate Residential Precinct.
o the Goldthorns Hill and Environs Precinct.
o

The Panel further suggests Council investigate the following properties for inclusion
in the Heritage Overlay as individually significant places:
•
•

20 and 26 Goldthorns Avenue and 97 Argyle Road, Kew (Goldthorns Hill and
Environs Precinct). These properties are identified as ‘significant’ to the precinct.
3-5, 6, 7, and 8 Florence Avenue, Kew (Clifton Estate Residential Precinct).
These properties are identified as ‘contributory’ to the precinct.

A summary of the Panel’s findings and officers’ responses were presented to the
Urban Planning Special Committee (UPSC) on 20 July 2020.
The UPSC resolved to accept the officers’ recommendations with the exception of
the recommendation regarding the Kew Service Reservoir at 370-376 Cotham Road,
Kew. The UPSC resolved to split the amendment into two parts with Part 1 relating
to the Kew Service Reservoir at 370-376 Cotham Road, Kew and Part 2 relating to
all other properties affected by Amendment C294. Yarra Valley Water, the property
owner of 370-376 Cotham Road, Kew had not lodged a submission during the
preliminary consultation and public exhibition process associated with Amendment
C294. Splitting the amendment will allow further consultation to be undertaken with
Yarra Valley Water without delaying Council’s consideration of the substantive
amendment.
The UPSC resolved to refer Amendment C294 (Part 2) to a meeting of Council for
adoption.
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Councillor Healey declared a direct Conflict of Interest in this item in accordance with
Section 77(B) of the Local Government Act 1989. Councillor Healey advised the
nature of the interest was "that some people engaged in my election campaign have
also made submissions to this planning scheme amendment".
Councillor Sinfield declared a direct Conflict of Interest in this item in accordance
with Section 77(B) of the Local Government Act 1989. Councillor Sinfield advised
the nature of the interest was "a property considered within the study is located
within close proximity to my residence and as such the outcome could affect my
residential amenity”.
Councillor Healey and Councillor Sinfield left the meeting at 7.13pm prior to the
consideration and vote on this item.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Hurd
Seconded Councillor Addis
That Council resolve to:
1.

Adopt Amendment C294boro (Part 2) to the Boroondara Planning
Scheme, as shown in Attachments 1 to 5, in accordance with Section
29(1) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

2.

Submit Amendment C294boro (Part 2) to the Minister for Planning for
approval in accordance with Section 31(1) of the Planning and
Environment Act 1987.

3.

Following the Minister’s approval of Amendment C294boro (Part 2),
update two (2) Reference Documents to the Boroondara Planning Scheme
(the Boroondara Schedule of Gradings Map and Boroondara Heritage
Property Database) to include heritage gradings and relevant heritage
citations for properties affected by Amendment C294boro (Part 2).

4.

Authorise the Director City Planning to undertake minor administrative
changes to the amendment and associated planning controls that do not
change the intent of the controls.

CARRIED
Councillor Healey re-entered the meeting at 7.18pm
Councillor Sinfield re-entered the meeting at 7.20pm
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Amendment C284 - Hawthorn Heritage Gap Study - Decision to Adopt
Amendment

The purpose of the officers’ report is to inform Council of the outcomes of the
independent Planning Panel hearing for Amendment C284 to the Boroondara
Planning Scheme and to seek a decision of Council to adopt Amendment C284 (Part
1).
Amendment C284 (Part 1) proposes to implement the recommendations of the City
of Boroondara Municipal Wide Heritage Gap Study: Volume 3 Hawthorn (the Study)
prepared by Context Pty Ltd by:
•
•

applying the Heritage Overlay to 13 individually significant heritage places and
seven heritage precincts; and
extending the existing Central Gardens Precinct (HO146), Glenferrie Hill Precinct
(HO149), Leslie Street Precinct (HO164) and West Hawthorn Precinct (HO220)
to include additional properties.

Exhibition of Amendment C284 and the Study was undertaken from 7 February to 12
March 2019 in accordance with Section 19 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 (the Act). Council received a total of 59 submissions during exhibition, including
nine supporting submissions, 19 partially supporting submissions, 30 objections and
one submission in objection which was later withdrawn. In addition, four late
objecting submissions were received in May and June 2019.
A Panel hearing was held on 14, 15, 19 and 21 August 2019 to consider the
submissions received to Amendment C284. Fourteen of the submitters presented at
the Panel Hearing. The Panel had regard to the exhibited Amendment and the postexhibition changes recommended by Council as part of its submission. The Panel
considered all submissions to the Amendment whether or not a submitter chose to
present at the Panel hearing.
On 4 October 2019 officers received the Panel’s report for Amendment C284. A
summary of the Panel’s findings and officers’ responses were presented to the
Urban Planning Special Committee (UPSC) on 3 August 2020.
At this meeting, the UPSC endorsed the officer recommendation to split the
amendment into two parts, Part 1 relating to the substantive amendment and Part 2
relating specifically to 36 Kooyongkoot Road, Hawthorn. The UPSC resolved to defer
consideration of Amendment C284 (Part 2) due to legal proceedings being
undertaken with respect to 36 Kooyongkoot Road, Hawthorn. Splitting the
amendment will allow Council to consider the adoption of Amendment C294 (Part 1)
without delay. The UPSC also resolved to accept the Panel recommendations in
relation to Part 1 (as per the officers’ recommendation) and refer Amendment C284
(Part 1) to an Ordinary meeting of Council for adoption, which is the purpose of this
report.
The Panel generally supports Amendment C284 (Part 1) and the majority of
recommendations made by Council through its submissions during the Panel
hearing.
The Panel recommends Amendment C284 (Part 1) be adopted as exhibited subject
to the following key changes:
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1. Abandon applying the Heritage Overlay to:
a) 19 and 23 Robinson Road, Hawthorn (as submitted by Council)
b) 141 and 147 Riversdale Road, Hawthorn (as submitted by Council)
c) 4, 6-10, 12, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34 and 40 Lennox Street, Hawthorn (as submitted
by Council)
d) 328, 330, 1/332, 2/332, 334, 336 and 340 Barkers Road, Hawthorn (as
submitted by Council)
e) 1A and 2A Rae Street, Hawthorn (as submitted by Council)
f) 4 Marian Street, Hawthorn
g) 1A-15 Malmsbury Street, Hawthorn (as submitted by Council)
h) 823-825 Glenferrie Road, Hawthorn (as submitted by Council, correction of
mapping error)
A number of other recommendations are contained within the Panel report relating to
recommended changes to the heritage citations or referencing within the Schedule to
the Heritage Overlay at Clause 43.01 of the Boroondara Planning Scheme.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Ross
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to:
1. Adopt Amendment C284boro (Part 1) to the Boroondara Planning Scheme,
as shown in Attachments 1 to 3, in accordance with Section 29(1) of the
Planning and Environment Act 1987.
2. Submit Amendment C284boro (Part 1) to the Minister for Planning for
approval in accordance with Section 31(1) of the Planning and Environment
Act 1987.
3. Following the Minister’s approval of Amendment C284boro (Part 1), adopt a
change to the Boroondara Schedule of Gradings Map to reflect the
gradings attributed to properties.
4. Authorise the Director City Planning to undertake minor administrative
changes to the amendment and associated planning controls that do not
change the intent of the controls.
CARRIED
7.7

Consideration of Public Submissions and Proposed Adoption of
Boroondara City Council Street Numbering Local Law

The purpose of this report is for Council to consider making the Boroondara City
Council Street Numbering Local Law (SNLL 2020) to enforce the display of allocated
legal street numbers on properties.
The previous Street Numbering Local Law was originally adopted by Council 19 July
2010 and commenced on 6 August 2010. The current Street Numbering Local Law
expired (i.e. its ‘sunset date’) on 6 August 2020.
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On 22 June 2020 Council resolved to begin the statutory process to introduce SNLL
2020. Public notice was given in the Government Gazette and Age newspaper on
25 June 2020. The public notice was also published on Council’s web site on 24
June 2020 and the community were also invited to have their say via the ‘Have Your
Say’ section of the Council website. The closing date for submissions was 24 July
2020.
One written submission has been received. The submitter has expressed the view
due to COVID-19 restrictions it is not possible for the community to be fully engaged
in the proposal to make the SNLL 2020 and has suggested Council extend the
existing Local Law to at least early December but preferably to February 2021. The
current Street Numbering Local Law expired on 6 August 2020 and therefore it
cannot be extended.
Officers consider the previous Street Numbering Local Law was beneficial in
enforcing the display of street numbers, where there was a dispute regarding the
street number allocated. Although the previous Street Numbering Local Law was in
operation for 10 years, it was never actually necessary to issue any penalty notices
under the previous Local Law.
The intent of SNLL 2020 is to provide Council with the necessary legal enforcement
means when disputes over street numbering cannot be resolved during negotiation
or when all other avenues have been exhausted.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Sinfield
Seconded Councillor Addis
That Council resolve:
1.

Having complied with the requirements of Section 119(2) of the Local
Government Act 1989 (the Act) and having received and considered a
submission under Section 223 of the Act to make the Boroondara City
Council Street Numbering Local Law (as annexed to the Minutes) in
accordance with Sections 111 and 119 of the Act.

2.

To affix the common seal to the Boroondara City Council Street
Numbering Local Law.

3.

To give notice of the making of the Boroondara City Council Street
Numbering Local Law in the Victorian Government Gazette and a public
notice in the Age newspaper in accordance with Section 119(3) of the Act.

4.

Having made the Boroondara City Council Street Numbering Local Law to
send a copy to the Minister for Local Government in accordance with
Section 119(4) of the Act.
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To write to the person who made the submission and thank them for their
submission and inform them of the Council decision. The reason for that
decision being Council considers the Boroondara City Council Street
Numbering Local Law is necessary and appropriate to provide for the
protection and enhancement of the amenity and environment of the
municipality through the uniform numbering of properties throughout the
municipality.

CARRIED
7.8

Delegated Committees - Establishment, delegations and appointment of
Chairpersons and members

This report considers the establishment the Services Delegated Committee, Urban
Planning Delegated Committee, and Management Performance Review Delegated
Committee, the appointment of Chairpersons and members to these Committees
and recommends the making of the Instrument of Delegation for each Committee.
The sections of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) relating to delegated
committees came into effect on 1 May 2020. The delegations to the existing
committees made under the Local Government Act 1989 remain in force until 1
September 2020 or until the committees are established by Instruments of
Delegation made under the provisions of the Act.
Instruments of Delegation represent the formal delegation of powers by Council and
enable the business of Council to be carried out efficiently and in line with Council
approved policies.
The Instruments of Delegation to the existing Services, Urban Planning and
Management Performance Review Special Committees were last adopted by
Council on 27 February 2017.
Council subscribes to the Maddocks Lawyers Authorisations and Delegations
Service, which provides advice regarding legislative amendments and the provision
of template instruments which are then tailored to organisational requirements.
Officers are of the view that the Council has been well served by the existing
committee structure and no changes to the structure are proposed. Based on advice
from Maddocks Lawyers, the previous versions of the Instruments of Delegation from
Council to the Committees have been updated to reflect the recent legislative
changes as a result of the proclamation of the Act.

City of Boroondara

Page 22

Council Meeting Minutes

24/08/2020

MOTION
Moved Councillor Hollingsworth
Seconded Councillor Addis
In exercise of the powers conferred by s 63 of the Local Government Act 2020
(the Act), Council resolves that:
1. From the date of this resolution, there be established as Delegated
Committees the Services Delegated Committee, the Urban Planning
Delegated Committee and the Management Performance Review Delegated
Committee.
2. The purpose of the Delegated Committees are those set out in Attachment
2 as annexed to the minutes.
3. The members of the Services Delegated Committee are Councillor Addis,
Councillor Healey, Councillor Hollingsworth, Councillor Hurd, Councillor
Parke, Councillor Thompson, Councillor Ross, Councillor Sinfield,
Councillor Watson and Councillor Wegman.
4. The members of the Urban Planning Delegated Committee are Councillor
Addis, Councillor Healey, Councillor Hollingsworth, Councillor Hurd,
Councillor Parke, Councillor Thompson, Councillor Ross, Councillor
Sinfield, Councillor Watson and Councillor Wegman.
5. The members of the Performance Management Review Committee are
Councillor Addis, Councillor Sinfield, Councillor Watson and Councillor
Wegman.
6. The Chairperson of the:
• Services Delegated Committee is Councillor Ross;
• Urban Planning Delegated Committee is Councillor Thompson.
• Management Performance Review Delegated Committee is Councillor
Watson.
7. A quorum for each of the three Committees is a whole number that is an
absolute majority, which is the number of members that is greater than half
the total number of members of the Delegated Committees.
8. All members of the Delegated Committees have voting rights on the
respective Delegated Committees.
9. There be delegated to the members of the Delegated Committees the
powers, duties and functions set out in the Instruments of Delegation (the
Instruments) as at Attachment 2 as annexed to the minutes.
10. The Instruments:
a) come into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed to
the Instrument; and
b) remain in force until Council determines to vary or revoke it.
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11. The powers, duties and functions conferred on the members of the
Delegated Committees by the Instruments must be exercised in accordance
with any guidelines or policies Council may from time to time adopt.
12. The Instruments be sealed.
CARRIED
7.9

Recommendations of the Audit Committee - Annual Financial
Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020

This report presents to Council the recommendations of the Audit Committee
meeting held on 19 August 2020 pertaining to the Annual Financial Statements and
Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020. This report also provides
an overview of the delivery of all Service Performance Indicators and Council’s
assessment against the Governance and Management Checklist.
The Annual Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30
June 2020 were reviewed by the Audit Committee and were endorsed for Council’s
consideration.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Hollingsworth
Seconded Councillor Sinfield
That Council resolve to:
1. Record its approval in principle of the Annual Financial Statements and
Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020 as contained in
Attachment 1 and annexed to the confidential minutes, as approved by the
Audit Committee.
2. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to provide the Annual Financial
Statements, and Performance Statement to the Auditor-General.
3. Authorise the Mayor, Councillor Cynthia Watson and Councillor Lisa
Hollingsworth (representing the Audit Committee) to certify the Annual
Financial Statements and Performance Statement in their final form.
4. Authorise the Principal Accounting Officer to implement any non-material
changes to the Annual Financial Statements and Performance Statement as
recommended by the Auditor-General. A summary of these changes if any
will be presented at the next Audit Committee meeting.
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5. Note that any material changes to the Annual Financial Statements and
Performance Statement that may be required by the Auditor-General
following his review of the statements will be discussed with the Audit
Committee Chair prior to being finalised.
6. Note the results of the Local Government Performance Reporting
Framework (LGPRF) indicators and the assessment of materiality
thresholds (Attachment 2).
7. Note the Governance and Management Checklist (Attachment 3).
CARRIED
7.10

Establishment of Audit and Risk Committee

The new Local Government Act 2020 (the new Act) received Royal Assent on 24
March 2020. Division 8 of the new Act sets out the requirements for the Audit and
Risk Committee. Specifically, section 53 of the Act requires Council to establish an
Audit and Risk Committee and section 54 requires Council to prepare and approve
an Audit and Risk Committee Charter. This must be done on or before 1 September
2020. This report recommends Council establish an Audit and Risk Committee and
provides a draft Audit and Risk Committee Charter for Council’s consideration.
Following discussion at the May 2020 Audit and Risk Committee meeting, a working
group comprising Cr Cynthia Watson, independent member Ms Claire Filson and the
Director Customer Experience and Business Transformation was formed to review
Council’s existing Audit Committee Charter and consider changes required to
achieve compliance with the new Act.
A draft Audit and Risk Committee Charter 2020 has been prepared (Attachment 1).
Key changes recommended include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

A re-wording and re-ordering of section 1.1 to clearly set out the Committee’s
responsibilities in line with specific requirements of the new Act.
Inclusion within the proposed Charter of an updated Appendix A ‘Measures to
assist identification of Audit and Risk Committee success in carrying out its
defined role’.
Amendments to reflect the new Act requirements in the relevant sections within
the Charter. Attachment 2 to this report contains a list of requirements in the
new Act and demonstrates how the draft Charter addresses each of these.
A Committee structure comprising three independent members and two
councillors, giving effect to the new Act requirement there be a majority of
independent members.
An amendment to provide greater flexibility in the terms of appointment of
independent members in order to stagger the expiry dates to ensure seamless
continuity of the Committee’s functions.
The inclusion of an independent Committee member on the Tender Evaluation
Panel when there is a contract to be awarded to appoint an internal auditor.

The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the attached draft Charter during the
meeting held 19 August 2020 and endorsed it for final consideration by Council.
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MOTION
Moved Councillor Thompson
Seconded Councillor Hurd
That Council resolve to:
1.

In accordance with Section 53 of the Local Government Act 2020,
establish an Audit and Risk Committee.

2.

Adopt the attached proposed Audit and Risk Committee Charter
(Attachment 1).

3.

Endorse the appointment of existing independent members, Mr Andrew
Dix (Chair), Ms Claire Filson and Ms Freya Marsden for the balance of
their membership tenures as previously resolved by Council.

4.

Appoint Councillor Watson and Councillor Hollingsworth to the Audit
and Risk Committee until such time as Council resolves otherwise.

CARRIED
7.14

Adoption - Public Transparency Policy

The purpose of this report is to present the proposed Public Transparency Policy
(proposed Policy) to Council for consideration.
The Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) requires Council to adopt and maintain a
Public Transparency Policy by 1 September 2020.
On 20 July 2020, Council resolved the proposed Policy be endorsed for public
consultation. The public consultation period commenced on 23 July 2020 and
closed at 5.15pm on 6 August 2020. Council received four (4) written submissions
(including two (2) late submissions). Two submitters spoke in support of their written
submission at the Special Meeting of the Services Special Committee held on 17
August 2020.
Officers have considered the feedback provided during the public consultation
process and have finalised the Public Transparency Policy. A copy of the proposed
Policy is at Attachment 1.
The proposed Public Transparency Policy is presented to Council for consideration.
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MOTION
Moved Councillor Hurd
Seconded Councillor Addis
That Council resolve:
1. To adopt the Public Transparency Policy (as annexed to the Minutes).
2. The Public Transparency Policy commences on 1 September 2020.
CARRIED
7.15

Adoption - Governance Rules

The purpose of this report is to present the proposed Governance Rules to Council
for adoption.
The Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) requires Council to develop a set of
Governance Rules.
The Act makes it mandatory for Council to ensure a process of community
engagement is followed in developing or amending the Governance Rules. On 20
July 2020, Council resolved the proposed Governance Rules be endorsed for public
consultation.
The public consultation period commenced on 23 July 2020 and closed at 5.15pm on
6 August 2020. Eighteen written submissions (including two late submissions) were
received in relation to the proposed Governance Rules. Three submitters spoke in
support of their written submission at the Special Meeting of the Services Special
Committee held on 17 August 2020.
Officers have considered the feedback provided during the public consultation
process and have finalised the Governance Rules. A copy of the proposed
Governance Rules is at (Attachment 1).
The proposed Governance Rules are presented to Council for consideration.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Healey
Seconded Councillor Wegman
That Council resolve:
1.

To adopt the Governance Rules (as annexed to the Minutes).

2.

The Governance Rules commence on 1 September 2020.
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AMENDMENT
Moved Councillor Ross
Seconded Councillor Sinfield
That Council resolve:
1.

To adopt the Governance Rules (as annexed to the Minutes) subject to the
deletion of sub-Rule 54.2.2.

2.

The Governance Rules commence on 1 September 2020.

The Amendment was put and LOST on the casting vote of the Mayor.
Councillor Addis called for a division
Affirmative
Councillor Jane Addis
Councillor Lisa Hollingsworth
Councillor Steve Hurd
Councillor Coral Ross
Councillor Felicity Sinfield

Negative
Councillor Phillip Healey
Councillor Jim Parke
Councillor Garry Thompson
Councillor Cynthia Watson
Councillor Jack Wegman

The Mayor declared the Motion LOST
The substantive motion was put and CARRIED
7.17

Consideration of Public Submissions and Proposed Adoption of
Common Seal and Conduct at Meetings Local Law

The purpose of this report is for Council to consider making the Boroondara City
Council Common Seal and Conduct at Council Meetings Local Law (proposed Local
Law).
On 13 July 2020 Council resolved to commence the statutory process to make the
proposed Local Law. Public notice was given in the Government Gazette and Age
newspaper on 16 July 2020. The public notice was also published on Council’s web
site on 16 July 2020 and the community were invited to have their say via the ‘Have
Your Say’ section of the Council website. The closing date for submissions was 14
August 2020.
No written submissions were received.
The proposed Local Law, if made, will revoke Council’s Meeting Procedure Local
Law 2017 (current Local Law) and replace the current Local Law to the extent that
the current Local Law regulates the use of Council’s common seal and creates
offences.
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The current Local Law addresses the meeting procedure applicable to Council (and
Special Committee) meetings. It also regulates the use of Council’s common seal
and creates an offence for misuse of the common seal and disorderly conduct at
Council (and Special Committee) meetings.
The meeting procedure applicable to Council (and Delegated Committee) meetings
will now be addressed through Governance Rules made under the Local
Government Act 2020 (2020 Act). As part of the transition to the 2020 Act, Council
needs to revoke the current Local Law to make way for Council’s Governance Rules.
However, the use of the common seal cannot be addressed through Governance
Rules, nor can offences be created. Accordingly, Council will need to resolve to
repeal the current Local Law and make the proposed Local Law to provide for the
continued regulation of Council’s common seal and offences in respect of conduct at
meetings.
Proposed changes brought about by the proposed Local Law are not substantial and
will, save for a minor change in terminology, reproduce the existing provisions of the
current Local Law with respect to the regulation of the common seal and creation of
offences.
MOTION
Moved Councillor Hurd
Seconded Councillor Sinfield
That Council resolve to:
1.

Having complied with the requirements of Section 119(2) of the Local
Government Act 1989 (the Act) and having received no submissions
under Section 223 of the Act to make the Boroondara City Council
Common Seal and Conduct at Council Meetings Local Law (as annexed to
the Minutes) in accordance with Sections 111 and 119 of the Act.

2.

To affix the common seal to the Boroondara City Council Common Seal
and Conduct at Council Meetings Local Law.

3.

To give notice of the making of the Boroondara City Council Common
Seal and Conduct at Council Meetings Local Law in the Victorian
Government Gazette and a public notice in the Age newspaper in
accordance with Section 119(3) of the Act.

4.

Having made the Boroondara City Council Common Seal and Conduct at
Council Meetings Local Law to send a copy to the Minister for Local
Government in accordance with Section 119(4) of the Act.

5.

Revoke Council’s Meeting Procedure Local Law 2017 effective from 1
September 2020.

CARRIED
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8.

General business

8.1

East Camberwell Tennis Club

Councillor Hollingsworth and the Mayor, Councillor Watson congratulated the
East Camberwell Tennis Club on celebrating its Centenary this year.
9.

Urgent business

Nil
10.

Confidential business

Nil
The meeting concluded at 8.08pm

Confirmed
Chairperson

____________________________________________

Date

____________________________________________
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Council Meeting
Monday 24 August 2020

Attachments annexed to the minutes for the following
items:
4.

Assemblies of councillors

7.2

2020-21 Annual Community Strengthening Grant
Allocations

7.7

Consideration of Public Submissions and Proposed
Adoption of Boroondara City Council Street Numbering
Local Law

7.8

Delegated Committees - Establishment, delegations and
appointment of Chairpersons and members

7.9

Recommendations of the Audit Committee - Annual
Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the
year ended 30 June 2020

7.14

Adoption - Public Transparency Policy

7.15

Adoption - Governance Rules

7.16

Adoption - Councillor and Member of a delegated
committee Expenses Policy

7.17

Consideration of Public Submissions and Proposed
Adoption of Common Seal and Conduct at Meetings
Local Law

7.18

Instrument of Delegation - Council to Members of
Council Staff

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

Record of Assemblies of Councillors
Assembly details
Councillor Briefing &
Discussion
9 June 2020

Councillor Briefing &
Discussion
15 June 2020

Councillor Briefing &
Discussion
22 June 2020

Councillor
attendees

Officer attendees

Matters discussed

Conflict of Interest
disclosures

Cr Jane Addis
Cr Phillip Healey
Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Cr Steve Hurd
Cr Jim Parke
Cr Coral Ross
Cr Felicity Sinfield
Cr Garry Thompson
Cr Cynthia Watson
Cr Jack Wegman

Phillip Storer (CEO)
Carolyn McClean (DCD)
Shiran Wickramasinghe (DCP)
Daniel Freer (DEI)
Nicole White (MCP&D)
David Thompson (MG)
Celia Robinson (COG)
Katherine Wright (CSP&R)
Andrea Learbuch (SCPO)
Helen Pavlidis (GPO)
Elizabeth Manou (GPO)

Item-1
Item-2
Item-3

Homelessness and Social Housing
North East Link
Recreation Hall Reserve

Nil

Cr Jane Addis
Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Cr Steve Hurd
Cr Jim Parke
Cr Coral Ross
Cr Felicity Sinfield
Cr Garry Thompson
Cr Cynthia Watson
Cr Jack Wegman

Phillip Storer (CEO)
Shiran Wickramasinghe (DCP)
Carolyn McClean (DCD)
David Thompson (MG)
Nick Lund (MHAADS)
Andrew McHugh (MFYR)
Sam Taylor (SCRW)
Celia Robinson (COG)
John Lorkin (CRPS)
Helen Pavlidis (GPO)
Elizabeth Manou (GPO))

Item-1
Item-2
Item-3

Street Numbering Local Law
COVID-19
Heritage

Nil

Cr Jane Addis
Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Cr Steve Hurd
Cr Jim Parke
Cr Coral Ross
Cr Felicity Sinfield
Cr Garry Thompson
Cr Cynthia Watson
Cr Jack Wegman

Phillip Storer (CEO)
Carolyn McClean (DCD)
Shiran Wickramasinghe (DCP)
Daniel Freer (DEI)
Jim Hondrakis
David Thompson (MG)
Andrew Mackinnon
Adam Hall
Clare Davey (CTM)
Celia Robinson (COG)
Michael Tanner (CT)
Susan Murphy (A/CT)
Andrea Learbuch (SCPO)
Alice Leake (SLA)
Tom Thompsett (POSGP)
Helen Pavlidis (GPO)
Elizabeth Manou (GPO)

Item-1
Item-2
Item-3
Item-4

Sports Ground Provision
Gordon Barnard Reserve
North East Link
Proposed Public Transparency Policy
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Record of Assemblies of Councillors
Assembly details
Councillor Briefing &
Discussion
6 July 2020

Councillor Briefing &
Discussion
3 August 2020

Statutory Planning
Advisory Committee

Councillor
attendees

Officer attendees

Matters discussed

Cr Jane Addis
Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Cr Steve Hurd
Cr Jim Parke
Cr Coral Ross
Cr Felicity Sinfield
Cr Garry Thompson
Cr Cynthia Watson
Cr Jack Wegman

Phillip Storer (CEO)
Shiran Wickramasinghe (DCP)
Bruce Dobson (DCXBT)
Daniel Freer (DEI)
David Thompson (MG)
Celia Robinson (COG)
Helen Pavlidis (GPO)
Elizabeth Manou (GPO)

Item-1

Cr Jane Addis
Cr Phillip Healey
Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Cr Steve Hurd
Cr Jim Parke
Cr Coral Ross
Cr Felicity Sinfield
Cr Garry Thompson
Cr Cynthia Watson
Cr Jack Wegman

Shiran Wickramasinghe (DCP)
David Thompson (MG)
Celia Robinson (COG)
Helen Pavlidis (GPO)
Elizabeth Manou (GPO)

Item-1 2020 Council Elections

Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Cr Felicity Sinfield
Cr Cynthia Watson

Simon Mitchell (MSP)
Leo Bosley (SSP)

Item-1 34 Jurang Street, Balwyn

Item-2
Item-3

Proposed Common Seal and Conduct at Meetings Local
Law
Proposed Councillor and Delegated Committee Member
Expenses Policy
COVID-19

Conflict of Interest
disclosures
Nil

Nil

Nil
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Record of Assemblies of Councillors
Index of officer titles
AC
ACPO
ADO
AO
BPO

Assistant Curator
Arts and Culture Project Officer
Access & Diversity Officer
Administration Officer
Boroondara Volunteer Resource Centre
Program Officer
BAG
Business Analyst Grants
BPOL
Business Process Optimisation Lead
CA
Coordinator Arboriculture
CBA
Coordinator Building Assets
CBOS
Coordinator Business Operations and
Systems
CBP
Communications Business Partner
CBS
Coordinator Business Systems
COOBS
Coordinator Building Services
CC
Coordinator Communications
CCF
Coordinator Cultural Facilities
CCI
Coordinator Corporate Information
CCO
Chief Customer Officer
CCP
Coordinator Civil Projects
CCPl
Coordinator Corporate Planning
CCS
Coordinator Children’s Services
CCSP
Coordinator Community Support
CcuS
Coordinator Customer Service
CDM
Coordinator Drainage Maintenance
CDEO
Cultural Development and Events Officer
CDO
Community Development Officer
CE
Coordinator Engagement
CEDL
Customer Experience Digital Lead
CESDL
Customer Experience Service Design Lead
CEO
Chief Executive Officer
CEP
Coordinator Engineering Projects
CES
Coordinator Environmental Sustainability
CEY
Coordinator Early Years
CFA
Coordinator Financial Accounting
CFC
Cultural Facilities Coordinator
CFM
Coordinator Facilities Maintenance
CFO
Chief Financial Officer
CFS
Coordinator Family Services
CIA
Continuous Improvement Advisor
CIAS
Coordinator Integrated Asset Systems
CIO
Chief Information Officer
CLD
Coordinator Landscape & Design
City of Boroondara

CLF
CLL
CLLFS
CLLPS
CLS
CMASL
CSHL
CMCH
COG
CoLD
CoSP
CoT
CPD
CPE
CPH
CPP
CPSO
CRFM
CRPS
CRRAM
CRTL
CSA
CSAO
CSD
CSDAADS
CSDAO
CSL
CsoP
CSP
CSPO
CSS
CT
CTM
CVS
CWM
CWC
CYS
DCD
DCP
DCS

Coordinator Leisure Facilities
Coordinator Local Laws
Coordinator Local Laws Field Services
Coordinator Local Laws Projects and Strategy
Coordinator Leisure Services
Collection Maintenance and Adult Services
Librarian
Collection Services and Hawthorn Librarian
Cluster Coordinator Maternal & Child Health
Services
Coordinator Governance
Coordinator Landscape and Design
Community Strengthening Planner
Coordinator Trees
Coordinator Programming & Development
Civil Projects Engineer
Coordinator Public Health
Coordinator Purchasing and Procurement
Community Planning Support Officer
Coordinator Road & Footpath Maintenance
Coordinator Revenue & Property Services
Coordinator Road Related Asset Maintenance
Corporate Reporting Team Leader
Communications Senior Advisor
Customer Service Administration Officer
Coordinator Strategy and Development
Coordinator Service Delivery Active Ageing
and Disability Services
Community Safety Drug and Alcohol Officer
Collection Services & Librarian
Coordinator Social Planning
Coordinator Statutory Planning
Children’s Services Project Officer
Coordinator Sport Services
Coordinator Traffic
Coordinator Transport Management
Coordinator Volunteer Support & Development
Coordinator Waste Management
Coordinator Waste Contracts and Projects
Coordinator Youth Services
Director Community Development
Director City Planning
Director Corporate Services

DEI
DMC
DSA
EC
EDO
EFBA
EHO
EMCCE
EMPCD
EMPO
ERPO
ESMA
EYAO
FAC
FC
FGDC
FSDO
FSP
FTP
FYAO
FYSRO
GMPI
GO
GPO
HPPO
HSWL
HRA
HWPO
IA
ITPM
LA
LBPT
LCSP
LFDO
LLO
LSO
MAC
MAFB
MAM

Director Environment and Infrastructure
Digital Media Creator
Digital Senior Adviser
Environment Coordinator
Economic Development Officer
Engagement & Facilitation Business Analyst
Environment Health Officer
Executive Manager Communications
& Customer Experience
Executive Manager People Culture and
Development
Emergency Management Project Officer
Engagement and Research Project Officer
Essential Safety Measures Administrator
Early Years Administration Officer
Financial Accounting Coordinator
Flight Controller
Formal Gardens and Design Coordinator
Family Services Development Officer
Family Services Planner
Fast Track Planner
Family Youth Administration Officer
Family and Youth Support and Resource
Officer
Group Manager Parks and Infrastructure
Governance Officer
Governance Projects Officer
Health Planning and Policy Officer
Health Safety Wellbeing Lead
Human Resources Advisor
Health WellPlan and Policy Officer
Internal Auditor
Information Technology Program Manager
Landscape Architect
Lead - Business Partnering Team
Leader Communications Strategy and
Performance
Leisure Facilities Development Officer
Local Laws Officer
Leisure Services Officer
Manager Arts & Culture
Manager Arts Facilities Business
Manager Asset Management
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MAO
MAS
MBD
MBS
MCHC
MCHN
MCIL
MCPD
MCPS
MED
MEO
MESL
MFYR
MG
MHS
MHR
MIBT
MIS
MIT
MLL
MLS
MPCD
MPG
MPS
MPPM
MPR
MSP
MSSO
MSTP
MTT
OBA
OCRO
ODC
OP
PALO
PAC
PCCS
PCM
PSD
PJA
PJM
PJO
PLO
PMO

Metro Access Officer
Media and Advocacy Specialist
Manager Business Development
Manager Building Services
(& Municipal Building Surveyor)
Maternal Child Health Coordinator
Maternal Child Health Nurse
Manager Community Information and Libraries
Manager Community Planning & Development
Manager Commercial & Property Services
Manager Economic Development
Member Engagement Officer
Manager Environment & Sustainable Living
Manager Family Youth & Recreation
Manager Governance
Manager Health, Active Ageing & Disability
Services
Manager Human Resources
Manager Innovation and Business
Transformation
Manager Infrastructure Services
Manager Information Technology
Manager Local Laws
Manager Library Arts and Cultural Services
Manager People Culture and Development
Manager Parks & Gardens
Manager Projects & Strategy
Major Projects Project Manager
Manager Public Relations
Manager Statutory Planning
Maintenance Systems and Support Officer
Manager Strategic Planning
Manager Traffic and Transport
Online Business Analyst
Online Community Relations Officer
Organisation Development Coordinator
Online Publisher
Paralegal Officer
Planning Appeals Coordinator
Program Change Communications Specialist
Program Change Manager
Principal Digital Strategist
Project Administrator
Project Manager
Project Officer
Planning Liaison Officer
Property Management Officer
City of Boroondara

PO
PP
PPO
PRA
PRO
PROMOL
PSO
PSuO
ROAS
RP
RPO
SA
SACS
SAD
SAE
SAO
SAPO
SAWP
SBA
SCA
SCAC
SCADS
SCBP
SCI
SCCS
SCFCS
SCOS
SCRW
SEP
SESO
SHRA
SL
SLA
SLLO
SMA
SMAC
SO
SoPO
SP
SPA
SPJO
SPM
SPO
SPP
SPPO

Payroll Officer
Principal Planner
Para Planning Officer
Project Architect
Programs Officer
Program Management Office Lead
Planning Support Officer
Principal Sustainability Officer
Recreation Officer and Administration Support
Recreation Planner
Recreation Project Officer
Senior Arborist
Senior Advisor Corporate Support
Service Administrator
Senior Asset Engineer
Senior Administration Officer
Senior Asset Protection Officer
Senior Asset Works Planner
Senior Business Analyst
Senior Communications Officer
Senior Curator, Arts & Culture
Senior Coordinator Ageing and Disability
Services
Senior Communications Business Partner
Senior Coordinator Infrastructure
Senior Coordinator Community Strengthening
Senior Coordinator Family and Children’s
Services
Senior Coordinator Open Space
Senior Coordinator Recreation and Wellbeing
Senior Environmental Planner
Senior Environmental Sustainability Officer
Social and Health Research Analyst
Systems Librarian
Senior Landscape Architect
Senior Local Laws Officer
Senior Media Adviser
Senior Management Accountant
Subdivision Officer
Social Planning Officer
Statutory Planner
Senior Project Architect
Senior Project Officer
Senior Project Manager
Senior Planning Officer
Senior Project Planner
Senior Policy and Project Officer

SRCM
SSCA
SSO
SSOLL
SSOPI
SSP
STE
STO
SCL
SCS
STP
STPO
STRP
STPPPO
SWC
SWE
TE
TLBVRC
TLC
TLCS
TLCSA
TLD
TLDR
TLDS
TLED
TLEP
TLHP
TLHS
TLID
TLL
TLRM
TLSP
TLTM
TLWP
TOC
TSP
TSTL
UD
VSS
VEO
VSDO
WPC
YCLO

Senior Recreation Contracts Manager
Senior Strategic Communications Adviser
Senior Sustainability Officer
Support Services Officer Local Laws
Support Services Officer Parks &
Infrastructure
Senior Statutory/Strategic Planner
Strategic Transport Engineer
Sustainable Transport Officer
Strategic Communications Lead
Strategic Communications Specialist
Senior Transport Planner
Statutory Planning Officer
Strategic Planner
Strategic Projects, Partnerships and Planning
Officer
Senior Works Controller
Senior Writer and Editor
Transport Engineer
Team Leader Boroondara Volunteer Resource
Centre
Team Leader Compliance
Team Leader Customer Service
Team Leader Customer Service
Administration
Team Leader Disabilities
Team Leader Drainage
Team Leader Drainage Strategy
Team Leader Economic Development
Team Leader Environmental Planning
Team Leader Health Protection
Team Leader Health Services
Team Leader Infectious Diseases
Team Leader Local Laws
Team Leader Risk Management
Team Leader Strategic Planning
Team Leader Transport Management
Team Leader Works Permits
Turf Operations Coordinator
Technical Support Planner
Technical Support Team Leader
Urban Designer
Venue Services Supervisor
Volunteer Engagement Officer
Volunteer Sector Development Officer
Web and Print Coordinator
Youth Community Liaison Officer
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YDW
YOW
YPDO
YSL
aXXX

Youth Development Worker
Youth Outreach Worker
Youth Planning and Development Officer
Youth Services & Librarian
'a' designates acting
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Attachment 2 - Recommended 2020 Annual Community Strengthening Grant allocations
Funding Requested

Panel
Recommendation

1 Alfred Road Kindergarten

Organisation

Indigenous Walking Path and Cultural Awareness
Education

Funding is requested to build an Indigenous sensory garden. Funding would be used to purchase materials and equipment
for the sensory garden.

$9,999.95

$8,000.00

2 Ashburton Bowls Club Inc

Next Gen B project

$5,200.00

$3,200.00

3 Ashburton Community Centre

Ashburton Handcrafted - a quarterly art and craft
community event

Funding is requested to deliver the Next Gen B Project, which aims to increase the number of young people participating in
lawn bowls at Ashburton Bowls Club. Funding would be used to purchase small sets of bowls suitable for primary students,
police checks, printing of learning manuals, advertising and curriculum development.
Funding is requested to hold a handcrafted market alongside the quarterly Artisan markets held adjacent to the Ashburton
Community Centre. Funding would be used for advertising, purchase of outdoor banners and A frame, tables, catering
crockery and tutor fees.

$8,058.00

$8,058.00

4 Ashburton Traders Association

Ashburton Village Halloween Event

Funding is requested to run a Halloween Trick or Treat event and Movie night for the local community.
F undingwouldbeusedtopurchaseTrickorTreatbuckets, lollies for businesses to give to customers, posters and advertising
of the event, hire of entertainers and face painters, providing pizzas and soft drinks at the movie night along with
appropriate staffing.

$3,000.00

$3,000.00

5 Ashburton Uniting Church Tennis Club

Installing a Defibrillator and CPR/Defibrillator training

Funding is requested to purchase a defibrillator.

$1,970.00

$1,970.00

6 Australian Iranian Society of Victoria (AISOV)

FUTSAL Annual Indoor Competition at the Balwyn Sports Funding is requested to hold an indoor soccer FUTSAL competition at the Balwyn Sports complex , involving players from the
Complex
Australian community in March 2021.
Funding would be used for advertising, venue hire, equipment purchases, referee fees, trophies, catering, purchase of tshirts and St John's Ambulance.

$7,590.00

$3,890.00

7 AVA Boroondara Senior Citizens Group Inc.

Cultural Performances of Diverse Multicultural
Communities

Funding is requested to hold a cultural festival in October 2021 at the Kew Seniors Centre. Activities will include traditional
cultural dancing, group singing, skill and creative activities lead by our volunteer members. The grant funding will be used to
buy costumes for performances, contribute towards the other performance groups expenditure, promotion, decoration,
printing, and catering for the Festival.

$4,036.37

$4,036.37

8 Balwyn Community Centre

Inspire Women

Funding is requested to deliver Inspire Women at Balwyn Community Centre. The Inspire Women is a series of events,
workshops and lectures, which aim to educate, connect and celebrate women in Boroondara.

Funding would be used for an administration worker, key speaker and workshop facilitator fees, marketing, printing of
promotional materials, catering and marquee hire.

$8,910.00

$8,910.00

9 Balwyn Cricket Club

Mental Health and Financial Assistance

Funding is requested to engage a Mental Health Liaison Officer for players and their family members, many of whom have
been impacted mentally and financially due to COVID-19.

Funding is also requested to assist those players who are, or will, face financial difficulty continuing to play by subsiding their
playing fees.

Funding is also requested to purchase cricket balls .

$6,160.00

$3,500.00

10 Balwyn Evergreen Centre

Balwyn Community Mural

Funding is requested for a mural at the Balwyn Evergreen Centre. The mural will be a visual representation of 60 years of
community connectedness and social cohesion.
Funding would be used for project administration, artist fees, wall preparation costs, lighting and marketing and catering
costs for launch event.


$7,630.00

$7,630.00

11 Barking Spider Visual Theatre

Add Art to Your Years

Funding is requested to deliver "Add Art to Your Years" workshops. Each month for 12 months, Barking Spider Visual Theatre
will deliver a facilitated, socially-engaged activity at Town Hall Gallery followed by a creative-arts workshop delivered in the
Community Access Studio.
Funding would be used for venue hire, workshop facilitator fees, project management fees, workshop materials and catering.

$9,999.27

$9,999.27

12 Boroondara Stroke Support Group Inc

Film Club, Gardening Group, Singalong Group

Funding is requested to establish three groups for members to participate in.

1. Film Group. Show a film monthly, followed by a lunch, during which members will be able to discuss the film and socialise.

2. Gardening Group. Workshops held outside the Hub on trestle tables where members will plant using pots and planting
terrariums, which can be taken home.

3. Singalong Group. An opportunity for members to come together to sing and provide members with an easy to hold and
easy to navigate Song Book.

$9,777.50

$9,777.50

13 Camberwell Community Centre Inc

Development of the Camberwell Community Centre
Website

Funding is requested to develop a state of the art, user-friendly and secure website to support and increase the centre's
business and community engagement when the new centre is completed and reopens in Fairholm Grove in 2021.
Funding would be used for a website developer, advertising and equipment purchases.


$9,975.00

$10,000.00

City of Boroondara

Project Title

Project description

Partial and/or
Conditional Funding

Conflict of
Interest

Partial funding for
materials and equipment
for sensory garden .
Partial funding contribution towards
project

Partial funding contribution towards
project

Partial funding contribution towards
project

Ed Rayment

Attachment Page 1 of 5

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

14 Camberwell Kindergarten and Childcare Inc

CKCC Indigenous Garden Project

Funding is requested for an Indigenous Garden at the kindergarten.
Funding would be used for plants, landscaping materials and labour to install the garden.

Funding is requested for a marketing campaign and open days to recruit Boroondara residents to become members.
Funding would be used for printing, flyer distribution, digital media, brochures and catering for open day events.

$8,774.00

$8,000.00

15 Camberwell Petanque Club Inc

WIDESPREAD PROMOTION OF PETANQUE TO THE
BENEFITOFBOROONDARA’SCOMMUNITY

16 Canterbury Area Toy Library

$9,822.00

$9,822.00

Supporting learning through play in preschool and early
primary years

Funding is requested to purchase a wider range of toys suitable for children 3-8+ years old.

$8,777.81

$8,777.81

Panel encourages a
promotional campaign
and letter box drop

17 Chinese Seniors Cultural Association Inc

Better Community, Better Life

Funding is requested to deliver three events in 2021:
- Chinese New Year Spring Festival 2021
-M
 ooncakeFestival2021
- Seniors Month 2021 activities
Funding would be used for venue hire, purchase of musical instruments, decorations, administration costs, advertising and
catering.

$4,550.00

$1,200.00

Partial funding administration costs
capped at $500

18 Circular Economy Victoria

Boroondara Circular Living Challenge

Funding is requested to deliver The Circular Living Challenge. The challenge is a one-month digital program where
participants can learn and practice Circular Economy principles in their daily lives by signing up through a website. Through
the website, participants can earn points by completing tasks such as: learning Circular Economy concepts; answering
quizzes to consolidate their understanding; and applying these concepts by engaging businesses that support the Circular
Economy.
Funding would be used for advertising, a project manager, venue hire and catering for celebration event and software
subscriptions.

$9,752.00

$10,000.00

19 Community Music Victoria

Boroondara Ukulele Festival

Funding is requested to deliver a Ukulele Festival. The event would include an opportunity for participants to try something
new, enhance and expand on current skills with the ukulele, connect with the local music community through a series of
workshops for beginners through to more experienced ukulele players, opportunities for teachers and leaders to network
with their peers, learn new teaching skills and provide performance opportunities for community ukulele groups and classes.
Funding would be used for marketing, venue hire, printing of workshop materials, catering, event management costs,
purchase of a data projector and portable screen.


$7,303.00

$4,000.00

Partial funding contribution towards
project

20 Connected Community HackerSpace Inc

Diversity talks by minority groups: Makers overcoming
the odds

$2,021.00

$1,021.00

Partial funding Social Media advertising
and workshop materials

21 Craig Family Centre

Craig Family Centre Multicultural Movie Festival

$7,231.78

$2,400.00

Partial funding contribution towards
project

22 Dance for Parkinson's Camberwell

Everyone Kneads A Hand With Parkinson's Putty

Funding is requested for a series of talks/presentations/workshops that will aim to share experiences of people from diverse
backgrounds, in their own words. Proposed topics include disabled/assistive technologies, and speakers will include overseas
students, people who speak languages other than English, people on the Autism spectrum and long term unemployed /
underemployed.
F undingwouldbeusedforadministrationcosts, social media advertising, workshop material and presenters fees.
Funding is requested to deliver the ‘Craig Family Centre Multicultural Movie Festival’. The festival would consist of three
public events, delivered in the warmer months of 2021. Each event will focus on the outdoor screening of a foreign film,
subtitled in English. Each movie will reflect a cultural group that currently attends the Craig Family Centre.
F undingwouldbeusedforhireofoutdoorcinemaequipment, catering, staff for each event and furniture hire.
Funding is requested to engage an occupational therapist to attend dance classes to demonstrate specific exercises to
improve hand strength, function and dexterity.
Funding would be used to purchase of tubs of putty, occupational therapist cost, venue hire and catering.

$1,000.00

$1,000.00

23 Earth Crusaders Incorporated

Take Home Sustainability Incursions

Funding is requested to deliver one workshop to 12 primary schools in the City of Boroondara.
T heincursionswouldrunforonehourandconsistoffouractivities; Make Your Own Beeswax Wraps, Rubbish Relay, Streets
to the Creeks and The Life of Soft Plastics. Through these activities, children learn what single-use plastic is and why it is
wasteful.
F undingwouldbeusedtopurchasematerialsfortheworkshopsandfacilitatorfees.

$3,063.00

$3,063.00

24 Greythorn Traders Association

Community statues show the way around Greythorn
Central

Funding is requested to engage an artist to carry through the theme of the chainsaw statues created by Angela Polglaze
some 20 years ago at the fire station.to create an elongated version of the community of people who frequent our shopping
strip.
Funding would be used for artist fees, installation costs and sculpture materials.

$10,000.00

$10,000.00

25 Hartwell Tennis Club Inc

Get the Boroondara Community into Tennis

Funding is requested to replace worn equipment, purchase new equipment and repair damaged courts.
Funding would be used to purchase tennis court nets and courtside benches, install a wall-mounted television to assist with
online coaching, replace damaged court surfaces, purchase rain beater rollers and drag mats, purchase of a lawn trimmer
and 100 branded tennis caps.

$9,113.73

$1,249.03

Partial funding for
replacement benches and
100 branded tennis caps

26 Hawthorn Amateur Football Club (HAFC)

Mental Health Fund plus specialised coaching for women Funding is requested to establish a mental health program. Players or their family would approach HAFC Mental Health
Ambassadors, or MYND Psychological Clinic to see a health professional.
Additionally, HAFC seeks $3,750 to secure some much needed specialised training equipment for our female footballers
especially during 2021 pre-season of January, February and March.
F undingwouldbeusedforlaunchcosts, healthcareprofessionalcostsandnewfitnessequipmentpurchases.

$9,600.00

$6,050.00

Partial funding with
maximum of $2,000 for
equipment

27 Hawthorn and Kew Bands Inc.
(Glenferrie Brass)

Glenferrie Brass branding

$10,000.00

$10,000.00

City of Boroondara

Funding is requested to support the branding of the band including the purchase of uniforms and music stand banners.

Partial funding for garden
works
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28 Hawthorn Artists Society

art for beginners and for sheer enjoyment

Funding is requested to deliver Art for Beginners and Sheer Enjoyment workshops. The workshops aim to stimulate
Boroondara and wider community members to participate in mental health-giving, and creative activities of drawing and
painting.
Funding would be used to help purchase art materials, teaching staff and communication of the activities to the community.


$2,800.00

$2,800.00

29 Hawthorn Citizens Youth Club - Calisthenics
Section

CaliTots

Funding is requested to purchase calisthenics equipment to establish a program for children aged 6 months to 4 years. This
program would be held during a weekday and open to both males and females, to encourage participation of all.
Parents/carers will be required to stay and be actively involved in the program.


$1,000.00

$1,000.00

30 Hawthorn Tennis Club

Coach mate program

$5,863.36

$5,863.36

31 Horizontes PWC

Belle Vue's community committed to the 4R

Funding is requested to establish the Coach Mate program that will directly support 50-60 community members, focusing on
socially disadvantaged groups, to take up the sport of tennis. The Coach Mate would be a low-cost ten week program with
12-15 participants that is overseen by a coach who can provide introductory tips, with rackets and balls provided as well as
refreshments afterwards. Funding would support four separate groups across two terms.

Funding is requested to deliver the 4R (Refuse, Reduce, Reuse and Recycle) Project at Bell Vue Primary School. The 4R
Project aims to generate skills and competencies in the school community (staﬀ, students and parents) around waste
avoidance and management. The project will develop awareness by participants about the importance of sustainable actions
andenvironmentallyfriendlybehavioursaroundwastemanagementinordertoreducewasteinlandfills.

The funding will support the development of workshops (2 forstaﬀ, 9 for students) and for the printing/digital creation of
the communication tool for each student in the school, which they will share at home.

$5,850.00

$4,000.00

32 Kew Historical Society Incorporated

The Stories They Tell:
Exploring history through artefacts

Funding is requested to print a 116-page, full colour book supported by an exhibition at the Kew Court House
The exhibition would include a history of Kew through the selection of up to 25 highly significant, rare and representative
artefacts from the Kew Historical Society local history collection. Each item would be used to tell a detailed story about the
district covering the period 1845 to 1994. Artefacts selected would be historically, artistically, scientifically and spiritually
significant.
Funding would be used to cover photographic costs and printing of 150 copies of the final publication.

$5,748.00

$5,748.00

33 Kew Historical Society Incorporated

Oral History Studio at the Kew Court House

Funding is requested for equipment purchases to assist in setting up a low-cost oral history studio, located in one of the
existing secure rooms at the Kew Court House. The studio would be used as a purpose-designed space for recording, editing,
transcribing and storing past, present and future audio visual recordings.
Funding would be used to purchase a desktop computer (with monitor) suitable for basic video editing, video-editing
software, directional lights, two comfortable armchairs for interviewees and shelving for audio visual materials.

$3,471.00

$3,471.00

34 Kew Home of Chinese

Tai Chi demonstration and performance

Funding is requested to run an event in October 2021 showcasing Tai Chi, line dancing and Gongfu for different age groups,
including over 60s, 70s and 80s.
Funding would be used to purchase costumes, instructor fees and catering.

$5,000.00

$2,700.00

35 Kew Junction Business Association

Mural on Kew High Street

Funding is requested for a large-scale mural to be painted on a wall just off Kew High Street.
A
 rtistsfromQArtStudioandGallerywouldbeengagedtocreateandsubmitadesignwiththetheme, What I Love About
Kew. QArt Studio and Gallery provides employment, mentoring and training for a talented group of professional artists with
a disability.
The winning submission will be chosen from the entries and the mural artist will then translate the winning design into the
mural, with the help of the winning designer.
Funding would be used to purchase materials for the mural, artist fee and traffic management costs.

$9,897.38

$9,897.38

36 Kew Toy Library Inc

Active Kids!

Funding is requested to purchase a new range of sports and fitness related toys that aim to promote active physical play in
children aged 0-12.

$10,000.00

$10,000.00

37 Maling Road Business Association (MRBA)

Thanks for the Love - Maling Road Gift Card Competition Funding is requested for the promotion, advertising and material costs of the "Thanks for the Love" Maling Road Gift Card
Competition Campaign. The campaign aims to encourage people to buy Maling Road Gift Cards and to shop in Maling Road.

$7,000.00

$6,000.00

38 Melbourne Comhaltas Inc

A Name for Herself

Funding is requested for three March 2021 shows in Kew's Renaissance Theatre of the historic new play, A Name for Herself,
about the first woman elected to Westminster while jailed for treason.

Funding would be used for venue hire, hire of staging equipment, advertising, costumes, performer fees, stage manager fee,
producer fee and stage crew assistant fee.

$10,000.00

$8,000.00

39 Mens Probus Club of Surrey Hills Inc

Connectivity and Membership Promotion

Funding is requested to expand the online connectivity with members of the Club, increase membership and increase the
physical activities offered by the Club .
Funding would be used to purchase iPads, microphone and tripod for a video camera, software, design and printing of
leaflets, lawn bowl rink hire and catering.


$5,558.00

$2,964.00

City of Boroondara

Partial funding for
workshops and the
printing/digital creation of
the communication tool

Partial funding costume, Catering and
Instructors

Partial funding contribution to overall
project
Partial funding contribution towards
project

Partial funding contribution towards
project
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40 Mind Australia

Mind Boroondara EIPSRS Art Therapy Group Program

Funding is requested to run an Art Therapy program for adult clients experiencing severe mental ill-health and social
isolation living within Boroondara. The program would focus on utilising creative-arts mediums to give clients a voice to
express feelings and experiences not easily expressed in words, help reduce anxiety, develop social skills, problem-solving
skills, self-awareness and self-esteem. It will also bring clients into the community to make new connections and encourage
an active lifestyle through the outdoor photography program.
Funding would be used for art therapist fees, cameras, SD cards, camera bags, printing of photographs, framing for the
exhibition, general printing costs, materials for art therapy groups and fees associated with visiting galleries.

$8,588.00

$8,500.00

Maximum of $2,000 for
equipment

41 Mont Albert North Probus Club Inc

Purchase of defibrillator and celebratory lunch

Funding is requested to purchase a portable automated defibrillator, and provide training in CPR and use of the defibrillator
for 10 members, and fund a celebratory lunch to promote social connection after enforced isolation.


$4,365.00

$2,544.00

Partial funding contribution towards
project

42 NCJW (Vic) The Social Support Trust

Caring Mums

Funding is requested for the Caring Mums Program. The program is a confidential, non-denominational service providing
emotional support to mothers and pregnant women. Trained volunteers are matched to new mums to develop secure
trusting relationships. The service supports all mothers including those who are isolated, new immigrants, refugees, asylum
seekers, single mothers, mothers with mental and physical health issues, family violence victims or mothers who do not fall
into any specific category, but just want someone outside their inner circle with whom to talk.
F undingwouldbeusedtopurchasetrainingmaterials, professional fees, advertising and marketing, purchase of a laptop and
software.

$10,000.00

$5,000.00

Partial funding garden and landscaping
works

43 Pied Piper Toy Library Inc

Outdoor and Nature based toys for engaged and active
play

Funding is requested to purchase outdoor play toys, high-quality STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Maths) toys with a
nature theme, and sporting equipment


$5,761.16

$5,761.16

44 Probus Club of Chatham Inc

Portable PA System plus Protective Cover

Funding is requested to purchase a portable PA system that provides adequate voice and music transmission and protective
cover.

$998.19

$998.19

45 Probus Club of Greythorn Inc.

Increase participation and enhance the well
being of Club members

Funding is requested for a contribution toward bus hire for member outings and speaker and musician fees for monthly club
meetings.


$4,505.00

$2,000.00

Partial funding contribution towards
project

46 Probus Club of Maling Combined Inc

Three Stimulating Bus Trips for retirees

Funding is requested for a contribution toward bus hire for member outings.

$3,450.00

$2,000.00

47 Probus Club of North Balwyn Inc

Probus Club of North Balwyn Subsidised Transport Costs

Funding is requested for a contribution toward bus hire for member outings.

$5,000.00

$2,000.00

48 Riversdale Soccer Club Inc.

Football Discovery Program

TheVisionoftheClubis“ACommunitythatLovestheGame”.TheprogramsupportsthisbyconnectingtheClubwithlocal
school children in the early learning age groups from 5 years to 9 years of age. Children are allowed to discover the game in
their weekly PE classes over a four-week period prior to competing against other local schools in an interschool tournament.
Funding would be used to purchase equipment, advertising, program staff and faculty hire.

$10,000.00

$6,500.00

Partial funding contribution towards
project
Partial funding contribution towards
project
Partial funding contribution towards
project

49 South Yarra Football Netball Club

Expansion of Female Teams in 2021

Funding is requested to purchase match jumpers and netball dresses for female participants.

$2,000.00

$2,000.00

50 South Yarra Junior Football Club

Uniforms for our Juniors and Auskick to increase
participation

Funding is requested to purchase juniors and Auskick players reversible match jumpers that they can use in both matches
and for training.

$1,260.00

$1,260.00

51 St Stephens Greythorn Cricket Club

Purchase mandatory ECA standard Helmets, Pads,
and iPad for scoring
Community Conversations

Funding is requested to purchase British standard helmets and pads and an iPad to comply with electronic scoring required
by the Eastern Cricket Association in the 20/21 season.
Funding is requested to run Community Conversations. it would be quarterly event that provides an opportunity for
Boroondara residents to attend a talk from a guest speaker. The talk is includes an interview and audience question and
answers, with the opportunity to socialise over a light supper.

Funding would be used for speakers fees and catering.

$2,000.00

$2,000.00

52 Surrey Hills Neighbourhood Centre Inc

$2,500.00

$1,500.00

53 Swinburne Amateur Football Club

Purchase of new freezer for canteen

Funding is requested to purchase a new freezer. The freezer will be used to store pies, pasties, sausages, party foods and
other goods sold at the canteen or prepared during club functions.

$2,000.00

$2,000.00

54 The Boite Vic Inc

Tuning the Spaces

Funding is requested to run a series of in-place performances by diverse musicians who use their music to explore the
sounds of architectural spaces in Boroondara, with performances designed to be uploaded for on-going access online.

Funding would cover the main costs of artists, equipment hire, production, promotion.

$10,000.00

$1,500.00

Partial funding contribution towards
project

55 The North Balwyn Village Traders' Association

We Did It Together. Let's Celebrate

Funding is requested to hold an event in December 2020 to express gratitude to Boroondara residents for support for the
local businesses and residents during COVID-19. The event would include entertainment and attendees would receive a
folding reusable shopping bag.
F undingwouldbeusedtopurchasefoldableshoppingbags, performing artist fees, advertising and administration costs.


$7,935.00

$7,850.00

Balwyn Rotary to be
included in advertising

City of Boroondara

Partial funding funding reduced by $1,000
to offset ticket sales
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56 The Probus Club of Balwyn Central Inc.

Two 1-day outings during 2021 for Members,
Partners, other Seniors

Funding is requested for a contribution toward bus hire for member outings.

$6,075.00

$2,000.00

57 The Probus Club of Kew

Sustain 2021

Funding is requested for a contribution toward bus hire for member outings.

$4,186.00

$2,000.00

58 The Scout Association of Australia, Victorian BranchEquipment to assist in Scenery Construction

Funding is requested to purchase a new Sliding Compound Mitre Saw and other tools including a safety switch.

$1,900.00

$1,900.00

59 Trentwood at the Hub

Expanding the tool box

Funding is requested to purchase a Test and Tag machine and test and tag training for volunteers.

$1,330.90

$1,330.90

60 Victorian YMCA Community Programming Junction Skate and BMX Park

"Jump on a Board Today" - Activating spaces around
Boroondara

Funding is requested to run the free "Jump on a Board Today" beginner (12 years and under) drop in skate sessions in
January 2021.
F undingwouldbeusedtocoverstaffingcosts, advertising and promotion, equipment purchases and survey apps for iPads.

$3,960.00

$2,470.00

61 Villa Alba Museum Incorporated

Flowers at Villa Alba - delights, design
and inspiration

Funding is requested to run the Flowers at Villa Alba program throughout 2021. The program would include a series of
lectures and workshops, and an exhibition/installation that promotes emerging and established floral artists/creatives.
"Flowers at Villa Alba" aims to delight participants, showcase creative design and provide inspiration to learn new skills,
connect with others and enjoy flowers and gardens.

Funding would be used for advertising costs, facilitator/ speaker fees, advertising, promotional material, catering,
administration costs and purchase of a projection screen.

$8,285.00

$8,285.00

City of Boroondara

Partial funding contribution towards
project
Partial funding for two
bus trips
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project
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PART A – PRELIMINARY
1.

Local Law
This Local Law is called the ‘Boroondara City Council Street Numbering Local
Law’ and is made under Part 5 of the Local Government Act 1989.

2.

Objectives
The objectives of this Local Law are to provide for the:

3.

2.1.

revocation of Council’s existing Street Numbering Local Law 2010;

2.2.

peace, order and good governance of the municipality;

2.3.

protection and enhancement of the amenity and environment of the
municipality through the uniform numbering of properties throughout the
municipality;

2.4.

display of street numbers that are of a style, size and colour as to be
clearly visible to occupants from vehicles on the nearest adjacent road;
and

2.5.

uniform and fair administration of this Local Law.

Commencement
This Local Law commences on the day following the notice of its making being
published in the Victoria Government Gazette.

4.

5.

Revocation Dates
4.1

This Local Law ceases to operate on a date that is 10 years after its
commencement unless revoked earlier by Council.

4.2

Upon the commencement of this Local Law Council’s Street Numbering
Local Law 2010 is revoked.

Application of Local Law
This Local Law applies throughout the municipality unless specifically stated
otherwise.

6.

Definitions
Some of the words or terms in this Local Law are defined. They are identified in
bold and have the following meanings in this Local Law:

City of Boroondara
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Authorised Officer – means a person appointed by Council under section 224 of
the Local Government Act 1989;
Council – means Boroondara City Council;
municipality – means the municipal district of Council;
notice to comply – means a notice to comply issued under this Local Law;
occupier – means the person who is for the time being in charge of land;
owner – means the person or persons for the time being entitled to be registered
on Title as the owner of the land and where more than one person each of them
jointly and severally;
penalty unit – has the same meaning as in the Sentencing Act 1991;
private land – means all land other than public land;
public land – means all land owned, leased, managed or occupied by a public
body, including Council;
residential area – means an area zoned as Residential under the Boroondara
Planning Scheme and includes an area which is predominantly in a Residential
Zone under that Planning Scheme; and
road – has the same meaning as in the Local Government Act 1989.
7.

Conflict with Other Legislation
This Local Law does not apply where any act or thing is authorised by or under
any legislative instrument or Planning Scheme.

PART B – STREET NUMBERING
8.

Property Numbers to be displayed
8.1.

The owner of private land that has been allocated a street number by
Council must mark the private land with the allocated street number.

8.2.

Where the private land is in a residential area the allocated street
number must be:

City of Boroondara

8.2.1.

located on the front boundary alignment of the private land;

8.2.2.

located as near as practicable to the driveway, letterbox or entry
gate; and
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8.2.3.
8.3.

Where the private land is in any area other than a residential area and
the premises are business premises or otherwise, the allocated street
number must be:

8.4.

9.

of a style, size and colour so as to be clearly visible to occupants
from vehicles on the nearest adjacent road.

8.3.1.

located on the front of the premises as near as practicable to the
entry or doorway; and

8.3.2.

of a style, size and colour so as to be clearly visible to occupants
from vehicles on the nearest adjacent road.

It is an offence to fail to mark the private land with the allocated street
number or to mark the private land with a number other than the allocated
street number.

Powers of Council
Without affecting the operation of any particular provision of this Local Law, unless
the contrary intention appears, everything that:
9.1.

Council is capable of doing under this Local Law is also capable of being
done by an Authorised Officer; and

9.2.

An Authorised Officer is capable of doing under this Local Law is also
capable of being done by Council.

10. Notice to Comply
10.1.

Where Council or an Authorised Officer reasonably believes that a
person has committed an offence against this Local Law, the Council or
Authorised Officer may issue to the person a written notice to comply
which:
10.1.1. requires the person to stop the conduct constituting the offence;
10.1.2. contains a direction indicating what action is required to stop the
conduct constituting the offence;
10.1.3. contains direction indicating what action is required to achieve
compliance with the Local Law; and/or
10.1.4. contains a direction to remedy any consequences arising from the
conduct constituting the offence.

10.2.

A notice to comply must include information about:
10.2.1. the name of the alleged offender (if known);

City of Boroondara
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10.2.2. the offence, and the provision of this Local Law it infringes;
10.2.3. the action required to stop committing the offence;
10.2.4. the time for compliance;
10.2.5. the date on which it was issued; and
10.2.6. the name and signature of the Authorised Officer or member of
Council staff, as the case may be.
11. Reasonable time to comply
The time required by a notice to comply served under this Local Law must be
reasonable in the circumstances, and what will be reasonable will vary depending
on the matters to be remedied, but should take the following into account if
applicable:
11.1.

the amount of work involved;

11.2.

the degree of difficulty;

11.3.

the availability of necessary materials or other necessary items;

11.4.

climatic conditions;

11.5.

the degree of risk or potential risk; and

11.6.

any other relevant factor.

12. Failure to adhere to a notice to comply
12.1.

Any person served with a notice to comply under this Local Law who fails
or refuses to comply with the requirements of the notice to comply within
the time specified in it is guilty of an offence against this Local Law.

12.2.

If a person on whom a notice to comply is served fails to comply with the
requirements of that notice to comply, Council or an Authorised Officer
or any employee or any other person authorised in writing by Council,
may enter upon any private land on which there is any such failure to
comply and do all such acts, matters or things that are required to comply
with the notice to comply.

12.3.

All costs and expenses incurred by Council in carrying out any acts,
matters or things described in sub-clause 12.2 are a debt due to Council
from the person on whom the notice to comply was served.

City of Boroondara
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13. Appeals
13.1.

A person may request Council or an Authorised Officer to review an
order, direction or notice issued in relation to him or her under a Local
Law.

13.2.

Where a request for review has been made under clause 13.1, the person
requesting the review must do everything practicable to cooperate in the
prompt review of the order, direction or notice.

PART C – ENFORCEMENT
14. Offences
A person is guilty of an offence if the person:
14.1.

does something which a provision of this Local Law prohibits to be done or
makes an offence;

14.2.

fails to do something which a provision of this Local Law requires to be
done; or

14.3.

fails to comply with a notice to comply or a direction of an Authorised
Officer under this Local Law.

15. Infringement Notice
15.1.

Where an Authorised Officer reasonably believes that a person has
committed an offence against this Local Law, the Authorised Officer may
issue to that person an infringement notice, as an alternative to a
prosecution for the offence.

15.2.

A person to whom an infringement notice has been issued must pay to
Council the amount specified in the infringement notice within 28 days.

15.3.

The infringement notice must contain:
15.3.1. the name and address of the offender;
15.3.2. the nature of the offence in general terms;
15.3.3. the date, time and place of the offence;
15.3.4. the amount of the fixed penalty, being one penalty unit or, in the
case of a second or subsequent offence, three penalty units;
15.3.5. the clause of this Local Law of the offence;

City of Boroondara
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15.3.6. the time within which the penalty must be paid to avoid
prosecution, and the place at which it can be paid; and
15.3.7. that the offender is entitled to disregard the infringement notice
and defend the prosecution in Court.
15.4.

To avoid prosecution a person to whom an infringement notice is issued
must pay to Council the amount set out in the infringement notice within
28 days.

16. Penalties
If no penalty is specifically provided for in a provision in this Local Law, a person
found guilty of an offence under this Local Law is subject to the following penalties:
-

First offence – not more than 3 penalty units; and

-

Second or subsequent offence – not more than 10 penalty units.

17. Additional Penalty
In addition to any penalty imposed pursuant to this Local Law, a penalty not
exceeding 2 penalty units will apply for each day after conviction for an offence
during which a contravention of this Local Law continues.
18. Costs Incurred by Council
A person who is guilty of an offence under this Local Law must pay to Council all
reasonable costs incurred by Council in remedying the offence.

The Common Seal of the Boroondara
City Council was hereunto affixed in the
presence of:

)
)
)

Councillor

Chief Executive Officer

Date

City of Boroondara
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BOROONDARA
City of Harmony

Instrument of Delegation
to the

Services Delegated Committee
Boroondara City Council delegates to each person who is from time to time
appointed as a member of the Delegated Committee established by resolution of
Council passed on 24 August 2020 and known as the "Services Delegated
Committee" (the Committee), the powers and functions set out in the Schedule, and
declares that:
1.

this Instrument of Delegation is authorised by a resolution of Council passed
on 24 August 2020;

2.

a delegate can only exercise the delegations contained in this Instrument of
Delegation while acting as a member of the Committee at a meeting of the
Committee;

3.

the delegation:

4.

3.1

comes into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed
to this Instrument of Delegation;

3.2

remains in force until Council resolves to vary or revoke it; and

3.3

is to be exercised in accordance with the exceptions, conditions and
limitations set out in the Schedule and with regard to the guidelines
or policies which Council from time to time adopts.

all members of the Delegated Committee will have voting rights on the
Delegated Committee.

The Common Seal of the
Boroondara City Council was
hereunto affixed in the presence
of:

(Mayor)

>

(Chief Executive Officer)

J
(Date)

C4 Committees Instrument of Delegation (Delegated Committees)
City of Boroondara
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SCHEDULE

Powers and functions
To exercise Council's functions and powers, perform Council's duties, determine any
issue and take any action arising out of or connected with any duty imposed, or
function or power conferred on Council, by or under any Act other than the Planning
and Environment Act 1987 and the Building Act 1993.
1. to enter into contracts, and to incur expenditure to a maximum monetary limit of
$20,000,000 (excluding GST).
2. to do all things necessary or convenient to be done for or in connection with the
performance of those functions, duties and powers.

Exceptions, conditions and limitations
The members of the Delegated Committee are not authorised by this Instrument to:
3. enter into contracts, or incur expenditure, for an amount which exceeds
$20,000,000 (excluding GST).
4. exercise the powers which, by force of section 11 (2) of the Local Government Act
2020, cannot be delegated.

C4 Committees Instrument of Delegation (Delegated Committees)
City of Boroondara
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Boroondara
City

of Harmony

Instrument of Delegation
to the

Urban Planning Delegated Committee
Boroondara City Council (Council) delegates to each person who is from time to
time appointed as a member of the Delegated Committee established by resolution
of Council passed on 24 August 2020 and known as the "Urban Planning
Delegated Committee" (the Committee), the powers, discretions and authorities set
out in the Schedule, and declares that:
1.

this Instrument of Delegation is authorised by a resolution of Council passed
on 24 August 2020;

2.

a delegate can only exercise the delegations contained in this Instrument of
Delegation while acting as a member of the Committee at a meeting of the
Committee;

3.

the delegation:

4.

3.1

comes into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed
to this Instrument of Delegation;

3.2

remains in force until Council resolves to vary or revoke it; and

3.3

is to be exercised in accordance with the exceptions, conditions and
limitations set out in the Schedule and with regard to the guidelines
or policies which Council from time to time adopts.

all members of the Delegated Committee have voting rights on the Delegated
Committee.

The Common Seal of the A
Boroondara City Council was
hereunto
affixed
in
the
presence of:

(Mayor)

(Chief Executive Officer)

J
(Date)

C4 Committees Instrument of Delegation (Delegated Committees)
City of Boroondara
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SCHEDULE

Powers and functions
To exercise Council's powers, discretions and authorities to perform Council's
functions under the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the Building Act 1993
having regard to relevant policies and guidelines of the Council
1. to enter into contracts and to incur expenditure to a maximum monetary limit of
$20,000,000 (excluding GST).
2. to do all things necessary or convenient to be done for or in connection with the
performance of those functions, duties and powers.

Exceptions, conditions and limitations
The members of the Delegated Committee are not authorised by this Instrument to:
3.

enter into contracts, or incur expenditure, for an amount which exceeds
$20,000,000 (excluding GST).

4.

exercise the powers which, under s 11 (2) of the Local Government Act 2020
or s 188 of the Planning and Environment Act 1987, cannot be delegated to
the Committee.

C4 Committees Instrument of Delegation (Delegated Committees)
City of Boroondara
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Boroondara
City of Harmony

Instrument of Delegation
to the

Management Performance Review
Delegated Committee
Boroondara City Council delegates to each person who is from time to time
appointed as a member of the Delegated Committee established by resolution of
Council passed on 24 August 2020 and known as the "Management Performance
Review Delegated Committee" (the Committee), the powers and functions set out
in the Schedule, and declares that:
1.

this Instrument of Delegation is authorised by a resolution of Council passed
on 24 August 2020;

2.

a delegate can only exercise the delegations contained in this Instrument of
Delegation while acting as a member of the Committee at a meeting of the
Committee;

3.

the delegation:

4.

3.1

comes into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed
to this Instrument of Delegation;

3.2

remains in force until Council resolves to vary or revoke it; and

3.3

is to be exercised in accordance with the guidelines or policies which
Council from time to time adopts.

all members of the Delegated Committee will have voting rights on the
Delegated Committee.

The Common Seal of the
Boroondara
City
Council
was hereunto affixed in the
presence of:

^

(Mayor)

(Chief Executive Officer)

(Date)

C4 Committees Instrument of Delegation (Delegated Committees)
City of Boroondara

August 2020 Update
Page 1 of 2
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SCHEDULE

Powers and functions
The Management Performance Review Delegated Committee has the following
powers and functions:

1.

To exercise Council's powers and functions and to perform Council's duties in
relation to the management of the Chief Executive Officer's Contract of
Employment and to do all things necessary or convenient to be done for or in
connection with the performance of those functions, duties and powers,
including but not limited to:
a.

determining arrangements for conduct of the Chief Executive Officer’s
performance review;

b.

undertaking the annual review Chief Executive Officer's performance; and

c.

undertaking the annual review Chief Executive Officer's total remuneration
package.

2.

To act as an advisory body for the Chief Executive Officer regarding
organisational performance, management and good governance.

3.

To enter into contracts, and to incur expenditure to a maximum monetary
limit of $50,000 (excluding GST);

4.

To do all things necessary or convenient to be done for or in connection with
the performance those functions, duties and powers.

Exceptions, conditions and limitations
The Committee is not authorised by this Instrument to:
1.

appoint, reappoint or dismiss a Chief Executive Officer.

2.

enter into contracts, or incur expenditure, for an amount which exceeds
$50,000 (excluding GST);

3.

exercise the powers which, by force section 11(2) of the Local Government
Act 2020, cannot be delegated.

C4 Committees Instrument of Delegation (Delegated Committees)
City of Boroondara

August 2020 Update
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DRAFT Annual Financial Report
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Certification of the Financial Statements
In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1989 , the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 , the
Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Callista Clarke, CPA
Principal Accounting Officer
Date:
Camberwell

T

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of the
City of Boroondara for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the financial position of the Council as at that
date.

AF

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in
the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

R

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 to certify the financial statements in their final form.

Cr Cynthia Watson
Mayor

D

Date:
Camberwell

Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Councillor
Date:
Camberwell

Phillip Storer
Chief Executive Officer
Date:
Camberwell
1

City of Boroondara

Attachment Page 5 of 69

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

D

R

AF

T

<INSERT VAGO REPORT - PAGE 1>

2

City of Boroondara

Attachment Page 6 of 69

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

D

R

AF

T

<INSERT VAGO REPORT - PAGE 2>

3

City of Boroondara

Attachment Page 7 of 69

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

Comprehensive Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Income
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Contributions - non-monetary assets
Other income
Total income

2019
$'000

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.4
3.5
3.5
3.7

189,426
13,005
12,220
13,566
1,179
6,919
7,663
243,978

179,994
15,897
13,685
14,917
1,963
5,959
840
8,987
242,242

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9

(98,699)
(79,149)
(33,902)
(631)
(3,059)
(1,516)
(1,428)
(270)
(8,045)

(92,288)
(68,846)
(32,934)
(735)
(1,643)
(1,652)
(10,811)

3.6

(4,625)

(2,288)

6.3

(395)
(231,719)

(326)
(211,523)

12,259

30,719

135,133

(420,735)

147,392

(390,016)

R

AF

Expenses
Employee costs
Materials and services
Depreciation
Amortisation - intangible assets
Amortisation - right of use assets
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs
Finance costs - leases
Other expenses
Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment
Share of net (losses) of joint ventures
Total expenses

2020
$'000

T

Note

Surplus for the year

D

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
6.2
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Total comprehensive result

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2020

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Inventories
Other assets

Note

2020
$'000

2019
$'000

5.1 (a)
5.1 (c)
5.1 (b)
5.2 (a)
5.2 (b)

99,259
21,316
15,078
31
1,956
137,640

98,935
17,790
26,593
31
1,652
145,001

5.1 (b)
6.2
5.8
6.4
5.2 (c)

4
3,555,629
10,269
8,915
348
3,575,165
3,712,805

4
3,402,127
9,045
880
3,412,056
3,557,057

Non-current assets
Other financial assets
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Intangible assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Unearned income
Provisions
Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities

R

Total current liabilities

AF

Total non-current assets
Total assets

T

Total current assets

D

Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Provision for investments in joint ventures
Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities

5.3 (a)
5.3 (b)
5.3 (c)
5.5
5.4
5.8

19,125
5,752
1,569
19,364
1,573
3,139
50,522

25,495
4,036
110
17,067
1,495
48,203

5.5
6.3
5.4
5.8

2,042
2,974
23,213
7,159

1,987
2,579
24,785
-

35,388
85,910

29,351
77,554

3,626,895

3,479,503

939,324
2,687,571

927,776
2,551,727

3,626,895

3,479,503

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Accumulated surplus
Reserves
Total equity

9.1

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Accumulated

Revaluation

Other

Surplus

Reserve

Reserves

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Balance at beginning of the financial year

3,479,503

927,776

2,534,824

16,903

Adjusted Opening balance

3,479,503

927,776

2,534,824

16,903
-

Total
Note

2020

Surplus for the year
Net asset revaluation increment/ (decrement)
Transfers to other reserves
Transfers from other reserves

6.2
9.1
9.1

2019

Surplus for the year

-

-

135,133

-

-

(1,800)
1,089

(1,089)

1,800
-

3,626,895

939,324

2,668,868

18,703

Accumulated

Revaluation

Other

Total

Surplus

Reserve

Reserves

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

3,869,347

898,046

2,956,198

15,103

30,719

30,719

-

-

(420,735)
172
3,479,503

(1,800)

(420,735)
-

1,800

639
172
927,776

(639)
2,534,824

16,903

AF

Balance at beginning of the financial year

12,259

T

Balance at end of the financial year

12,259
135,133

9.1
9.1
9.1

R

Net asset revaluation increment/ (decrement)
Transfers to other reserves
Transfers from other reserves
Adjustment directly to equity
Balance at end of the financial year

D

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020
2020

2019

Inflows/
(Outflows)
$'000

Inflows/
(Outflows)
$'000

186,246
12,089
12,282
15,388
1,179
7,167
2,296
22,139
5,751
12,993
(95,511)
(92,664)
(1,476)
(20,423)
(7,336)

178,468
13,643
14,342
15,338
2,064
6,203
2,952
20,366
6,014
11,579
(91,276)
(77,594)
(19,574)
(11,866)

60,120

70,659

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Payments for investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Payments of loans and advances

(65,108)
31
(15,000)
26,515
-

(54,777)
37
(26,500)
115,216
12

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

(53,562)

33,988

(1,440)

(1,696)

Repayments of borrowings
Interest paid - lease liability
Repayment of lease liabilities
Net cash used in financing activities

(1,494)
(270)
(3,030)
(6,234)

(18,432)
(20,128)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

324
98,935

84,519
14,416

99,259

98,935

Note
Cash flows from operating activities

AF

Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Interest received
Trust funds and deposits taken
Other receipts
Net GST refund
Employee costs
Materials and services
Short-term, low value and variable lease payments
Trust funds and deposits repaid
Other payments

T

Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User charges
Grants - operating

Net cash provided by operating activities

9.2

R

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

D

Finance costs

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

5.1 (a)

Financing arrangements

5.6

Restrictions on cash assets

5.1

The above statement of cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works
For the year ended 30 June 2020
2020

2019

$'000

$'000

-

-

Total land
Buildings
Building improvements

27,289
349

20,730
1,247

Total buildings
Total property

27,638
27,638

21,977
21,977

Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and telecommunications
Library books

2,033
1,554
1,834
902

2,061
1,324
1,588
1,005

Total plant and equipment

6,323

5,978

Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Off street car parks
Total infrastructure

11,736
27
2,539
4,298

11,538
82
2,999
4,979

1,903
9,081
404

2,683
6,655
431

29,988

29,367

63,949

57,322

14,889
35,617
6,068
7,375
63,949

11,017
43,985
490
1,830
57,322

AF

Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage

T

Property
Land improvements

R

Total capital works expenditure

D

Represented by:
New asset expenditure
Asset renewal expenditure
Asset expansion expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure
Total capital works expenditure

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
OVERVIEW
Introduction
The City of Boroondara was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 22 June 1994 and is a
body corporate. The Council's main office is located at 8 Inglesby Road, Camberwell.
Statement of compliance

Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of accounting

T

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income
Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital
Works and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies
with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989 , and the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

AF

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are
based on professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

R

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in
future periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the
application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

D

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2)
- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2)
- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.5)
- the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific so as to determine whether
an arrangement is within the scope of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 1058
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3)
- the determination, in accordance with AASB 16 Leases , of the lease term, the estimation of the discount
rate when not implicit in the lease and whether an arrangement is in substance short-term or low value
(refer to Note 5.8)
- other areas requiring judgments
Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where
appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation (except where
transitional requirements of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers , AASB 16 Leases and
AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities do not require restatement of comparatives under the modified
retrospective approach adopted by the Council), and disclosure has been made of any material changes to
comparatives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1 - Performance against budget
The performance against budget notes compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual
performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material
variances. Council has adopted a materiality threshold of greater than 10 percent or $1,000,000 where further explanation is
warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is
considered to be material because of its nature.
The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 24 June 2019. The Budget was based on assumptions
that were relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters for revenue and expense
targets in this budget in order to meet Council’s business plan and financial performance targets for both the short and longterm. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not
considered predictable.
These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .
1.1 Income and Expenditure

Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital

Variance
2020

Variance
2020

$'000

$'000

$'000

%

T

Contributions - monetary

R

Other income
Total income

Actual
2020

AF

Ref

Income

Budget
2020

188,807

189,426

619

1
2

16,448
14,324

13,005
12,220

(3,443)
(2,104)

3

12,244
1,354
5,269

13,566
1,179
6,919

1,322

10.8

(175)
1,650

(12.9)
31.3

8,200
246,646

7,663
243,978 -

(537)
2,668

(6.5)
(1.1)

98,699
79,149
33,902
631
3,059
1,516
1,428
270
8,045

3,182
(1,844)
(1,647)
631
3,059
290
4
270
(4,131)

4
5

0.3
(20.9)
(14.7)

Expenses

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

95,517
80,993
35,549
1,226
1,424
12,176

Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment
Share of net losses of joint ventures
Total expenses

14

4,000

4,625

625

15.6

15

230,885

395
231,719

395
834

100.0
0.4

15,761

12,259

(3,502)

D

Employee costs
Materials and services
Depreciation
Amortisation - Intangible assets
Amortisation - Right of use assets
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs
Finance costs - Leases
Other expenses

Surplus for the year

3.3
(2.3)
(4.6)
100.0
100.0
23.7
0.3
100.0
(33.9)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1 - Performance against budget (cont.)
(i) Explanation of material variations
Item

Variance
Ref

Explanation

Statutory fees and fines

Statutory fees and fines are lower than budget due to COVID 19
relief provided to the community via various measures including
waiving some types of parking infringements ($2.70M), street
furniture permit refunds and a reduction in lodgements fees
income of $300,000.

2

User fees

User fees are lower than budget due to COVID 19 and the closure
of Council's Leisure and Aquatic centres, Boroondara Tennis
Centre and Kew Traffic School.

3

Grants - operating

Grants - operating variance is due to receiving part of the
Financial Assistance Grant funding for 2020-21 of $2.53M in the
current financial year and offset by the adoption of AASB 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers which reallocated
$1.08M of funding to unearned income.

4

Grants - capital

Grants - capital variance is due to the adoption of AASB 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers which reallocated
$432,000 of funding to unearned income. Offset by funding
received for Vic Roads Safe Infrastructure program $456K and
$800K grant budgeted but not received for Canterbury Community
Precinct.

5

Contributions - monetary

6

Employee costs

7

Materials and services

8

Depreciation

T

1

D

R

AF

Developer open space contributions are difficult to predict as they
are based upon building activity reaching completion. The 201920 contributions were higher than expected due to an increase in
the number of multi-dwelling developments completed and hence
higher contributions were received. The annual budget is based
on estimated completion of private sector development.
Employee costs are higher than budget primarily due to
reclassification from materials and services to employee costs for
planned priority projects.
Materials and services are lower than budget due to carry
forwards for planned priority projects, reclassification from
employee costs and partly offset by capital works in progress
write-offs of $2.50M above budget.
Depreciation variance is due to Amortisation - intangible assets
being budgeted under Depreciation and now being disclosed
separately.

9

Amortisation - Intangible assets

Amortisation - intangible assets variance is due to being budgeted
under Depreciation and is now disclosed separately.

10

Amortisation - Right of use assets

Amortisation - Right of use assets variance is due to the adoption
of AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective approach
adopted by the Council.

11

Bad and doubtful debts

Bad and doubtful debts is slightly higher than budget due to an
increase in the provision calculations.

12

Finance costs - Leases

Finance costs - Leases variance is due to the adoption of AASB
16 Leases using the modified retrospective approach adopted by
the Council.

13

Other expenses

Other expenses is lower than budget due to AASB 16 Leases and
is primarily offset by Amortisation - Right of use assets

14

Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment is higher than budget due to the timing of the delivery
equipment
of capital works.

15

Share of net losses of associates and joint ventures

The timing of budget information received for the landfill does not
allow for its inclusion in Council's budget document.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1 - Performance against budget (cont.)
1.2 Capital works

Ref
Property
Land improvements

Budget

Actual

Variance

Variance

2020

2020

2020

2020

$'000

$'000

$'000

%

-

-

-

-

-

-

(8,354)

(23.4)

1

35,643

27,289

Building improvements

2

Total buildings

304
35,947

349
27,638

(8,309)

(23.1)

Total property

35,947

27,638

(8,309)

(23.1)

(25.6)

Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Library books

Bridges

14.8

2,731

2,033

(698)

4

1,059

1,554

495

5

2,581

1,834

(747)

985
7,356

902
6,323

(83)

(8.4)

(1,033)

(14.0)

11,299

11,736

437

3.9
(56.5)
(33.5)

Total Plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Roads

45

3

AF

Computers and telecommunications

T

Total land
Buildings

46.7
(28.9)

6

62

27

(35)

Footpaths and cycleways

7

3,819

2,539

(1,280)

Drainage

8

4,298

(834)

(16.3)

(1,335)

(41.2)

5,132

9

3,238

1,903

Parks, open space and streetscapes

10

8,116

9,081

965

Off street car parks
Total infrastructure

11

648
32,314

404
29,988

(244)
(2,326)

(37.7)
(7.2)

75,617

63,949

(11,668)

(15.4)

15,493
39,247

14,889
35,617

11,985
8,892

6,068
7,375

(604)
(3,630)
(5,917)
(1,517)

75,617

63,949

(11,668)

(3.9)
(9.2)
(49.4)
(17.1)
(15.4)

R

Recreational, leisure and community facilities

D

Total capital works expenditure

New asset expenditure
Asset renewal expenditure
Asset expansion expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure
Total capital works expenditure

11.9
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1 - Performance against budget (cont.)
(i) Explanation of material variations
Variance Item
Ref

Explanation

Buildings

The buildings variance is primarily due to project timing of multi
year projects including Camberwell Community Centre,
Ashburton Seniors Centre, Canterbury Community Precinct,
Victoria Road Reserve, Diversity Inclusion and Participation
(DIP) Pavilion Program and 605-609 Glenferrie Road Community
Facility. Some of these projects are expected to be completed in
2020-21.

2

Building improvements

Building improvements expenditure is slightly higher than budget
due to forward commitment expenditure for the upgrade of
Councils Building Access Security System, endorsed by Council
as part of the amended budget review.

3

Plant, machinery and equipment

Plant, machinery and equipment is lower than budget due to the
Ashburton Pool and Recreation Centre mechanical air handling
project and Council Chamber Audio-visual (AV) uplift projects
being carried forward to 2020-21.

4

Fixtures, fittings and furniture

5

Computers and telecommunications

Computers and telecommunications is lower than budget due to
the payroll system upgrade, applications renewal and upgrade
program and improve the Council's Network Service Diversity
projects being carried forward to 2020-21.

6

Bridges

Minor bridge rehabilitation works program completed during
2019-20 and is lower than anticipated.

7

Footpaths and cycleways

T

1

D

R

AF

Fixtures, fittings and furniture is higher than budget due to office
refurbishment works endorsed by Council as part of the
amended budget review.

Footpaths and cycleways expenditure was lower than budget
primarily due to the Bicycle Strategy Implementation,
Anniversary Trail missing link through Riversdale Park and
Balwyn Shopping Centre streetscape improvements being
carried forward to 2020-21. The lower than budget result was
also due to Condition 4 Footpaths renewal program and
Boroondara Laneway Strategy, and Camberwell Junction
Laneway Pilot expenditure all being lower than anticipated.

8

Drainage

Drainage expenditure was lower than budget primarily due to
Riversdale Road, Camberwell and Fortuna & Sunburst Avenues
(easement), Balwyn North Drain Work projects being carried
forward to 2020-21 and savings in Aquila Street Floodway,
Balwyn North project.

9

Recreational, leisure and community facilities

Recreational, leisure and community facilities variance is due to
the Hawthorn Rowing Ramp and Sportsground Reconstruction
Program being carried forward to 2020-21 and savings across
various projects including Field Sports Strategy Implementation.

10

Parks, open space and streetscapes

Parks, open spaces and streetscapes variance is due to forward
commitment expenditure from 2018-19 for Gordon Barnard
Reserve Raingarden & Stormwater Harvesting project included
as part of the amended budget.

11

Off street car parks

Capital expenditure relating to off street car parks was lower than
budget due to savings primarily in the resurfacing of Condition 4
Car Parks program.

13

City of Boroondara

Attachment Page 17 of 69

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 2

Analysis of Council results by program
Council delivers its functions and activities through the following programs.

2 (a)

Environment and Infrastructure
The Environment and Infrastructure directorate is responsible for managing, maintaining and
enhancing the public assets under the control of Council to maximise their value to the community.
The directorate includes the following departments:
- Asset Management
- Traffic & Transport
- Parks & Infrastructure
- Environment & Sustainable Living
- Projects & Strategy

T

City Planning
The City Planning directorate is responsible for strategic planning to protect and enhance the
environment and liveability of the city. It also facilitates and promotes a high standard of community
safety, health and amenity. The directorate includes the following departments:
- Local Laws
- Economic Development
- Strategic Planning
- Building Services
- Statutory Planning

AF

Community Development
The Community Development directorate is responsible for enhancing community, family and cultural
life, and facilitating or providing services that respond to community needs. The directorate includes
the following departments:
- Health, Active Ageing & Disability Services
- Library Services
- Family, Youth & Recreation
- Finance & Corporate Planning
- Community Planning & Development
- Arts & Cultural Services

R

Customer Experience and Business Transformation
The Customer Experience and Business Transformation directorate leads the implementation of our
business transformation by leading and embedding the Customer Experience Improvement Strategy
into our organisation. The directorate includes the following departments:
- Chief Information Office
- Chief Customer Office
- Legal Services
- Commercial and Property Services
- Customer First Program

D

Chief Executive Office and Governance
Includes the Chief Executive Office and Governance department. The Governance department is
responsible for providing open and transparent processes and strong accountability to the community,
ensuring a high standard of democratic and corporate governance.

People, Culture and Development
The People, Culture and Development department makes sure Council has the right number of staff
with the right skills and attitudes to provide excellent service to the community.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 2
2 (b)

Analysis of Council results by program
Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program
Income

T

$'000
7,294
19,267
26,615
190,770
31
1

AF

2020
Environment and Infrastructure
City Planning
Community Development
Customer Experience and Business Transformation
Chief Executive Office and Governance
People, Culture and Development

243,978

Income

D

R

2019
Environment and Infrastructure
City Planning
Community Development
Customer Experience and Business Transformation
Chief Executive Office and Governance
People, Culture and Development

Grants
Surplus /
included Total assets
Expenses (Deficit)
in income
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
75,922
(68,628)
1,781
2,904,772
23,536
(4,269)
708
19,456
90,600
(63,985)
12,256
752,469
35,610 155,161
33,827
2,564
(2,533)
863
3,487
(3,487)
1,418
231,719

12,259

14,745

3,712,805

Grants
Surplus /
included Total assets
Expenses (Deficit)
in income

$'000
8,738
22,406
29,601
181,445
47
5

$'000
66,672
23,483
82,076
33,132
2,656
3,504

$'000
(57,935)
(1,077)
(52,474)
148,313
(2,609)
(3,499)

$'000
2,646
698
13,536
-

$'000
2,761,546
22,656
737,819
31,937
1,258
1,841

242,242

211,523

30,719

16,880

3,557,057
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2020
$'000

2019
$'000

Note 3 - Funding for the delivery of our services
3.1 - Rates and charges
Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district.
The CIV of a property is the value of the land and all improvements. The valuation base used to calculate
general rates for 2019-20 was $112.93 billion (2018-19: $124.80 billion). The 2019-20 rate in the CIV dollar was
0.001404 (2018-19: 0.001219).
General rates
Cultural and recreational
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments
Waste management charge
Special rates and charges
Interest on rates and charges
Total rates and charges

156,106
1,417
29,883
1,515
505
189,426

151,396
67
788
25,679
1,512
552
179,994

T

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January
2020 and the valuation will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2020.

AF

Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices.
Supplementary rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary
rates notice issued.
Impact of COVID 19 on rates and charges are presented in Note 11.

3.2 - Statutory fees and fines

R

Infringements and costs
Court recoveries
Town planning fees
Land information certificates
Swimming pool registrations
Permits
Total statutory fees and fines

8,082
1,135
2,564
168
255
801
13,005

10,250
1,252
3,097
166
1,132
15,897

D

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been
provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.
Impact of COVID 19 on statutory fees and fines are presented in Note 11.

3.3 - User fees

Aged and health services
Building services
Road occupancy, traffic and drainage
Child care/children's program
Parking
Leisure centre and recreation
Registrations and other permits
Waste management services
Other fees and charges
Total user fees

1,699
1,365
749
131
1,454
3,418
1,308
1,336
760
12,220

1,880
1,224
732
228
1,924
4,232
1,204
1,329
932
13,685

User fees by timing of revenue recognition
User fees recognised over time
User fees recognised at a point in time
Total user fees

110
12,110
12,220

81
13,604
13,685

User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is
satisfied. Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms.
Impact of COVID 19 on user fees are presented in Note 11.
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$'000

2019
$'000

Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants

9,541

10,912

State funded grants

5,204

5,968

14,745

16,880

4,885
3,238
22
457
145
144

4,619
4,158
175
166
96

632
1,092
1,122
704
255
168
3
12,867

1,542
1,067
1,072
683
237
60
24
12
13,911

45
1

14
9

48
47
53
224
44
88
100
44
5
699
13,566

149
15
78
481
68
56
69
46
6
15
1,006
14,917

594
594

395
395

3.4 - Funding from other levels of government

Total grants received

AF

(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants
Aged care
Community safety
Community transport
Senior citizen centres
Volunteer services
Recurrent - State Government
Aged care
Libraries
Maternal and child health
School crossing supervisors
Family and children
Volunteer services
Community safety
Senior citizen centres
Total recurrent operating grants

T

Grants were received in respect of the following :

D

R

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Environmental planning
Other
Non-recurrent - State Government
Recycling
Community health
Community safety
Community transport
Family and children
Maternal and child health
Environmental planning
Libraries
Sports and recreation
Other
Total non-recurrent operating grants
Total operating grants
(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery
Total recurrent capital grants

17

City of Boroondara

Attachment Page 21 of 69

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
2020
$'000

2019
$'000

10

1,280
-

506
55
14
585
1,179

250
16
(2)
24
1,568
1,963

Operating
Balance at start of year
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year
Balance at year end

101
1,080
(101)
1,080

25
101
(25)
101

Capital
Balance at start of year
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year
Balance at year end

48
432
(48)
432

3.4 - Funding from other levels of government (cont.)
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Community health
Buildings
Non-recurrent - State Government
Roads
Community safety
Environment planning
Sport and recreation
Total non-recurrent capital grants
Total capital grants

AF

T

(c ) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a
specific manner

86
48
(86)
48

Grant income is recognised at the point in time when the Council satisfies its performance obligations as
specified in the underlying agreement.

Monetary

R

3.5 - Contributions
Non-monetary
Total contributions

6,919

5,959

6,919

840
6,799

D

Contributions of non-monetary asset were received in relation to the following asset classes
Drains
Other
Total non-monetary contributions

-

522
318
840

Monetary and non-monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the
contributed asset.

3.6 - Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment
Proceeds of sale
Written down value of assets sold, replaced and disposed
Total net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment

31
(4,656)

37
(2,325)

(4,625)

(2,288)

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.
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$'000

2019
$'000

Interest
Other rental income
Reimbursements
Right-of-way sales
Traffic and drainage
Other income

2,111
2,169
1,520
444
1,136
283

3,209
2,581
1,222
406
1,220
349

Total other income

7,663

8,987

3.7 - Other income

Interest is recognised as it is earned.
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when
Council gains control over the right to receive the income.
Impact of COVID 19 on other income are presented in Note 11.

4.1 - (a) Employee Costs

(b) Superannuation

76,691
947
5,325
7,349
7,483
400
504
98,699

70,880
609
5,992
7,052
6,970
432
353
92,288

514

502

514

502

-

-

3,647

3,571

3,250
6,897

2,921
6,492

149

117

AF

Wages and salaries
WorkCover
Casual staff
Annual leave and long service leave
Superannuation
Fringe benefits tax
Other
Total employee costs

T

Note 4 - The cost of delivering services

R

Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:

D

Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund
(Vision Super)
Employer contributions - other funds

Employer contributions payable at reporting date.
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund
(Vision Super)
Employer contributions - other funds
Employer contributions payable at reporting date.

Refer to Note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations.
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$'000

2019
$'000

10,721
10,436
4,573
1,197
1,677
14,893
4,043
4,169
2,286
4,518
6,137
4,745
2,797
4,927
1,893
137
79,149

9,154
8,618
1,798
1,247
12,422
3,985
3,397
2,243
4,838
8,421
4,501
2,036
4,319
1,744
123
68,846

Contract payments and trade services:
-Waste Collection
-Open Space
-Minor Projects
-Parking Management
-Leisure and Aquatic Centre
-Other*
Building maintenance
General maintenance
Plant and equipment maintenance
Utilities
Consultants
Office and administration
Financial and legal
Information technology
Insurance
Other
Total materials and services

T

4.2 - Materials and services

4.3 - Depreciation

R

Property
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Investment property
Total depreciation

AF

*This includes amounts individually under $1.00 million where Council engages contractors to deliver services to
the community.

13,268
3,824
16,621
189
33,902

12,664
3,967
16,117
186
32,934

Refer to note 6.2 and 6.4 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation charges and accounting policy.

4.4 - Amortisation - Intangible assets
Software

D

Total Amortisation - Intangible assets

631

735

631

735

Refer to note 5.2(c) for a more detailed breakdown of amortisation charges and accounting policy.

4.5 - Amortisation - Right of use assets
Vehicles
Other
Total Amortisation - Right of use assets

3,057
2
3,059

-

Refer to note 5.8 for a more detailed breakdown of amortisation charges and accounting policy.

4.6 - Bad and doubtful debts
Parking fines and local laws debtors
Other debtors
Total bad and doubtful debts
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year
New provisions recognised during the year
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible
Balance at end of year

1,434
82
1,516

1,479
164
1,643

2,067
1,516
(1,121)
2,462

1,559
1,643
(1,135)
2,067

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This model considers both
historic and forward looking information in determining the level of impairment. Bad debts are written off when
identified.
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$'000

2019
$'000

1,428
1,428

1,652
1,652

4.7 - Borrowing costs
Interest on borrowings
Total borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are
capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council.

4.8 - Finance Costs - Leases
Interest - Lease Liabilities
Total finance costs

270

-

270

-

69

73

156
416
1,346
2,918
1,116
1,492
532
8,045

157
408
4,066
2,921
1,351
1,518
317
10,811

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Term deposits
Total cash and cash equivalents

8
22,885
76,366
99,259

8
10,594
88,333
98,935

(b) Other financial assets
Term deposits - current

15,078

26,593

4
15,082

26,597

114,341

125,532

4.9 - Other expenses

AF

T

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements,
performance statement and grant acquittals
Auditors' remuneration - internal
Councillors' allowances
Operating lease rentals
Community grants and contributions
Training and professional development
Special rate scheme expenditure
Other expenditure
Total other expenses

Note 5 - Our financial position

D

R

5.1 - Financial assets

Unlisted shares

Total other financial assets
Total financial assets

4

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for
discretionary use. These include:
4,036
- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3)
5,752
5,752
4,036
Total restricted funds
93,507
94,899
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
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$'000

2019
$'000

14,095
7,852
18,703
40,650

6,852
3,565
16,903
27,320

5.1 - Financial assets (cont.)
Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been
allocated for specific future purposes by Council:
- Cash held to fund carried forward capital works
- Cash held to fund carried forward priority projects
- Reserves
Total funds subject to intended allocations

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with
original maturities of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost.
Any unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

(c) Trade and other receivables

AF

Current

T

The unlisted shares are held with Procurement Australasia Limited.

Statutory receivables
Rates debtors
Parking infringement debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - parking infringements
Non statutory receivables
Other debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors
Net GST receivable

R

Total trade and other receivables

10,558
8,062
(2,327)

6,886
8,268
(1,972)

3,204
(135)
1,954
21,316

3,332
(96)
1,372
17,790

21,316

17,790

D

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is
objective evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.
(d) Ageing of receivables

The ageing of the Council's trade & other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:
Current (not yet due)
Past due by up to 30 days
Past due between 31 and 180 days
Past due between 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year
Total trade and other receivables

2,039
420
493
106
274
3,332

2,082
199
336
121
466
3,204

(e) Ageing of individually impaired receivables
At balance date there were no other debtors representing financial assets that were impaired (2018-19 Nil).
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$'000

2019
$'000

16
15
31

16
15
31

5.2 - Non - financial assets
(a) Inventories
Inventories held for distribution
Inventories held for sale
Total inventories

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. All other
inventories, including inventories held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where inventories are
acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
(b) Other assets
Prepayments
Total other assets

1,956
1,956

1,652
1,652

348
348

880
880

Software
Total intangible assets

T

(c) Intangible assets

Software
3,755
99
3,854

AF

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions from internal developments
Balance at 30 June 2020

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2019
Amortisation expense
Accumulated amortisation for disposals
Balance at 30 June 2020

R

Net book value at 30 June 2019
Net book value at 30 June 2020

(2,875)
(631)
(3,506)
880
348

D

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised as an expense on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life. Amortisation is
generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at least annually, and
adjustments made where appropriate.

5.3 - Payables

2020
$'000

2019
$'000

13,494
5,631
19,125

21,053
4,442
25,495

4,849
671
4

3,333
512
7

Total trust funds and deposits

228
5,752

184
4,036

(c) Unearned income
Grants received in advance - operating

1,080

-

432
57

110

1,569

110

(a) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses
Total trade and other payables

(b) Trust funds and deposits
Refundable deposits
Fire services levy
Refundable contract deposits and retention monies
Balwyn Rotary Sunday Market trust funds

Grants received in advance - capital
Other
Total unearned income
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5.3 - Payables (cont.)
Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are returned,
transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in Council gaining
control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.
Purpose and nature of items
Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by Council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in relation to
building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.
Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits amounts
received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the State Government in line with that process.
Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or a
related warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of
time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual obligations.

5.4 - Interest-bearing liabilities

T

Trust funds held on behalf of the operation of the Balwyn Rotary Sunday Market - Profits and losses are transferred each month
when they exceed $5,000.

Current
Borrowings - secured

Non-current
Borrowings - secured
Total

AF

2020
$'000

2019
$'000

1,573

1,495

23,213

24,785

24,786

26,280

R

Borrowings are secured over the General Rates of Council as per section 148 of the Local Government Act 1989 .
a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:

D

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

1,573
7,281
15,932
24,786

1,495
6,879
17,906
26,280

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction costs. The
measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-bearing liabilities
as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any
difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net result over the period of the
borrowing using the effective interest method.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council determines the classification of
its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.
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5.5 - Provisions
Annual
leave
2020
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Increase in the discounted amount arising because of time and the effect of
any change in the discount rate
Balance at the end of the financial year

(a) Employee provisions

Current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months
Annual leave
Long service leave
Total current employee provisions

R

Non-current
Long service leave
Total non-current employee provisions

D

Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current
Non-current
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions
(b) Other
Provision for rostered days off
Current

Total

$ '000
401
1,971
(1,830)

$ '000
19,054
11,951
(9,614)

5

10

-

15

13,934

542

21,406

5,357
6,467
(6,213)

12,441
3,247
(2,723)

328
1,805
(1,732)

18,126
11,519
(10,668)

14

63

-

77

5,625

13,028

401

19,054

2020
$'000

2019
$'000

5,299
1,508
542
7,349

4,485
1,446
401
6,332

1,631
10,384
12,015
19,364

1,140
9,595
10,735
17,067

2,042
2,042

1,987
1,987

19,364
2,042
21,406

17,067
1,987
19,054

542
542

401
401

AF

Current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months
Annual leave
Long service leave
Other

Other

6,930

T

2019
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Increase in the discounted amount arising because of time and the effect of
any change in the discount rate
Balance at the end of the financial year

$ '000
5,625
6,845
(5,545)

Long
service
leave
$ '000
13,028
3,135
(2,239)

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.
Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting date,
classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal values.
Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for
employee benefits as non-current liabilities, measured at present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at present value.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a
qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non - current liability.
Key assumptions:
- discount rate
- inflation rate
- settlement rate (years)

0.87%
2.30%
7

1.32%
2.80%
7
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2020

2019

$'000

$'000

Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2020:
Credit card facilities
Borrowing facilities
Total facilities

300
24,786
25,086

300
26,280
26,580

Used facilities
Unused facilities

24,890
196

26,408
172

5.6 - Financing arrangements

5.7 - Commitments
The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet.
Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

AF

T

Later than Later than
1 year and 2 years and
not later
not later
than 2
than 5
Not later
years
years
than 1 year
$'000
$'000
$'000
30 June 2020

Later than
5 years
$'000

Total
$'000

919
1,875
183
179
1,722
2,040
12,705
8,479
3,106

116
467
179
1,545
1,246
7,325
7,094
3,089

78
163
61
1,441
235
5,776
11,562
3,085

729
-

1,113
2,505
183
419
4,708
3,521
25,806
27,864
9,280

Total operating commitments

31,208

21,061

22,401

729

75,399

6,684
2,108
6,841

2,327
1,159
4,858

2,277
487
971

-

11,288
3,754
12,670

8,641

8,641

2,900

-

20,182

30
2,242
110
754
1,213
6,648

68
110
647
909
6,336

330
1,577
1,079
555

135
-

30
2,310
685
2,978
3,201
13,539

Total capital commitments

35,271

25,055

10,176

135

70,637

Total commitments after 30 June 2020

66,479

46,116

32,577

864

146,036

R

Operating
Cleaning contracts for council buildings
Consultancies
Garbage Collection
Home care services
Information systems and technology
Maintenance
Open space management
Other
Recycling

D

Capital
Buildings
Computers and telecommunications
Drainage
Footpaths, shopping centre improvements,
laneways, car parks
Information systems and technology
Library materials - Books and furnishings
Open Space Management
Other capital related
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Roads
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5.7 - Commitments (cont.)
Later than Later than
1 year and 2 years and
not later
not later
than 2
than 5
Not later
years
years
than 1 year
$'000
$'000
$'000

Later than
5 years
$'000

Total
$'000

30 June 2019

2,128
381
10,322
2,268
190
931
1,766
1,725
6,074

2,122
227
5,372
1,735
919
1,267
1,720
4,431

2,791
114
5,340
630
194
2,420
1,058
6,455

1,098

7,041
722
21,034
4,633
190
2,044
5,453
4,503
18,058

Total operating commitments

25,785

17,793

19,002

1,098

63,678

Total capital commitments

16,538
6,810
8,489
7,418
1,216
2,327
2,249
195

2,570
6,648
8,465
6,841
1,213
2,108
2,242
-

4,556
6,891
11,341
5,829
1,988
1,645
68
-

49
-

23,713
20,349
28,295
20,088
4,417
6,080
4,559
195

45,242

30,087

32,318

49

107,696

71,027

47,880

51,320

1,147

171,374

AF

Capital
Buildings
Roads
Footpaths, laneways and car parks
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Computers and telecommunications
Library materials
Other

T

Operating
Recycling
Garbage Collection
Open space management
Consultancies
Home care services
Cleaning contracts for Council buildings
Information systems and technology
Maintenance
Other

D

R

Total commitments after 30 June 2019
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5.8 - Leases
Policy applicable before 1 July 2019
As a lessee, Council classifies leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease
transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to Council.
Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, were recognised as an expense in the comprehensive income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset. The leased asset was not recognised in the balance
sheet.
All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease were recognised as an integral part of the net
consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or the timing of payments.
In the event that lease incentives were received to enter into operating leases, the aggregate cost of incentives were
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless another systematic basis
was more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset were consumed.

T

Policy applicable after 1 July 2019
Council has applied AASB 16 Leases using a modified retrospective approach with the cumulative effect of initial application
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated surplus at 1 July 2019, with no restatement of
comparative information. The Council applied the approach consistently to all leases in which it is a lessee.

AF

On transition to AASB 16 Leases , Council elected to apply the practical expedient to ‘grandfather’ the assessment of which
transactions are leases. The Council has applied this practical expedient to all of its contracts and therefore applied AASB
16 Leases only to contracts that were previously identified as leases.
At inception of a contract, all entities would assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To identify whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, it is necessary to
assess whether:
- The contract involves the use of an identified asset;
- The customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period
of use; and
- The customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.

R

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019.

As a lessee, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for:
· any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; plus

D

· any initial direct costs incurred; and
· an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-ofuse assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset
is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, an appropriate
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, Council uses an appropriate incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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5.8 - Leases (cont.)
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
· Fixed payments
· Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;
· Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
· The exercise price under a purchase option that Council is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if Council is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless Council is reasonably certain not to terminate early.
When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the rightof-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
Council has elected to apply the temporary option available under AASB 16 Leases which allows not-for-profit entities to not
measure right-of-use assets at initial recognition at fair value in respect of leases that have significantly below-market terms.
Peppercorn Leases that Council has entered into include leasing of land, car parks and footpaths. Due to the temporary
relief granted under AASB 2018-8, peppercorn leases have not been recognised in the balance sheet.
Property
$'000
-

Vehicles
$'000
9,504
3,770
(3,057)
10,217

Other
$'000
54
(2)
52

T

Right-of-Use Assets

AF

Balance at 1 July 2019
Additions
Amortisation charge
Balance at 30 June 2020

Total
$'000
9,504
3,824
(3,059)
10,269

2020
$'000
2,901
7,397
10,298

Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet at 30 June:
Current
Non-current
Total lease liabilities

3,139
7,159
10,298

R

Lease Liabilities
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 June:

D

Short-term and low value leases
Council has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets (individual assets worth less than existing capitalisation
thresholds for a like asset up to a maximum of AUD$10,000), including IT equipment. Council recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Expenses relating to:
Short-term leases
Leases of low value assets
Total
Variable lease payments (not included in measurement of lease
liabilities)

2020
$'000
724
622
1,346
-
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Non-cancellable lease commitments - Short-term and low-value leases
Commitments for minimum lease payments for short-term and low-value leases are payable as follows:
Payable:
666
Within one year
706
Later than one year but not later than five years
Total lease commitments
1,372
i. Leases classified as operating leases under AASB 117 Leases
At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at Council's
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. Council applied this approach to all applicable leases.
Council used the following practical expedients when applying AASB 16 Leases to leases previously classified as operating
leases under AASB 117 Leases .

T

- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
- Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
onerous contract provision immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative to an impairment review.
- Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term.
- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

AF

ii. Leases previously classified as finance leases
For leases that were classified as finance leases under AASB 117 Leases , the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and
the lease liability at 1 July 2019 are determined at the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability under AASB 117
Leases immediately before that date.
Council is not required to make any adjustments on transition to AASB 16 Leases for leases in which it acts as a lessor,
except for a sub-lease. Council accounted for its leases in accordance with AASB 16 Leases from the date of initial
application.
Impact on financial statements

R

On transition to AASB 16 Leases , Council recognised an additional $9,504,290 of right-of-use assets and $9,504,290 of
lease liabilities, recognising the difference in retained earnings.
When measuring lease liabilities, Council discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019.
The weighted-average rate applied is 3%.

D

Operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019 as disclosed in Council's financial statements
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019
Finance lease liability recognised as at 30 June 2019
- Recognition exemption for:
short-term leases
leases of low-value assets
- Extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised
- Residual value guarantees
- Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019

2019
$'000
12,157
11,803
(1,576)
(723)
9,504

Note 6 - Assets we manage
6.1 - Non current assets classified as held for sale
Non-current assets classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount
and fair value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal groups and related
liabilities and assets are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset's sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification.
Council has no non-current assets held for sale at reporting date.
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6.2 - Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Additions

Contributions

$'000

$'000

$'000

Summary of Work in Progress

120,432
13,319
63,436
63,436

Opening WIP

Additions

$'000

$'000

8,934
2,344
14,876
26,154

$'000

Write-off

Impairment
Reversals

$'000

$'000

$'000

1,382

(13,268)
(3,824)
(16,621)

(681)
(666)
(3,309)

-

135,133

(33,713)

(4,656)

$'000

(6,539)
(6,539)

**Transfers

-

14,510
7,307
28,525
(50,501)
* (159)

At Fair Value
30 June 2020
$'000

2,657,386
310,204
21,639
533,850
32,550
3,555,629

27,126
6,686
29,624
63,436

**Transfers
$'000

Write Offs

Closing WIP

$'000

$'000

(15,225)
(5,770)
(29,506)
(50,501)

(2,565)
(1,645)
(2,329)
(6,539)

18,270
1,615
12,665
32,550

R

Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure
Total

$'000

Disposal

T

2,536,954
296,324
18,822
523,873
26,154
3,402,127

Revaluations Depreciation

AF

Land
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure
Work in progress

At Fair Value
30 June 2019

* The $0.16M is additions for Investment Property and Intangibles shown in Note 6.3 and Note 5.2 respectively.
** The differences between the two transfer totals relate to the classification of each project as budgeted, which appears in the WIP disclosure , compared to the actual classification of the asset determined

D

at the time of capitalisation which appears in the summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment table.
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6.2 - Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont.)
(a) Property

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Revaluation

Buildings - non
specialised

Total
Buildings

Work in
Progress

TOTAL
PROPERTY

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

329,624
329,624

2,536,954
2,536,954

465,303
(168,979)
296,324

465,303
(168,979)
296,324

89,337
-

31,095
-

14,510
20,111
(3,231)

89,337

31,095

120,432
120,432

31,390

14,510
20,111
(3,231)
31,390

-

-

-

-

-

(13,268)
2,550
(6,792)
(17,510)

-

-

(13,268)
2,550
(6,792)
(17,510)

-

(13,268)
2,550
(6,792)
(17,510)

496,693
(186,489)
310,204

496,693
(186,489)
310,204

18,270
18,270

3,172,349
(186,489)
2,985,860

T

2,207,330
2,207,330

2,296,667
2,296,667

360,719
360,719

2,657,386
2,657,386

8,934
8,934
27,126
(2,565)
(15,225)
9,336

3,011,191
(168,979)
2,842,212
41,636
140,543
(3,231)
(2,565)
(15,225)
161,158

D

At fair value 30 June 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020

Total
Land

AF

Movements in fair value
Additions
Revaluation
Disposals
Write-offs
Transfers in (out)

Land - non
specialised

R

At fair value 1 July 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019

Land specialised
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(b) Plant and Equipment
Library books

Work in Progress

TOTAL PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

T

Computers and
telecommunication

2,601
(1,355)
1,246

4,460
(478)

238
(163)

1,724
(174)

885
(1,148)

3,982

75

1,550

36,542
(23,590)
12,952

(2,159)
424
(1,735)

D

At fair value 30 June 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020

9,445
(6,220)
3,225

R

Movements in fair value
Additions
Contributions
Disposals
Write-offs
Transfers in (out)
Impairment losses reversed in operating result
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals

Fixtures fittings
and furniture

4,739
(3,340)
1,399

AF

At fair value 1 July 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019

Plant, machinery
and equipment

40,524
(25,325)
15,199

2,344
2,344

55,671
(34,505)
21,166

(263)

6,686
(1,645)
(5,770)
(729)

13,993
(1,963)
(1,645)
(5,770)
4,615

-

(3,824)
1,297
(2,527)

1,615
1,615

60,286
(37,032)
23,254

(594)
101
(493)

(681)
174
(507)

(390)
598
208

9,520
(6,713)
2,807

6,289
(3,847)
2,442

2,338
(1,147)
1,191
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6.2 - Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont.)
( c) Infrastructure

$'000

At fair value 1 July 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019

$'000

584,953
(329,431)
255,522

Movements in fair value
Additions
Revaluation
Disposals
Write-offs
Transfers in (out)

Bridges

$'000

Recreational,
leisure and
Community
$'000

Parks open
spaces and
streetscapes
$'000

Off street car
parks
$'000

$'000

28,959
(11,324)
17,635

39,184
(14,036)
25,148

3,037
7,705
(1,785)
8,957

5,117
(4,438)
(166)
513

1,706
(103)
1,603

5,361
(183)
5,178

1,013
(77)
936

29,624
(2,329)
(29,506)
(2,211)
-

(152)
(636)
(788)

(2,021)
(6,376)
836
(7,561)

(2,591)
(2,683)
154
(5,120)

(2,223)
73
(2,150)

(1,361)
98
(1,263)

(563)
(71)
(634)

619,542
(354,846)
264,696

15,343
(9,444)
5,899

151,430
(87,310)
64,120

216,044
(95,772)
120,272

53,252
(21,389)
31,863

34,137
(12,587)
21,550

40,120
(14,670)
25,450

Total
Infrastructure
$'000

51,649
(19,239)
32,410

(7,710)
(20,609)
2,904
(25,415)

14,876
14,876

12,665
12,665

1,091,836
(553,087)
538,749
58,149
31,757
(7,374)
(2,329)
(29,506)
50,697
(16,621)
(30,375)
4,065
(42,931)

1,142,533
(596,018)
546,515

3,555,629

D

Total property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Work in
Progress

215,531
(90,652)
124,879

AF

1,132
1,132

Drainage

142,473
(79,749)
62,724

R

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals

At fair value 30 June 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020

$'000

14,211
(8,656)
5,555

12,291
27,435
(5,137)
34,589

Footpaths and
cycleways

T

Roads
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Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets
provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour,
borrowing costs incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and
fixed overheads.
In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an
applicable asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.
Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods

Depreciate
Period

Threshold Limit

Years

$'000

N/A

-

2-55

5

5-30
100
10
3-5
6

2
0
2
2
0

30-100
100-150
75
50-130
50-130
20-85
20-100
15-80
15-100
30-100

7
7
7
7
7
7
7
2
2
7

3

5

T

Property
Land

AF

Buildings
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Arts and heritage
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and telecommunications
Library books

D

R

Infrastructure
Road pavements and seals
Road substructure
Road kerb, channel and minor culverts
Bridges deck
Bridges substructure
Footpaths and cycle ways
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Off street car parks
Intangible assets

Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls on a cost basis.
Depreciation and amortisation
Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful
lives are systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects
consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and
residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation
rates and methods are reviewed annually.
Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these
components are assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is
determined for each component.
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Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.
Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
Repairs and maintenance
Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the
capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is
expensed.
Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements are recognised at cost and are amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or
the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is the shorter. Council does not have any leasehold
improvements at reporting date.

T

Valuation of land and buildings
Valuation of land and buildings were undertaken by a qualified independent valuer Matheson Stephen
Valuations Property Consultants. The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market value
based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions. Where land use is restricted
through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This adjustment is an
unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.

AF

Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or
unserviced) characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of
infrastructure assets and services. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment
has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.
Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant
impact on the fair value of these assets.
The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table.

D

R

Details of the Council’s land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2020
are as follows:

Matheson Stephen Valuations Property Consultants undertook a review of ‘Annual Material Change’ in the
fair value of the land and building asset classes in the City of Boroondara portfolio for the period 1 January
2020 to 30 June 2020. No material change was identified based on data available.
The state of the property market within the review period is at present most influenced by the recent COVID19 pandemic and resulting declaration of State of Emergency. Market conditions are changing daily at
present.
The full extent of the effect of these conditions upon the property market and broader economic environment
is unclear at best. Initial falls in auction and inspection attendance rates prior to the State of Emergency, the
evolution and ensuing shift to online auctions only, and recent return of on-site auctions, albeit limited in
attendance numbers, have at varying times all conspired to result in a period of limited transaction volumes
from which to base a meaningful and thorough analysis process.
For the period of the annual material change review, we consider that there is a market uncertainty resulting
in significant valuation uncertainty.

Valuation of infrastructure
Valuation of infrastructure assets has been determined by Paris Zenonos, Manager Asset Management,
Bachelor of Civil Engineering (Honours).
The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table.
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The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of
valuation.
Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2020 are as
follows:

T

The market that the assets are transacted in is being impacted by the uncertainty that the COVID-19 outbreak
has caused. Data to the extent to which Covid-19 has impacted fair value measurements is not available to
the Council. Market conditions are changing daily at present. As at the date of valuation we consider that
there is a market uncertainty resulting in significant valuation uncertainty.
Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

AF

Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique.
Significant unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land
per square metre. The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction to
surrounding land values between 5% and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the
location of the land and the current market conditions. Currently land values range between $32 and $10,667
per square metre.

R

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable
inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. The remaining useful
lives of buildings are determined on the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from 25 years to
55 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in
cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or
requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings.

D

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable
inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful
lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 5
years to 150 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or
decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in
use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets.

Reconciliation of specialised land
Land under roads
Parks and reserves
Sports Grounds
Other
Total specialised land

2020
$'000

2019
$'000

1,896
995,303
803,894
495,574
2,296,667

1,650
953,975
776,704
475,001
2,207,330
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2020
$'000

2019
$'000

6.3 - Investments in joint arrangements
Background
The City of Boroondara has entered into a joint venture arrangement called Regional Landfill Clayton
South, which has developed a refuse tip for a number of municipalities. The Council has a 35.22% interest
in the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint venture. The remaining joint venture partners
include City of Glen Eira, City of Monash, City of Whitehorse and City of Stonnington.

(4,219)
(395)
(4,614)

T

Council's share of accumulated surplus(deficit)
Council's share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at start of year
Reported surplus/(deficit) for year
Council's share of accumulated deficit at end of year

AF

Movement in carrying value of specific investment
Carrying value of investment at start of year
Share of surplus/(deficit) for year
Carrying value of investment at end of year

(2,579)
(395)
(2,974)

(3,893)
(326)
(4,219)

(2,253)
(326)
(2,579)

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor has, rather than the legal structure of the joint
t
For joint operations, Council recognises its direct right to its share of jointly held assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of joint operations.

D

R

Council continues to account for Clayton Landfill under the equity method on the basis that Clayton
Landfill operating results, assets and liabilities are not material individually or in aggregate. Under this
method, the interests are initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise Council’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income in profit or loss and other comprehensive income respectively.
The landfill closed on the 29 January 2016. At balance date the landfill itself retains sufficient liquidity to
fund the post closure capital works and the post closure after care expenses for the medium term. It is
however likely that Council funds will be required to be expended in support of the entity in the longer
term.
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2020
$'000

2019
$'000

10,474

10,407
67
10,474

6.4 - Investment property
Gross carrying amount
Balance at beginning of financial year
Additions
Balance at end of financial year

59
10,533

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Depreciation expense
Balance at end of financial year

(1,429)

8,915

9,045

T

Net book value

(189)
(1,618)

(1,243)
(186)
(1,429)

Investment property is carried at cost and is depreciated on a straight line basis.

D

R

AF

Investment property, comprising fresh food market stalls and a commercial shop is held to generate longterm rental yields. All tenant leases are on an arms length basis. Investment property is measured at cost,
including transaction costs. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is
probable that future economic benefit in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will
flow to the Council. Rental income from the leasing of investment properties is recognised in the
Comprehensive Income Statement on a straight line basis over the lease term. AASB 140 Investment
Property, paragraph 53 states that if an entity determines that the fair value of an investment property is
not reliably determinable on a continuing basis, the entity shall measure that investment property using the
cost model in AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment .
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Note 7 - People and relationships
7.1 Council and key management remuneration
(a)

Related parties
Parent entity
City of Boroondara is the parent entity.
Subsidiaries and Associates
Interests in subsidiaries and associates are detailed in Note 6.3.

(b)

Key management personnel
Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during the year are:
Councillor Cynthia Watson (Mayor from 8 Nov 2019 to current)
Councillor Jane Addis (Mayor from 8 Nov 2018 to 7 Nov 2019 )
Councillor Jim Parke
Councillor Phillip Healey
Councillor Lisa Hollingsworth
Councillor Steve Hurd
Councillor Coral Ross
Councillor Felicity Sinfield
Councillor Garry Thompson
Councillor Jack Wegman

Chief Executive Officer

Phillip Storer

Other KMPs

Director Customer Experience and Business Transformation - Bruce Dobson
Director Environment and Infrastructure - Daniel Freer (from 11 Nov 2019)
Director Community Development - Carolyn McClean
Director City Planning - Shiran Wickramasinghe
Executive Manager People Culture and Development - Carolyn Terry

AF

T

Councillors

R

Total Number of Councillors
Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel
Total Key Management Personnel

(c) Remuneration of key management personnel

D

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Long-term benefits
Total

2020
No.
10
6
16

2019
No.
10
6
16

2020

2019

$'000
2,147
166
48
2,361

$'000
2,173
170
40
2,383
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7.1 Council and key management remuneration (cont.)
The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from
Council and any related entities, fall within the following bands:

$30,000
$50,000
$60,000
$80,000
$210,000
$250,000
$260,000
$270,000
$310,000
$320,000
$330,000
$430,000
$450,000

-

-

$39,999
$59,999
$69,999
$89,999
$219,999
$259,999
$269,999
$279,999
$319,999
$329,999
$339,999
$439,999
$459,999

2020
No.

2019
No.

8
1
1
1
1
3
1
16

8
1
1
1
4
1
16

T

(d) Senior Officer Remuneration
A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000

Income range:
-

$159,999
$169,999
$179,999
$189,999
$199,999
$209,999
$219,999
$229,999
$239,999
$259,999
$279,999

D

R

$151,000
$160,000
$170,000
$180,000
$190,000
$200,000
$210,000
$220,000
$230,000
$250,000
$270,000

AF

The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their relevant income bands:

Total remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included above,
amounted to:

2020
No.

2019
No.

7
14
4
4
4
5
1
5
3
3

10
7
4
6
6
6
4
4
1
1

50

49

$'000
9,548

$'000
9,203
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7.2 Related party disclosure
(a)

Transactions with related parties
During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties.
(a) Roadside Services and Solutions Pty Ltd
Councillor Jim Parke acquired a thirty percent share in Roadside Services and Solutions Pty Ltd on the 30 April 2018. For the year ended 30
June 2020, Council transactions with Roadside Services and Solutions Pty Ltd were valued at $213,599 (2018-19 $229,702) for road linemarking.
(b) Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV)
Councillor Coral Ross was elected President of Municipal Association of Victoria on the 1 March 2019. For the year ended 30 June 2020,
Council transactions with MAV were valued at $156,697 (2018-19 $154,256) for a membership subscription, insurance and other professional
services .

(b)

Outstanding balances with related parties

(c)

Loans to/from related parties

T

There were no balances outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties.

There were no aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a
responsible person of the Council, or a related party of a responsible person.
Commitments to/from related parties

AF

(d)

D

R

There were no aggregate amount of commitments in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to
a related party.
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Note 8 - Managing uncertainties
8.1 - Contingent assets and liabilities
(a) Contingent assets
As of 30 June 2020, there are no potential contingent assets.
(b) Contingent liabilities
Council is a party to an agreement signed under Section 173 of the Planning and Environmental Act in relation
to proposed developments in Station Street Camberwell. This agreement was signed on 5 March 1996
pursuant to Planning Permit BOR/9941 and originally imposed certain planning conditions upon the owners of
the land, including a limit on future floor area. The agreement also provided that Council would undertake the
demolition, removal and relocation of the Public Transport Corporation substation and equipment situated in
the Council car park to the west of the subject site and to construct car parking on this land. In the 2013-14
financial year, the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) ruled that the originally proposed
developments can proceed. There have been several previous VCAT and Supreme Court proceedings (to
which Council was a party) in relation to the developments in Station Street Camberwell and the Section 173
Agreement. All previous VCAT and Supreme Court Cases have been finalised, however, Council will likely be
liable for costs associated with these proceedings. As of 30 June 2020, the nature timing and quantum of
costs associated with these proceedings have not been reliably determined. The nature, timing and costs
associated with honouring the terms of the Section 173 Agreement have also not been reliably determined.

(b)

Council is presently involved in a number of confidential legal matters, which are being conducted through
Council's solicitors. The estimated potential financial effect of these matters is unknown at reporting date. The
estimate of the financial liability at reporting date representing Council's maximum exposure under its public
liability insurance policy for trips and falls on road reserves and footpaths total $228,992 (2018-19 $140,000).
This amount is contingent on the outcome of the resolution of these claims.

(c)

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make
additional contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a
result of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists.

R

AF

T

(a)

Future superannuation contributions

D

In addition to the disclosed contributions, City of Boroondara has paid unfunded liability payments to Vision
Super totalling $0 (2018-19 $0). There were no contributions outstanding and no loans issued from or to the
above schemes as at 30 June 2020. The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of
Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2021 are $508,000 (2018-19 $517,000).
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8.2 - Change in accounting standards
The following new AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting period.
Council has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential impacts will flow from
the application of these standards in future reporting periods.
AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors (AASB 1059) (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)
AASB 1059 addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement by a grantor that is a public
sector entity by prescribing the accounting for the arrangement from the grantor’s perspective. It requires the
grantor to:
· recognise a service concession asset constructed, developed or acquired from a third party by the operator,
including an upgrade to an existing asset of the grantor, when the grantor controls the asset;

AF

T

· reclassify an existing asset (including recognising previously unrecognised identifiable intangible assets and
land under roads) as a service concession asset when it meets the criteria for recognition as a service
concession asset;
· initially measure a service concession asset constructed, developed or acquired by the operator or
reclassified by the grantor at current replacement cost in accordance with the cost approach to fair value in
AASB 13 Fair Value Measuremen t. Subsequent to the initial recognition or reclassification of the asset, the
service concession asset is accounted for in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment or
AASB 138 Intangible Assets , as appropriate, except as specified AASB 1059;
·recognise a corresponding liability measured initially at the fair value (current replacement cost) of the service
concession asset, adjusted for any other consideration between the grantor and the operator; and
·disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of assets, liabilities, revenue and cash flows arising from service concession
arrangements.
Based on the Council’s current assessment, there is expected to be no impact on the transactions and
balances recognised in the financial statements as the Council is not a grantor in a service concession
arrangement.

D

R

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material (applies 2020/21
for LG Sector)
The Standard principally amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 108 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors . The amendments refine the definition of material in
AASB 101. The amendments clarify the definition of material and its application by improving the wording and
aligning the definition across AAS and other publications. The impacts on the local government sector are
expected to be minimal.
AASB 2019-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - References to the Conceptual
Framework (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)
This Standard sets out amendments to Australian Accounting Standards, Interpretations and other
pronouncements to reflect the issuance of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Conceptual
Framework) by the AASB. The impacts on the local government sector are expected to be minimal.
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8.3 - Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and policies
The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory
receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting
policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument is disclosed in the Notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior
management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk
exposure to Council and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.
(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of council financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only
insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

AF

T

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily
from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes council to fair value interest rate risk. Council
does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore has no
exposure to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at floating rates.
Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989 .
Council manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:
- diversification of investment product;
- monitoring of return on investment; and
- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

R

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for
managing interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

D

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's
year end result.
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8.3 - Financial instruments (cont.)
(c) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause
us to make a financial loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on all financial assets included in our balance
sheet. To help manage this risk:
- Council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities council deal with;
- Council may require collateral where appropriate; and
- Council only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our
investment policy.
Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government
sectors. Credit risk associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by
a charge over the rateable property.
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.

T

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as
when we provide a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b).

(d) Liquidity risk

AF

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net
of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial
statements. Council does not hold any collateral.

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements or we will not have sufficient
funds to settle a transaction when required, we will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be
unable to settle or recover a financial asset.

D

R

To help reduce these risks Council:
- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;
- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid
instruments;
- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and
- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal
repayments to rate revenue.

The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the
face of the balance sheet and the amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed in Note 8.1(c), and is deemed
insignificant based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk.
There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade.
Details of the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4.
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the
next 12 months:
- A parallel shift of + 1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 0.91%.
These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor
will they have a material impact on the results of Council's operations.
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8.4 - Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy
Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , Council's financial assets and liabilities
are measured at amortised cost.
Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards. AASB 13
Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.
AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

T

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

AF

Revaluation
Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at their fair
value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets
measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from
the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.
Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only occur if an
external change in the restrictions or limitations of use on an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use
of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging
from 2 to 5 years. The valuation is performed either by experienced Council officers or independent experts.

R

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that
an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the
increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except
where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the
reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the
year are offset.

D

Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls on a cost basis.
Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is
expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment
loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss
does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.
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8.5 - Events occurring after balance date

T

The COVID-19 pandemic has created unprecedented economic uncertainty. Actual economic events and conditions in the future may be
materially different from those estimated by the City of Boroondara at the reporting date. As responses by government continue to
evolve, management recognises that it is difficult to reliably estimate with any degree of certainty the potential impact of the pandemic
after the reporting date on the City of Boroondara, its operations, its future results and financial position.
The Victorian Government announced a State of Disaster on the 2 August 2020 and “Stage 4” restrictions were applied to Metro
Melbourne, which includes the City of Boroondara. This event does not affect amounts recognised in the 2019-20 financial statements.
The introduction of Stage 4 restrictions has had further implications for Council services and facilities beyond those already affected by
the previous Stage 3 restrictions. Several of Councils services have now been or continued to be closed including Council’s leisure
centre facilities, libraries, community centres and the Hawthorn Arts Centre.
Council’s 2020-21 Adopted Budget includes estimated impacts on revenue and expenditure streams under Stage 3 restrictions for the
first quarter of 2020-21. An estimated $8.35 million reduction in revenue is expected primarily in User Fees and Statutory Fees and
Charges and unexpected cost increases mainly due to the temporary closure of Council’s Leisure and Aquatic Facilities.
As part of Stage 3 restrictions Council developed a $4.5 million financial assistance package which commenced in April 2020 and has
effect over both the 2019-20 and 2020-21 financial years. The relief package includes a range of initiatives designed to ease the financial
burden on residents, local businesses and community groups and is reflected in the 2020-21 budget.
Council continues to monitor and review the financial impacts of COVID-19 on Council’s operating budget.
No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may affect the
operations of the City of Boroondara, the results of the operations or the state of affairs of the City of Boroondara in the future financial
years.

Note 9 - Other matters
9.1 - Reserves

Reversal of
previous
Increment
Balance at end of
revaluations for
(decrement)
reporting period
assets
disposed
$'000
$'000
$'000

AF

Balance at
beginning of
reporting
period
$'000

(a) Asset revaluation reserves
2020
Property
Land
Buildings and other structures

120,432
13,319
133,751

(1,089)
(1,089)

2,341,488
69,859
2,411,347

163,661
4,757
37,086
36,937
13,698
256,139

6,826
496
1,329
(7,121)
(148)
1,382

-

170,487
5,253
38,415
29,816
13,550
257,521

Sub-total property and infrastructure

2,534,824

135,133

(1,089)

2,668,868

Total asset revaluation reserves

2,534,824

135,133

(1,089)

2,668,868

2,642,103
57,956
2,700,059

(420,735)
(420,735)

(312)
(327)
(639)

2,221,056
57,629
2,278,685

163,661
4,757
37,086
36,937
13,698
256,139

-

-

163,661
4,757
37,086
36,937
13,698
256,139

Sub-total property and infrastructure

2,956,198

(420,735)

(639)

2,534,824

Total asset revaluation reserves

2,956,198

(420,735)

(639)

2,534,824

R

2,221,056
57,629
2,278,685

D

Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Carparks and access roads

2019
Property
Land
Buildings and other structures
Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Carparks and access roads

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the movement in fair value of Council's assets over time.
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9.1 - Reserves (cont.)
Balance at
beginning of
reporting
period
$'000

Transfer from
accumulated
surplus

Transfer to
Balance at end of
accumulated
reporting period
surplus

$'000

$'000

$'000

-

434
7,000
11,269

(b) Other reserves
2020
Strategic Acquisition fund
Defined Benefit future call up fund
Open Space development fund

434
6,000
10,469

Total other reserves

16,903

1,000
800
1,800

434
5,000
9,669

1,000
800

-

434
6,000
10,469

15,103

1,800

-

16,903

18,703

Strategic Acquisition fund
Defined Benefit future call up fund
Open Space development fund
Total other reserves

T

2019

AF

The Strategic Acquisition fund will be available for the purpose of acquiring new strategic assets where they are required for the provision
of community services or for additional public open space.
The Open Space development fund allows for the acquisition of land within the municipality for conversion to public open space as it
becomes available.

D

R

The Defined Benefit future call up fund has been created for use should a shortfall in the defined benefit superannuation fund be called
by the Local Government Defined Benefit Superannuation Fund trustee.
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2020
$'000

2019
$'000

Surplus for the period

12,259

30,719

Depreciation and amortisation

37,592
4,625

33,669
2,288

9.2 - Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit)

(Profit) /loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Share of joint venture (profits) / losses net of distributions
Works in progress not capitalised (expensed)
Contributions of non-monetary assets
Borrowing costs
Finance costs leases

395

326

6,539
1,428
270

4,712
(840)
1,652
-

(3,340)
(304)
1,717

(2,013)
(514)
(5)
792

(4,850)
1,459
2,330

(1,084)
28
929

60,120

70,659

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in trust funds and deposits
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

9.3 - Superannuation

AF

Net cash provided by operating activities

T

increase in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities
Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of
which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in Comprehensive
Operating Statement when they are made or due.

R

Accumulation
The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receive both employer and employee contributions
on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year
ended 30 June 2020, this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (SG) legislation).

D

Defined Benefit
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category.
This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as the
defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate
obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Boroondara City
Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund
Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers for the purposes of AASB 119.

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on the
advice of the Fund Actuary.
A triennial actuarial review is currently underway for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 and is expected to be
completed by 31 December 2020.
As at 30 June 2019, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit
category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Boroondara City Council is a contributing
employer was 107.1%. The financial assumptions used to calculate the VBIs were:
Net investment returns 6.0% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 2.0% pa.
Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2020 was 104.6%.
The VBI is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2019 interim actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from prior years.
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9.3 - Superannuation (cont.)
Employer contributions
Regular contributions
On the basis of the results of the 2017 full actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council makes employer
contributions to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund’s Trustee. For the year ended 30 June
2020, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2018-2019). This rate is expected to increase in line with any increases
in the SG contribution rate and reviewed as part of the 30 June 2020 triennial valuation.
In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment above the
funded resignation or retirement benefit.
Funding Calls
If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the Defined Benefit
category‘s VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit
category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully
funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its
shortfall limit at 97%.

AF

T

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund’s participating
employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.
Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1
July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund’s Defined Benefit category, together with the employer’s payroll
at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.
Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes
lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.
If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the participating employers.
In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to that
employer’s successor.

R

The 2019 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts
An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer.
Generally, a full actuarial investigation conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are conducted for each
intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2019 and the last full actuarial investigation was
conducted as at 30 June 2017.
The Fund’s actuarial investigations identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing
employer:
2017
$m
69.8
193.5
228.8

D

- A VBI Surplus
- A total service liability surplus
- A discounted accrued benefits surplus

2019
$m
151.3
233.4
256.7

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested
benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2019.
The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus
expected future contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2019.
The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category
exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2019.
Council was notified of the 30 June 2019 VBI during August 2019 (2018: August 2018).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
9.3 - Superannuation (cont.)
The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation
A triennial actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2020. It is anticipated that this
actuarial investigation will be completed by 31 December 2020. The financial assumptions for the purposes of this investigation
are:
2020
2017
Triennial
Triennial
Investigation
Investigation
Net investment return
Salary Inflation

5.60% pa
2.50 %pa
for the first two
years and
2.75%pa
thereafter
2.00% pa

Price Inflation

6.50% pa
3.50% pa

2.50% pa

AF
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Superannuation contributions
Contributions by Council (excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020 are detailed below:
2020
2019
$'000
$'000
Scheme
Type of Scheme
Rate
514
502
Vision Super
Defined benefit
9.5%
3,647
3,571
Accumulation fund
9.5%
Vision Super
Other scheme
Accumulation fund
9.5%
3,250
2,921
In addition to the above contributions, Council has paid unfunded liability payments to Vision Super totalling $0 paid during the
2019-20 year (2018-19 $0).
There were no contributions outstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2020.

D

R

The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2021 is
$508,000.
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10 - Change in accounting policy
Council has adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 16 Leases and AASB 1058 Income of
Not-for-Profit Entities , from 1 July 2019. This has resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Due to the transition methods chosen by Council in applying these standards, comparative information throughout
these financial statements has not been restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards except in relation to
contracts that were not complete at 1 July 2019. The transition impact of these are detailed below.
a) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Impact of Adoption
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers applies to revenue transactions where Council provides services
or goods under contractual arrangements.
Council adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers using the modified (cumulative catch up) method.
Revenue for 2019 as reported under AASB 118 Revenue is not adjusted, because the new standard is only applied
from the date of initial application.
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires revenue from contracts with customers to be recognised
as Council satisfies the performance obligations under the contract.
b) AASB 16 Leases

c) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

T

AASB 16 Leases requires right of use assets and related liabilities for all lease agreements to be recognised on the
balance sheet. The Statement of Comprehensive Income is to separately recognise the amortisation of the right of
use asset, and the finance costs relating to the lease. Council has elected to adopt the modified (cumulative catch up)
method under the standard and as such has not adjusted 2019 disclosures. The transition impact of these are detailed
below.

AF

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities applies to income received where no contract is in place. This includes
statutory charges (such as rates) as well as most grant agreements.
Council adopted AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities using the modified (cumulative catch up) method.
Income for 2019 is not adjusted, because the new standard is only applied from the date of initial application.
AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities requires income to be recognised as Council satisfies the performance
obligations under the contract.
d) Transition impacts
The following table summarises the impact of transition to the new standards on retained earnings at 1 July 2019.
2019
$'000
927,776
-

Income Adjustment - impact of AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

927,776

R

Retained earnings at 30 June 2019
Revenue adjustment - impact of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Retained earnings at 1 July 2019

D

Council adopted the practical expedient of deeming the lease asset to be equal in value to the lease liability at 1 July
2019. As such there was no impact on retained earnings on the adoption of AASB 16 Leases.
The following table summarises the impacts of transition to the new standards on Council's balance sheet for the year
ending 30 June 2019.

Assets

As reported 30
Adjustments
June 2019
$'000

Right of use assets

-

Grants receivable

-

$'000
9,504

-

Post adoption
$'000
9,504

9,504

9,504

(2,780)

(2,780)

(6,724)
(9,504)

(6,724)
(9,504)

Liabilities
Unearned income - operating grants
Unearned income - capital grants
Lease liability - current

-

Lease liability - non-current

-
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11 - Impact of COVID 19 on Council operations and 2019-20 Financial Report
On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared as a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Various measures were
taken by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19.
To ease the financial burden on Boroondara residents, local businesses and community groups Council introduced a series of
measures effective April 2020. The measures combined with other costs has impacted Council’s operations for the financial
year end 2020 in the following areas:
• Council has extended its Financial hardship policy in response to COVID-19 from April 2020. Deferral of rates revenue
received has resulted in the debtor balance as at 30 June 2020 to increase by $3.60M compared to last year. No interest is
being charged on late rate payments.
• Application fees have been waived for 3-year-old and 4-year-old kindergarten enrolments and charges for parent information
sessions were also waived.
• In response to COVID-19 restrictions and government directives the leisure centre facilities, libraries, community centres and
the Hawthorn Arts Centre were closed. These closures resulted in a decrease in the council user fee revenue by $1.36M and an
increase in associated expenses by $1.29M.
• Council waived winter season sportsground tenancy fees and utilities charges for sporting clubs.

AF

T

• Statutory fees and fines and user fees were impacted by COVID-19 impacting Council revenue by $6.97M. This included:
- Suspended enforcement of time restrictions for parking in and around hospitals, Centrelink offices and under-utilised car
parks.
- Suspended ticket parking machine fees in paid parking areas to assist traders, shoppers and visitors.
- Waived waste management traders fees for the Maling Road, Greythorn and Camberwell shopping districts.
- Waived trader parking permits fees (quarterly and annual).
- All footpath trading fees including permits for outdoor dining on Council land were waived and rebated.
- Waived food premises registration fees to assist local traders.
- Reduced hire fee for users of the Anderson Park Meeting Room for 2020.

R

• The below resulted in a decrease in rent revenue of $662,000:
- Rental reduction for store holders at Camberwell Fresh Food Market.
- Kew Court House and Hawthorn Arts Centre tenants, both community and commercial, received reduced rent for their
lease/licences to match the period they have been unable to access the venues.
- Council waived lease and licence fees for some community groups.
- Council waived all fees under the Camberwell Sunday Market licence, including licence fee, stallholder levy and monthly
instalments. Council also offered Boroondara Farmers Market and Hawthorn Makers Market stallholders the opportunity to have
their own online ordering and delivery information promoted on Council’s website and the relevant market’s social media pages.

D

• The state of the property market within the review period is at present most influenced by the recent COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting declaration of State of Emergency. Market conditions are changing daily at present.
The full extent of the effect of these conditions upon the property market and broader economic environment is unclear at best.
Initial falls in auction and inspection attendance rates prior to the State of Emergency, the evolution and ensuing shift to online
auctions only, and recent return of on-site auctions, albeit limited in attendance numbers, have at varying times all conspired to
result in a period of limited transaction volumes from which to base a meaningful and thorough analysis process.
For the period of the annual material change review, we consider that there is a market uncertainty resulting insignificant
valuation uncertainty.
• The market that the infrastructure assets are transacted in is being impacted by the uncertainty that the COVID-19 outbreak
has caused. Data to the extent to which Covid-19 has impacted fair value measurements is not available to the Council.
Market conditions are changing daily at present. As at the date of valuation we consider that there is a market uncertainty
resulting in significant valuation uncertainty.
Council continues to monitor the situation, work with the business community and review the initiatives over the coming months.
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Performance Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Description of municipality
The City of Boroondara (the Council) is located in the inner eastern suburbs of Melbourne, between 5 and 10 kilometres east of the
Melbourne Central Business District and covers an area of 60 square kilometres. The Council includes the suburbs of Ashburton,
Balwyn, Balwyn North, Camberwell, Canterbury, Deepdene, Hawthorn, Hawthorn East, Kew and Kew East, and parts of Glen Iris,
Surrey Hills and Mont Albert.
Boroondara has an estimated residential population of 183,199 people (at 30 June 2019). Compared with greater Melbourne, we
have a smaller proportion of young children and people aged 30 to 39, but a larger proportion of 10 to 19 year olds and people over
50 years. Of all 79 Victorian local government areas, Boroondara has the fifth largest population of people aged 85 years and over.
At the 2016 Census 3.8% of the population needed assistance with daily living tasks.
Boroondara is culturally and linguistically diverse. The proportion of Boroondara residents who were born overseas increased from
25.5% in 2006 to 30.9% in 2016. Residents were born in more than 145 countries and spoke more than 120 languages.

AF

T

By area, Boroondara has one of the highest concentrations of schools of all Victorian local government areas, with 58 secondary,
primary and special education schools, including 12 combined primary and secondary schools, as well as Swinburne University,
Swinburne TAFE, the Hawthorn-Melbourne English Language Centre and two Universities of the Third Age. Currently, 74
organisations offer a kindergarten program in Boroondara spanning across standalone kindergartens, long day care centres and
independent schools. The City also has 11 neighbourhood and community centres where residents can participate in programs
focussing on health and wellbeing, languages, creative pursuits, the arts, cooking and technology.
On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared as a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Various measures were
taken by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19.

D

R

To ease the financial burden on Boroondara residents, local businesses and community groups Council introduced a series of
measures effective April 2020 and include:
• Council has extended its financial hardship policy in response to COVID-19 from April 2020. No interest is being charged on late
rate payments.
• Support for families - application fees have been waived for 3-year-old and 4-year-old kindergarten enrolments and charges for
parent information sessions were also waived
• Public Parking - suspended enforcement of time restrictions for parking in and around hospitals, Centrelink offices and underutilised car parks and ticket parking machine fees in paid parking areas until September 2020 to assist traders, shoppers and
visitors
• Support for Community Groups - waived lease and licence fees for some community groups, including sporting clubs
• Relief for local businesses - waived fees for footpath trading fees, food premises registration, trader parking permits and waste
management traders fees for Maling Road, Greythorn and Camberwell shopping districts
• Our markets - waived all fees under the Camberwell Sunday Market licence, including licence fee, stallholder levy and monthly
instalments.
Council's revenue and expenditure streams has been impacted by COVID-19 primarily in in User Fees and Statutory Fees and
Charges totalling $6.97 million.
In response to COVID-19 restrictions and government directives the leisure centre facilities, libraries, community centres and the
Hawthorn Arts Centre were closed. These closures resulted in a decrease in the council user fee revenue by $1.36 million and an
increase in associated expenses by $1.29 million. These restrictions also resulted in decreased visitations to council facilities and
also decreased participation in Council programs.
Council continues to monitor the situation, work with the business community and review the initiatives over the coming months.
Refer to the Annual Financial Statements for further information.
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Results
2017

Indicator/measure
Own-source revenue
Own-source revenue per head of municipal population
(Own-source revenue/Municipal population)

Recurrent grants
Recurrent grants per head of municipal population
(Recurrent grants/Municipal population)

Population
Expenses per head of municipal population
(Total expenses/Municipal population)

2018

2019

2020

Material Variations

$1,160.91 $1,180.03 $1,205.61 $1,213.68

$98.97

$86.40

$78.91

$73.48

Council continues to deliver services in accordance with
it's long term financial plan. Expenditure has increased
$1,120.37 $1,109.28 $1,166.77 $1,265.02
primarily due to an increase in materials and services
costs.

Infrastructure per head of municipal population
(Value of infrastructure/Municipal population)

$4,775.59 $4,720.19 $4,772.34 $4,903.10

Population density per length of road
(Municipal population/Kilometres of local roads)

321.86

323.22

10

10

10

10

AF

Disadvantage
Relative Socio-Economic disadvantage
(Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage by decile)

318.59

T

314.50

12.1%

11.4%

8.1%

9.5%

The variance is partially attributable to changes in
operating models arising from service review as well as
normal variances in departures.

R

Workforce turnover
Percentage of staff turnover
[Number of permanent staff resignations and terminations / Average
number of permanent staff for the financial year] x100

D

Definitions
"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than (a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and
(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other
than those referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b)
"infrastructure" means non-current property, plant and
equipment excluding land
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is
the responsible road authority under the
Road Management Act 2004

"population" means the resident population estimated by council
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council
(including government grants)
"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic
disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located
according to the index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA
"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of
Statistics on its internet website
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Service Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Results
2017
2018

Aquatic facilities
Utilisation
Utilisation of aquatic facilities
(Number of visits to aquatic facilities/Municipal population)
Animal management
Health and safety
Animal management prosecutions
(Number of successful animal management prosecutions /
Total number of animal management prosecutions) x 100
Food safety
Health and safety
Critical and major non-compliance outcome notifications
(Number of critical non-compliance outcome notifications
and major non-compliance notifications about a food
premises followed up/Number of critical non-compliance
outcome notifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises) x 100

2020

14

14

15

10

New in
2020

New in
2020

New in
2020

100%

99%

99%

99%

99%

Material Variations
Visitations heavily impacted by COVID-19
pandemic.

New measure in 2019-20.

AF

Governance
Satisfaction
Satisfaction with council decisions
(Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council
has performance in making decisions in the interest of the
community)

2019

T

Indicator/measure

26%

60

25%

D

R

Libraries
Participation
Active library borrowers in municipality
(Number of active library burrowers in the last three
years/The sum of the population for the last three
years)x100
Maternal and child health
Participation
Participation in the MCH service
(Number of children who attend the MCH service at least
once in the year/Number of children who enrolled in the
MCH service) x 100

60

Participation
Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal children
(Number of Aboriginal children who attend the MCH
service at least once in the year/Number of Aboriginal
children enrolled in the MCH service) x 100

Roads
Satisfaction
Satisfaction with sealed local roads
(Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council
has performed on the condition of sealed local roads)

62

59

27%

25%

79%

80%

83%

82%

100%

96%

88%

100%

71

73

71

72

Measure changed in 2019-20 from ‘Active library
members’ to ‘Active library borrowers’ with
changes to the numerator and the denominator to
extend the calculation to the last three years.

All children who identify as Aboriginal have
attended all required Key Age and Stage visits.
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Service Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Indicator/measure
Statutory Planning
Decision making
Planning decisions upheld at VCAT
(Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside council's
decision in relation to a planning application/Number of
VCAT decisions in relation to planning applications)x100
Waste collection
Waste diversion
Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill
(Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from
kerbside bins/Weight of garbage, recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside bins) x 100

RETIRED
Indicator/measure

Results
2017
2018

2019

2020

52%

52%

41%

49%

49%

49%

49%

53%

2017

2018

2019

2020

Animal Management

Material Variations

Comments
From 1 July 2019, this measure was replaced by

3

Animal management prosecutions

17

[Number of successful animal management prosecutions]

Retired in Animal management prosecutions calculated as a
2020 percentage of successful animal management

T

Health and safety

6

prosecutions.

D

R

AF

Definitions
"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person
"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006
"active library member" means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library
"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act
"class 1 food premises" means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C of
that Act
"class 2 food premises" means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of
that Act
"critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council
by an authorised officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health
"food premises" has the same meaning as the Food Act 1984
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004
"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to
council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action
is taken
"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until
school age
"population" means the resident population estimated by council
"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident" means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian
WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004.
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Financial Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Results
2017

Operating position
Adjusted underlying result
Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)
(Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) / Adjusted underlying revenue) x 100

Liquidity
Working capital
Current assets compared to current liabilities
(Current assets / Current liabilities) x 100

11.19%

12.66%

235.51%

Forecasts

2019

9.66%

300.81%

2020

2.13%

2021

-6.42%

2022

-0.09%

2023

4.24%

272.44%

151.22%

131.53%

143.26%

AF

284.19%

2018

Unrestricted cash
Unrestricted cash compared to current liabilities
(Unrestricted cash / Current liabilities) x 100

29.61%

26.19%

D

Obligations
Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings compared to rates
( Interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rate revenue) x100

-7.36%

160.63%

131.89%

83.08%

84.68%

83.07%

14.72%

13.19%

12.15%

46.44%

32.20%

11.28%

1.56%

1.53%

1.95%

14.41%

R

31.51%

Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings repayments compared to rates
( Interest and principal repayments on interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rate
revenue) x100

3.99%

3.87%

2024

Material Variations

An indicator of the sustainable operating result required to enable
Council to continue to provide core services and meet its
objectives. The adjusted underlying result in 2019-20 and 2020-21
are due the impacts of COVID-19 and the 2020-21 Financial
6.09%
Assistance grants of $2.43 million or 50% brought forward to the
2019-20 financial year, with the operating result returning to
normal surplus levels in future years of the Strategic Resource
Plan.

T

Dimension/Indicator/measure

The reduction in working capital in 2021-22 is due to the
movement of Council's loans to current liabilities due to full loan
147.73%
payment scheduled for 2022-23 and Council's continued
investment in planned priority projects.
The reduction in unrestricted cash is due to higher levels of
funding held in investments with a term of greater than 90 days
maturity in order to maximise interest income. At the end of 30
June 2020 Council held $15.08 million in investments with a
87.91% maturity date greater than three months. During 2020-21, term
deposits will be redeemed and transferred to cash and cash
equivalents. Council does not forecast the level of funds held in
greater than 90 day maturity term deposits. Hence prior years
actual are not comparable with forecast years.
The decrease over years 2018-19 to 2019-20 is due to a
combination of higher rate revenue (2.5% rate cap in 2019-20)
28.12% and lower principal repayments as Council continues to reduce
existing debt. Council proposes to borrow $70 million in 2021-22
to fund significant infrastructure projects.
The increase in 2018-19 and 2022-23 is due to Council retiring
existing debt. A 20 year loan refinanced in 2014-15 was repaid in
full in 2018-19. In 2012-13, Council continued with substantial
3.62% investment in major building redevelopment works and borrowed
$29 million. This loan balance is scheduled to be repaid in full in
2022-23.
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Financial Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Results

Forecasts

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Indebtedness
Non-current liabilities compared to own source revenue
(Non-current liabilities / Own source revenue) x 100

23.34%

14.28%

13.43%

15.92%

13.81%

31.36%

28.06%

AF

New in
2020

New in
2020

New in
2020

Material Variations
During the 2019-20 financial year the implementation of the new
Accounting standard, Australian Accounting Standards Board 16
Leases (AASB 16 Leases) has taken effect and requires Council
to bring the majority of operating leases (primarily fleet charges
and leased assets) on-balance sheet. Council also proposes to
borrow $70 million in 2021-22 to fund significant infrastructure
projects. In 2019-20 and 2020-21 Council's own source revenue
24.28%
has decreased and reflects Council's immediate and short term
response to COVID-19 and resulting impacts on revenue primarily
in in User Fees and Statutory Fees and Charges. The reduction
also includes Council's $4.50 million support and relief package to
assist local residents, businesses and community groups due to
the impacts of COVID-19 and has an effect over both 2019-20
and 2020-21.

126.81%

148.13%

172.67%

110.46%

Based on Asset Renewal budgets and the timing of major
projects. Increase in 2020-21 & 2021-22 due to planned major
113.49%
project expenditure demonstrates Council's ongoing commitment
to invest in the renewal of its existing community infrastructure.

D

R

Asset renewal and upgrade
Asset renewal and upgrade compared to depreciation
(Asset renewal and asset upgrade expense / Asset depreciation) x100

2024

T

Dimension/Indicator/measure
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Financial Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Results
2017

Rates effort
Rates compared to property values
(Rate revenue / Capital improved value of rateable properties in the municipality) x 100
Efficiency
Expenditure level
Expenses per property assessment
(Total expenses / Number of property assessments)
Revenue level
Average rate per property assessment
(General rates and Municipal charges / Number of property assessments)

RETIRED
Dimension/Indicator/measure

Asset renewal compared to depreciation
[Asset renewal expense / Asset depreciation] x100]

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Material Variations

74.16%

74.91%

76.23%

79.36%

80.51%

78.00%

77.89%

Boroondara receives a very low level of financial assistance from
the State Government hence rate revenue will continue to be a
77.92%
key source of funding for the delivery of high quality services and
infrastructure to the community.

0.16%

0.16%

0.14%

0.17%

0.16%

0.17%

0.17%

The result is due to a 13% decrease in 2019-20 property values
0.17% compared to rate revenue only increasing by the rate cap of
2.50%.

$2,601

$2,578

$2,723

$2,952

$3,215

$3,203

$3,132

Council continues to deliver services in accordance with its long
$3,128 term financial plan. Expenditure has increased primarily due to an
increase in materials and services costs.

Council's budgeted rate increase in 2019-20 was capped at
$2,189 2.50%. Council is delivering services in accordance with its long
term financial strategy.

New in
2020

New in
2020

New in
2020

2017

2018

2019

2020

As of 1 July 2019, this measure was replaced by Average rate per
property assessment.
As of 1 July 2019, this measure was replaced by Asset renewal
and upgrade expense compared to depreciation.

$2,006

$2,200

$2,234

$2,314

Retired in
2020

117.56%

137.69%

133.55%

Retired in
2020

R

Average residential rate per residential property assessment
[Residential rate revenue / Number of residential property assessments]

Forecasts

2019

T

Stability
Rates concentration
Rates compared to adjusted underlying revenue
(Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying revenue) x 100

2018

AF

Dimension/Indicator/measure

$2,104

$2,146

Comments

"non-recurrent grant" means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received again during the period
covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants)
"population" means the resident population estimated by council
"rate revenue" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges
"recurrent grant" means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant
"residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties
"restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and
includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.

D

Definitions
"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than (a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and
(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to in paragraphs
(a) and (b)
"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure
"asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset
that returns the service capability of the asset to its original capability
"current assets" has the same meaning as in the AAS
"current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS
"non-current assets" means all assets other than current assets
"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities

$2,061
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Other Information
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1. Basis of preparation
Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The
performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service
performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of the
municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement has been
prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.
Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting
bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on
information drawn from council information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of
Statistics).

AF

T

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed
financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council’s strategic
resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires
explanation of any material variations in the results contained in the performance statement. Council
has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and explanations have
not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered
to be material because of its nature.

D

R

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are based on those adopted by council
in its strategic resource plan on 20 July 2020 and which forms part of the council plan. The strategic
resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at
the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long term. Detailed information
on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The
strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting council.
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Certification of Performance Statement
In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Callista Clarke, CPA
Principal Accounting Officer
Date:
Camberwell
In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the City of Boroondara for the year ended 30 June
2020 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and
the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

T

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in relation to
service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the performance
statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

D

Date:
Camberwell

R

Cr Cynthia Watson
Mayor

AF

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014
to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Cr Lisa Hollingsworth
Councillor

Date:
Camberwell

Phillip Storer
Chief Executive Officer
Date:
Camberwell
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1 Purpose
The purpose of this Policy is to:
1.1

give effect to the Public Transparency Principles;

1.2

describe the ways in which Council Information will be made publicly available;

1.3

specify which Council Information will be made publicly available as of course; and

1.4

describe the categories of Council Information that may be unavailable to the public.

This Policy is adopted under section 57 of the Act.

2 Objective
The objective of this Policy is to formalise Council’s support for transparency in its decisionmaking processes and availability of Council Information and to achieve the purpose stated in
Part 1 of this Policy.

3 Scope
This Policy applies to Councillors and Officers.

4 Definitions
In this Policy, the following words and phrases mean:
“Act” means the Local Government Act 2020.
“Chief Executive Officer” includes an Acting Chief Executive Officer.
“Closed Meeting” means a Meeting that is closed to members of the public.
“Community” means the residents and ratepayers of, and visitors to, the Municipal District and
may, depending on the context, refer to all of those people or to particular subsets of those
people.
“Confidential Information” means confidential information as defined in section 3(1) of the Act.
“Council” means Boroondara City Council.
“Council Information” means all documents and other information held by Council.
“Council meeting” has the same meaning as in the Act.
“Council Offices” means the offices of Council located at 8 Inglesby Road, Camberwell.
“Council Website” means Council’s website at www.boroondara@boroondara.vic.gov.au

Public Transparency Policy - September 2020
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“Delegated Committee” means a Delegated Committee established under section 63 of the Act.
“Governance Rules” means the governance rules adopted by Council under section 60 of the
Act, as amended from time to time.
“Health Information” means health information as defined in section 3(1) of the Health Records
Act 2001.
“Meeting” means a meeting of Council or a Delegated Committee.
“Municipal District” means the municipal district of Council.
“Officer” means a member of Council staff, and includes the Chief Executive Officer.
“Personal Information” means personal information as defined in section 3(1) of the Privacy and
Data Protection Act 2014.
“Pubic Transparency Principles” means the public transparency principles set out in section 58
of the Act and reproduced in Part 5 of this Policy.
“Requestor” means a person making a request to access Council Information under and in
accordance with this Policy.

5 Responsibility for this Policy
5.1

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the application and operation of this Policy.

5.2

The Chief Executive Officer may, from time to time, authorise another Officer or Officers
to fulfil any of the Chief Executive Officer’s functions and duties under this Policy.

5.3

Where another Officer is or other Officers are authorised under clause 5.2, any reference
in this Policy to the Chief Executive Officer is to be read as a reference to that Officer or
those Officers.

6 Public Transparency Principles
6.1

The Public Transparency Principles are set out in section 58 of the Act as follows:
6.1.1

Council decision-making processes must be transparent, except when Council is
dealing with information that is confidential by virtue of the Act or any other Act.

6.1.2

Council Information must be publicly available, unless:
(a)

the information is confidential by virtue of the Act or any other Act; or

(b)

public availability of the information would be contrary to the public interest.

6.1.3

Council Information must be understandable and accessible to members of the
Municipal District.

6.1.4

Public awareness of the availability of Council Information must be facilitated.

Public Transparency Policy - September 2020
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Council will give effect to and implement the Public Transparency Principles in
accordance with this Policy.

7 Council Decision-Making Processes
7.1

Council will ensure that the decision-making processes that it adopts are
transparent and open to the Community so that the Community is provided with an
opportunity for meaningful engagement with Council and its decision-making
processes.

7.2

Commencing from 1 January 2021 Council and delegated committee meetings will
be live streamed and the recording placed on Council’s website.

7.3

Without limiting the generality of clause 7.1 and clause 7.2, Council’s decisionmaking processes will:

7.4

7.3.1

be conducted in accordance with the Act and the Governance Rules;

7.3.2

unless considering Confidential Information, be conducted in a forum that
is open to, and accessible by, the Community; and

7.3.3

be informed by the:
(a)

views of those members of the Community whose rights and
interests will be directly affected by the decision; and

(b)

responses, if any, to any process of community engagement
conducted by Council in respect of the decision, whether in
accordance with its Community Engagement Policy or otherwise.

Further details of Council’s decision-making process can be found in Chapter 1 of
the Governance Rules.

8 Availability of Council Information
8.1

8.2

All Council Information will be made available to the public, unless the:
8.1.1

Council Information is Confidential Information; or

8.1.2

release of the Council Information is assessed by the Chief Executive
Officer as being contrary to the public interest.

A list of the categories of Council Information which will generally, subject to this
Policy, be made available either on the Council Website, at the Council Offices or
on request is set out at Appendix 1 to this Policy.

Public Transparency Policy - September 2020
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Publications
Council publishes a range of newsletters, reports and handbooks for residents,
businesses and visitors to the Municipal District. These publications are available on the
Council Website, at the Council Offices or on request to Council.

10 Accessibility of Council Information
10.1

Council Information will be made available on the Council Website, at the Council
Offices and/or on request.

10.2

Council will, to the extent possible, facilitate access to Council Information by:

10.3

10.2.1

making Council Information available in accordance with this Policy;

10.2.2

endeavouring to make Council Information accessible electronically and
in hard copy, where requested; and

10.2.3

endeavouring to convert Council Information to different accessible
formats where necessary for members of the Community for whom:
(a)

English is their second language; or

(b)

disability requires an alternative means of access to be provided.

Where a request is made for access to Council Information that is not on the
Council Website or otherwise available at the Council Offices, the Chief Executive
Officer will:
10.3.1

review the request;

10.3.2

assess whether the Council Information requested is Confidential
Information, or its release would be contrary to the public interest; and

10.3.3

notify the Requestor of the outcome of that assessment.

10.4

If the Council Information requested is assessed under clause 10.2 as not being
Confidential Information, or its release is assessed as not being contrary to the
public interest, the Council Information will be provided to the Requestor.

10.5

The Council Information will be provided to the Requestor by email unless the:

10.6

10.5.1

Requestor seeks access in a different form, including by reference to the
matters stated in clause 10.2.3, in which case the Council Information will
be provided in that form, unless it is impracticable to do so; or

10.5.2

Chief Executive Officer, having regard to the nature of the Council
Information requested, determines that the Council Information should be
provided in a different form, such as by inspection.

Council will provide such support to the Requestor as it considers reasonable to
ensure that the Council Information provided is understood by them.
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If, under clause 10.3, the Council Information requested is assessed as being
Confidential Information, or its release is assessed as being contrary to the public
interest, the Requestor will be advised:
10.7.1

that the request has been denied;

10.7.2

of the reasons for the request being denied; and

10.7.3

of alternative mechanisms by which they may seek access to the Council
Information (e.g. by making a request made under the Freedom of
Information Act 1982).

10.8

Any request for access to Council Information by way of an alternative mechanism
under clause 10.7.3 will be assessed according to the process applicable to it.

10.9

Where:
10.9.1

Council Information requested is assessed under clause 10.3 as being
Confidential Information, or its release is assessed as being contrary to
the public interest; but

10.9.2

it is practicable for that Council Information to be provided with deletions
so that it is suitable for release to the Requestor; and

10.9.3

the Chief Executive Officer believes that the Requestor would want the
Council Information in that format,

the Council Information will be provided in that format.
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11 Council Information that is Not Available
Some Council information may not be made publicly available. This will occur if the
information is Confidential Information, or its release would be contrary to the public
interest.
11.1

Confidential Information
11.1.1

What constitutes Confidential Information is set out in section 3(1) of the
Act and includes information within the following categories:

Type

Description

Council business
information

Information that would prejudice Council's position
in commercial negotiations if prematurely released.

Security information

Information that is likely to endanger the security of
Council property or the safety of any person if
released.

Land use planning
information

Information that is likely to encourage speculation in
land values if prematurely released.

Law enforcement
information

Information which would be reasonably likely to
prejudice the investigation into an alleged breach of
the law or the fair trial or hearing of any person if
released.

Legal privileged
information

Information to which legal professional privilege or
client legal privilege applies.

Personal information

Information which would result in the unreasonable
disclosure of information about any person or their
personal affairs if released.

Private commercial
information

Information provided by a business, commercial or
financial undertaking that relates to trade secrets or
that, if released, would unreasonably expose the
business, commercial or financial undertaking to
disadvantage.

Confidential meeting
information

Records of Council and Delegated Committee
meetings that are closed to the public to consider
confidential information.

Internal arbitration
information

Information provided to, or produced by, an arbiter
for the purpose of an internal arbitration process,
other than the findings and the reasons.
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Type

Description

Councillor Conduct
Panel information

Information:

Confidential
information under
the 1989 Act

Information that was confidential information for the
purposes of section 77 of the Local Government Act
1989.

 provided to, or produced by, a Principal
Councillor Conduct Registrar, for the purposes
of an application to form a Councillor Conduct
Panel; or
 provided to, or produced by, a Councillor
Conduct Panel for the purposes of conducting a
hearing, other than a decision or reasons for a
decision; or
 comprising any part of a statement of reasons or
other document under the control of a Councillor
Conduct Panel that the Councillor Conduct
Panel determines contains confidential
information.

11.1.2 In the interests of transparency, Council may, by resolution, determine
to release information to the public even though it is Confidential
Information.
11.1.3

A decision under clause 11.1.2 will generally only be made if Council, on
the advice of the Chief Executive Officer, is satisfied that releasing the
Confidential Information would not:
(a)

be inconsistent with any legal or contractual obligation;

(b)

cause disadvantage to any person, including Council; and

(c)

otherwise be contrary to the public interest.

Public Transparency Policy - September 2020
City of Boroondara

9
Attachment Page 9 of 13

Council Meeting

11.2

24/08/2020

Contrary to the Public Interest
11.2.1

Council Information will not be made publicly available if doing so would be
contrary to the public interest.

11.2.2

When assessing whether making certain Council Information publicly available
would be contrary to the public interest, the Chief Executive Officer will have
regard to, among other things:

11.2.3

(a)

the sensitivity of the Council Information;

(b)

whether the Council Information comprises a draft, or otherwise is no
longer current; and

(c)

any adverse effect that releasing the Council Information would have on
the effectiveness of Council’s decision-making processes.

Without limiting clause 11.2.2, factors that might lead to a decision that the
release of Council Information is contrary to the public interest might include
whether release would be likely to:
(a)

disclose Personal Information or Health Information;

(b)

disclose information or opinions of a preliminary nature such that they
might:
(i)

mislead the Community with respect to Council’s position on a
matter; or

(ii)

have a substantial adverse effect on the economy of the Municipal
District;

(c)

prejudice discussions or negotiations between Council and any other
party, in relation to a contract, legal proceedings or any other matter;

(d)

impair or otherwise impact on:

(e)

(i)

Council’s ability to obtain information in future that is similar in
nature to the Council Information;

(ii)

negotiations with respect to employment arrangements for
Officers; or

(iii)

defence, prosecution and settlement of legal proceedings; or

impact on the reasonable allocation of Council’s resources, including in
responding to requests for Council Information that are assessed by the
Chief Executive Officer as being frivolous, vexatious or repetitious in
nature.
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12 Public Awareness of Availability of Council Information
Council will ensure public awareness of this Policy and the availability of Council
Information by:
12.1

publishing this Policy on the Council Website;

12.2

making this Policy available for public inspection at Council’s offices;

12.3

converting this Policy to such accessible formats, having regard to clause 10.2.3,
as the Chief Executive Officer determines; and

12.4

ensuring that all Officers:
12.4.1

are aware of this Policy and its effect; and

12.4.2

direct members of the Community to this Policy when access to
Council Information is sought.

13 Human Rights Charter
This Policy has been assessed against the Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities
Act 2006 as being consistent with that Act and, in particular, as promoting the rights of
members of the Community:
13.1

not to have their privacy interfered with (section 13); and

13.2

take part in public life (section 18), by having the opportunity to:
13.2.1 participate in the conduct of Council’s affairs; and
13.2.2

have access to Council and Council Information.

14 Dissatisfaction with the Application of this Policy
14.1

14.2

If a Requestor is dissatisfied with Council’s application of, or believes that
Council has acted inconsistently with, this Policy, they can report their
dissatisfaction to Council’s Manager Governance by:
14.1.1

email to boroondara@boroondara.vic.gov.au; or

14.1.2

telephone on 9278 4470.

If the Requestor believes that the matter remains unresolved, it can be reported
to the Victorian Ombudsman by:
14.2.1

making a complaint online at
https://www.ombudsman.vic.gov.au/complaints; or

14.2.2

telephone on 03 9613 6222.
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15 Application of this Policy
15.1

This Policy applies to all Council Information, except Council Information which is
made available, or is otherwise accessible, under another Act (other than an Act
which refers to this Policy).

15.2

Without limiting the generality of clause 15.1, this Policy does not apply to Council
Information which is:
15.2.1

required to be made available under the Planning and Environment Act
1987;

15.2.2

required to be made available under the Building Act 1993; or

15.2.3

otherwise required to be made available on payment of a fee or charge.

16 Monitoring, Evaluation and Review
Council will review this Policy periodically to ensure that it continues to reflect the
expectations of the Community with respect to the availability and accessibility of Council
Information.
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Appendix 1
For the purposes of clause 8 of this Policy the following Council Information will generally, and
subject to this Policy, be made available either on the Council Website or on request by a
member of the Community.
1.

2.

3.

Documents such as:


Plans and Reports adopted by Council;



Council Policies;



Project and Service Plans;



Service Agreements, Contracts, Leases and Licences; and



relevant technical reports and/or research that inform Council’s decisionmaking.

Process information such as:


application processes for approvals, permits, grants, access to Council
services;



decision-making processes;



Guidelines and Manuals;



Community Engagement Processes; and



Complaints Handling Processes.

The following Council Information will be available on Council’s website:


Meeting Agendas;



Minutes of Meetings;



Audit and Risk Committee Charter;



Terms of Reference for Delegated Committees;



Gift Registers for Councillors and Council Staff;



Travel Registers for Councillors and Council Staff;



Registers of Conflicts of Interest disclosed by Councillors and Council Staff;



Registers of Leases entered into by Council;



Register of Delegations;



Register of Authorised Officers;



Register of Election Campaign Donations;



Summary of Personal Interests; and



any other Registers or Records required by the Act or any other Act
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GOVERNANCE RULES
Introduction
1.

Nature of Rules
These are the Governance Rules of Boroondara City Council, made in accordance with
section 60 of the Local Government Act 2020.

2.

Date of Commencement
These Governance Rules commence on 1 September 2020.

3.

Contents
These Governance Rules are divided into the following Chapters:
Chapter

4.

Name

Chapter 1

Governance Framework

Chapter 2

Meeting Procedure for Council Meetings

Chapter 3

Meeting Procedure for Delegated Committees

Chapter 4

Meeting Procedure for Community Asset Committees

Chapter 5

Disclosure of Conflicts Of Interest

Chapter 6

Miscellaneous

Chapter 7

Election Period Policy

Definitions
In these Governance Rules, unless the context suggests otherwise the following words and
phrases mean:
“Act” means the Local Government Act 2020.
"agenda" means the notice of a meeting setting out the business to be transacted at the
meeting and includes a revised agenda.
"authorised officer" means a member of Council staff who is authorised by Council to carry
out specific functions in relation to these Rules.
"Chairperson" means the Chairperson of a meeting and includes an acting, a temporary
and a substitute Chairperson.
"Chief Executive Officer" means the Chief Executive Officer of Council or the person acting
in or performing the position Chief Executive Officer.
“Community Asset Committee” means a Community Asset Committee established under
section 65 of the Act.
“Council” means Boroondara City Council.
“Council meeting” has the same meaning as in the Act.
“Delegated Committee” means a Delegated Committee established under section 63 of the
Act.
“General Business” means business of a minor or routine nature;
"majority of the votes" means the votes cast by a majority of the Councillors or members of
the Delegated Committee present at a meeting at the time the vote is taken.
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"Mayor" means the Mayor of Council.
"minute book" means the collective record of proceedings of Council.
"municipal district" means the municipal district of Council.
"notice of motion" means a notice setting out the text of a motion, which it is proposed to
move at the next relevant meeting.
"notice of rescission" means a notice of motion to rescind a resolution made by Council;
“these Rules” means these Governance Rules.
"Repetitious motion" means:
a)

a motion moved that is to the same effect, even if it is in a different form, as a
motion (with or without amendment) that has been rejected by Council at the same
meeting; or

b)

a motion that substantially covers the same ground as a motion or amendment
already dealt with by Council at the same meeting.

“Urgent Business” means a matter that relates to or arises out of a matter which has arisen
since distribution of the agenda and cannot safely or conveniently be deferred until the next
Council meeting or Delegated Committee meeting;
"visitor" means any person (other than a Councillor, member of a Delegated Committee, or
member of Council staff) who is in attendance at a Council meeting or a Delegated
Committee meeting; and
"written" includes duplicated, lithographed, photocopied, printed and typed.
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Chapter 1 – Governance Framework
1.

Context
These Rules should be read in the context of and in conjunction with:

2.

(a)

the overarching governance principles specified in section 9(2) of the Act; and

(b)

the following documents adopted or approved by Council:
(i)

Audit and Risk Committee Charter

(ii)

Community Engagement Policy

(iii)

Complaints Policy

(iv)

Councillor Code of Conduct

(v)

Councillor and a Member of a Delegated Committee Expense Policy

(vi)

Councillor Gift Policy

(vii)

Public Transparency Policy

Decision Making
(a)

In any matter in which a decision must be made by Council (including persons acting with
the delegated authority of Council), Council must consider the matter and make a
decision:
(i)

fairly, by giving consideration and making a decision which is balanced, ethical and
impartial; and

(ii)

on the merits, free from favouritism or self-interest and without regard to irrelevant
or unauthorised considerations.

(b)

Council must, when making any decision to which the principles of natural justice apply,
adhere to the principles of natural justice (including, without limitation, ensuring that any
person whose rights will be directly affected by a decision of Council is entitled to
communicate their views and have their interests considered).

(c)

Without limiting anything in paragraph (b) of this sub-Rule:
(i)

before making a decision that will directly affect the rights of a person, Council
(including any person acting with the delegated authority of Council) must identify
the person or persons whose rights will be directly affected, give notice of the
decision which Council must make and ensure that such person or persons have
an opportunity to communicate their views and have their interests considered
before the decision is made;

(ii)

if a report to be considered at a Council meeting concerns subject-matter which will
directly affect the rights of a person or persons, the Report must record whether the
person has or persons have been provided with an opportunity to communicate
their views and have their interests considered;

(iii)

if a report to be considered at a Delegated Committee meeting concerns subjectmatter which will directly affect the rights of a person or persons, the Report must
record whether the person has or persons have been provided with an opportunity
to communicate their views and have their interests considered; and

(iv)

if a member of Council staff proposes to make a decision under delegation and that
decision will directly affect the rights of a person or persons, the member of Council
staff must, when making that decision, complete a Delegate Report that records
that notice of the decision to be made was given to the person or persons and such
person or persons were provided with an opportunity to communicate their views
and their interests considered.
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Part A – Introduction
1.

Title
This Chapter will be known as the "Meeting Procedure Local Law".

2.

Purpose of this Chapter
The purpose of this Chapter is to:

3.

2. 1

provide for the election of the Mayor and any Deputy Mayor;

2. 2

provide for the appointment of any Acting Mayor; and

2. 3

provide for the procedures governing the conduct of Council meetings.

Definitions and Notes
In this Chapter, unless the context suggests otherwise the definitions of words are
taken to be the same as those outlined in Item 4 (‘Definitions’) of these Rules.
Introductions to Parts, headings and notes are explanatory notes and do not form
part of this Chapter. They are provided to assist understanding.
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Part B – Election of Mayor
Introduction: This Part is concerned with the annual election of the Mayor. It describes how the
Mayor is to be elected.
4.

Election of the Mayor
The Chief Executive Officer must facilitate the election of the Mayor in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

5.

Method of Voting
The election of the Mayor must be carried out by a show of hands.

6.

Determining the election of the Mayor
The Chief Executive Officer must open the meeting at which the Mayor is to be
elected, and invite nominations for the office of Mayor.
The process for the election of the Mayor is as follows:
6.2.1

the Chief Executive Officer must invite nominations for the office of the
Mayor; and

6.2.2

the nominations must be seconded by another Councillor.

Once nominations for the office of Mayor have been received, the following
provisions will govern the election of the Mayor:
6.3.1

if there is only one (1) nomination, the candidate nominated must be
declared to be duly elected;

6.3.2

if there is more than one (1) nomination, the Councillors present at the
meeting must vote for one of the candidates;

6.3.3

in the event of a candidate receiving an absolute majority of the votes,
that candidate is declared to have been elected;

6.3.4

in the event that no candidate receives an absolute majority of the votes,
and it is not resolved to conduct a new election at a later date and time,
the candidate with the fewest number of votes must be declared to be a
defeated candidate. The Councillors present at the meeting must then
vote for one of the remaining candidates;

6.3.5

if one of the remaining candidates receives an absolute majority of the
votes, he or she is duly elected. If none of the remaining candidates
receives an absolute majority of the votes, the process of declaring the
candidates with the fewest number of votes a defeated candidate and
voting for the remaining candidates must be repeated until one (1) of the
candidates receives an absolute majority of the votes. That candidate
must then be declared to have been duly elected;

6.3.6

in the event of two (2) or more candidates having an equality of votes and
one of them having to be declared:
(a)

a defeated candidate; and

(b)

duly elected
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the declaration will be determined by lot.
6.3.7

6.3.8

7.

if a lot is conducted, the Chief Executive Officer will have the conduct of
the lot and the following provisions will apply:
(a)

each candidate will draw one (1) lot;

(b)

the order of drawing lots will be determined by the alphabetical
order of the surnames of the Councillors who received an equal
number of votes except that if two (2) or more such Councillors’
surnames are identical, the order will be determined by the
alphabetical order of the Councillors’ first names; and

(c)

as many identical pieces of paper as there are Councillors who
received an equal number of votes must be placed in a receptacle.
If the lot is being conducted to determine who is a defeated
candidate, the word "Defeated" shall be written on one of the
pieces of paper, and the Councillor who draws the paper with the
word "Defeated" written on it must be declared the defeated
candidate (in which event a further vote must be taken on the
remaining candidates unless there is only one candidate
remaining, in which case that candidate will be declared to have
been duly elected).

After the election of the Mayor is determined, the Mayor must take the
Chair and preside over the meeting pursuant to this Local Law.

Election of Deputy Mayor and Chairs of Delegated Committees
Any election for:
any office of Deputy Mayor; or
Chairperson of a Delegated Committee
will be regulated by Rules 4-6 (inclusive) of this Chapter, as if the reference to the:
Chief Executive Officer is a reference to the Mayor; and
7.4

8.

Mayor is a reference to the Deputy Mayor or the Chairperson of the Delegated
Committee (as the case may be).

Appointment of Acting Mayor
If Council has not established an office of Deputy Mayor and it becomes required to appoint
an Acting Mayor, it can do so by:
resolving that a specified Councillor be so appointed; or
8.2

following the procedure set out in Rules 5 and 6 (inclusive) of this Chapter,

at its discretion.
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Part C – Meetings Procedure
Introduction: This Part is divided into a number of Divisions. Each Division addresses a distinct
aspect of the holding of a meeting. Collectively, the Divisions describe how and when a meeting is
convened, when and how business may be transacted at a meeting.

Division 1 – Notices of Meetings and Delivery of Agendas
9.

Dates and Times of Meetings Fixed by Council
Subject to Rule 11, Council must from time to time fix the date, time and place of all Council
meetings.

10.

Council May Alter Meeting Dates
Council may change the date, time and place of any Council meeting which has
been fixed by it and must provide reasonable notice of the change to the public.
The Chief Executive Officer shall consult with the Chairperson before changing the
date, time and place of any meeting which has been fixed.

11.

Meetings Not Fixed by Council
The Mayor or at least three (3) Councillors may by a written notice call a Council
meeting.
The notice must specify the date and time of the Council meeting and the business
to be transacted.
The Chief Executive Officer must convene the Council meeting as specified in the
notice.
Unless all Councillors are present and unanimously agree to deal with any other
matter, only the business specified in the written notice can be transacted at the
Council meeting.
Subject to any resolution providing otherwise, the order of business of any meeting
must be the order in which such business stands in the agenda for the meeting.

12.

Notice Of Meeting
A notice of meeting, incorporating or accompanied by an agenda of the business to
be dealt with, must be delivered (whether personally, email or otherwise) or made
available electronically to every Councillor for all Council meetings at least 48
hours before the meeting.
Subject to any resolution of Council, the Chief Executive Officer will determine the
method of delivery to be used under sub-Rule 12.1.
Notwithstanding sub-Rule 12.1, a notice of meeting or agenda need not be
delivered or sent electronically to any Councillor who has been granted leave of
absence unless the Councillor has requested the Chief Executive Officer in writing
to continue to give notice of any meeting during the period of his or her absence.
Reasonable notice of each Council meeting must be provided to the public. Council
may do this:
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12.4.1

for meetings which it has fixed by preparing a schedule of meetings
annually, twice yearly or from time to time, and arranging publication of
such schedule in a newspaper generally circulating in the municipal
district either at various times throughout the year, or prior to each such
Council meeting; and

12.4.2

for any meeting by giving notice on its website and:
(a)

in each of its Customer Service Centres; and/or

(b)

in at least one newspaper generally circulating in the municipal
district.

Division 2 – Quorums
13.

Inability To Obtain A Quorum
After 30 minutes from the scheduled starting time of any Council meeting a quorum
cannot be obtained, those Councillors present, or if there are no Councillors
present, the Chief Executive Officer, or, in the absence of the Chief Executive
Officer, an authorised officer, may adjourn the meeting for a period not exceeding
fourteen (14) days from the date of the adjournment;
A Council meeting to which sub-Rule 13.1 applies is not adjourned, the meeting
shall be deemed to have lapsed; and
If a Council meeting lapses according to sub-Rule 13.2, the business of the
meeting shall be considered for inclusion on the agenda of a future Council
meeting in accordance with Rule 18.

14.

Inability To Maintain A Quorum
If:
A quorum is lost during any Council meeting, and a quorum cannot be regained
within 10 minutes, the meeting:
14.1.1

may be adjourned by those Councillors present, or in the absence of
any Councillors, the Chief Executive Officer, or, in the absence of the
Chief Executive Officer, an authorised officer, for a specified period not
exceeding fourteen (14) days; or

14.1.2

shall, in the event of no adjournment under sub-Rule 14.1.1, be deemed
to have lapsed;

A quorum is lost during any adjournment of a Council meeting and a quorum
cannot be obtained within the time specified in the adjournment motion, or if no
time was specified, within 30 minutes of the quorum being lost, the meeting:
14.2.1

may be adjourned by those Councillors present, or in the absence of
any Councillors, the Chief Executive Officer, or, in the absence of the
Chief Executive Officer, an authorised officer, for a specified period not
exceeding fourteen (14) days; or

14.2.2

shall, in the event of no adjournment under sub-Rule 14.2.1, be deemed
to have lapsed; and

If a Council meeting lapses according to sub-Rule 14.1.2 or 14.2.2:
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14.3.1

any motion or amendment which has been moved but not resolved in
accordance with Division 4, shall be deemed to have been adjourned
indefinitely in accordance with Rule 43;

14.3.2

any other unresolved matters shall be considered for inclusion on the
agenda of a future Council meeting in accordance with Rule 18; and

14.3.3

the business transacted to that point in the meeting where a quorum
was lost, shall remain validly transacted.

A quorum cannot be achieved or maintained due to the disclosure of conflicts of
interest by the majority of Councillors, Council must consider whether the decision
can be made by dealing with the matter in an alternative manner as provided for by
section 67 of the Act.
Subject to complying with any requirements under any other Act, if a Council is
unable to use an alternative manner, Council must decide to establish a delegated
committee to make the decision in regard to the matter consisting of:

15.

(a)

all the Councillors who have not disclosed a conflict of interest in regard to
the matter; and

(b)

any other person or persons that the Council considers suitable.

Adjourned Meetings
The Chief Executive Officer must make reasonable attempts to give notice to all Councillors
and members of the public, of any Council meeting adjourned under Rule 13 or 14.

16.

Time limits for Meetings
A Council meeting must not continue after 11.00 pm unless a majority of
Councillors present vote in favour of it continuing pursuant to Rule 43.
In the absence of such continuance, the meeting must stand adjourned to a time,
date and place announced by the Chair immediately prior to the meeting standing
adjourned. In that event, the provisions of Rule 15 applies.

17.

Cancellation or Postponement of a Meeting
The Chief Executive Officer may, in the case of an emergency necessitating the
cancellation or postponement of a Council meeting, cancel or postpone a Council
meeting; or
The Chief Executive Officer, after consulting the Mayor or Chairperson of a
Delegated Committee, may cancel a meeting if there is no business to be
transacted.
The Chief Executive Officer must present to the immediately following Council
meeting a written report on any exercise of the power conferred by sub-Rule 17.1.
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Division 3 – Business of Meetings
18.

Agenda and the Order Of Business
The order of business is to be determined by the Chief Executive Officer so as to
facilitate and maintain open, efficient and effective processes of government. In setting
the order of business the Chief Executive Officer should have regard to:
the expected duration of the meeting;
potential implications for subsequent meetings or events
the sensitivity of any particular item;
the anticipated community interest in any particular item;
where practicable, feedback from the Mayor or Committee Chairperson;
the urgency of any particular item; and
18.7

18A.

any other relevant factor which may impact on the processes and good governance
of the Council.

Council Prayer and Acknowledgement of Country
Council meetings may commence with the Council prayer and the Acknowledgement of
Country. It will be at the discretion of the Chairperson at Council meetings to read the
Council prayer and the Acknowledgement of Country, or to invite another councillor or a
Council officer to read the Council prayer and/or the Acknowledgement of Country.

19.

Change To Order Of Business
Once an agenda has been sent to Councillors, the order of business for that Council meeting
may be altered:

20.

19.1

prior to the meeting by the Chief Executive Officer by issuing a revised
agenda in accordance with Rule 18; or

19.2

by resolution, or with the consent of Council at the meeting.

Urgent Business
If the agenda for a Council meeting makes provision for Urgent Business, business cannot
be admitted as Urgent Business unless:
Council resolves to admit the business; and
It relates to or arises out of a matter which has arisen since distribution of the
agenda; and
It cannot safely or conveniently be deferred until the next Council meeting.
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General Business
If the agenda for a Council meeting makes provision for General Business, business of a
minor or routine nature only should be admitted as General Business. Any motion dealing
with a matter that is not minor or routine must not be accepted by the Chairperson and will
be subject to the notice of motion provisions. Such motions can be referred to Urgent
Business.

Division 4 – Motions and Debate
22.

Councillors May Propose Notices Of Motion
Councillors may ensure that an issue is listed on an agenda by lodging a Notice of Motion in
accordance with Rule 23.

23.

Notice Of Motion
A notice of motion must be in writing signed by two Councillors and received by the
Chief Executive Officer (whether personally, email or otherwise), by 12 noon on a
business day not less than five days prior to the next Council meeting at which the
notice of motion may be considered. If a notice of motion is received after that time,
it must, unless withdrawn, be included in the agenda for the following Council
meeting.
A notice of motion may be withdrawn by a request in writing received (whether
personally, email or otherwise) prior to the publication of the agenda for which the
notice of motion was intended. Otherwise, the item must be dealt with at a Council
meeting.
The Chief Executive Officer must make reasonable attempts to give Councillors
notice of any notice of motion at least 48 hours before the Council meeting at
which the notice of motion is to be considered.
The Chief Executive Officer may reject any notice of motion which is:
23.4.1

defamatory;

23.4.2

objectionable in language or nature;

23.4.3

vague or unclear in intention;

23.4.4

outside the powers of Council; or

23.4.5

if passed would result in Council otherwise acting invalidly.

If a notice of motion is rejected under sub-Rule 23.4, the Chief Executive Officer
must:
23.5.1

give the Councillors who lodged it an opportunity to amend it prior to
rejection, if it is practicable to do so; and

23.5.2

notify in writing the Councillors who lodged it of the rejection and reasons
for the rejection.

The full text of any notice of motion accepted by the Chief Executive Officer must
be included in the agenda.
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The Chief Executive Officer must cause all notices of motion to be numbered,
dated and entered in the notice of motion book in the order in which they were
received.
Except by leave of Council, each notice of motion before any meeting must be
considered in the order in which they were entered in the notice of motion book.
If a Councillor who has given a notice of motion is absent from the meeting or fails
to move the motion when called upon by the Chair, any other Councillor may move
the motion.
If a notice of motion is not moved at the Council meeting in accordance with subRule 23.9, the notice of motion shall be deemed to have lapsed for want of a
mover.
The Chief Executive Officer may provide a report to Council detailing the
implications for Council and the community in respect of any notice of motion which
has been submitted for inclusion on the agenda paper.
24.

Chairperson’s Duty
The Chairperson must not accept a motion or amendment which is determined by
the Chairperson to be:
24.1.1

potentially defamatory;

24.1.2

objectionable in language or nature;

24.1.3

vague or unclear in intention;

24.1.4

outside the powers of Council;

24.1.5

if passed would result in Council otherwise acting invalidly; or

24.1.6

irrelevant to the item of business on the agenda and has not been
admitted as General Business or Urgent Business, or purports to be an
amendment but is not.

Before a written report is considered by Council and any motion moved in relation
to such report, a member of Council staff may introduce the report by indicating in
not more than 2 minutes:
24.2.1

its background; or

24.2.2

the reasons for any recommendation which appears.

Unless Council resolves otherwise, a member of Council staff need not read any
written report to Council in full.
25.

Clarifying a motion
Before a notice of motion or other motion which has been foreshadowed is moved,
a Councillor may, with the leave of the Chairperson, ask for clarification from the
Chairperson or Councillor expected to move the notice of motion or other motion of
25.1.1

the intent; or

25.1.2

some other aspect
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of such notice of motion or other motion.
The Chairperson may request the person taking the minutes of the meeting to read
the motion or amendment to the meeting before the vote is taken.
26.

Introducing A Motion or an Amendment
The procedure for moving any motion or amendment is:

27.

26.1.1

the mover must state the motion without speaking to it;

26.1.2

the motion must be seconded and the seconder must be a Councillor other than
the mover. If a motion is not seconded, the motion lapses for want of a seconder;

26.1.3

if a motion or an amendment is moved and seconded the Chairperson must ask:

26.1.4

"Is the motion or amendment opposed?”;

26.1.5

if no Councillor indicates opposition, the Chairperson may give the mover of the
motion or amendment or any Councillor with a special interest in the matter the
opportunity to speak before declaring the motion or amendment carried;

26.1.6

if a Councillor indicates opposition then the Chairperson must call on the mover to
address the meeting;

26.1.7

after the mover has addressed the meeting, the seconder may address the
meeting;

26.1.8

after the seconder has addressed the meeting (or after the mover has addressed
the meeting if the seconder does not address the meeting,) the Chairperson must
call on any Councillor who wishes to speak to the motion (including at the
Chairperson’s discretion, the seconder), if the Councillor has not previously
spoken; and

26.1.9

if no Councillor speaks to the motion, then the Chairperson must put the motion to
the vote.

Right Of Reply
The mover of a motion, including an amendment once debate has been exhausted,
have a right of reply to matters raised during debate.
After the right of reply has been taken, the motion must immediately be put to the
vote without any further discussion or debate.

28.

Moving An Amendment
Subject to sub-Rule 28.2 a motion which has been moved and seconded may be
amended by leaving out, inserting or adding words, which words must be relevant
to the subject of the motion.
A motion to confirm a previous resolution of Council cannot be amended.
An amendment must not be directly opposite to the motion.
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Who May Propose An Amendment
An amendment may be proposed or seconded by any Councillor, except the mover
or seconder of the original motion.
Any one Councillor cannot move more than two amendments in succession.

30.

How Many Amendments May Be Proposed
Any number of amendments may be proposed to a motion but only one (1)
amendment may be accepted by the Chairperson at any one time.
No second or subsequent amendment, whether to the motion or an amendment of
it, may be taken into consideration until the previous amendment has been dealt
with.

31.

An Amendment Once Carried
If the amendment is carried:
The motion as amended then becomes the motion before the meeting; and
The mover and seconder of the amendment are deemed to be the mover and
seconder of the motion before the meeting; and
The amended motion must then be put; and
The mover of the original motion retains the right of reply to that motion.

32.

Foreshadowing Motions
At any time during debate a Councillor may foreshadow a motion so as to inform
Council of his or her intention to move a motion at a later stage in the meeting, but
this does not extend any special right to the foreshadowed motion.
A motion foreshadowed may be prefaced with a statement that in the event of a
particular motion before the Chairperson being resolved in a certain way, a
Councillor intends to move an alternative or additional motion.
A motion foreshadowed has no procedural standing and is merely a means to
assist the flow of the meeting.
The Chief Executive Officer or person taking the minutes of the meeting is not
expected to record foreshadowed motions in the minutes until the foreshadowed
motion is formally moved.
The Chairperson is not obliged to accept foreshadowed motions.

33.

Withdrawal Of Motions
Before any motion is put to the vote, it may be withdrawn by the mover and
seconder with consent of the Chairperson, should there be no objection to the
withdrawal of the motion from the majority of councillors present.
If the majority of Councillors object to the withdrawal of the motion, it may not be
withdrawn.
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Separation Of Motions
Where a motion contains more than one (1) part, a Councillor may request the Chairperson
to put the motion to the vote in separate parts.

35.

Chairperson May Separate Motions
The Chairperson may decide to put any motion to the vote in several parts.

36.

Priority of address
In the case of competition for the right of speak, the Chairperson must decide the order in
which the Councillors concerned will be heard.

37.

Motions In Writing
All motions, except procedural motions, should be in writing.
The Chairperson may suspend the meeting while the motion is being written or
may request Council to defer the matter until the motion has been written, allowing
the meeting to proceed uninterrupted.

38.

Repetitious Motions and/or Amendment
The Chairperson must refuse to accept a motion which Council has resolved to be
a Repetitious motion, pursuant to Rule 43.
The Chairperson may request the person taking the minutes of the Council
meeting to read the motion or amendment to the meeting before the vote is taken.

39.

Debate Must Be Relevant To The Motion
Debate must always be relevant to the motion or question before the Chairperson,
and, if not, the Chairperson must request the speaker to confine debate to the
motion or question.
If after being requested to confine debate to the motion or question before the
Chairperson, the speaker continues to debate irrelevant matters, the Chairperson
may direct the speaker to be seated and not speak further in respect of the motion
or question then before the Chairperson.
A speaker to whom a direction has been given under sub-Rule 39.2 must comply
with that direction.

40.

Speaking Times
A Councillor must not speak longer than the time set out below, unless granted an extension
by the Chairperson:
the mover of a motion or an amendment which has been opposed: 5 minutes;
any other Councillor: 3 minutes; and
the mover of a motion exercising a right of reply: 2 minutes.
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Addressing the Meeting
If the Chairperson so determines:
any person addressing the Chairperson must refer to the Chairperson as:
41.1.1

Madam Mayor; or

41.1.2

Mr Mayor; or

41.1.3

Mayor; or

41.1.4

Madam Chair; or

41.1.5

Mr Chair; or

41.1.6

Chair;

as the case may be;
all Councillors, other than the Mayor, must be addressed as
Cr

(name).

all members of Council staff, must be addressed as Mr, Mrs, Ms, Dr or Prof
(name) as appropriate or by their official title.
42.

Right to Ask Questions
A Councillor may, when no other Councillor is speaking, ask any question
concerning or arising out of the motion or amendment before the Chairperson.
The Chairperson has the right to limit questions and direct that debate be
commenced or resumed.

Division 5 – Procedural Motions
43.

Procedural Motions
Unless otherwise prohibited, a procedural motion may be moved at any time and
must be dealt with immediately by the Chairperson.
Procedural motions require a seconder.
Procedural motions may only be moved and seconded by Councillors as specified
in the Procedural Motions Table.
Notwithstanding any other provision in this Chapter, procedural motions must be
dealt with in accordance with the Procedural Motions Table.
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PROCEDURAL MOTIONS TABLE
Procedural
Motion

Form

Mover &
Seconder

Matter in Respect of
Which Motion May be
Moved

When Motion
Prohibited

Effect if Carried

Effect if Lost

Debate
Permitted
on Motion

1. Adjournment
of debate to
later hour and/or
date

That this matter be
adjourned to
*am/pm
and/or *date

Any Councillor

Any matter

(a) During the election of
a Chairperson;
(b) When another
Councillor is speaking

Motion and amendments
postponed to the stated
time and/or date

Debate continues
unaffected

Yes

2. Adjournment
of debate
indefinitely

That this matter be
adjourned until
further notice

Any Councillor

Any matter except:
(a) election of a
Chairperson

(a) During the election of
a Chairperson;
(b) When another
Councillor is speaking

Motion and any
amendment postponed
but may be resumed at
any later meeting if on
the agenda

Debate continues
unaffected

Yes

3. The closure

That the motion be
now put

A Councillor who
has not spoken to
the motion or any
amendment of it

Any matter

During nominations for
Chairperson

The Chairperson must
call on the mover of the
original motion or
amendment in respect of
which the closure motion
is carried to reply to the
debate on the original
motion or amendment
and then immediately
put the original motion or
amendment to the vote.
No further debate on, or
amendment to the
original motion or
amendment is permitted

Debate continues
unaffected

No

City of Boroondara
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Procedural
Motion

Form

Mover &
Seconder

Matter in Respect of
Which Motion May be
Moved

When Motion
Prohibited

Effect if Carried

Effect if Lost

Debate
Permitted
on Motion

4. Laying
question on the
table

That the question
lie on the table

A Councillor who
has not spoken to
the motion or
amendment of it

Any matter

(a) During the election of
a Chairperson

Motion and amendments
not further discussed or
voted on until:
(a) Council resolves to
take the question from
the table at the same
meeting;
(b) The matter is placed
on an agenda and
Council resolves to take
the question from the
table

Debate continues
unaffected

No

5. Previous
question

That the question
be not now put

A Councillor who
has not spoken to
the motion or any
amendment of it

Any matter except:
(a) election of a
Chairperson;

(a) During the election of
a Chairperson;
(b) When another
Councillor is speaking;
(c) When an
amendment is before
Council

(a) No vote or further
discussion on the motion
until it is placed on an
agenda for a later
meeting;
(b) Proceed to next
business

Motion (as
amended up to
that time) put
immediately
without further
amendment or
debate

Yes
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Procedural
Motion

Form

6. Proceeding to
next business

That the meeting
A Councillor who
Any matter except:
proceed to the next has not spoken to (a) Election of a
Business
the motion or any Chairperson
Note: This Motion:
amendment of it
(a) May not be
amended (b) May
not be debated; (c)
Must be put to the
vote as soon as
Seconded
The motion is a
A Councillor who
Any matter except:
repetitious motion has not spoken to (a) Election of a
the motion or any Chairperson
amendment of it

7. Repetitious
motion

Mover &
Seconder
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Matter in Respect of
Which Motion May be
Moved

When Motion
Prohibited

Effect if Carried

Effect if Lost

Debate
Permitted
on Motion

(a) During the election of
a Chairperson;
(b) When another
Councillor is speaking

If carried in respect of:
Debate continues No
(a) An amendment unaffected
Council considers the
motion without reference
to the amendment:
(b) A motion - no vote or
further discussion on the
motion until it is placed
on an agenda for a later
meeting
(a) During the election of a (a) No vote or further
Debate continues Yes
discussion on the motion unaffected
Chairperson;
unless it is placed on an
(b) When another
agenda for a later
Councillor is speaking
meeting;
(b) Proceed to next
business
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Procedural
Motion

Form

Mover &
Seconder

Matter in Respect of
Which Motion May be
Moved

8. Dissent from
the
Chairperson’s
ruling

That the
Chairperson’s
ruling be
dissented from

Any Councillor
1. Once moved
and seconded,
the Chairperson
must leave the
Chair and a
temporary
Chairperson
elected
2. The temporary
Chairperson
must invite the
mover to state
the reasons for
his or her dissent
and the
Chairperson may
then reply.
3. The motion
must then be put

9. Suspension of
standing orders

That standing
orders be
suspended

Any Councillor

When Motion
Prohibited

Effect if Carried

Effect if Lost

Debate
Permitted
on Motion

Any ruling made by the
Chairperson

If carried, the
Chairperson must
resume the Chair,
reverse his or her
previous ruling and
proceed.
The motion is in no
way a motion of
censure or nonconfidence, and
should not be so
regarded

If lost, the
Chairperson
resumes the
Chair and the
meeting
proceeds

No, other
than that the
mover may
state the
reasons for
his or her
dissent and
the
Chairperson
may then
reply

Any matter

1. The formalities of the
meeting procedure are
temporarily disposed of

The formalities of
the meeting
procedure remain
in place

Yes

2. No motion can be
accepted by the
Chairperson or lawfully
be dealt until standing
orders are resumed
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Procedural
Motion

Form

Mover &
Seconder

Matter in Respect of
Which Motion May be
Moved

When Motion
Prohibited

Effect if Carried

Effect if Lost

Debate
Permitted
on Motion

10. Resumption
of standing
orders

That standing
orders be resumed

Any Councillor

Any matter

When standing orders
have not been
suspended

The formalities of the
meeting procedure are
reinstated

1. The formalities
of the meeting
procedure remain
temporarily
disposed of.

Yes

2. No motion can
be accepted by
the Chairperson
or lawfully be
dealt until
standing orders
are resumed
11. Close the
meeting to the
public

That the meeting be Any Councillor
closed to the public
in accordance with
section 66 of the Act
to
Consider….
Because….

Any matter included in
When the meeting is
the definition of
already closed to the
Confidential Information public
prescribed in section 3 of
the Act

The meeting is closed to
the public

The meeting
remains open to
the public

Yes

12. Reopen the
meeting to the
public

That the meeting be
reopened to the
Public

Any Councillor

Any matter

The meeting is opened
to the public

The meeting
remains closed to
the public

Yes

13. Continuance
of Meeting

That the meeting
continue to #:##pm

Any Councillor

Any matter

The time limit specified
in Rule 16 is to be
substituted with the time
limit specified in the
continuance motion

The meeting
stands adjourned
to a time, date
and place to be
then and there
announced by the
Chairperson

No
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Procedural
Motion

Form

Mover &
Seconder

Matter in Respect of
Which Motion May be
Moved

14. No
recording of
proceedings

That Council
revokes consent for
the recording of the
Meeting

Any Councillor

A decision to record, or
consent to recording of
proceedings under
Rule 77

15. En bloc
motions

That the following
items…. be moved
en bloc as per the
officers’
recommendation

Any Councillor

Only for matters listed
in the agenda under
the heading
‘Presentation of officer
reports’ or
‘Supplementary
reports’
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Effect if Carried

Effect if Lost

Debate
Permitted
on Motion

Consent to record
proceedings is revoked

The meeting
continues
unaffected

Yes

Move to the next item
of business

The meeting
continues
unaffected

Yes
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Division 6 – Rescission Motions
44.

Notice of Rescission
A Councillor may propose a motion to rescind or to vary a previous resolution of Council
by a notice of rescission.
A Councillor may propose a notice of rescission provided:
44.2.1

the resolution proposed to be rescinded has not been acted on; and

44.2.2

the notice of rescission is delivered to the Chief Executive Officer in accordance
with Rule 23, or within 24 hours of the resolution having been made setting out
(a)

the resolution to be rescinded; and

(b)

the meeting and date when the resolution was carried.

The Chief Executive Officer or an appropriate member of Council staff may implement a
resolution at any time after the close of the meeting at which it was made. A resolution
will therefore be deemed to have been acted on if:
44.3.1

its contents have or substance has been formally communicated to a person
whose interests are materially affected by it; or

44.3.2

a statutory process has been commenced;

so as to vest enforceable rights in or obligations on Council or any other person.
The Chief Executive Officer or an appropriate member of Council staff must defer
implementing a resolution which:
44.4.1

has not been acted on; and

44.4.2

is the subject of a notice of rescission which has been delivered to the Chief
Executive Officer in accordance with sub-Rule 44.2.2

unless deferring implementation of the resolution would have the effect of depriving the
resolution of efficacy.
45.

If Lost
If a notice of rescission is lost, a similar motion may not be put before Council for at least one (1)
month from the date it was last lost, unless Council resolves that the notice of rescission be relisted at a future meeting.

46.

If Not Moved
If a notice of rescission is not moved at the meeting at which it is listed, it lapses.

47.

May Be Moved By Any Councillor
A motion for rescission listed on an agenda may be moved by any Councillor present but may not
be amended.
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When Not Required
Unless sub-Rule 48.2 applies, a motion for rescission is not required where Council
wishes to change policy.
The following standards apply if Council wishes to change policy:
48.2.1

if the policy has been in force in its original or amended form for less than 12
months, a notice of rescission must be presented to Council; and

48.2.2

any intention to change a Council policy, which may result in a significant
impact on any person, should be communicated to those affected and this may
include publication and consultation, either formally or informally.

Division 7 – Points of Order
49.

Chairperson To Decide
The Chairperson must decide all points of order by stating the provision, rule, practice or precedent
which he or she considers applicable to the point raised without entering into any discussion or
comment.

50.

Chairperson May Adjourn To Consider
The Chairperson may adjourn the meeting to consider a point of order but otherwise
must rule on it as soon as it is raised.
All other questions before the Council are suspended until the point of order is decided.

51.

Dissent From Chairperson’s Ruling
A Councillor may move a motion of dissent from the Chairperson’s ruling on a point of
order.
When a motion in accordance with this Rule is moved and seconded, the Chairperson
must leave the Chair and the Deputy Mayor (or, if there is no Deputy Mayor or the
Deputy Mayor is not present, a temporary Chairperson elected by the meeting) must take
his or her place.
The Deputy Mayor or temporary Chairperson must invite the mover to state the reasons
for his or her dissent and the Chairperson may then reply.
The Deputy Mayor or temporary Chairperson must put the motion in the following form:
"That the Chairperson's ruling be dissented from."
If the vote is in the negative, the Chairperson resumes the Chair and the meeting
proceeds.
If the vote is in the affirmative, the Chairperson must then resume the Chair, reverse or
vary (as the case may be) his or her previous ruling and proceed.
The defeat of the Chairperson's ruling is in no way a motion of censure or nonconfidence in the Chair, and should not be so regarded by the meeting.
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Procedure For Point Of Order
A Councillor raising a point of order must:
state the point of order; and
state any section, Rule, paragraph or provision relevant to the point of order.

53.

Valid Points Of Order
A point of order may be raised in relation to:
53.1.1

a motion, which, under Rule 24.1, or a question which, under Rule 54, should
not be accepted by the Chairperson;

53.1.2

a question of procedure;

53.1.3

a Councillor who is or appears to be out of order; or

53.1.4

any act of disorder.

A point of order may not be raised to express a mere difference of opinion or to contradict
a speaker

Division 8 – Public Question Time
54.

Submission of Questions
Unless Council resolves to the contrary, there shall be a public question time at every
Council meeting to allow members of the public to submit questions to Council.
No person may submit:
54.2.1

more than two (2) questions at any one (1) Council meeting.

54.2.2

more than eleven (11) questions in any one calendar year.

As to the form of questions:
54.3.1

subject to Rule 54.3.4, questions must be in writing and in English:

54.3.2

questions must be 75 words or less and not include a preamble, other
additional material, or multiple parts;

54.3.3

questions should be submitted on the designated Public Question Time Form
which is available:
54.3.3.1 during normal office hours at the Camberwell Offices at 8 Inglesby
Road Camberwell; or
53.3.3.2 on Council’s website

54.3.4

considering the general rights of citizens to take part in the conduct of Council
affairs, if providing a question in writing and or in English unreasonably
prevents or hinders participation in public question time, assistance with
submitting questions is available from Council, via interpreter service if
required.
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As to the deadline for questions:

55.

54.4.1

questions should be received by Council by 12:00 noon on the day of the
Council meeting to receive a verbal response at the meeting;

54.4.2

questions not received by 12:00 noon on the day of the meeting will receive a
verbal response if possible, but will otherwise be taken on notice for a written
response to be provided.

54.4.3

questions must be submitted:
54.4.3.1

by mail to Council's advertised postal address; or

54.4.3.2

by email to Council's advertised email address; or

54.4.3.3

in person during normal office hours at the Camberwell Offices at 8
Inglesby Road, Camberwell.

54.4.3.4

after normal office hours on the day of the meeting if submitted in
person prior to the commencement of the Council meeting in the
receptacle designated for such purpose at 8 Inglesby Road,
Camberwell.

Questions may be disallowed
Considering the general rights of citizens to take part in the conduct of Council affairs, a
question may be disallowed by the Chairperson, if in the opinion of the Chairperson it:
55.1.1

is not submitted in accordance with this Division;

55.1.2

relates to a matter outside the duties, functions and powers of
Council;

55.1.3

may reasonably be considered to be defamatory, indecent, abusive,
offensive, irrelevant, trivial or objectionable in language or substance;

55.1.4

deals with a subject matter already answered at the Council meeting;

55.1.5

is aimed at embarrassing a Councillor or a member of Council staff;

55.1.6

relates to personnel matters;

55.1.7

relates to the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer;

55.1.8

relates to industrial matters;

55.1.9

relates to contractual matters;

55.1.10

relates to proposed developments;

55.1.11

relates to legal advice;

55.1.12

relates to matters affecting the security of Council property; or

55.1.13

relates to any other matter which Council considers would prejudice
Council or any person.
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55.1.14

would require, on the advice of the Chief Executive Officer, an
unreasonable diversion of Council resources to prepare a response
for public question time.

If a question is not disallowed under sub-Rule 55.1, the Chairperson may otherwise
disallow a question if:
55.2.1

it does not relate to a matter or matters on the agenda for the current Council
meeting; and/or

55.2.2

before submitting a question for public question time the person asking the
same has not previously:
55.2.2.1

put the question in writing to a Councillor or a member of Council
staff; and

55.2.2.2

received a written response to the question from a Councillor or
member of Council staff

If a question is not disallowed under sub-Rules 55.1 or 55.2:
55.3.1

the Chairperson may still disallow a question if, subject to sub-Rule 55.3.3,
the person asking the same is not in the gallery at the time it is due to be
read;

55.3.2

the Chairperson may still disallow a question if, subject to sub-Rule 55.3.3,
the person asking the question refuses to read the question when called upon
by the Chairperson to do so;

55.3.3

considering the general rights of citizens to take part in the conduct of Council
affairs, if a person submitting a question is unable to attend the meeting, or
read a question, because of a personal characteristic or attribute protected by
law, such as (but not limited to) having a disability, their age or status as a
carer, the Chairperson may, subject to Rule 55.3.4 permit a representative to
attend or read a question on their behalf;

55.3.4

the Chairperson shall not exercise his or her discretion to permit a
representative in accordance with sub-Rule 55.3.3 on the ground of
inconvenience alone.

Questions disallowed by the Chairperson shall be made available to any Councillor on
request.
Questions may be disallowed by the Chairperson prior to the commencement of a
Council meeting
56.

Procedures for Question Time
Notwithstanding sub-Rules 55.3.1 or 55.3.2, the Chairperson or member of Council staff
nominated by the Chairperson may read a question to those present except that:
56.1.1

the Chairperson may advise Council that it is his or her opinion that the
question should be read in a meeting closed to members of the public. The
Councillor or member of Council staff must state briefly the reason why the
reply should be so given and, unless Council resolves to the contrary, the
question must be so read;
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56.1.2

the Chairperson may nominate a Councillor or member of Council staff to
respond to a question except that:
56.1.2.1 a Councillor or member of Council staff may advise Council that it is
his or her opinion that the reply to a question should be given in a
meeting closed to members of the public. The Councillor or member
of Council staff must state briefly the reason why the reply should be
so given and, unless Council resolves to the contrary, the reply to
such question must be so given;
56.1.2.2 before responding, a Councillor or member of Council staff may direct
questions of clarification to the person submitting the question. All
questions and answers must be as brief as possible, and no
discussion may be allowed other than for the purposes of clarification;
56.1.2.3 a Councillor or member of Council staff nominated to respond to a
question, may require that the question be put on notice until the next
meeting, at which time the question must be answered, or elect to
submit a written answer to the person asking the question; and
56.1.2.4 a Councillor may direct questions of clarification to the Councillor or
member of Council staff nominated to respond to a question. All
questions and answers must be as brief as possible, and no
discussion or debate may be allowed other than for the purposes of
clarification.

Division 9 – Petitions and Joint Letters
57.

Petitions and Joint Letters
Unless Council determines to consider it as an item of Urgent Business, no motion (other
than a motion to receive the same) may be made on any petition, joint letter, memorial or
other like application until the next Council meeting after that at which it has been
presented.
It is incumbent on every Councillor presenting a petition or joint letter to acquaint himself
or herself with the contents of that petition or joint letter, and to ascertain that it does not
contain language disrespectful to Council and that the contents do not violate a Local
Law.
Every Councillor presenting a petition or joint letter to Council must:
57.3.1

write or otherwise record his or her name at the beginning of the petition or joint
letter; and

57.3.2

confine himself or herself to a statement of the persons from whom it comes,
the number of signatories to it, the material matters expressed in it and the text
of the prayer or request.

Every petition or joint letter presented to Council must be in writing (other than pencil),
typing or printing, contain the request of the petitioners or signatories and be signed by at
least 20 people.
Every petition or joint letter must be signed by the persons whose names are appended
to it by their names or marks, and, except in cases of incapacity or sickness, by no one
else and the address of every petitioner or signatory must be clearly stated.
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If a petition, joint letter, memorial or other like application relates to an operational matter,
Council must refer it to the Chief Executive Officer for consideration.
In relation to e-petitions, the same provisions in sub-Rules 57.1 to 57.6 apply, except in
relation for the requirement of a petitioner’s signature.

Division 10 – Deputations
58.

Deputation to be referred to Mayor
A deputation wishing to be heard by Council may make a written request to the Chief Executive
Officer who must refer the request to the Mayor.

59.

Consideration of Request
The Mayor may:

60.

59.1.1

ask the Chief Executive Officer to include the deputation on the agenda for
a future Council meeting; or

59.1.2

ask the Chief Executive Officer to include the request for a deputation on the
agenda for a future Council meeting; or

59.1.3

in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer, decline the request.

Notification of Hearing
If the Mayor asks for a deputation to be heard, the Chief Executive Officer must notify all
Councillors of that request, and also notify a member of the deputation of the date, time, and place
of which the deputation will be heard.

61.

Summary of Submissions
A deputation may lodge with the Chief Executive Officer, a written submission detailing the
subject matter of the deputation prior to the deputation addressing Council.

62.

Limitations upon Speakers
Council will not hear more than two (2) speakers on behalf of any deputation, and the Chairperson
may set time limits on the length and address of each speaker.

63.

Questions but no discussion permitted
Councillors and members of Council staff may question the deputation on matters raised by it for
purposes of clarification but no discussion will be allowed.

64.

Matter to be Determined upon a subsequent meeting
No motion must be allowed on any deputation until the next Council meeting after the deputation
has been heard unless Council, by resolution, decides otherwise.
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DIVISION 11 – Public Submissions Under the Community Engagement Policy
65.

Public Submissions Under the Community Engagement Policy
Where a person is given a right to make a submission under the Community Engagement Policy
and requests to appear in person (or to be represented by a person specified in the submission) at
a Council meeting to be heard in support of the submission, the time limit for such hearing shall be
3 minutes, except that the Chairperson may allow the hearing to exceed 3 minutes.

Division 12 – Voting
66.

How Motion Determined
To determine a motion before a meeting, the Chairperson must:
66.1.1

first call for those in favour of the motion; and

66.1.2

then call for those opposed to the motion; and

66.1.3

if required, identify a Councillor who has abstained from voting,

and must then declare the result to the meeting.
67.

Silence
Voting must take place in silence unless otherwise determined by the Chairperson.

68.

Recount
The Chairperson may direct that a vote be recounted to satisfy himself or herself of the result.

69.

Casting Vote
In the event that the number of votes in favour of a motion is half the number of Councillors
present at the meeting at the time the vote is taken, the Chairperson must exercise the casting
vote.

70.

By Show Of Hands
Unless the Act requires, or Council resolves otherwise, voting on any matter is by show of
hands.
Notwithstanding sub-Rule 70.1, voting at a meeting that is open to members of the public
must not be in secret.

71.

Procedure For A Division
Immediately after any question is put to a meeting and before the next item of business
has commenced, a Councillor may call for a division.
When a division is called for, the vote already taken must be treated as set aside and the
division shall decide the question, motion or amendment.

Boroondara City Council - Governance Rules
City of Boroondara

Page 34 of 63
Attachment Page 34 of 63

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

When a division is called for, the Chairperson must:

72.

71.3.1

first ask each Councillor wishing to vote in the affirmative to raise a hand and,
upon such request being made, each Councillor wishing to vote in the
affirmative must raise one (1) of his or her hands. The Chairperson must then
state, and the Chief Executive Officer or any authorised officer must record, the
names of those Councillors voting in the affirmative; and

71.3.2

then ask each Councillor wishing to vote in the negative to raise a hand and,
upon such request being made, each Councillor wishing to vote in the negative
must raise one (1) of his or her hands. The Chairperson must then state, and
the Chief Executive Officer or any authorised officer must record, the names of
those Councillors voting in the negative.

71.3.3

if required, then ask each Councillor wishing to abstain from voting to raise a
hand and, upon such request being made, each Councillor wishing to abstain
from voting must raise one (1) of his or her hands. The Chairperson must then
state, and the Chief Executive Officer or any authorised officer must record, the
names of those Councillors abstaining from voting.

No Discussion Once Declared
Once a vote on a question has been taken, no further discussion relating to the question is allowed
unless the discussion involves:
a Councillor requesting, before the next item of business is considered, that his or her
opposition to a resolution be recorded in the minutes or a register maintained for that
purpose; or
foreshadowing a notice of rescission where a resolution has just been made, or a positive
motion where a resolution has just been rescinded.

Division 11 – Minutes
73.

Confirmation of Minutes
Where the agenda for a Council meeting includes provision for the adoption and confirmation of
the minutes of the preceding meeting(s), those minutes must be dealt with as follows:
a copy of the minutes must be delivered to each Councillor no later than 48 hours before
the meeting. This shall not apply in respect of Councillor who has been granted leave of
absence pursuant to the Act and who has not requested the Chief Executive Officer, in
writing, to continue to give notice of meetings to be held during the period of leave of
absence;
if no Councillor indicates opposition, the minutes must be declared to be confirmed and no
discussion or debate on the confirmation of minutes may be permitted;
if a Councillor indicates opposition to the minutes:
73.3.1

he or she must specify the item(s) to which he or she objects;

73.3.2

the objected item(s) must be considered separately and in the order in which
they appear in the minutes;

73.3.3

the Councillor objecting must move a motion clearly setting out the alternative
wording to amend the minutes accordingly without speaking to the motion; and

Boroondara City Council - Governance Rules
City of Boroondara

Page 35 of 63
Attachment Page 35 of 63

Council Meeting

74.

24/08/2020

73.3.4

the motion must then be open to debate and at the conclusion of debate, the
Chairperson must put the motion to the vote;

73.3.5

a resolution of Council must confirm the minutes and the minutes must, if
practicable, be signed by the Chairperson of the meeting at which they have
been confirmed;

73.3.6

the minutes must be entered in the minute book and each item in the minute
book must be entered consecutively; and

73.3.7

unless otherwise resolved or required by law, minutes of a Delegated Committee
requiring confirmation by Council must not be available to the public until
confirmed by Council.

No Debate on Confirmation Of Minutes
No discussion or debate on the confirmation of minutes is permitted except where their accuracy
as a record of the proceedings of the meeting to which they relate is questioned.

75.

Deferral Of Confirmation Of Minutes
Council may defer the confirmation of minutes until later in the Council meeting or until the next
meeting if considered appropriate.

76.

Form and Availability of Minutes
The Chief Executive Officer (or other person authorised by the Chief Executive Officer to
attend the meeting and to take the minutes of such meeting) must keep minutes of each
Council meeting, and those minutes must record:
76.1.1

the date, place, time and nature of the meeting;

76.1.2

the names of the Councillors present and the names of any Councillors who
apologised in advance for their non-attendance;

76.1.3

the names of the members of Council staff present;

76.1.4

any disclosure of a conflict of interest made by a Councillor, including the
explanation given by the Councillor under Chapter 5 and whether the conflict of
interest was said by the Councillor to be a general conflict of interest or a
material conflict of interest;

76.1.5

arrivals and departures (including temporary departures) of Councillors during
the course of the meeting;

76.1.6

each motion and amendment moved (including motions and amendments that
lapse for the want of a seconder);

76.1.7

the vote cast by each Councillor upon a division;

76.1.8

the vote cast by any Councillor who has requested that his or her vote be
recorded in the minutes;

76.1.9

the failure of a quorum;

76.1.10 any adjournment of the meeting and the reasons for that adjournment; and
76.1.11 the time at which standing orders were suspended and resumed.
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The Chief Executive Officer must ensure that the minutes of any Council meeting are:
76.2.1

published on Council’s website; and

76.2.2

available for inspection at Council’s office during normal business hours.

Nothing in sub-Rule 76.2 requires Council or the Chief Executive Officer to make public
any minutes relating to a Council meeting or part of a Council meeting closed to
members of the public in accordance with section 66 of the Act.

Division 12 – Recording of Proceedings
77.

Recording of proceedings
Subject to any resolution of Council, the Chief Executive Officer (or other person
authorised by the Chief Executive Officer) may record the proceedings of a Council
meeting.
Subject sub-Rule 77.1, a person must not operate photographic, audio or video recording
equipment or any other recording device at any Council meeting without first obtaining
the consent of the Chairperson. Such consent may at any time during the course of such
meeting be revoked by the Chairperson or resolution of Council.

Division 13 – Behaviour
78.

Public Addressing The Meeting
Members of the public do not have a right to address Council and may only do so with
the consent of the Chairperson or by prior arrangement.
Any member of the public addressing Council must extend due courtesy and respect to
Council and the processes under which it operates and must take direction from the
Chairperson whenever called on to do so.
A member of the public present at a Council meeting must not disrupt the meeting.

79.

Chairperson May Remove
The Chairperson may order and cause the removal of any person, other than a Councillor, who
disrupts any meeting or fails to comply with a direction given under sub-Rule 78.2.

80.

Chairperson may adjourn disorderly meeting
If the Chairperson is of the opinion that disorder at the Council table or in the gallery makes it
desirable to adjourn the Council meeting, he or she may adjourn the meeting to a later time on the
same day or to some later day as he or she thinks proper.
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Suspensions
Council may suspend from a meeting any Councillor whose actions have disrupted the
business of Council, and have impeded its orderly conduct.
The duration of any suspension under this Rule shall be at Council's discretion but
shall not exceed the balance of the meeting.

82.

Removal from Chamber
The Chairperson may order the removal of any Councillor who has been suspended by
Council in accordance with Rule 81;
The Chairperson may order the removal of:
82.2.1

any person, excluding a Councillor who disrupts any meeting or fails to
comply with a direction;

82.2.2

any person, excluding a Councillor who the Chairperson reasonably believes
has acted in breach of this Local Law; or

82.2.3

any person who the Chairperson reasonably believes has acted in breach of
the Summary Offences Act 1966;

The Chairperson may issue a warning to any person before exercising the powers in subRules 82.2 and 82.4.
The Chairperson may ask any member of Council staff, security guard or member of the
Victoria Police to cause the removal of any person who is the subject of an order under
sub-Rules 82.1 or 82.2.

Division 14 – Additional Duties of Chairperson
83.

The Chairperson’s Duties And Discretions
In addition to the duties and discretions provided in this Chapter, the Chairperson:
83.1.1

must not accept any motion, question or statement which:
83.1.1.1

may reasonable be considered to be defamatory, derogatory,
indecent, abusive offensive, irrelevant, trivial or objectionable in
language or substance;

83.1.1.2

relates to a matter outside the duties, functions and powers of
Council;

83.1.1.3

is aimed at embarrassing a Councillor, a member of Council staff
or member of the community;

83.1.1.4

must call to order any person who is disruptive or unruly during
any meeting.
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Division 15 – Suspension of Standing Orders
84.

Suspension of Standing Orders
The Chairperson or any Councillor may indicate a desire to suspend standing orders to
expedite the business of a meeting. In which case:
84.1.1

the Chairperson may suspend standing orders with the support of the meeting;
or

84.1.2

standing orders may be suspended by procedural motion.

the suspension of standing orders should be used to enable full discussion of any issue
without the constraints of formal meeting procedure.
the suspension of standing orders should not be used purely to dispense with the
processes and protocol of the government of Council.

Division 15 – Miscellaneous
85.

Meetings Conducted Remotely
If:
by law a meeting may be conducted electronically; and
Council decides that a meeting is to be conducted electronically,
the Chairperson may, with the consent of the meeting, modify the application of any of the Rules in
this Chapter to facilitate the more efficient and effective transaction of the business of the meeting.

86.

Procedure not provided in this Chapter
In all cases not specifically provided for by this Chapter, resort must be had to the Standing Orders
and Rules of Practice of the Upper House of the Victorian Parliament (so far as the same are
capable of being applied to Council proceedings).

87.

Criticism of members of Council staff
The Chief Executive Officer may make a brief statement at a Council meeting in respect
of any statement by a Councillor made at the Council meeting criticising him or her or any
member of Council staff.
A statement under sub-Rule 87.1 must be made by the Chief Executive Officer, through
the Chairperson, as soon as it practicable after the Councillor who made the statement
has resumed his or her seat.

88.

Public Submissions/Presentations
At all Delegated Committee meetings, members of the public may be given an
opportunity to make submissions/presentations to the Delegated Committee on an
agenda item relevant to the meeting. The following provisions will apply to such
submissions/presentations:
88.1.1

Each submitter may only speak once to each agenda item, except at the
discretion of the Chairperson.
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88.1.2

Submitters must fill out the form designated by the Chief Executive Officer.

88.1.3

Information on the form must include:
88.1.3.1

the name and address of the person requesting to discuss the
agenda item; or in the case of a person representing a business,
their name and ordinary business address;

88.1.3.2

the relevant report number and/or report title;

88.1.3.3

an indication of whether the submitter wishes to address the
Delegated Committee meeting, have their submission/presentation
read out by a member of Council staff or distributed to Councillors at
the meeting; and

88.1.3.4

an indication of whether the person supports the recommendation
contained in the report.

88.1.4

The form must be lodged in the receptacle designated for such purpose prior to
the time specified for the Delegated Committee meeting to commence.

88.1.5

The Chairperson may:
89.1.5.1

Accept forms lodged after the commencement of the Delegated
Committee meeting.

89.1.5.2

Seek clarification from a submitter regarding information provided
on their form, at any time before, during or after the submitter has
made their submission.

Submitters wishing to speak at a Delegated Committee meeting are only permitted to
speak to their submission/presentation for the period prescribed by the Chairperson of that
meeting.
In determining the period submitters will be permitted to speak, the Chairperson will have
regard to the number of submissions/presentations and the number of speakers wishing to
be heard.
Submitters not wishing to speak at a Delegated Committee meeting can request that their
submission/presentation be read out at the meeting by a member of Council staff.
The Chairperson may refuse a request under sub-Rule 88.4 if the written
submission/presentation exceeds 200 words.
Considering the general rights of citizens to take part in the conduct of Council affairs, a
submission/presentation at a Delegated Committee meeting may be disallowed by the
Chairperson at any stage of the submission/presentation if:
88.6.1

it does not relate to an agenda item as published for that particular Delegated
Committee meeting;

88.6.2

it deals with a particular aspect of the subject matter already addressed by a
previous speaker;

88.6.3

it relates to a matter outside the duties, functions and powers of Council;

88.6.4

it may reasonably be considered to be defamatory, indecent, abusive,
offensive, irrelevant, trivial or objectionable in language or substance;
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88.6.5

it is aimed at embarrassing a Councillor, a member of the Delegated
Committee or a member of Council staff;

88.6.6

it relates to personnel matters or the personal hardship of any resident or
ratepayer; or

88.6.7

it relates to any other matter the Chairperson considers would prejudice Council
or any person.

88.6.8

the submitter has not lodged a form in accordance with Rule 88;

The Chairperson and/or councillors may seek clarification from any submitter on matters
raised by the submitter.
In addition to any limits set out in this Division, the Chairperson of a Delegated Committee
may set additional limits on the number of speakers to address a Delegated Committee
meeting on any agenda item and the Chairperson may:
88.8.1

determine not to hear submitters or have all submissions/presentations read
out by a member of Council staff;

88.8.2

determine to hear submitters and in doing so limit the number of submitters to
address a Delegated Committee meeting on any agenda item by inviting a set
number of submitters who are opposed to the Officer Recommendation
(Against) and a set number of submitters who are in favour of the Officer
Recommendation (For) to each speak for the period prescribed by the
Chairperson of that meeting;

88.8.3

nominate one (1) spokesperson for the 'For' and one (1) spokesperson for the
'Against' who are each given an opportunity to speak for the period prescribed
by the Chairperson of that meeting; and

88.8.4

if necessary, adjourn the meeting to enable the parties to nominate speakers.

88.8.5

if the submitters For and Against are unable to reach a consensus regarding a
spokesperson for the purposes of sub-Rule 88.8.3 or who shall be nominated to
speak for the purposes of sub-Rule 88.8.2, the names of the submitters may be
drawn by ballot.
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Chapter 3 – Meeting Procedure for Delegated Committees
1.

Meeting Procedure Generally
If Council establishes a Delegated Committee:

2.

1.1

all of the provisions of Chapter 2 apply to meetings of the Delegated Committee; and

1.2

any reference in Chapter 2 to:
1.2.1

a Council meeting is to be read as a reference to a Delegated Committee
meeting;

1.2.2

a Councillor is to be read as a reference to a member of the Delegated
Committee; and

1.2.3

the Mayor is to be read as a reference to the Chairperson of the Delegated
Committee.

Meeting Procedure Can Be Varied
Notwithstanding Rule 1, if Council establishes a Delegated Committee that is not composed solely
of Councillors:
2.1

Council may; or

2.2

the Delegated Committee may, with the approval of Council

resolve that any or all of the provisions of Chapter 2 are not to apply to a meeting of the Delegated
Committee, in which case the provision or those provisions will not apply until Council resolves, or
the Delegated Committee with the approval of Council resolves, otherwise.
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Chapter 4 – Meeting Procedure for Community Asset Committees
1.

Introduction
In this Chapter, “Instrument of Delegation” means an instrument of delegation made by the Chief
Executive Officer under section 47(1)(b) of the Act.

2.

Meeting Procedure
Unless anything in the instrument of delegation provides otherwise, the conduct of a meeting of a
Community Asset Committee is in the discretion of the Community Asset Committee.
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Chapter 5 – Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
1.

Introduction
The following Rules in this Chapter apply only upon Division 1A of Part 4 of the Local Government
Act 1989 being repealed.

2.

Definition
In this Chapter:

3.

2.1

“meeting conducted under the auspices of Council” means a meeting of the kind
described in section 131(1) of the Act, and includes a meeting referred to in Rule 1 of
Chapter 6 (whether such a meeting is known as a ‘Councillor Briefing and Discussion’ or
by some other name); and

2.2

a member of a Delegated Committee includes a Councillor.

Disclosure of a Conflict of Interest at a Council Meeting
A Councillor who has a conflict of interest in a matter being considered at a Council meeting at
which he or she:
3.1

is present must disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the nature of the conflict of
interest to those present at the Council meeting immediately before the matter is
considered and indicating whether it is a general conflict of interest or a material conflict
of interest; or

3.2

intends to be present must disclose that conflict of interest by providing to the Chief
Executive Officer before the Council meeting commences a written notice:
3.2.1

advising of the conflict of interest;

3.2.2

explaining the nature of the conflict of interest and indicating whether it is a
general conflict of interest or a material conflict of interest; and

3.2.3

detailing, if the nature of the conflict of interest involves a Councillor’s
relationship with or a gift from another person, the:
(a)

name of the other person;

(b)

nature of the relationship with that other person or the date of receipt,
value and type of gift received from the other person; and

(c)

nature of that other person’s interest in the matter

and then immediately before the matter is considered at the meeting announcing to those
present that he or she has a conflict of interest and that a written notice has been given
to the Chief Executive Officer under this sub-Rule.
The Councillor must, in either event, leave the Council meeting immediately after giving the
explanation or making the announcement (as the case may be) and not return to the meeting until
after the matter has been disposed of.
4.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest at a Delegated Committee Meeting
A member of a Delegated Committee who has a conflict of interest in a matter being considered at
a Delegated Committee meeting at which he or she:
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4.1

is present must disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the nature of the conflict of
interest to those present at the Delegated Committee meeting immediately before the
matter is considered and indicating whether it is a general conflict of interest or a material
conflict of interest; or

4.2

intends to be present must disclose that conflict of interest by providing to the Chief
Executive Officer before the Delegated Committee meeting commences a written notice:
4.2.1

advising of the conflict of interest;

4.2.2

explaining the nature of the conflict of interest and indicating whether it is a
general conflict of interest or a material conflict of interest; and

4.2.3

detailing, if the nature of the conflict of interest involves a member of a
Delegated Committee’s relationship with or a gift from another person the:

4.2.4

(a)

name of the other person;

(b)

nature of the relationship with that other person or the date of receipt,
value and type of gift received from the other person; and

nature of that other person’s interest in the matter,

and then immediately before the matter is considered at the meeting announcing to those
present that he or she has a conflict of interest and that a written notice has been given
to the Chief Executive Officer under this sub-Rule.
The member of a Delegated Committee must, in either event, leave the Delegated Committee
meeting immediately after giving the explanation or making the announcement (as the case may
be) and not return to the meeting until after the matter has been disposed of.
5.

Disclosure of a Conflict of Interest at a Community Asset Committee Meeting
A Councillor who has a conflict of interest in a matter being considered at a Community Asset
Committee meeting at which he or she:
5.1

is present must disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the nature of the conflict of
interest to those present at the Community Asset Committee meeting immediately before
the matter is considered and indicating whether it is a general conflict of interest or a
material conflict of interest; or

5.2

intends to be present must disclose that conflict of interest by providing to the Chief
Executive Officer before the Community Asset Committee meeting commences a written
notice:
5.2.1

advising of the conflict of interest;

5.2.2

explaining the nature of the conflict of interest and indicating whether it is a
general conflict of interest or a material conflict of interest; and

5.2.3

detailing, if the nature of the conflict of interest involves a member of a
Councillor’s relationship with or a gift from another person the:
(a)

name of the other person;

(b)

nature of the relationship with that other person or the date of receipt,
value and type of gift received from the other person; and
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5.2.4

nature of that other person’s interest in the matter

and then immediately before the matter is considered at the meeting announcing to those
present that he or she has a conflict of interest and that a written notice has been given
to the Chief Executive Officer under this sub-Rule.
The Councillor must, in either event, leave the Committee Asset Committee meeting immediately
after giving the explanation or making the announcement (as the case may be) and not return to
the meeting until after the matter has been disposed of.
6.

Disclosure at a Meeting Conducted Under the Auspices of Council
A Councillor who has a conflict of interest in a matter being considered by a meeting held under
the auspices of Council at which he or she is present must:

7.

6.1

disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the nature of the conflict of interest to those
present at the meeting immediately before the matter is considered and indicating
whether it is a general conflict of interest or a material conflict of interest;

6.2

absent himself or herself from any discussion of the matter; and

6.3

as soon as practicable after the meeting concludes provide to the Chief Executive Officer
a written notice recording that the disclosure was made and accurately summarising the
explanation given to those present at the meeting.

Disclosure by Members of Council Staff Preparing Reports for Meetings
7.1

A member of Council staff who, in his or her capacity as a member of Council staff, has a
conflict of interest in a matter in respect of which he or she is preparing or contributing to
the preparation of a Report for the consideration of a:
7.1.1

Council meeting;

7.1.2

Delegated Committee meeting;

7.1.3

Community Asset Committee meeting

must, immediately upon becoming aware of the conflict of interest, provide a written
notice to the Chief Executive Officer disclosing the conflict of interest and explaining the
nature of the conflict of interest and indicating whether it is a general conflict of interest or
a material conflict of interest.

8.

7.2

The Chief Executive Officer must ensure that the Report referred to in sub-Rule 7.1
records the fact that a member of Council staff disclosed a conflict of interest in the
subject-matter of the Report.

7.3

If the member of Council staff referred to in sub-Rule 7.1 is the Chief Executive Officer:
7.3.1

the written notice referred to in sub-Rule 7.1 must be given to the Mayor; and

7.3.2

the obligation imposed by sub-Rule 7.2 may be discharged by any other
member of Council staff responsible for the preparation of the Report.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest by Members of Council Staff in the Exercise of Delegated
Power
8.1

A member of Council staff who has a conflict of interest in a matter requiring a decision to
be made by the member of Council staff as delegate must, immediately upon becoming
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aware of the conflict of interest, provide a written notice to the Chief Executive Officer
explaining the nature of the conflict of interest and indicating whether it is a general
conflict of interest or a material conflict of interest.
8.2

9.

10.

If the member of Council staff referred to in sub-Rule 8.1 is the Chief Executive Officer
the written notice must be given to the Mayor.

Disclosure by a Member of Council Staff in the Exercise of a Statutory Function
9.1

A member of Council staff who has a conflict of interest in a matter requiring a statutory
function to be performed under an Act by the member of Council staff must, upon
becoming aware of the conflict of interest, immediately provide a written notice to the
Chief Executive Officer explaining the nature of the conflict of interest and indicating
whether it is a general conflict of interest or a material conflict of interest.

9.2

If the member of Council staff referred to in sub-Rule 9.1 is the Chief Executive Officer
the written notice must be given to the Mayor.

Retention of Written Notices
The Chief Executive Officer must retain all written notices received under this Chapter for a period
of three years.
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Chapter 6 – Miscellaneous
1.

Informal Meetings of Councillors
If there is a meeting of Councillors that:
1.1

is scheduled or planned for the purpose of discussing the business of Council or briefing
Councillors;

1.2

is attended by a majority of councillors;

1.3

is attended by at least one member of Council staff; and

1.4

is not a Council meeting, Delegated Committee meeting or Community Asset Committee
meeting

the Chief Executive Officer must ensure that a summary of the matters discussed at the meeting
are:

2.

(a)

tabled at the next convenient Council meeting; and

(b)

recorded in the minutes of that Council meeting.

Confidential Information
2.1

If, after the repeal of section 77(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1989, the Chief
Executive Officer (or an authorised officer) is of the opinion that information relating to a
meeting is confidential information within the meaning of the Act, he or she may
designate the information as confidential and advise Councillors and/or members of
Council staff in writing accordingly.

Information which has been designated by the Chief Executive Officer (or an authorised officer) as
confidential information within the meaning of the Act, and in respect of which advice has been
given to Councillors and/or members of Council staff in writing accordingly, will be presumed to be
confidential information.
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1. Introduction
The Local Government Act 2020 ('the Act') requires Council to include an adopt an Election
Period Policy (Policy) in its Governance Rules.
This Policy provides a framework for decisions prohibited by Council during the election
period in accordance with the Act, and the procedures to be applied by Council during the
election period for.
The 'election period' as defined by the Act for the 2020 local government elections will
commence on 22 September 2020 and end at 6pm on election day, 24 October 2020.
This policy replaces the Election Period Policy adopted by Council on 25 November 2019.
2. Purpose
This policy has been developed in accordance with the Act and to ensure the Boroondara City
Council elections on Saturday 24 October 2020 (and subsequent elections) are conducted in a
manner that is ethical; fair and equitable; and are publicly perceived as such.
The policy contains:
(a)

procedures intended to assist the Council in making appropriate decisions and using
resources appropriately during the election period before an election;

(b)

guidelines on public consultation and the scheduling of Council events; and

(c)

procedures to ensure that access to information held by Council is made equally
available and accessible to candidates during the election.

3. Definitions
TERM
Advertising sign

DEFINITION
Means any placard, board, poster, banner, sign, card,
structure or other similar device, whether portable or
affixed or attached to any land, building, vehicle, trailer,
person or other thing, used for the purpose of soliciting
goods or services or displaying information but excludes
any placard, board, poster, banner, sign, card or similar
device attached to or on any vehicle or trailer:

SOURCE
Amenity Local
Law

(a) and used for the purpose of promoting a
registered political party or a person’s
candidature or prospective candidature at an
election; or
(b) if the use of the vehicle or trailer is ancillary to
another use connected with activities being
carried out on land (such as the use of a vehicle
or trailer in connection with building or commercial
activities being carried out on land).
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DEFINITION
Means a person:

SOURCE
Act s.3

1. Who has nominated as a candidate for an election
under section 256 of the Act.
2. Who has:




Policy

publicly expressed an intention to run as a
candidate in the election; and or
a person who has formally nominated as a
candidate in the election with the Election
Manager.

A candidate is a “known candidate” when a person has
actual knowledge of the candidate’s identity and that
they meet the above definition.

Chief Executive
Officer (CEO)

Means:
(a)

(b)
(c)

The person appointed by a Council to be its Chief
Executive Officer under section 44 of the Act or
any person acting in that position; and/or
The Chief Executive Officer's delegate
Such other person that the Chief Executive
Officer selects for the purpose of giving effect to
this Policy.

Act s.3

Policy
Policy

Council

Means the Boroondara City Council, whether
constituted before or after the commencement of this
Policy.

Policy

Councilcontrolled land

Means any land which Council, owns, occupies,
manages, has leased or licensed to another person or is
otherwise under Council’s control and management, other
than a road.

Amenity Local
Law

CouncillorCandidate

Means a current Councillor who has nominated, or is
considering nominating for election in the 24 October
2020 Council elections.

Policy

Electioneering

Means any action, statement and or publication that
contains material directly related to, or likely to influence,
a Councillor’s reelection or a candidate’s election.

Policy

Election Manager

Means:

Act s.3

(a)
(b)

The Victorian Electoral Commission; or
The person appointed in writing by the
Victorian Electoral Commission.
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TERM
Electoral material

DEFINITION
Means an advertisement, handbill, pamphlet or notice
that contains electoral matter, but does not include an
advertisement in a newspaper that is only announcing
the holding of a meeting.

SOURCE
Act s.3

Electoral matter

Matter which is intended or likely to affect voting in an
election but does not include any electoral material
produced by or on behalf of the Election Manager for the
purposes of conducting an election.

Policy

Without limiting the generality of the definition of
electoral matter, matter is to be taken to be intended or
likely to affect voting in an election if it contains an
express or implicit reference to, or comment on (a) the election; or
(b) a candidate in the election; or
(c) an issue submitted to, or otherwise before, the
voters in connection with the election.

Electoral matter includes material which:
•
Publicises the strengths or weaknesses of a
candidate
•
Advocates the policies of the Council or of a
candidate
•
Responds to claims made by a candidate
•
Publicises the achievements of the elected
Council.
Election Period

Means the period that:

starts at the time that nominations close on
nomination day; and

ends at 6 p.m. on election day;
[That is, 22 September 2020 through to 6pm on 24
October 2020].
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DEFINITION
Means the last day on which nominations to be a
candidate at a Council election may be received in
accordance with this Act and the regulations.

Prohibited decision Means any decision (a) relating to the appointment or remuneration of a
Chief Executive Officer, but not to the
appointment or remuneration of an Acting Chief
Executive Officer; or
(b) commits the Council to expenditure exceeding
1% of the Council's income from general rates,
municipal charges and service rates and charges
in the preceding financial year; or
(c) the Council considered could be reasonably
deferred until the next Council is in place; or
(d) that Council considered should not be made
during an election period; or
(e) that would enable the use of Council’s resources
in a way that is intended to influence voting at an
election.
(f) Means an irrevocable decision that significantly
affects the municipality.

SOURCE
Act s.3

Act s.69

Policy
Policy

Publication

Means:
a) a published work in any form (e.g. hardcopy or
digital) including but not limited to brochures,
articles, letters, posters, policies, strategies,
papers, letters, commentary.
b) the act or process of publishing.

Publish

Means publish by any means including by
publication on the Internet.

Public
consultation

Means a process which involves an invitation or invitations Policy
to individuals, groups or organisations or the community
generally to comment on an issue, proposed action or
proposed policy, and includes discussion of that matter
with the public.
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TERM

DEFINITION

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)
Staff, Council
staff or Staff
member

4.

SOURCE
Policy

Road includes:

Road

a street; and
a right of way; and
a public highway; and
any land reserved or proclaimed as a street or
road under the Crown Land (Reserves)
Act 1978 or the Land Act 1958; and
a public road under the Road Management Act
2004; and
a passage; and
a cul de sac; and
a by-pass; and
a bridge or ford; and
a footpath, bicycle path or nature strip; and
any culvert or kerbing or other land; and
works forming part of the Road

Means any employee of Council whether permanent or
temporary or casual, and includes contractors, and
volunteers carrying out work for or on behalf of
Boroondara City Council.

Policy

Accountability
4.1.

Council

Council will function in accordance with this Election Period Policy during the election
period.
4.2.

Chief Executive Officer

In addition to the Chief Executive Officer's statutory responsibilities, the Chief
Executive Officer will:



Ensure as far as possible, that all councillors and officers are informed of the
application of this policy 30 days prior to the commencement of the election
period.



Ensure as far as possible, that matters of Council business requiring
prohibited decisions are scheduled for Council to consider prior to the
commencement of the election period, or deferred where appropriate for
determination by the incoming Council.



Not include in the order of business for any Council meeting scheduled during
the election period, any matters requiring prohibited decisions or matters
that could be considered prohibited decisions.

The Chief Executive Officer may issue guidelines to staff on the role and
responsibilities of staff in the implementation of this policy.
The Chief Executive Officer may also issue guidelines to councillors to inform them
about changes to services, processes and procedures that may impact them in their role
during the election period.
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Decisions by Council
5.1

Decisions - Council and Delegated Committee Meetings

During the election period reports to Council and Delegated Committee meetings
will be carefully vetted to avoid listing matters on the agenda which could
foreseeably influence voters' intentions at the forthcoming election; or encourage
Councillor- candidates to use the matter as part of their election platform.
Councillors commit to refrain from moving motions on, or raising matters at
Council or Delegated Committee meetings that could potentially influence voting
at the election.
5.2

Decisions - Delegates

The ordinary, day-to-day business of local government must continue throughout the
election period. That business will be conducted by Council, its delegates and staff in a
responsible and transparent manner, in accordance with statutory requirements.
Most Council decisions are not made at meetings of the Council. Significant decisionmaking power is formally delegated to staff and the decision of a delegate is 'deemed' to be
a decision by Council. Because a delegate's decision is the same as a Council decision,
the same constraints that apply to decisions made in Council and Delegated Committee
meetings apply when delegates make decisions. Delegates should therefore give careful
consideration to the exercise of their powers during the election period.
Should a delegate be required to make a decision(s) under delegation in the ordinary
course of Council business during the election period, the delegate must satisfy
themselves beforehand that the decision is not a prohibited decision.
The following matters may also be considered a prohibited decision during the election
period:


Allocation of community grants;



Direct funding to community organisations;



Major planning scheme amendments; or



Changes to strategic objectives and strategies in the Council Plan.

5.3 Invalid Decisions
In accordance with section 69(4) of the Act, if the following decision are made during the
election period, the decisions are invalid:



relating to the appointment or remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer, but not
the appointment or remuneration of an Acting Chief Executive Officer; and



committing the Council to expenditure exceeding 1% of the Council's income from
general rates, municipal charges and service rates and charges in the preceding
financial year.

5.4.

Compensation

In accordance with section 69(5) of the Act, any person who suffers any loss or damage
as a result of acting in good faith on a Council decision that is an invalid decision, is entitled
to compensation from the Council for that loss or damage.
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Public Consultation
Consultation is an integral part of Council's policy development process and operations.
Surveys, blogs, invitations to put forward submissions, and other community engagement
activities should be avoided during the election period.
Council will not continue or commence public consultation on prohibited decisions,
contentious or politically sensitive matters after the commencement of the election period.
However, some public consultation activities may be necessary during the election period
to facilitate the day-to-day business of Council.
Public consultation associated with activities and decisions which are the subject of
statutory processes, for example:


Applications under the Planning and Environment Act 1987

can be expected to continue through the election period to ensure Council does not breach
its statutory obligations.
Public consultation not associated with activities and decisions which are the subject of
statutory processes shall only proceed if prior approval is given by the Chief Executive
Officer.
Where community engagement has occurred prior to the election period but the report has
not yet proceeded to a Council or Delegated Committee meeting, results of the consultation
will also not be provided to a Council or Delegated Committee meeting until the election
period has concluded.
Any public consultation that does proceed during the election period will be vetted for
electoral matter and express or implicit links to the election.
6.1 Postponing consultation
In view of the potential for a matter or issue to become contentious or politically sensitive in
the course of the election period, Council reserves the right where possible and
practicable, to postpone public consultation and any associated decisions where the
matter is considered likely to affect voting in the election.
7.

Council Publications
7.1

Prohibition on Publishing Material during the Election Period

Council must not publish electoral material that contains electoral matter. The
words “advertisement, handbill, pamphlet or notice” are to be interpreted broadly and
will include, amongst other things:


Brochures, pamphlets, handbills, flyers, magazines and books



Newsletters and other circulars (hardcopy and/or electronic)



New website material and social media posts



Mass mail outs or letters to a large number of people



Media releases



Material to publicise a function or event



Notices or posters placed on Council controlled property, including walls,
noticeboards, and electronic noticeboards and screens

This does not apply to the publishing of any document published before the
commencement of the election period or publication of any document required to be
published in accordance with, or under, any Act or regulation.
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Council Publications Including Councillor Information

References to councillors who are standing for re-election in Council publications printed,
published or distributed during the election period could be considered electoral matter
and will be carefully vetted during the certification process.
7.3

Existing Publications

Existing publications will be reviewed at the start of the election period. Publications or
material which is prominently displayed and might be regarded as likely to influence how
people vote may be temporarily removed from display. Any material so removed may still
be provided to members of the community upon request.
In the context of Council’s website, prominently displayed means content visible on the
City of Boroondara’s website: www.boroondara.vic.gov.au and all pages contained within.
During the election period Councillor profile pages will be limited to names, contact
details, date elected and councillor assignments. There will be no biographies or policy
statements.
7.4

Annual Report

Council is required by the Act to produce its Annual Report. The 2020-21 Annual Report
will be published during the election period. The Annual Report will not contain any
material that could be regarded as overt electioneering or that inappropriately promotes
individual councillors.
Any publication of an extract or summary of the Annual Report should not contain
information that could be considered electoral matter.

7.5

Council and Delegated Committee Meetings

Council is required by the Governance Rules to:


Give public notice of Council meetings and Delegated Committee meetings; and



Produce and make available agendas and minutes of Council meetings and
Delegated Committee meetings.

7.6

Social Media

At the start of the election period a message will be posted on Council’s social media
channels and website stating these channels will have no new content added until after the
election period unless it relates to existing Council services.
Any new publication on social media sites including Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, blogs
and wiki pages created by Council during the election period should not contain
information that could be considered electoral matter.
As public comments posted on Council's social media sites could be considered electoral
matter, staff responsible for administering social media sites will, where possible, disable
public commenting. Where public commenting cannot be disabled, staff will monitor their
respective sites during the election period and where possible, remove information that
could be considered electoral matter as soon as reasonably practicable after it is posted.

8.

Council Events
Where practicable, civic and ceremonial Council events should not be scheduled
during the election period. Civic and ceremonial events do not include routine events
and programs conducted as part of Council's day-to-day activities (e.g. immunisation
sessions, gallery exhibitions, library programs).
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Any civic or ceremonial Council event held during the election period should meet
one or more of the following criteria:


It is a planned event endorsed by the current Council Plan;



It is routinely held at the same time of year;



It is a commemorative or anniversary event held on or near the anniversary
date;



It demonstrates a clear community benefit, or serves an educational or
welfare purpose; or



It contributes to cultural development, social awareness or sense of
community identity.

Councillors may attend events as required by their Council duties, but are not
permitted to use these appearances for electioneering.
9.

Council Resources
9.1

Application of Resources

Council resources, including offices, staff, hospitality, services (including phone, internet
and email), property, equipment and stationary must be used exclusively for normal Council
business during the election period and must not be used in connection with any election
campaign or issue.
Councillor-candidates must not use Council resources in connection with any activities
associated with their election campaigns, regardless of any entitlement to "reasonable
personal use" of Council equipment under any other policy, protocol or terms of use.
Councillor-candidates should also be mindful to manage any perceived conflicts even
where a direct expense isn’t incurred, this may include for example:


Where campaign-related emails are received in a Council email account,
send any responses from a private email and encourage the correspondent to
use that account in future.



Where campaign-related calls are received on a Council device, provide and
encourage the caller to use a non-council number for future calls.

9.2

Role of Governance staff

The Secretary to the Mayor and Councillors, and other Governance staff, will not be asked
to undertake any tasks connected directly or indirectly with the election campaign of a
councillor standing for re-election.
9.3

Use of Council Equipment by Councillors

Councillors may continue to use any Council equipment provided to them to facilitate their
performance of normal Council duties during the election period, subject to existing
protocols and terms of use.

9.4

Councillors' Entitlement to Reimbursement

Reimbursements of councillors' out-of-pocket expenses during the election period will only
apply to expenses incurred in the performance of normal Council duties, and not for
expenses that support or are connected with a candidate's election campaign.
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Council Branding

No Council logos, letterheads, Council taken photos or other Boroondara City Council
branding may be used for, or linked in any way to, a candidate's election campaign.
9.6

Cessation of Ward Meetings

Ward meetings and ward-specific publications will not be arranged by Council during the
election period.
9.7

Councillor Correspondence

While the routine business of Council must continue, it is important that the administration is
not perceived as providing Councillor-candidates any undue advantage whilst
campaigning.
During the election period, any responses prepared by the administration in response to
correspondence addressed to a Councillor-candidate, will therefore be signed by the
Chief Executive Officer or relevant Director or Manager as appropriate. Such responses
will acknowledge the administration is responding due to limitations imposed upon
councillors during the election period.
9.8

Officers' Discretion

The Council will ensure that due propriety is observed in the use of all Council
resources, and Council staff are required to exercise appropriate discretion in that
regard.
Where the use of Council resources appears to relate to the election campaign of a
councillor standing for re-election, the matter must be referred to the Chief Executive
Officer.
10.

Media Services
10.1

Restriction on Services

During the election period, Council resources must not be used in any way that might
promote a councillor as an election candidate.
New Council publicity during the election period will be restricted to communicating normal
Council activities and initiatives and subject to approval by the Chief Executive Officer.
10.2

Media Releases/Spokespersons

Media releases during the election period will minimise references to specific councillors
and will not identify any councillor in a manner that could promote a councillor as an election
candidate. Where it is necessary to identify a spokesperson, the Chief Executive Officer or
his delegate will be consulted.
10.3

Councillors

Councillors must not use their position as an elected representative or their access to
Council staff and other Council resources to gain media attention during the election
period in support of an election campaign.
10.4

Council Employees

During the election period no Council employee may make any public statement that
relates to an election issue unless prior approval from the Chief Executive Officer has been
obtained.
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Information
11.1

Candidates' Access to Information

Council recognises that all election candidates have certain rights to information relevant
to their election campaigns from the Council administration subject to legislative
constraints such as:


Sections 123 of the Act which prohibit Councillor-candidates from misusing or
inappropriately making use of their position; and



the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014.

Councillors will continue to receive information that is necessary to fulfil their existing
elected roles. Beyond that, only information that is readily available to any member of the
community will be provided to any candidate.
11.2

Information Request Register

An Information Request Register will be maintained by the Manager Governance during
the election period. This Register will be a public document and record requests by
persons who identify themselves as candidates when seeking information relating to
electoral matters or when making other general enquiries. The register will also record the
responses provided.
Any candidate may, upon request, obtain information about the recorded requests made
by another candidate as recorded in the Information Request Register and a copy of
information given in response to the request.
The Manager Governance may, at his or her discretion, automatically circulate to all
candidates, the response to any request recorded in the Information Request Register.

12.

Assistance to Candidates
All election related enquiries from candidates, whether sitting councillors or not, will be
directed to the Election Manager or, where the matter is outside the responsibilities of the
Election Manager, to the Chief Executive Officer.

12.1.

Candidate Information

Council will provide candidates with a Councillor Candidate Information Kit to assist them
in running and nominating for Council.
The Councillor Candidate Information Kit may include:


Information about this policy;



Information about nominating as a candidate;



Information about other sources of information, including from the Victorian
Electoral Commission and the Election Manager; or



Information about election campaign donation returns.

12.2.

Council staff

Upon becoming a candidate in a Boroondara City Council election, the Council staff
member must:


Inform the Chief Executive Officer;
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Take leave from their duties at least for the duration of the election period in
accordance with sections 34 and 256 the Act;



Return any Council equipment (including, but not limited to, motor vehicles,
telephones and computers), documents or information that is not available to the
public at least for the duration of the election period; and



If elected, immediately resign from their employed position at Council, in
accordance with sections 34 and 256 Act.

12.3.

Member of Council Delegated or Advisory Committees

Upon becoming a candidate, any person who is a member of one of Council’s Delegated
committees or Advisory committees is expected to:

13.



Comply with this policy;



Inform the Chief Executive Officer;



Take leave from the Delegated committee or Advisory committee



Return any Council equipment, documents or information which is not available to
the public for the duration of their candidacy and/or the election period; and



If elected, immediately resign from the Delegated committee or Advisory committee

Advertising Signage on Council-controlled Land
Candidates and their supporters are not permitted to affix, attach or place
advertising signs on Council-controlled land or a Council road during
election campaigns including during the election period.

14.

Breaches
Sections 123 of the Act prohibits Councillors from misusing or inappropriately making
use of their position. A breach of section 123 attracts serious penalties, including
possible imprisonment. Allegations of breaches of the Act are independently received
and investigated by the Local Government Inspectorate.
Section 304 of the Act prohibits Councillors or a member of Council staff from using
resources in a way that is intended to or likely to affect the result of an election.
In addition, section 304 of the Act also prohibits Councillors or a member of Council
staff from using Council resources to intentionally or recklessly print, publish or
distribute or cause, permit or authorise to be printed, published or distributed any
electoral material during the election period on behalf of, or purporting to be on
behalf of, the Council unless the electoral material only contains information about
the election process or is otherwise required in accordance with, or under, any Act or
regulation.

15.

Councillor Code of Conduct
Allegations of breaches of this Policy will be dealt with under the Dispute Resolution
Procedures of the Councillor Code of Conduct. The Chief Executive Officer will take
the place of the Mayor in managing complaints received under the Election Period
Policy.
Complaints must be directed to the Chief Executive Officer in writing, providing details
of the alleged contravention, when it occurred and who it involved.
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The Chief Executive Officer will assess the information and follow the provisions of the
Dispute Resolution Procedures of the Councillor Code of Conduct including, where
necessary, the appointment of an external arbiter.
16.

Review
Council will review and, if required, amend the policy not later than 12 months before
the commencement of the next general election period.
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Introduction

1.1

Purpose

24/08/2020

The purpose of this policy is to establish:


Reimbursement of reasonable bona fide out of pocket expenses for
councillors and members of a delegated committee while performing that role.



Entitlements to professional development support and resources for
councillors and members of a delegated committee.



The facilities, resources and support Council considers necessary or
appropriate to provide support to councillors and members of a delegated
committee in the performance of their duties as a councillor or a member of a
delegated committee.

The policy also sets out the processes for ensuring the costs of resourcing and
supporting councillors and members of a delegated committee and the value of any
expenses reimbursed are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee and the
community in a timely manner which promotes transparency and accountability.
1.2

Principles and scope

The provision of facilities, resources and support to councillors and members of a
delegated committee, and the expenses paid or reimbursed for councillors and
members of delegated committees, should be consistent with the following:


The standards of conduct in the Councillor Code of Conduct as prescribed
under section 139 of the Act;



Encouraging diversity in participation, equity, inclusion and access;



Accountability and transparency; and



No disadvantage - allowances are provided separately to reimbursements of
expenses and the costs of facilities/resources support (pursuant to section 39
of the Act).

The duties performed are considered to be necessary for the purposes of achieving
the objectives of Council having regard to any relevant Act, regulations, Ministerial
Guidelines and Council policies, councillors and members of a delegated committee
are entitled to access facilities, support and resources as described in this policy and
the Act.

City of Boroondara

Attachment Page 3 of 27

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

The duties and activities considered to be necessary or appropriate for the purposes
of achieving the objectives of a council include, but are not limited to:


Attending Council meetings, meetings of delegated committees of council,
formal briefing sessions and civic or ceremonial functions convened by the
Council, the Mayor or the Chief Executive Officer;



Attending meetings or workshops scheduled by the Council, the Mayor or the
Chief Executive Officer;



Attending community meetings and ward meetings;



Participating in site inspections or meetings, or participating in delegations or
deputations;



Attending a meeting or function as the nominated representative of Council or
the Mayor;



Attending meetings of community groups, organisations and statutory
authorities to which the councillor has been appointed Council delegate or the
nominated representative of Council;



Attending site inspections or meetings relevant to a matter which is, or is
anticipated to be the subject of a decision of Council;



Attending discussions with officers or any person, any matter relating to the
City;



Attending seminars, training or professional development courses as an
attendee and/or speaker, which:
o Contribute to the development of personal and professional skills or
knowledge of the councillor or member of a delegated committee which
are necessary for the performance of the duties of a councillor or member
of a delegated committee;
o Are consistent with Council’s objectives;
o Will cover or present material with application / importance / relevance to
current or future issues faced by the Council; and
o Are within the Mayor, Councillors and members of a delegated committee
Annual Financial Allocation or approved annual budget provision for
conferences and seminars.
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Attending conferences as an attendee and/or speaker which:
o Are consistent with Council’s objectives;
o Will cover or present material with application / importance / relevance to
current or future issues faced by the Council; and
o Are within the Mayor, Councillors and members of a delegated committee
Annual Financial Allocation or approved annual budget provision for
conferences and seminars.



Preparation (e.g. reading reports, plans or papers) for any of the above
activities.

The policy presumes councillors and members of a delegated committee are
residents in the municipality, and any additional costs or expenses attributable to a
councillor’s or member’s of a delegated committee residence being outside the
municipality are considered inappropriate for reimbursement in the absence of a
prior Council resolution to the contrary.
Any cost or expense (or portion thereof) which should reasonably be borne by
another entity, or for which another entity is reasonably liable, is outside the scope of
this policy and shall not be paid or reimbursed by Council.
1.3

Corporate framework

This policy is consistent with the strategy within the Council Plan 2017-2021 focused
on responsible management and decision making in the delivery of high quality
services, capable and professional people, reflecting transparent, accountable and
fair practices.
This Policy also relates to Priority Theme 7: Civic Leadership and Governance in the
Boroondara Community Plan 2017-2021.

1.4

Background

Under the Act council must reimburse a councillor or a member of a delegated
committee for out-of-pocket expenses which the Council is satisfied a) are bona fide expenses; and
b) have been reasonably incurred in the performance of the role of Councillor or
member of a delegated committee; and
c) are reasonably necessary for the Councillor or member of a delegated
committee to perform that role.
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The Act also requires Council to adopt and maintain an expenses policy in relation to
the reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses for Councillors and members of
delegated committees. Under the Act the policy adopted by Council must a) specify procedures to be followed in applying for reimbursement and in
reimbursing expenses; and
b) comply with any requirements prescribed by the regulations in relation to
reimbursement of expenses; and
c) provide for the reimbursement of child care costs where the provision of child
care is reasonably requirement for a Councillor or member of a delegated
committee to perform their role; and
d) have particular regard to expenses incurred by a Councillor who is a carer in a
care relationship within the meaning of section 4 of the Carers Recognition
Act 2012.
In addition the Act requires that Council must:




make available to the Mayor and the Councillors the resources and facilities
reasonably necessary to enable them to effectively perform their role; and
consider the support that may be required by a Mayor, Deputy Mayor or
Councillor because of a disability; and
have particular regard to the support that may be required by a Councillor who
is a carer in a care relationship within the meaning of section 4 of the Carers
Recognition Act 2012.

This policy requires Council to reimburse a councillor and a member of a delegated
committee for expenses if the councillor or member of a delegated committee:



1.5

applies in writing to the Council for reimbursement of expenses; and
establishes in the application to Council that the expenses were reasonable
bona fide out-of-pocket expenses incurred while performing duties as a
councillor or a member of a delegated committee.

Policy context

This policy describes the basic entitlements of councillors and members of a
delegated committee to reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, facilities,
resources and support necessary or appropriate in relation to the performance of
their duties as a Boroondara councillor or a member of a delegated committee.
This policy is not intended to cover for every possible situation that may arise.
Should a situation arise that is not adequately covered by this policy, the matter will
be referred to Council for determination by resolution.
Any expenses, facilities support or resources not specifically addressed in this policy
will be assessed by reference to Part 2, Division 5 of the Act and any prescribed
regulations.
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The policy should be read in conjunction with other relevant Council policies adopted
or amended from time to time, including but not limited to the Councillor Code of
Conduct, and specific policies regarding the use, security, maintenance and
possession of Council equipment.

2

Travelling expenses and costs

2.1

Councillors and members of delegated committees are entitled to have paid by
Council, or reimbursed, travelling expenses and costs within the scope of this
policy for return travel within Victoria undertaken whilst discharging their duties
as a councillor or a member of a delegated committee.

2.2

Subject to approval in advance by Council, or the Chief Executive Officer in
consultation with the Mayor, councillors and members of a delegated
committee are entitled to have paid by Council, or reimbursed, travelling
expenses and costs for return travel originating within Victoria to destinations
outside Victoria but within Australia undertaken whilst discharging the duties of
a councillor or a member of a delegated committee.

2.3

Subject to approval in advance by Council, councillors and members of
delegated committees are entitled to have paid by Council, or reimbursed,
travelling expenses and costs for return travel originating with Victoria to
destinations outside Australia undertaken whilst discharging the duties of a
councillor or a member of a delegated committee.

2.4

Expenses and costs for return travel which originates outside Victoria or
Australia will only be paid by Council or be reimbursed where such expenses
and costs have been approved in advance by Council.

2.5

Private travel in conjunction with Council travel.
2.5.1. Councillors and members of delegated committees undertaking
private travel arrangements in conjunction with any travel for the
purpose of their duties as a councillor or a member of a delegated
committee must ensure that all costs incurred for private purposes are
clearly delineated and that appropriate records including predeparture itineraries are maintained.
2.5.2. Where any private travel and associated costs are included in a
package ticket or arrangement, the councillors and members of a
delegated committee must meet, or reimburse council, the private
portion prior to departure.
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Miscellaneous travel provisions
2.6.1.

Motor vehicle expenses paid by council or reimbursed will be at the
Australian Taxation Office rates as determined from time to time.

2.6.2.

Travel should be undertaken by the most practicable mode and route
possible taking into account factors such as duration and cost of
travel.

2.6.3.

The quantum of expenses paid by Council or reimbursed will be on
the basis of the actual cost incurred and the form of transport used.

2.6.4.

Council may reimburse an amount less than the amount claimed,
where the actual expense incurred is considered unreasonable,
taking into account the alternative modes of travel available.

2.6.5.

Where travel is by flight the standard form of travel will be economy
class where possible, although business class may be approved by
Council for overseas flights exceeding 4 hours in duration.

2.6.6.

Council will not ordinarily reimburse councillors or a member of a
delegated committee for any infringements incurred for traffic or
parking offences.

2.6.7.

Council will provide councillors and members of a delegated
committee with cab charge vouches for travel via a taxi/cab to and
from their councillor related duties or delegated committee duties.

2.6.8.

Council may reimburse any ride share (e.g. Uber) charges incurred
for travel to and from their councillor or member of a delegated
committee related duties in line with appropriate receipt
documentation.

2.6.9.

Council will provide councillors and members of a delegated
committee with a Myki Card for travel via public transport to and from
their councillor or member of a delegated committee related duties.

2.6.10. Council can also make available to councillors and members of a
delegated committee a corporate Myki Card when travelling via
public transport to and from their councillor or member of delegated
committee related duties. When councillors or members of a
delegated committee use their personal Myki Card, Council will
reimburse the associated cost of travel in line with appropriate
receipt documentation.
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2.6.11. Council will reimburse councillors and members of a delegated
committee for any City Toll Fees (EastLink and CityLink) incurred to
and from councillor related duties or member of a delegated
committee related duties.
2.7

Access to a Council Pool Vehicle
2.7.1. Where requested a Council fleet vehicle may be provided, subject to
availability, for councillors or members of a delegated committee to
perform their duties.
2.7.2. Use of a Council vehicle must be in accordance with relevant Council
policies including the Driver’s Handbook (which is provided in the
glove box of all fleet vehicles).
2.7.3. Fleet vehicle bookings can be made via the Secretary to Mayor and
Councillors.

3

Communication equipment, expenses and costs

3.1

Definitions

“Communications equipment” includes:
3.1.1. Fixed communication equipment such as land line, internet access
and associated hardware and software.
3.1.2. Portable communication equipment such as mobile telephone, laptop
computer, smartphone, tablet, wireless internet connection and
associated hardware and software.
3.2

As a minimum and subject to change due to technology enhancements,
councillors and members of a delegated committee shall be provided with
appropriate uniform communications equipment to ensure they can adequately
and efficiently perform their role as a councillor or member of a delegated
committee, which includes:
3.2.1. A mobile phone
3.2.2. A landline (optional)
3.2.3. A laptop computer and/or tablet
3.2.4. Access to a copier/printer
3.2.5. Internet access
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3.3

The make, model and specifications of any communications equipment, the
associated contracts or plans, and the replacement of any communications
equipment shall support the Windows platform and Microsoft environment and
be compatible with the internal Council infrastructure network and systems.

3.4

Council will meet the reasonable purchase, installation, maintenance and
service, connection, subscription, rental and usage costs for all Council
provided communications equipment.

3.5

Council may reimburse the purchase, installation, maintenance and service,
connection, subscription, rental and usage expenses for equivalent equipment
not provided by Council.
3.5.1. Councillors or members of a delegated committee will only be
reimbursed for such expenses where the purchase, installation,
maintenance, service, connection, subscription, rental or usage has
been approved in advance by Council, or the Chief Executive Officer
in consultation with the Mayor.
3.5.2. Council may reimburse an amount less than the amount claimed,
where the actual expense incurred is considered unreasonable,
taking into account the estimated costs of using equivalent
communications equipment provided by Council.

3.6

Council provided communications equipment is to be used for Council related
business activities however it is acknowledged that, on occasion, reasonable
personal use (excluding the election period) may be made of communications
equipment. Where personal use has occurred, councillors and members of
delegated committees are required to keep a reasonable record that can be
separately costed specifying the items of personal nature. There will be an
opportunity each quarter for councillors and members of delegated committees
to reimburse Council for private usage beyond reasonable personal use.

3.7

Council will meet the charges incurred associated with the business use of the
communications equipment through a set data plan or equivalent plan
determined by the Chief Executive Officer or their delegate at the
commencement of each electoral term.

3.8

Council will review councillors' and members’ of a delegated committee
communication equipment and will update equipment at:
3.8.1. the commencement of each electoral term in relation to a Councillor
and at the commencement of their appointment in relation to a
member of a delegated committee; and
3.8.2. any stage during the electoral term for a Councillor or during their
appointment for a member of a delegated committee where Council
believes an update is appropriate.
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3.9

Councillors may be provided with the opportunity to purchase communication
equipment at the end of their term of office in accordance with any relevant
Council Policy. Members of a delegated committee may also be provided with
the opportunity to purchase communication equipment at their end of their
appointment to a delegated committee. If a councillor or a member of a
delegated committee does not wish to purchase any communication
equipment, it shall remain the property of Council and is required to be returned
by councillors at the end of their term or if a person ceases to be a councillor
and by members of delegated committees at the end of their appointment or if
a person ceases to be a member of a delegated committee.

4

Conferences, seminars, training and professional development

4.1

Councillors and members of a delegated committee are entitled to have paid by
Council, or reimbursed, the cost of attending conferences, seminars, training
and professional development courses within the scope of this policy including:
4.1.1. registration fees;
4.1.2. accommodation costs and expenses; and
4.1.3. reasonable costs and expenses for meals and refreshments;
where attendance has been approved in advance by Council or the Chief
Executive Officer.

4.2

Professional development programs/courses.
4.2.1. Upon the commencement of each electoral term, a purpose designed
induction program will be provided to all councillors. In the first year
of a Council term, costs associated with all training and development
needs are absorbed as part of an induction period budget and do not
form part of quarterly expense reports.
4.2.2. Upon appointment, a purpose designed induction program will be
provided to all members of a delegated committee. During the
induction program, costs associated with all training and development
needs are absorbed as part of an induction period budget and do not
form part of quarterly expense reports.
4.2.3. Council will also provide access to the following professional
development programs/initiatives:
 Meeting procedures
 Chairing of meetings
 Media training
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 Governance Training e.g. Australian Institute of Company Directors
courses
 Financial training
 Team building and interpersonal skills
 MAV Councillor Development programs
Attachment 1 outlines a recommended program and some examples
of options available that councillors may like to consider over their four
year electoral term and members of delegated committees may like to
consider during their appointment.
4.3

Annual Financial Allocation for professional development programs/courses.
4.3.1. An annual financial allocation, indexed to CPI, is available for
councillors and members of delegated committees, subject to annual
review as part of the Council budget approval process.
4.3.2. The allocations (in 2020/2021) are:
 $7,277 per annum for the Mayor
 $5,820 per annum for other councillors
 $5,820 per annum for a member of a delegated committee.
calculated for the period November to October, coinciding with the
Mayoral Election.
4.3.3. If a councillor or a member of a delegated committee does not use
their annual allocation, they may carry forward any outstanding
allocation for one mayoral year only in the case of a councillor and
one year in their term of appointment in the case of a member of a
delegated committee.
4.3.4. A councillor cannot carry forward their annual allocation from one
council term to the next council term upon re-election.
4.3.5. A member of a delegated committee cannot carry forward their annual
allocation if they are re-appointed at the expiry of their term as a
member of a delegated committee.
4.3.6. Any councillor or member of a delegated committee wishing to spend
in excess of their allocation will require Council approval in advance.
4.3.7. The individual allocations are available for use at the discretion of the
councillor or member of a delegated committee in order to access
reasonable professional development. The professional development
must benefit the individual councillor or member of a delegated
committee in serving the Boroondara community.
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4.3.8. Except for the induction program in the first year of a Council term and
the Australian Institute of Company Directors (AICD) course all other
professional development will be costed to each individual Councillor
and member of a delegated committee Annual Financial Allocation.
4.3.9. Professional development needs which require or involve on-going,
longer-term support, guidance or mentoring, vocational tertiary
education must be discussed with the Chief Executive Officer or
delegate who will assist councillors and a member of a delegated
committee in line with an agreed framework and process.

5

Representing Council

5.1

Each year, and from time to time, Council resolves to appoint councillors to
represent it on a number of specific organisations with the delegated authority
of Council on appropriate matters.
5.1.1. For these organisations the nominated councillors or their substitute
are to be Council representatives at regular meetings of these
organisations and any special events, with partners where
appropriate.
5.1.2. Where Council has not appointed a councillor representative to a
particular organisation or group, and Council receives an official
invitation seeking Council representation at an event, the following
shall apply to determine councillor representation at an event:




The Mayor as first amongst equals will be given the opportunity to
attend the event.
If the Mayor is unable to attend, the Mayor will offer the opportunity
to another councillor.
If Council via a Council resolution or the Chief Executive Officer in
consultation with the Mayor determine that official representation of
all councillors is considered necessary or appropriate to support the
business or representational needs of Council.

5.1.3. The councillor representing Council at that event shall be entitled to
have paid by Council, or reimbursed, reasonable bona fide costs
associated with representing Council at the event.
5.1.4. Should any other councillor wish to attend the event then the costs
associated with attending the event will be borne by the councillor and
do not form part of the annual financial allocation for professional
development.
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6

Attendance by spouse / partner at seminars, conferences and
civic functions

6.1

Attendance at any seminar, conference or civic function by the spouse / partner
of a councillor or member of a delegated committee shall be at the expense of
the councillor or member of a delegated committee except where:
6.1.1. prior approval has been given by Council or the Chief Executive
Officer in consultation with the Mayor; and
6.1.2. attendance by the spouse / partner is considered to be necessary or
appropriate to support the business or representational needs of
Council; and
6.1.3. sufficient provision exists in the approved annual budget for
conferences and seminars.

6.2

Subject to clause 6.1, where the spouse / partner of a councillor or member of
a delegated committee attends a seminar, conference or civic function,
councillors or members of a delegated committee are entitled to have paid by
Council, or reimbursed, their spouse / partner’s;
6.2.1. registration fees; and
6.2.2. reasonable costs for meals and refreshments.

6.3

Councillors and members of a delegated committee are entitled to have paid by
Council, or reimbursed, the reasonable costs and expenses of their spouse or
partner attending:
6.3.1. functions held by Council; or
6.3.2. functions held by other Victorian municipalities;
where there is an agreed expectation of partners attending, i.e. spouse /
partner of the councillor or member of a delegated committee is specified on
the invitation.
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7

Accommodation costs

7.1

Councillors and members of a delegated committee are entitled to have paid by
Council, or reimbursed, the reasonable costs and expenses for accommodation
incurred for attending conferences, seminars, training or professional
development within the scope of this policy, provided:
7.1.1. the relevant event takes place outside the Melbourne metropolitan
region; or
7.1.2. it has the prior approval of Council, or the Chief Executive Officer in
consultation with the Mayor.

8

Stationery

8.1

Council shall, upon request, provide councillors or members of a delegated
committee with standard stationery equipment and consumables held or
obtained generally for the organisation’s requirements.

8.2

Stationery equipment and consumables includes, but is not necessarily limited
to: paper, writing implements, diaries, writing pads, printer cartridges,
envelopes and the like.

8.3

Requests for stationery should be made to the Secretary to the Mayor and
Councillors.

8.4

Where a request is made for reimbursement of expenses incurred under this
section, Council may reimburse an amount less than the amount claimed
where the actual expense incurred is considered unreasonable, taking into
account the estimated costs to Council to purchase similar goods.

9

Apparel

9.1

The Council shall, upon request, lend councillors and members of a delegated
committee protective clothing such clothing as may be held in store to meet the
organisation’s requirements required to assist in carrying out the duties of
office. This clothing is to be returned promptly upon the completion of the
activity/duty for which the articles were required.

9.2

This clothing shall be limited to wet weather pants and pullover, gumboots,
winter jacket and/or hat, safety equipment like hi-vis vest and hard hat or other
such clothing as may be held in store to meet the organisation’s requirements,
unless otherwise resolved by Council for a specific item(s).
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10 Carer in a care relationship
10.1 Councillors are entitled to have paid by Council, or reimbursed the cost of
caring expenses incurred by a Councillor who is a carer in a care relationship
within the meaning of the Carers Recognition Act 2012 while discharging their
duties as a councillor within the scope of this policy subject to the following
conditions.
10.1.1.

The maximum hourly rate a councillor will be reimbursed for providing
care in a care relationship is thirty two dollars and seventy cents
($32.70) per hour indexed annually to CPI at the commencement of
each Mayoral term.

10.1.2.

Carer costs must be substantiated showing dates and times the care
was provided and the councillor shall show why the care was needed
on each occasion.

11 Child care / family care expenses
11.1 Councillors and members of a delegated committee are entitled to have paid by
Council, or reimbursed, the cost of child care / family care expenses for
immediate family members, necessarily incurred by councillors or members of
a delegated committee whilst discharging their duties as a councillor or a
member of a delegated committee within the scope of this policy, subject to the
following conditions. For the purposes of this policy, family care relates to
care provide to any immediate family member who is either a child or a sick,
elderly or disabled person.
11.1.1. The maximum hourly rate a councillor or a member of a delegated
committee will be reimbursed for child care / family care expenses is
twenty four dollars and five cents ($24.05) per hour indexed annually
to CPI at the commencement of each Mayoral term.
11.1.2. Child care / family care costs must be substantiated from the
caregiver showing the dates and times care was provided, and the
councillor or a member of a delegated committee shall show why the
care was needed on each occasion.
11.1.3. Child care / family care costs are not eligible to be paid by Council, or
reimbursed if the caregiver is a part of the immediate family (e.g.
partner, mother/father, sister/brother, grandmother/grandfather or
sister-in-law/brother-in-law) of the councillor or member of a delegated
committee. Council will also not pay for or make a reimbursement if
the person normally or regularly lives with the councillor or the
member of a delegated committee except where a live-in
(professional) helper such as a Au Pair is required.
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11.1.4. For the purposes of this policy, a child shall be defined as up to, but
not including 16 years of age.

12 Support for a Councillor with a disability
12.1 Council will provide reasonable additional support, facilities, and equipment for
any councillor with a disability to enable that councillor to perform the duties of
a councillor.
12.2 Councillors are entitled to claim reimbursement for the reasonable cost of
assistive devices or assistive personnel.
12.3 Where reimbursement is claimed for the purchase of an assistive device, that
device shall become the property of Council.
12.4 Claims for reimbursement for assistive devices or assistive personnel will only
be considered where the use of the device or the assistance required, relates
specifically to the performance of a councillor's duties.
12.5 Any councillor wishing to claim reimbursement in excess of $105 (indexed
annually to CPI at the commencement of each Mayoral year) for assistive
devices will require prior approval from the Chief Executive Officer in
consultation with the Mayor.
12.6 The maximum hourly rate a councillor will be reimbursed for assistive
personnel is thirty three dollars and ninety six cents ($33.96) per hour indexed
annually to CPI at the commencement of each Mayoral year.

13 Legal fees
13.1 Other than by a specific Council resolution, or in accordance with a Council
Policy, any legal expenses incurred by a councillor or member of a delegated
committee shall be the responsibility of that councillor or member of a
delegated committee.
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14 Professional memberships and subscriptions
14.1 Professional memberships that are considered to be reasonable bona fide out
of pocket expenses are:







Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Governance Institute of Australia.
The Australian Local Government Women’s Association.
Institute of Managers and Leaders.
The Planning Institute of Australia.
The Victorian Planning & Environmental Law Association.

These costs will be met from the organisational Corporate Membership Fees
budget.
14.2 Other individual memberships, professional associations or subscriptions which
are considered demonstrably beneficial to Council or the performance of the
duties of a councillor or member of a delegated committee may be reimbursed
subject to a resolution of Council.

15 Miscellaneous support and expenses
15.1 Council business papers, personal mail and other Council information may be
couriered weekly, or as required, to a councillors’ and members’ of a delegated
committee place of residence or place of business within the municipality.
15.2 Designated car parking will be available at the Council offices.
15.3 Councillors and members of a delegated committee are entitled to a car
parking permit. Parking of a councillor vehicle or member of a delegated
committee vehicle should be in accordance with the Road Safety Road Rules
and any relevant Council Policy.
15.3.1. The permit does not allow vehicles to park in red sign or designated
areas such as:
-

City of Boroondara

loading zones
bus zones
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-

clearways
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15.4 If, despite the relevant Council Policy, a councillor or member of a delegated
committee receives a parking infringement notice for leaving a vehicle standing
for longer than is permitted or leaving a vehicle standing in a residential permit
parking area without a permit or leaving a vehicle standing in a residential
permit parking area with a permit incorrectly displayed, and that councillor was
engaged on council business or performing the functions of a councillor at the
time of the alleged infringement, the councillor may apply for an internal review
of the parking infringement notice.
The application must describe the Council business engaged in or the functions
of the Councillor or member of a delegated committee being performed.
The parking infringement notice will then be reviewed by Director City Planning
or delegate with a view to deciding whether it should be withdrawn.
15.5 Each councillor and member of a delegated committee will be supplied with
personalised business cards.
15.6 Each councillor and their partner/spouse and member of a delegated
committee and their partner/spouse will be provided with a name badge for use
while on Council business.
15.7 Where Council meetings, functions or events are held at times that extend
through normal meal times, Council will provide suitable meals for councillors
and members of delegated committees.
15.8 Councillors and members of a delegated committee are entitled to a security
card enabling appropriate business access to the public areas of Council
offices, designated meeting rooms and the Governance office.
15.9 Councillors are entitled to 24 hour access to the Council Chamber, Councillors
Room and Mayors office (as appropriate).
15.10 Council will provide councillors and members of a delegated committee with
access to the Media Monitors Service and subscription copies of key local
government industry publications.
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16 Mayoral vehicle
16.1 The Mayor shall have access to a fully maintained vehicle (including servicing,
fuel and insurance).
16.2 The make and model of the Mayoral vehicle shall be in accordance with
Council policy.
16.3 The vehicle shall be available for use by the Mayor in the discharge of their
duties as the Mayor and a councillor, and for reasonable private use during the
Mayoral term.

17 Access to office / meeting spaces
17.1 A suitably equipped Mayoral Office shall be provided within the Council offices.
17.2 A Councillors’ Room shall be provided for use by councillors within the Council
offices, suitably equipped for computer access, office work, photocopying,
reading, research, and meetings.
17.3 The space and equipment provided for the Mayoral Office and Councillors’
Room provided for in the clauses above shall be at the discretion of the Chief
Executive Officer.
17.4 Subject to availability, other Council meeting/function rooms owned and
controlled by Council may be booked by councillors and members of a
delegated committee for use free of charge for meetings and other functions,
provided the councillor or the member of the delegated committee is in
attendance and the use is necessary or appropriate for performing the duties of
a councillor or member of a delegated committee in the conduct of Council
business.

18 Administrative support for the Mayor and Councillors
18.1 The Chief Executive Officer shall provide an appropriate level of secretarial /
administrative support for the Mayor and councillors.
18.2 The level of secretarial/administrative support shall be determined by the Chief
Executive Officer in consultation with the Mayor.
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19 Councillor websites
19.1 Each Councillor will be provided with a page on Council’s website the content
of which may include a photo, contact details, ward map, personal statements,
hobbies and interests, councillor assignments, academic qualifications and
professional memberships.

19.2 Additional information may be included on the councillor's webpage at the
councillor's request, subject to the content being approved for publication by
the Chief Executive Officer.

20 Ward meetings
20.1 An annual budget provision will be made, subject to annual review as part of
the Council budget approval process, for the reasonable costs of venue hire
and refreshments associated with ward meetings. Organisational support and
participation in Ward Meetings will be in accordance with Council Policy.

21 Insurance policies
21.1 Councillors and members of a delegated committees are covered under the
following Council insurance policies while discharging, in good faith, the duties
of civic office including attendance at meetings of external bodies as Council
representatives:
o Public liability;
o Professional indemnity;
o Councillors and Officers liability; and
o Personal Accident (accompanying partners are also covered).
21.2 The Council will pay the insurance policy excess in respect of any claim made
against a councillor or a member of a delegated committee arising from council
business where any claim is accepted by Council's insurers, whether defended
or not.
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22 Other expenditure not specified
22.1 Any expenditure not specified in this policy as expenditure for which a
councillor or member of a delegated committee is entitled to be reimbursed or
paid by Council shall be the responsibility of the councillor or member of a
delegated committee, except where Council resolves that a claim is reasonable
bona fide expenditure.
22.2 Subject to a resolution of Council, a councillor or member of a delegated
committee may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in circumstances not
provided for elsewhere in the Policy.

23 Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors allowances
23.1 A Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors are entitled to receive from Council an
allowance as a Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillor in accordance with a
Determination of the Victorian Independent Remuneration Tribunal as
prescribed by the Act.
23.2 Mayor and councillor allowances will be paid in advance on a monthly basis
and paid as at the date of the Council meeting in which the allowance is set or
as advised by the Victorian Independent Remuneration Tribunal.
23.3 Mayoral and councillor allowances are taxable income and councillors should
put in place their own processes for documenting claimable expenses. Any
personal taxation implications from the receipt of allowances are the
responsibility of individual councillors.

24 Members of the Audit and Risk Committee
24.1 Members of Council’s Audit and Risk Committee are not covered by this Policy.

25 Submission of claims for reimbursement
25.1 Form of claims
25.1.1. Claims are to be submitted on the prescribed form to the Manager
Governance.
25.1.2. Claims should be accompanied by original receipts / tax invoices for
any expenses claimed which clearly identify the name of the payee
and ABN where applicable.
25.1.3. If receipts cannot be produced, councillors and members of a
delegated committee may be required to provide a statutory
declaration.
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25.1.4. Claims must include sufficient detail to demonstrate, in accordance
with the Act, the expense for which reimbursement is claimed is a
reasonable bona fide out-of-pocket expense incurred while performing
the duties of a Councillor or a member of a delegated committee.
25.2 Timeframe for submission of claims
25.2.1. Councillors and members of a delegated committee are required to
submit claims in a timely manner to ensure transparency and timely
accountability.
25.2.2. Claims for reimbursement of expenses in the September, December
and March quarters must be submitted by the close of business of the
following month.
25.2.3. Claims for reimbursement of expenses in the June quarter must be
submitted within 14 working days of the end of financial year.
25.2.4. Claims for reimbursement which are not in accordance with clause
25.2.2 will not be processed excepted where Council resolves to
accept the claim.
25.2.5. Claims for reimbursement which are not in accordance with clause
25.2.3 will not be processed.
25.3 Assessment of claims
25.3.1. The Manager Governance will process all claims.
25.3.2. If the Manager Governance has a question about a claim, they will, in
the first instance, discuss this matter with the relevant councillor or
member of a delegated committee.
25.3.3. If required, the Manager Governance will seek guidance / intervention
from the Chief Executive Officer.
25.3.4. If required, the Chief Executive officer will refer claims to a Council
meeting for determination.
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25.4 Councillor or member of a delegated committee donations
25.4.1. Any donations made by a councillor or member of a delegated
committee will be made on their own behalf and not on behalf of
Council, except in accordance with a prior resolution of Council.
25.4.2. Councillor or member of a delegated committee donations not in
accordance with a prior resolution of Council will not be reimbursed by
Council.

26 Reporting of Councillor and member of a delegated committee
reimbursements
26.1 Cost of councillor and member of a delegated committee support and
resources are to be reported to the Audit and Risk Committee and the
community.
26.1.1.

In accordance with section 40 of the Act details of all reimbursements
made to councillors and members of a delegated committee will be
reported to the Audit and Risk Committee. This will occur on a
quarterly basis.

26.1.2.

In the interests of accountability and transparency, all expenses or
costs paid by Council or reimbursed to councillors and members of a
delegated committee will be appropriately reported to Council and the
community in summary form via the Quarterly Performance Report.

27 Mayoral and Councillor gifts
27.1 At the end of every mayoral term, the outgoing Mayor will receive from Council
a letter under seal in recognition of their service as Mayor. In addition the
outgoing Mayor will receive a scrapbook that includes various highlights and
achievements undertaken throughout their mayoral term.
27.2 At the end of every mayoral term, the outgoing Chairperson of the Delegated
Committees of Council will receive from Council a letter under seal in
recognition of their service as Chairperson.
27.2.1. Subject to clause 27.3 the outgoing Mayor shall receive a gift to a
maximum value of $706, indexed to CPI; and
27.2.2. The outgoing Mayor must decide upon their gift on or before 1 June of
the following year.

City of Boroondara

Attachment Page 24 of 27

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

27.3 If the outgoing Mayor does not determine upon a gift on or before 1 June they
forfeit the privilege that has been afforded to them, unless they are re-elected
for a consecutive term and choose to defer receipt of their gift until the
completion of their consecutive term(s).
27.4 At the end of their electoral term, outgoing councillors will receive a plaque in
recognition of their service as councillor.
27.5 The outgoing Mayor and councillors must declare these gifts in accordance
with the Councillor Gift Policy.

28 External member of a delegated committee gifts
28.1 At the end of their appointed term, an outgoing external member of a delegated
committee will receive an appropriate gift as determined by the Mayor in
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer to a maximum value of $100,
indexed to CPI.

29 References
29.1 Related documents
Council policies:
o

Governance Rules

o

Public Transparency Policy

o

Councillor Code of Conduct

o

Councillor Gift Policy

Legislation:
o

Carers Recognition Act 2012

o

Local Government Act 2020

o

Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006

30 Definitions
“Carer in a care relationship” means within the meaning of section 4 of the Carers
Recognition Act 2012.
“Delegated Committee” means a delegated committee established in accordance
with Section 63 of the Local Government Act 2020.
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“Duties of a Councillor” means duties performed by a councillor that are necessary
or appropriate for the purposes of achieving the objectives of Council having regard
to any relevant Act, regulations, Ministerial guidelines or Council policies.
“Election period” means the period that:
(a) Starts at the time that nominations close on nomination day; and
(b) Ends at 6pm on election day.
That is 22 September 2020 through to 6pm on 24 October 2020.
“Expenses” includes:
Expenses initially incurred by a councillor or a member of a delegated
committee for which a claim is subsequently made for reimbursement; and
Expenses incurred by Council for or on behalf of a councillor or a member of a
delegated committee.
“Member of a delegated committee” means a member of a delegated committee
who is not a councillor.
“Professional Development” means the process of improving and increasing the
capabilities, knowledge and skills of councillors and members of a delegated
committee through access to education and training opportunities through outside
organisations or in the workplace.
“The Act” means the Local Government Act 2020.

Version History:
Councillor Professional Development & Representation Policy Adopted by Council on 26 March 2007
Councillor Expenses and Entitlement Policy
Adopted by Council on 25 August 2008
Councillor Support and Resources Policy
Adopted by Council on 23 November 2009
Councillor Support and Resources Policy
Adopted by Council on 24 October 2011
Councillor Support and Resources Policy
Adopted by Council on 25 March 2013
Councillor Support and Resource Policy
Adopted by Council on 28 May 2018
Councillor Support and Resources Policy
Adopted by Council on 22 October 2018
Councillor Support and Resources Policy
Adopted by Council on 26 August 2019
Councillor & Member of a delegated committee expenses Policy Adopted by Council on 24 August
2020
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ATTACHMENT 1
Suggested Training Options
Councillors and members of a delegated committee may select their own
professional development training programs. The following is for illustrative
purposes:

Year One

MAV new Councillors Course
Media Training
Meeting Procedure
Financial Management and Budgets
Team Building
Governance Training eg Australian Institute Company
Directors Course

Year Two

Chairing of Meetings
Building Effective Teams
City of Boroondara Learning and Development Programs
(as required)
MAV Councillor Development Programs

Year Three

Media Training - refresher course
MAV Councillor Development Programs
Australian Institute of Company Directors, additional
courses or specific workshops as relevant
City of Boroondara Learning and Development Programs
(as required)

Year Four

Australian Institute of Company Directors, additional
courses or specific workshops as relevant
City of Boroondara Learning and Development Programs
(as required)
MAV Councillor Development Programs.
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COMMON SEAL AND CONDUCT AT MEETINGS
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1 September 2020
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PART A - INTRODUCTION
1.

Title
This Local Law will be known as the Boroondara City Council, "Common Seal and
Conduct at Meetings Local Law".

2.

Purpose of this Local Law
• The purpose of this Local Law is to:

3.

2.1

revoke Council’s Meeting Procedure Local Law 2017;

2.2

regulate the use of the common seal;

2.3

prohibit unauthorised use of the common seal or any device resembling the
common seal; and

2.4

create offences relating to conduct at meetings.

Authorising Provision
This Local Law is made under section 14 of the Local Government Act 2020 and
section 111(1) of the Local Government Act 1989.

4.

Commencement and End

Dates

This Local Law:

5.

4.1

commences on 1 September 2020 and operates throughout the municipal
district, and

4.2

ends on the 10th anniversary of the day on which it commenced operation,
unless revoked earlier by Council.

Revocation of MeetingProcedure Local Law
On the commencement of this Local Law, Council’s Meeting Procedure Local Law
2017 is revoked.

6.

Definitions and Notes
6.1

In this Local Law:
"Act' means the Local Government Act 2020;
"Chairperson" means the Chairperson of a meeting and includes an acting,
a temporary and a substitute Chairperson',
"Chief Executive Officef means the Chief Executive Officer of Councilor the
person acting in or performing the position Chief Executive Officer,
"common seaf means the common seal of Council',
"Councif means Boroondara City Council;

Common Seal and Conduct at Meetings Local Law
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4
“Council OfficerJ' means a person appointed by the Chief Executive Officer
as a member of Council staff, for the duration of their appointment;
“Delegated Committee" means a delegated committee established under
section 63 of the Act;
“DirectorJ’ means a Council Officer appointed by the Chief Executive Officer
to Council’s Executive Leadership Team, for the duration of that
appointment;
''Mayor1' means the Mayor of Council;
“meeting" means a properly constituted meeting of Council or a Delegated
Committee;
"municipal district" means the municipal district of Council;
"offence" means an act or default contrary to this Local Law; and
"penalty units" mean penalty units has the same meaning as in section 110
of the Sentencing Act 1991.
6.2

Introductions to Parts, headings and notes are explanatory notes and do not
form part of this Local Law. They are provided to assist understanding.

PART C - COUNCIL’S COMMON SEAL
Introduction: The common seal is a device which formally and solemnly records the collective
will of Council. The provisions in this Part are designed to protect the integrity of the common
seal, and describe when it may be affixed to a document.
7.

Council’s Common Seal
7.1

The Chief Executive Officer must ensure the security of the common seal at
all times.

7.2

The common seal may only be used with the authority of Council or the Chief
Executive Officer exercising a relevant delegation.

7.3

Unless Council resolves otherwise, the affixing of the common seal to any
document must be attested to by the signatures of both:

7.4

7.3.1

the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer,

7.3.2

in the absence of the Mayor, by one Councillor and the Chief
Executive Officer, or

7.3.3

where the document relates to a matter in which the Chief Executive
Officer has an interest, by one Councillor and a Director.

A person must not use the common seal or any device resembling the
common seal without the authority of Council or the Chief Executive Officer.

Penalty: 5 penalty units
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PART D - OFFENCES
Introduction: To maintain order at meetings and ensure the efficient and effective conduct of
Council business, Council requires recourse to enforcement mechanisms. The provisions in
this Part create offences as one enforcement mechanism.
8.

Offences
It is an offence for:
8.1

a person, other than the Chief Executive Officer (or other Council Officer
authorised by the Chief Executive Officer) to operate photographic, audio or
video recording equipment or any other recording device at any meeting
without first obtaining the consent of the Chairperson. Such consent may at
any time during the course of such meeting be revoked by the Chairperson
or resolution of Council,

Penalty: 5 penalty units.
8.2

a Councillor to not withdraw an expression considered by the Chairperson
to be offensive or disorderly, and apologise when called on twice by the
Chairperson to do so;

Penalty: 2 penalty units
8.3

any person, not being a Councillor, who is guilty of any improper or
disorderly conduct, to not leave the Chamber when requested by the
Chairperson to do so;

Penalty: 5 penalty units
8.4

any person to fail to comply with a direction of the Chairperson in relation to
the conduct of the meeting and the maintenance of order;

Penalty: 2 penalty units
8.5

a Councillor to refuse to leave the Chamber on suspension.

Penalty: 5 penalty units

The Common Seal of the City of
Boroondara was hereunto affixed in the
presence of:

\

S.*r.

.T.?r..CT>.
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Boroondara City Council

Instrument of Delegation
to
Members of Council Staff














Domestic Animals Act 1994
Environment Protection Act 1970
Food Act 1984
Heritage Act 2017
Local Government Act 1989
Planning & Environment Act 1987
Residential Tenancies Act 1997
Road Management Act 2004
Planning and Environment Regulations 2015
Planning and Environment (Fees) Regulations 2016
Residential Tenancies (Caravan Parks and Moveable Dwellings Registration
and Standards) Regulations 2020
Road Management (General) Regulations 2016
Road Management (Works and Infrastructure) Regulations 2015
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Instrument of Delegation
In exercise of the powers conferred by the legislation referred to in the attached Schedule, the Council:

1.

delegates each duty and/or function and/or power described in column 1 of the Schedule
(and summarised in column 2 of the Schedule) to the member of Council staff holding, acting
in or performing the duties of the office or position described opposite each such duty and/or
function and/or power in column 3 of the Schedule;

2.

record that references in the Schedule are as follows:

All Asset Management
Staff
All Planning Officers

means

All staff in the Asset and Capital Planning Department

means

All Road and Path
Maintenance Staff
All Traffic and
Transport Staff
CCO
CEO
DCS
DCT
DPS
DUL
AOHS
CAP&P
CBA
CBS
CD
CFO
CP
CPH
CRPS
CSP
CT
CTM
EHO
EMPCD
MACP
MBldS
MBS
MCP
MCPS
MCS
MLEPAA

means

All staff in the Strategic and Statutory Planning
Department
All staff in the Road and Path Maintenance Team of the
Waste and Infrastructure Department
All staff in the Traffic and Transport Department

means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means

MSSP
MT&T
MWI
PAC
PIO
PP

means
means
means
means
means
means

means

Chief Customer Officer
Chief Executive Officer
Director Community Support
Director Customer and Transformation
Director Places & Spaces
Director Urban Living
Authorised Officer Health Services
Coordinator Asset Protection & Permits
Coordinator Building Approvals
Coordinator Building Services
Coordinator Drainage
Chief Financial Officer
Counter Planner or Planning Liaison Officer
Coordinator Public Health
Coordinator Revenue and Property Services
Coordinator Statutory Planning
Coordinator Traffic
Coordinator Transport Management
Environment Health Officer
Executive Manager People, Culture and Development
Manager Asset and Capital Planning
Manager Building Services
Municipal Building Surveyor
Manager Capital Projects
Manager Commercial and Property Services
Manager Civic Services
Manager Local Economies, Placemaking and Active
Ageing
Manager Strategic and Statutory Planning
Manager Traffic & Transport
Manager Waste and Infrastructure
Statutory Planning Appeals Coordinator
Planning Investigations Officer
Principal Planner
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PSO

means

SBAO
SCTA
SO
SP
SPP
SSP
SSTRP
STP
TLC
TLHS
TLPP
TLSP
Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers

means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means
means

Planning Support Officer, Para Planner, Public Notice
Officer, Statutory Planning Administrative Officer, Team
Leader Para Planning
Senior Building Administration Officer
Senior Coordinator Transport Advocacy
Subdivision Officer
Statutory Planner or Planning Officer
Senior Project Planner
Senior Statutory Planner
Senior Strategic Planner
Strategic Planner
Technical Liaison Coordinator (R & C Building)
Team Leader Health Services
Team Leader Para Planning
Team Leader Strategic Planning
MSSP, CSP, PAC, PP, SSP, SP, SO and CP

means

MSSP, CSP, PAC and PP

declares that:
3.1

this Instrument of Delegation is authorised by a resolution of Council passed on
24 August 2020 and

3.2

the delegation:

3.3

3.2.1

comes into force immediately after the common seal of Council is affixed
to this Instrument of Delegation;

3.2.2

remains in force until varied or revoked;

3.2.3

is subject to any conditions and limitations set out in sub-paragraph 3.3,
and the Schedule; and

3.2.4

must be exercised in accordance with any guidelines or policies which
Council from time to time adopts; and

the delegate must not determine the issue, take the action or do the act or thing:
3.3.1

if the issue, action, act or thing is an issue, action or thing which Council
has previously designated as an issue, action, act or thing which must be
the subject of a Resolution of Council;

3.3.2

if the determining of the issue, taking of the action or doing of the act or
thing would or would be likely to involve a decision which is inconsistent
with a
(a)

policy; or

(b)

strategy

adopted by Council; 3.3.3

if the determining of the issue, the taking of the action or the doing of the
act or thing cannot be the subject of a lawful delegation; or
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3.3.4

3.4

the determining of the issue, the taking of the action or the doing of the
act or thing is already the subject of an exclusive delegation to another
member of Council staff or delegated committee.

As a principle of delegation, no delegation has been assigned to a member of
Council staff where that delegation has not also been assigned to the Chief
Executive Officer, the relevant Director(s) and their line manager, subject to any
other specific requirements or statutory provisions to the contrary.

The Common Seal of the Boroondara
City Council was hereunto affixed
in the presence of:

................................................... Chief Executive Officer

................................................... Mayor

................................................... Date
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DOMESTIC ANIMALS ACT 1994
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

s 41A(1)

Power to declare a dog to be a menacing dog

CEO, DUL, MCS,
DPS, DCS DCT

Council may delegate this power to a Council
authorised officer.
Officers will ensure Councillors, particularly the Ward
Councillor, are kept informed about any exercise of
this power. It should be noted that Council's power to
declare a dog to be a menacing or dangerous dog is
subject to appeal rights to the Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal.
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ACT 1970
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 53M(3)

Power to require further information

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

s 53M(4)

Duty to advise applicant that application is not to be dealt with

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS EHO &
AOHS

s 53M(5)

Duty to approve plans, issue permit or refuse permit

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Refusal must be ratified by Council or it is of no effect

s 53M(6)

Power to refuse to issue septic tank permit

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Refusal must be ratified by Council or it is of no effect

s 53M(7)

Duty to refuse to issue a permit in circumstances in (a)-(c)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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FOOD ACT 1984
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 19(2)(a)

Power to direct by written order that the food premises be put
into a clean and sanitary condition

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

If s 19(1) applies

s 19(2)(b)

Power to direct by written order that specified steps be taken
to ensure that food prepared, sold or handled is safe and
suitable

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

If s 19(1) applies

s 19(3)

Power to direct by written order that the food premises not be
kept or used for the sale, or handling for sale, of any food, or
for the preparation of any food, or for any other specified
purpose, or for the use of any specified equipment or a
specified process

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

If s 19(1) applies

s 19(4)(a)

Power to direct that an order made under s 19(3)(a) or (b), (i)
be affixed to a conspicuous part of the premises, and (ii)
inform the public by notice in a published newspaper or
otherwise

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

If s 19(1) applies

s 19(6)(a)

Duty to revoke any order under s 19 if satisfied that an order
has been complied with

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

If s 19(1) applies

s 19(6)(b)

Duty to give written notice of revocation under s 19(6)(a) if
satisfied that an order has been complied with

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

If s 19(1) applies

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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FOOD ACT 1984
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 19AA(2)

Power to direct, by written order, that a person must take any
of the actions described in (a)-(c)

MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 19AA(4)(c)

Power to direct, in an order made under s19AA(2) or a
subsequent written order, that a person must ensure that any
food or class of food is not removed from the premises

MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Note: the power to direct the matters under s19AA(4)(a)
and (b) not capable of delegation and so such directions
must be made by a Council resolution

s 19AA(7)

Duty to revoke order issued under s.19AA and give written
notice of revocation, if satisfied that that order has been
complied with

MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 19CB(4)(b)

Power to request copy of records

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 19E(1)(d)

Power to request a copy of the food safety program

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 19GB

Power to request proprietor to provide written details of the
name, qualification or experience of the current food safety
supervisor

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 19M(4)(a)
& (5)

Power to conduct a food safety audit and take actions where
deficiencies are identified

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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FOOD ACT 1984
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 19NA(1)

Power to request food safety audit reports

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

s 19U(3)

Power to waive and vary the costs of a food safety audit if
there are special circumstances

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

s 19UA

Power to charge fees for conducting a food safety
assessment or inspection

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Except for an assessment required by a declaration
under s 19C or an inspection under ss 38B(1)(c) or 39.

s 19W

Power to direct a proprietor of a food premises to comply with
any requirement under Part IIIB

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 19W(3)(a)

Power to direct a proprietor of a food premises to have staff at
the premises undertake training or instruction

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 19W(3)(b)

Power to direct a proprietor of a food premises to have details
of any staff training incorporated into the minimum records
required to be kept or food safety program of the premises

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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FOOD ACT 1984
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Power to register, renew or transfer registration

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority
refusal to grant/renew/transfer registration must be
ratified by Council or the CEO (see s 58A(2))

s 38AA(5)

Power to (a) request further information; or (b) advise the
proprietor that the premises must be registered if the
premises are not exempt

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38AB(4)

Power to fix a fee for the receipt of a notification under s
38AA in accordance with a declaration under s 38AB(1)

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38A(4)

Power to request a copy of a completed food safety program
template

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38B(1)(a)

Duty to assess the application and determine which class of
food premises under s 19C the food premises belongs

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38B(1)(b)

Duty to ensure proprietor has complied with requirements of s
38A

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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FOOD ACT 1984
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 38B(2)

Duty to be satisfied of the matters in s 38B(2)(a)-(b)

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38D(1)

Duty to ensure compliance with the applicable provisions of
s38C and inspect the premises if required by s 39

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38D(2)

Duty to be satisfied of the matters in s 38D(2)(a)-(d)

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38D(3)

Power to request copies of any audit reports

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38E(2)

Power to register the food premises on a conditional basis

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority;

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 38E(4)

Duty to register the food premises when conditions are
satisfied

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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FOOD ACT 1984
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 38F(3)(b)

Power to require proprietor to comply with requirements of
this Act

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 39A

Power to register, renew or transfer food premises despite
minor defects

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 40(2)

Power to incorporate the certificate of registration in one
document with any certificate of registration under Part 6 of
the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

s 40C(2)

Power to grant or renew the registration of food premises for
a period of less than 1 year

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 40D(1)

Power to suspend or revoke the registration of food premises

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 43F(6)

Duty to be satisfied that registration requirements under
Division 3 have been met prior to registering, transferring or
renewing registration of a component of a food business

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority
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FOOD ACT 1984
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 43F(7)

Power to register the components of the food business that
meet requirements in Division 3 and power to refuse to
register the components that do not meet the requirements

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

s 46(5)

Power to institute proceedings against another person where
the offence was due to an act or default by that other person
and where the first person charged could successfully defend
a prosecution, without proceedings first being instituted
against the person first charged

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Where Council is the registration authority

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

August 2020
Page 14 of 108
Attachment Page 14 of 108

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

HERITAGE ACT 2017
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 116

Power to sub-delegate Executive Director's functions, duties
or powers

CEO, DUL, DPS

Must first obtain Executive Director's written consent.

Council can only sub-delegate if the Instrument of
Delegation from the Executive Director authorises subdelegation

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1989
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 181H

Power to enter into an environmental upgrade agreement on
behalf of Council and declare and levy an environmental
upgrade charge

s 185L(4)

Power to declare and levy a cladding rectification charge

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 4B

Power to prepare an
amendment to the Victorian
Planning Provisions

CEO, DUL, MSSP, STP, TLSP,
SPP, SSTRP

s 4G

Function of receiving
prescribed documents and a
copy of the Victorian Planning
Provisions from the Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 4H

Duty to make amendment to
Victorian Planning Provisions
available

CEO, DUL MSSP, SSTRP, TLSP,
SPP, STP

s 4I

Duty to keep Victorian
Planning Provisions and other
documents available for
inspection

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 8A(2)

Power to prepare amendment
to the planning scheme where
the Minister has given consent
under s.8A

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 8A(3)

Power to apply to Minister to
prepare an amendment to the
planning scheme

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP,
SPP,SSTRP, STP

s 8A(5)

Function of receiving notice of
the Minister's decision

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP,
SPP,SSTRP, STP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 8A(7)

Power to prepare the
amendment specified in the
application without the
Minister's authorisation if no
response received after 10
business days

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 8B(2)

Power to apply to the Minister
for authorisation to prepare an
amendment to the planning
scheme of an adjoining
municipal district

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 12(3)

Power to carry out studies and
do things to ensure proper use
of land and consult with other
persons to ensure coordination of planning scheme
with these persons

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 12A (1)

Duty to prepare a municipal
strategic statement (including
power to prepare a municipal
strategic statement under s 19
of the Planning and
Environment (Planning
Schemes) Act 1996)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 12B(1)

Duty to review planning
scheme

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

In accordance with
Council resolution

August 2020
Page 18 of 108

Attachment Page 18 of 108

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 12B(2)

duty to review planning
scheme at direction of Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP , TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 12B(5)

duty to report findings of
review of planning scheme to
Minister without delay

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, , SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 14

duties of a Responsible
Authority as set out in s 14(a)
to (d)

CEO, DUL, All Planning Officers

s 17(1)

Duty of giving copy of
amendment to the planning
scheme

CEO, DUL, All Planning Officers

s 17(2)

Duty of giving copy s 173
agreement

CEO, DUL, All Planning Officers

s 17(3)

Duty of giving copy of
amendment, explanatory
report and relevant documents
to the Minister at least 10
business days

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 18

Duty to make amendment etc.
available

CEO, DUL, All Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 19

Power to give notice, to decide
not to give notice, to publish
notice of amendment to a
planning scheme and to
exercise any other power
under s 19 to a planning
scheme

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 19

Function of receiving notice of
preparation of an amendment
to a planning scheme

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Where Council is not the planning authority and the
amendment affects land within Council's municipal
district; or
Where the amendment will amend the planning
scheme to designate Council as an acquiring
authority.

s 20(1)

Power to apply to Minister for
exemption from the
requirements of s 19

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 21(2)

Duty to make submissions
available

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SSTRP,
SPP, STP

s 21A(4)

Duty to publish notice

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SSTRP,
SPP, STP

s 22

Duty to consider all
submissions

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SSTRP,
SPP, STP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 23(1)(b)

Duty to refer submissions
which request a change to the
amendment to a panel

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 23(2)

Power to refer to a panel
submissions which do not
require a change to the
amendment

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SSTRP,
SPP

s 24

Function to represent Council
and present a submission at a
panel hearing (including a
hearing referred to in s96D)

CEO, DUL, All Planning Officers

s 26(1)

power to make report available
for inspection

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 26(2)

duty to keep report of panel
available for inspection

CEO, DUL, All Planning Officers

s 27(2)

power to apply for exemption if
panel's report not received

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 28

duty to notify the Minister if
abandoning an amendment

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 30(4)(a)

duty to say if amendment has
lapsed

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 30(4)(b)

Duty to provide information in
writing upon request

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 31(1)

Duty to submit adopted
amendment to Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
SPP,SSTRP, STP

s 32(2)

Duty to give more notice if
required

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 33(1)

Duty to give more notice of
changes to an amendment

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 36(2)

Duty to give notice of approval
of amendment

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 38(5)

Duty to give notice of
revocation of an amendment

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 39

Function of being a party to a
proceeding commenced under
s 39 and duty to comply with
determination by VCAT

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 40(1)

Function of lodging copy of
approved amendment

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 41

Duty to make approved
amendment available

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SSTRP,
STP, SPP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 42

Duty to make copy of planning
scheme available

CEO, DUL, All Planning Officers

s 46AAA

Duty to prepare an
amendment to a planning
scheme that relates to Yarra
River land that is not
inconsistent with anything in a
Yarra Strategic Plan which is
expressed to be binding on the
responsible public entity

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP

s 46AW

Function of being consulted by
the Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is a responsible public entity

s 46AX

Function of receiving a draft
Statement of Planning Policy
and written direction in relation
to the endorsement of the draft
Statement of Planning Policy

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is a responsible public entity

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Where Council is a responsible public entity and is a
planning authority
Note: this provision is not yet in force, and will
commence on the day on which the initial Yarra
Strategic Plan comes into operation.

Power to endorse the draft
Statement of Planning Policy
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46AZC(2)

Duty not to prepare an
amendment to a declared area
planning scheme that is
inconsistent with a Statement
of Planning Policy for the
declared area that is
expressed to be binding on the
responsible public entity

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP

Where Council is a responsible public entity

s 46AZK

Duty not to act inconsistently
with any provision of the
Statement of Planning Policy
that is expressed to be binding
on the public entity when
performing a function or duty
or exercising a power in
relation to the declared area

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is a responsible public entity

s
46GI(2)(b)(i)

Power to agree to a lower rate
of standard levy for a class of
development of a particular
type of land than the rate
specified in a Minister's
direction

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the planning authority, the
municipal Council of the municipal district in which
the land is located and/or the development agency

s 46GJ(1)

Function of receiving written
directions from the Minister in
relation to the preparation and
content of infrastructure
contributions plans

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46GK

Duty to comply with a
Minister’s direction that applies
to Council as the planning
authority

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

s 46GN(1)

Duty to arrange for estimates
of values of inner public
purpose land

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, MCPS, CRPS

s 46GO(1)

Duty to give notice to owners
of certain inner public purpose
land

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

s 46GP

Function of receiving a notice
under s 46GO

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

s 46GQ

Function of receiving a
submission from an affected
owner who objects to the
estimated value per hectare
(or other appropriate unit of
measurement) of the inner
public purpose land

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

s 46GR(1)

Duty to consider every
submission that is made by the
closing date for submissions
included in the notice under s
46GO

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46GR(2)

Power to consider a late
submission
Duty to consider a late
submission if directed to do so
by the Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

s 46GS(1)

Power to accept or reject the
estimate of the value of the
inner public purpose land in a
submission made under s
46GQ

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, MCPS, CRPS

s 46GS(2)

Duty, if Council rejects the
estimate of the value of the
inner public purpose land in
the submission, to refer the
matter to the valuer-general,
and notify the affected owner
of the rejection and that the
matter has been referred to the
valuer-general

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, MCPS, CRPS

s 46GT(2)

Duty to pay half of the fee fixed
by the valuer-general for
arranging and attending the
conference

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, MCPS, CRPS

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46GT(4)

Function of receiving, from the
valuer-general, written
confirmation of the agreement
between the planning
authority's valuer and the
affected owner's valuer as to
the estimated value of the
inner public purpose land

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, MCPS, CRPS

s 46GT(6)

Function of receiving, from the
valuer-general, written notice
of a determination under s
46GT(5)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, MCPS, CRPS

s 46GU

Duty not to adopt an
amendment under s.29 to an
infrastructure contributions
plan that specifies a land credit
amount or a land equalisation
amount that relates to a parcel
of land in the ICP plan area of
the plan unless the criteria in s
46GU(1)(a) and (b) are met

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46GV(3)

Function of receiving the
monetary component and any
land equalisation amount of
the infrastructure contribution

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, MCPS, CRPS

Where Council is the collecting agency

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Power to specify the manner in
which the payment is to be
made
s 46GV(3)(b)

Power to enter into an
agreement with the applicant

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, and MCS

Where Council is the collecting agency

s 46GV(4)(a)

Function of receiving the inner
public purpose land in
accordance with s 46GV(5)
and (6)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SO and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the development agency

s 46GV(4)(b)

Function of receiving the inner
public purpose land in
accordance with s.46GV(5)
and (6)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SO and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency

s 46GV(7)

Duty to impose the
requirements set out in s
46GV(3) and (4) as conditions
on the permit applied for by the
applicant to develop the land in
the ICP plan area

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46GV(9)

Power to require the payment
of a monetary component or
the provision of the land
component of an infrastructure
contribution to be secured to
Council’s satisfaction

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency

s 6GX(1)

Power to accept the works,
services or facilities in part or
full satisfaction of the monetary
component of an infrastructure
contribution payable

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency

s 46GX(2)

Duty, before accepting the
provision of works, services or
facilities by an applicant under
s.46GX(1), to obtain the
agreement of the development
agency or agencies specified
in the approved infrastructure
contributions plan

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency

s 46GY(1)

Duty to keep proper and
separate accounts and records

All Planning Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency

s 46GY(2)

Duty to keep the accounts and
records in accordance with the
Local Government Act 2020

All Planning Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46GZ(2)(a)

Duty to forward any part of the
monetary component that is
imposed for plan preparation
costs to the planning authority
that incurred those costs

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

Function of receiving the
monetary component

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, CFO,
CCO and Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers

Where the Council is the planning authority

Duty to forward any part of the
monetary component that is
imposed for the provision of
works, services or facilities to
the development agency that
is specified in the plan as
responsible for those works,
services or facilities

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

Function of receiving the
monetary component

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, CFO,
CCO and Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers

Where Council is the development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZ(2)(a)

s 46GZ(2)(b)

s 46GZ(2)(b)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
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This duty does not apply where Council is that
planning authority

This duty does not apply where Council is also the
collecting agency

This provision does not apply where Council is also
the relevant development agency

This provision does not apply where Council is also
the collecting agency
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46GZ(4)

Duty to use any land
equalisation amounts to pay
land credit amounts under s
46GZ(7), except any part of
those amounts that are to be
forwarded to a development
agency under s 46GZ(5)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZ(5)

Duty to forward any part of a
land equalisation amount
required for the acquisition of
outer public purpose land by a
development agency specified
in the approved infrastructure
contributions plan to that
development agency

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, CFO,
CCO and Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

Function of receiving any part
of a land equalisation amount
required for the acquisition of
outer public purpose land

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the development agency specified
in the approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZ(5)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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the relevant development agency
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46GZ(7)

Duty to pay to each person
who must provide an
infrastructure contribution
under the approved
infrastructure contributions
plan any land credit amount to
which the person is entitled
under s.46GW

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, CFO,
MCPS, CRPS and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZ(9)

Duty to transfer the estate in
fee simple in the land to the
development agency specified
in the approved infrastructure
contributions plan as
responsible for the use and
development of that land

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

If any inner public purpose land is vested in Council
under the Subdivision Act 1988 or acquired by
Council before the time it is required to be provided
to Council under s 46GV(4)
Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan
This duty does not apply where Council is also the
development agency

s 46GZ(9)

Function of receiving the fee
simple in the land

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, CFO,
MCPS, CRPS, CCO and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46GZA(1)

Duty to keep proper and
separate accounts and records

All Planning Officers

Where Council is a development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZA(2)

Duty to keep the accounts and
records in accordance with the
Local Government Act 2020

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is a development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZB(3)

Duty to follow the steps set out
in s.46GZB(3)(a) – (c)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is a development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZB(4)

Duty, in accordance with
requirements of the VPA, to
report on the use of the
infrastructure contribution in
the development agency's
annual report and provide
reports on the use of the
infrastructure contribution to
the VPA

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

If the VPA is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

Duty, within 6 months after the
date on which the approved
infrastructure contributions
plan expires, to follow the
steps set out in s 46GZD(2)(a)
and (b)

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZD(2)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46GZD(3)

duty to follow the steps set out
in s 46GZD(3)(a) and (b)

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s
4646GZD(5)

Duty to make payments under
s 46GZD(3) in accordance with
ss 46GZD(5)(a) and
46GZD(5)(b)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZE(2)

Duty to forward the land
equalisation amount back to
the collecting agency within 6
months after the expiry date if
any part of a land equalisation
amount paid or forwarded to a
development agency for
acquiring outer public purpose
land has not been expended
by the development agency to
acquire that land at the date on
which the approved
infrastructure contributions
plan expires

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

Function of receiving the
unexpended land equalisation
amount

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP, CFO,
MCPS, CRPS, SO and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZE(2)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

This duty does not apply where Council is also the
collecting agency

This duty does not apply where Council is also the
development agency
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46GZE(3)

Duty, within 12 months after
the date on which the
approved infrastructure
contributions plan expires, to
follow the steps set out in
s.46GZE(3)(a) and (b)

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZF(2)

Duty, within 12 months after
the date on which the
approved infrastructure
contributions plan expires, to
use the public purpose land for
a public purpose approved by
the Minister or sell the public
purpose land

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP, CFO,
MCPS, CRPS and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Where Council is the development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZF(3)

Duty, if land is sold under s
46GZF(2)(b), to follow the
steps in s 46GZF(3)(a) and (b)

CEO, DUL, MSSP TLSP, CFO,
MCPS, CRPS and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Where Council is the development agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZF(3)

s 46GZF(3)(a) function of
receiving proceeds of sale

CFO, MCPS, CRPS

Where Council is the collection agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan
This provision does not apply where Council is also
the development agency
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46GZF(4)

Duty to divide the proceeds of
the public purpose land among
the current owners of each
parcel of land in the ICP plan
area and pay each current
owner a portion of the
proceeds in accordance with s
46GZF(5)

CFO, MCPS, CRPS

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZF(6)

Duty to make the payments
under s 46GZF(4) in
accordance with s
46GZF(6)(a) and (b)

CFO, MCPS, CRPS

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZH

Power to recover the monetary
component, or any land
equalisation amount of the
land component, payable
under Part 3AB as a debt in
any court of competent
jurisdiction

CFO, MCPS, CRPS

Where Council is the collecting agency under an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

s 46GZI

Duty to prepare and give a
report to the Minister at the
times required by the Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where Council is a collecting agency or development
agency
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s.46GZK

Power to deal with public
purpose land which has vested
in, been acquired by, or
transferred to, Council

MCPS, CRPS

s.46LB(3)

Duty to publish, on Council’s
Internet site, the payable
dwelling amount for a financial
year on or before 1 July of
each financial year for which
the amount is adjusted under s
46LB (2)

CFO, MCPS, CRPS

s 46N(1)

Duty to include condition in
permit regarding payment of
development infrastructure
levy

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 46N(2)(c)

Function of determining time
and manner for receipt of
development contributions levy

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 46N(2)(d)

Power to enter into an
agreement with the applicant
regarding payment of
development infrastructure
levy

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Where Council is a collecting agency or development
agency

August 2020
Page 37 of 108

Attachment Page 37 of 108

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46O(1)(a)
& (2)(a)

Power to ensure that
community infrastructure levy
is paid, or agreement is in
place, prior to issuing building
permit

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 46O(1)(d)
& (2)(d)

Power to enter into agreement
with the applicant regarding
payment of community
infrastructure levy

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 46P(1)

Power to require payment of
amount of levy under s 46N or
s 46O to be satisfactorily
secured

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 46P(2)

Power to accept provision of
land, works, services or
facilities in part or full payment
of levy payable

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 46Q(1)

Duty to keep proper accounts
of levies paid

CEO, DUL, CFO and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46Q(1A)

Duty to forward to
development agency part of
levy imposed for carrying out
works, services, or facilities on
behalf of development agency
or plan preparation costs
incurred by a development
agency

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 46Q(2)

Duty to apply levy only for a
purpose relating to the
provision of plan preparation
costs or the works, services
and facilities in respect of
which the levy was paid etc.

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 46Q(3)

Power to refund any amount of
levy paid if it is satisfied the
development is not to proceed

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

s 46Q(4)(c)

Duty to pay amount to current
owners of land in the area if an
amount of levy has been paid
to a municipal Council as a
development agency for plan
preparation costs incurred by
the Council or for the provision
by the Council of works,
services or facilities in an area
under s.46Q(4)(a)

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Must be done within six months of the end of the
period required by the development contributions
plan and with the consent of, and in the manner
approved by, the Minister

s 46Q(4)(d)

Duty to submit to the Minister
an amendment to the
approved development
contributions plan

CEO, DUL, TLSP, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Must be done in accordance with Part 3

s 46Q(4)(e)

Duty to expend that amount on
other works etc.

CEO, DUL and MSSP

With the consent of, and in the manner approved by,
the Minister

s 46QC

Power to recover any amount
of levy payable under Part 3B

CEO, DUL and MSSP

s 46QD

Duty to prepare report and
give a report to the Minister

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Staff

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 46V(3)

Duty to make a copy of the
approved strategy plan (being
the Melbourne Airport Environs
Strategy Plan) and any
documents lodged with it
available

CEO and DUL

s 46Y

Duty to carry out works in
conformity with the approved
strategy plan

CEO and DUL

s 47

Power to decide that an
application for a planning
permit does not comply with
that Act

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 49(1)

Duty to keep a register of all
applications for permits and
determinations relating to
permits

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

s 49(2)

Duty to make register available
for inspection

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

s 50(4)

Duty to amend application

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 50(5)

Power to refuse to amend
application

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

August 2020
Page 41 of 108

Attachment Page 41 of 108

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 50(6)

Duty to make note of
amendment to application in
register

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 50A(1)

Power to make amendment to
application

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 50A(3)

Power to require applicant to
notify owner and make a
declaration that notice has
been given

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 50A(4)

Duty to note amendment to
application in register

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 51

Duty to make copy of
application available for
inspection

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

s 52(1)(a)

Duty to give notice of the
application to
owners/occupiers of adjoining
allotments unless satisfied that
the grant of permit would not
cause material detriment to
any person

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 52(1)(b)

Duty to give notice of the
application to other municipal
Councils where appropriate

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 52(1)(c)

Duty to give notice of the
application to all persons
required by the planning
scheme

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 52(1)(ca)

Duty to give notice of the
application to owners and
occupiers of land benefited by
a registered restrictive
covenant if it may result in
breach of covenant

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 52(1)(cb)

Duty to give notice of the
application to owners and
occupiers of land benefited by
a registered restrictive
covenant if application is to
remove or vary the covenant

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 52(1)(d)

Duty to give notice of the
application to other persons
who may be detrimentally
affected

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 52(1AA)

Duty to give notice of an
application to remove or vary a
registered restrictive covenant

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 52(3)

Power to give any further
notice of an application where
appropriate

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 53(1)

Power to require the applicant
to give notice under s 52(1) to
persons specified by it

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 53(1A)

Power to require the applicant
to give the notice under s
52(1AA)

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 54(1)

Power to require the applicant
to provide more information

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 54(1A)

Duty to give notice in writing of
information required under s
54(1)

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 54(1B)

Duty to specify the lapse date
for an application

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 54A(3)

Power to decide to extend time
or refuse to extend time to give
required information

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 54A(4)

Duty to give written notice of
decision to extend or refuse to
extend time under s 54A(3)

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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Power to refuse to extend time is limited to CEO,
DUL, MSSP and Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 55(1)

Duty to give copy of
application, together with the
prescribed information to every
referral authority specified in
the planning scheme

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 57(2A)

Power to reject objections
considered made primarily for
commercial advantage for the
objector

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 57(3)

Function of receiving name
and address of persons to
whom notice of decision is to
go

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 57(5)

Duty to make available for
inspection copy of all
objections

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

s 57A(4)

Duty to amend application in
accordance with applicant's
request, subject to s57A(5)

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 57A(5)

Power to refuse to amend
application

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 57A(6)

Duty to note amendments to
application in register

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 57B(1)

Duty to determine whether and
to whom notice should be
given

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 57B(2)

Duty to consider certain
matters in determining whether
notice should be given

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 57C(1)

Duty to give copy of amended
application to referral authority

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 58

Duty to consider every
application for a permit

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 58A

Power to request advice from
the Planning Application
Committee

CEO, DUL and Senior Statutory
Planning Officers

s 60

Duty to consider certain
matters

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 60(1A)

Duty to consider certain
matters

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 60(1B)

Duty to consider number of
objectors in considering
whether use or development
may have significant social
effect

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

s 61(1)(c)

Power to determine permit
application, to decide to refuse
a permit application

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

The power to refuse a permit can only be exercised where the delegate
considers that:
i.
ii.
iii.

The application is contrary to law; or
The application is inconsistent with policy; or
A referral authority has objected to the grant of the permit on any
specified ground; or

The applicant has failed to carry out a direction pursuant to the Planning
Scheme or Act.
Before exercising their delegation, the Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP),
Statutory Planning Appeals Coordinator (PAC) and Principal Planner (PP)
must consult with the Director Urban Living (DUL) and/or the Manager
Strategic and Statutory Planning (MSSP).
Before exercising their delegation, the Senior Statutory Planner (SSP),
Statutory Planner (SP), Subdivision Officer (SO) and Counter Planner or
Planning Liaison Officer (CP) must consult with the Director Urban Living
(DUL), and/or the Manager Strategic and Statutory Planning (MSSP) and/or
the Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP).

The permit must not be inconsistent with a cultural heritage management
plan under the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 61(1)(a)
and (b)

power to determine permit
application, either to decide to
grant a permit, or to decide to
grant a permit with conditions

CEO, DUL, and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES
The following
guidelines apply to
all further
delegations under
section 61(1)(a) and
(b)
Compliance with the
objectives of the
Boroondara Planning
Scheme and adopted
Council Policies.
The permit must not
be inconsistent with
a cultural heritage
management plan
under the Aboriginal
Heritage Act 2006
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and (b)
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power to determine permit
application, either to decide to
grant a permit, or to decide to
grant a permit with conditions

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

The following conditions, limitations and guidelines apply to all further
delegations under section 61(1)(a) and (b)
For the following classes of use or development:





A liquor licence associated with an existing or approved restaurant,
tavern or food and drink premises (café), subject to the hours/days
sought being in accordance with an existing permit for a restaurant,
tavern or food and drink premises, or, the hours/days are not greater
than the standard hours nominated in this Instrument [see also
Boroondara Planning Scheme Clause 52.27 in this Instrument];
Advertising signs;
Subdivision that is generally consistent with a development approval;

the exercise of this power is limited to the following circumstances:
i.

ii.

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific Statutory Planning Officers if there has
been no objections received, or, if there has been between one (1) and
five (5) objections received, inclusive;
CEO, DPC, MSSP and Supervising Statutory Planning Officers if there
has been six (6) or more objections received.

For the following classes of use or development:



3-storey or 3+ storey dwelling/s or 3-storey or 3+ storey residential
buildings within the General Residential Zone (excluding residentiallyzoned land located within the boundaries of an activity centre);
Buildings that exceed the applicable preferred maximum overall building
height described in Design and Development Overlay Schedule 17
(DDO17);

the exercise of this power is limited to the following circumstances:
i.
ii.

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising Statutory Planning Officers if there
has been no objections received;
There has been between one (1) and 12 objections received, inclusive,
the Director Urban Living (DUL) or Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers may make a decision after consulting with and considering the
views of the Statutory Planning Advisory Committee (SPAC).
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

For the following classes of use or development:


Any other application not specifically listed above;

the exercise of this power is limited to the following circumstances:
i.
ii.

There has been no objections received, or, if there has been between
one (1) and five (5) objections received, inclusive; or
There has been between six (6) and 12 objections received, inclusive,
the Director Urban Living (DUL) or Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers may make a decision after consulting with and considering the
views of the Statutory Planning Advisory Committee (SPAC).

Before exercising their delegation, the Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP),
Statutory Planning Appeals Coordinator (PAC) and Principal Planner (PP)
must consult with the Director Urban Living (DUL) and/or the Manager
Strategic and Statutory Planning (MSSP).
Before exercising their delegation, the Senior Statutory Planner (SSP),
Statutory Planner (SP), Subdivision Officer (SO) and Counter Planner or
Planning Liaison Officer (CP) must consult with the Director Urban Living
(DUL), and/or the Manager Strategic and Statutory Planning (MSSP) and/or
the Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP).
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Boroondara
Planning
Scheme
Clause 1319.03, 2121.14, 22.0122.16-3,
32.04-32.09,
34.01-34.02,
36.01-36.04,
37.01-37.06,
42.01-42.03,
43.01-43.02,
43.04, 44.0444.05, 45.01,
45.03, 45.07,
45.09, 52.0152.05, 52.0752.26, 52.2852.39, 52.4252.48, 56.0156.09, 62-66.

Exercise Council’s powers,
discretions and authorities,
carry out Council’s duties and
perform Council’s functions

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Delegates must comply with any conditions or limitations imposed by Council
where the action involves exercising a power, duty or function delegated
under the Planning and Environment Act 1987 or regulations under that Act.
Before exercising their delegation, the Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP),
Statutory Planning Appeals Coordinator (PAC) and Principal Planner (PP)
must consult with the Director Urban Living (DUL) and/or the Manager
Strategic Statutory Planning (MSSP).
Before exercising their delegation, the Senior Statutory Planner (SSP),
Statutory Planner (SP), Subdivision Officer (SO) and Counter Planner or
Planning Liaison Officer (CP) must consult with the Director Urban Living
(DUL), and/or the Manager Strategic and Statutory Planning (MSSP) and/or
the Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP).
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Boroondara
Planning
Scheme
Clause
52.06-3




Power to reduce or waive
car parking.
Power to decide on an
adequate number of car
spaces to be provided for
uses which are not
specified in the table at
Clause 52.06-5.

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Reducing or waiving car parking requirements
Delegates may only approve a reduction or waiver of car parking on land
within a residential zone (excluding residentially-zoned land located within the
boundaries of an activity centre) when:



There is surplus car parking capacity available to accommodate the
reduction or waiver sought; and/or
There is surplus car parking deficiency (also known as car parking
credit) available associated with the existing use of the land.

Delegates may only approve a reduction or waiver of car parking on land
within a commercial zone or located within the boundaries of an activity
centre when:




There is surplus car parking capacity available within existing Council
car parks or on-street (not including on-street parking located adjacent
to land zoned and used for residential purposes, excluding residentially
zoned land located within the boundaries of an activity centre, or, more
than 400m from the subject site) to accommodate the reduction sought;
and/or
There is surplus car parking deficiency available associated with the
existing use of the land.

Where there is between one (1) and 12 objections received, inclusive, for an
application and there is no surplus car parking capacity and/or no surplus car
parking deficiency, the Director Urban Living (DUL) or Senior Statutory
Planning Officers may make a decision after consulting with and considering
the views of the Statutory Planning Advisory Committee (SPAC).
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Boroondara
Planning
Scheme
Clause 52.27



Power to use land to sell
or consume liquor.

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Restaurant and Food and Drink Premises (café) Liquor Licence
Delegates may determine an application for a liquor licence associated with
an existing or approved restaurant, tavern or food and drink premises (café)
where objections have been received when:



The hours approved are in accordance with those specified on any
existing permit for a restaurant, tavern or food and drink premises (café);
or
In the event any existing permit does not specify hours of operation or
the use of the land does not require a planning permit, the following
standard hours are sought:

Monday-Saturday (excl. ANZAC Day and Good Friday) 7:00am to 11:00pm
Sunday
10:00am to 11:00pm
ANZAC Day and Good Friday
12 noon to 11:00pm.
Where there is between one (1) and 12 objections received, inclusive, for an
application and the above hours are sought to be varied, the Director Urban
Living (DUL) or Supervising Statutory Planning Officers may make a decision
after consulting with and considering the views of the Statutory Planning
Advisory Committee (SPAC).

Boroondara
Planning
Scheme
Clause 67

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 61(2)

s 61(2A)

Duty to decide to refuse to
grant a permit if a relevant
determining referral authority
objects to grant of permit

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to decide to refuse to
grant a permit if a relevant
recommending referral
authority objects to the grant of
permit

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

The Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP), Statutory
Planning Appeals Coordinator (PAC) and Principal
Planner (PP) must consult with the Director Urban
Living (DUL) and/or the Manager Strategic and
Statutory Planning (MSSP) before exercising their
delegation to refuse an application solely based on
the objection of a recommending referral authority.

Non-compliance with
the Boroondara
Planning Scheme.

The Senior Statutory Planner (SSP), Statutory
Planner (SP), Subdivision Officer (SO) and Counter
Planner or Planning Liaison Officer (CP) must consult
with the Director Urban Living (DUL) and/or the
Manager Strategic and Statutory Planning (MSSP)
and/or the Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP)
before exercising their delegation to refuse an
application solely based on the objection of a
recommending referral authority.
s 61(3)(a)

s 61(3)(b)

Duty not to decide to grant a
permit to use coastal Crown
land without Minister’s consent

Not delegated

Duty to refuse to grant the
permit without the Minister's
consent

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 61(4)

s 62(1)

s62(2)
s 62(4)

s 62(5)(a)

s 62(5)(b)

s 62(5)(c)

Duty to refuse to grant the
permit if grant would authorise
a breach of a registered
restrictive covenant

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to include certain
conditions in deciding to grant
a permit

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to include other
conditions

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to ensure conditions are
consistent with paragraphs
(a),(b) and (c)

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to include a permit
condition to implement an
approved development
contributions plan or an
approved infrastructure
contributions plan

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to include a permit
condition that specified works
be provided on or to the land
or paid for in accordance with
s 173 agreement

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to include a permit
condition that specified works
be provided or paid for by the
applicant

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 62(6)(a)

s 62(6)(b)

s 63

s 64(1)

s 64(3)

Duty not to include a permit
condition requiring a person to
pay an amount for or provide
works except in accordance
with ss 46N(1), 46GV(7) or
62(5)

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty not to include a permit
condition requiring a person to
pay an amount for or provide
works except a condition that a
planning scheme requires to
be included as referred to in s
62(1)(a)

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to issue the permit where
made a decision in favour of
the application (if no one has
objected)

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to give notice of decision
to grant a permit to applicant
and objectors

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

This provision
applies also to a
decision to grant an
amendment to a
permit - see section
75

Duty not to issue a permit until
after the specified period

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

This provision
applies also to a
decision to grant an
amendment to a
permit - see s 75
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 64(5)

s 64A

s 65(1)

s 66(1)

Duty to give each objector a
copy of an exempt decision

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

This provision
applies also to a
decision to grant an
amendment to a
permit - see s 75

Duty not to issue permit until
the end of a period when an
application for review may be
lodged with VCAT or until
VCAT has determined the
application, if a relevant
recommending referral
authority has objected to the
grant of a permit

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

This provision
applies also to a
decision to grant an
amendment to a
permit - see s 75A

Duty to give notice of refusal to
grant permit to applicant and
person who objected under
s57

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to give notice under s 64
or s 65 and copy permit to
relevant determining referral
authorities

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 66(2)

s 66(4)

Duty to give a recommending
referral authority notice of its
decision to grant a permit

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

If the recommending
referral authority
objected to the grant
of the permit or the
responsible authority
decided not to
include a condition
on the permit
recommended by the
recommending
referral authority

Duty to give a recommending
referral authority notice of its
decision to refuse a permit

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

If the recommending
referral authority
objected to the grant
of the permit or the
recommending
referral authority
recommended that a
permit condition be
included on the
permit
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 66(6)

s 69(1)

s 69(1A)

Duty to give a recommending
referral authority a copy of any
permit which Council decides
to grant and a copy of any
notice given under section 64
or 65

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

Function of receiving
application for extension of
time of permit

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Function of receiving
application for extension of
time to complete development

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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If the recommending
referral authority did
not object to the
grant of the permit or
the recommending
referral authority did
not recommend a
condition be included
on the permit
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 69(2)

s 70
s 71(1)
s 71(2)
s 73

Power to extend time

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to make copy permit
available for inspection

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

Power to correct certain
mistakes

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to note corrections in
register

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

Power to decide to grant
amendment subject to
conditions

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

The delegate may only make a decision to extend time
when the following is satisfied:


Whether the time originally allowed was
reasonable; or



Whether there have been any intervening
circumstances which may have rendered it
unreasonable to hold an applicant to the originally
fixed time; or



Whether there has been any change in zoning or
planning policy that would mitigate against the
grant of a permit; or



The probability that a fresh application, if made,
would be granted.

The delegate may only determine to grant
amendments in accordance with the conditions,
limitations and guidelines outlined under Section 61(1)
in this Instrument, where:
1.

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara
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GUIDELINES

Compliance with the
Boroondara Planning
Scheme and adopted
Council Policies.

The original application was determined by an
officer under delegation and the delegate would
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

have had the power to determine the application,
had it been made under Section 61(1); or
2.

The original application was:
a. determined by the Urban Planning Special
Committee; or
b. subject to consultation with the Statutory
Planning Advisory Committee; or
c. a permit was issued at the direction of
VCAT;
and there are:

no objections to the application for
amendment; or

between one (1) and 12 objections received,
inclusive, to the application for amendment.

Where there is between one (1) and five (5) objections
received, inclusive, to the application for amendment,
the Senior Statutory Planner (SSP), Statutory Planner
(SP), Subdivision Officer (SO) and Counter Planner or
Planning Liaison Officer (CP) must consult with the
Manager Strategic and Statutory Planning (MSSP)
and/or Coordinator Statutory Planning (CSP) before
exercising their delegation.
Where there is between six (6) and 12 objections
received, inclusive, to the amendment application, the
Director Urban Living (DUL) or Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers may make a decision after
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

consulting with and considering the views of the
Statutory Planning Advisory Committee (SPAC).
s 74
s 76

s 76A(1)

s 76A(2)

s 76A(4)

s 76A(6)

Duty to issue amended permit
to applicant if no objectors

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to give applicant and
objectors notice of decision to
refuse to grant amendment to
permit

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers and PSO

Duty to give relevant
determining referral authorities
copy of amended permit and
copy of notice

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

Duty to give a recommending
referral authority notice of its
decision to grant an
amendment to a permit

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

If the recommending referral authority objected to the
amendment of the permit or the responsible authority
decided not to include a condition on the amended
permit recommended by the recommending referral
authority

Duty to give a recommending
referral authority notice of its
decision to refuse a permit

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

If the recommending referral authority objected to the
amendment of the permit or the recommending
referral authority recommended that a permit
condition be included on the amended permit

Duty to give a recommending
referral authority a copy of any
amended permit which Council
decides to grant and a copy of
any notice given under s 64 or
76

CEO, DUL, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

If the recommending referral authority did not object
to the amendment of the permit or the recommending
referral authority did not recommend a condition be
included on the amended permit
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 76D

s 83
s 83B
s 84(1)

s 84(2)

s 84(3)

s 84(6)
s 84AB

Duty to comply with direction of
Minister to issue amended
permit

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Function of being respondent
to an appeal

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to give or publish notice
of application for review

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to decide on an
application at any time after an
appeal is lodged against failure
to grant a permit

CEO, DUL, Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers and SSP

Duty not to issue a permit or
notice of decision or refusal
after an application is made for
review of a failure to grant a
permit

CEO, DUL, Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers and SSP

Duty to tell principal registrar if
decide to grant a permit after
an application is made for
review of its failure to grant a
permit

CEO, DUL, and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to issue permit on receipt
of advice within 3 working days

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to agree to confining a
review by the Tribunal

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 86

s 87(3)

s 90(1)

s 91(2)
s 91(2A)
s 92

s 93(2)
s 95(3)
s 95(4)

Duty to issue a permit at order
of Tribunal within 3 working
days

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to apply to VCAT for the
cancellation or amendment of
a permit

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Function of being heard at
hearing of request for
cancellation or amendment of
a permit

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to comply with the
directions of VCAT

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to issue amended permit
to owner if Tribunal so directs

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to give notice of
cancellation/amendment of
permit by VCAT to persons
entitled to be heard under
section 90

CEO, DUL, Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers and SSP

Duty to give notice of VCAT
order to stop development

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Function of referring certain
applications to the Minister

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to comply with an order or
direction

CEO, DUL and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 96(1)

s 96(2)

s 96A(2)

s 96C

s 96F

s 96G(1)

Duty to obtain a permit from
the Minister to use and
develop its land

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Function of giving consent to
other persons to apply to the
Minister for a permit to use and
develop Council land

CEO, DUL, and MSSP

Power to agree to consider an
application for permit
concurrently with preparation
of proposed amendment

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Power to give notice, to decide
not to give notice, to publish
notice and to exercise any
other power under s 96C

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,SPP,
SSTRP, STP and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to consider the panel's
report under s 96E

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to determine to
recommend that a permit be
granted or to refuse to
recommend that a permit be
granted and power to notify
applicant of the determination
(including power to give notice
under s 23 of the Planning and
Environment (Planning
Schemes) Act 1996)

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 96H(3)

s 96J
s 96K

s 96Z

s 97C
s 97D(1)

s 97G(3)

s 97G(6)

Power to give notice in
compliance with Minister's
direction

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to issue permit as
directed by the Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Specific Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to comply with direction of
the Minister to give notice of
refusal

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Specific Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to keep levy certificates
given to it under ss. 47 or 96A
for no less than 5 years from
receipt of the certificate

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Power to request Minister to
decide the application

CEO, DUL, and MSSP

Duty to comply with directions
of Minister to supply any
document or assistance
relating to application

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Function of receiving from
Minister copy of notice of
refusal to grant permit or copy
of any permit granted by the
Minister

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to make a copy of permits
issued under s97F available
for inspection

CEO, DUL, MSSP, Specific
Statutory Planning Officers, TLPP
and PSO
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 97L

s 97MH

s 97MI

s 97O

s 97P(3)

s 97Q(2)

s 97Q(4)
s 97R

Duty to include Ministerial
decisions in a register kept
under s 49

CEO, DUL, MSSP, Specific
Statutory Planning Officers, TLPP
and PSO

Duty to provide information or
assistance to the Planning
Application Committee

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Duty to contribute to the costs
of the Planning Application
Committee or subcommittee

CEO and DUL

Duty to consider application
and issue or refuse to issue
certificate of compliance

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Duty to comply with directions
of VCAT following an
application for review of a
failure or refusal to issue a
certificate

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Function of being heard by
VCAT at hearing of request for
amendment or cancellation of
certificate

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to comply with directions
of VCAT

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to keep register of all
applications for certificate of
compliance and related
decisions

CEO, DUL, MSSP, Specific
Statutory Planning Officers, TLPP
and PSO
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 98(1)&(2)

s 98(4)

s 101

s 103

s 107(1)
s 107(3)
s 114(1)
s 117(1)(a)

s 120(1)

Function of receiving claim for
compensation in certain
circumstances

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to inform any person of
the name of the person from
whom compensation can be
claimed

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Function of receiving claim for
expenses in conjunction with
claim

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Power to reject a claim for
compensation in certain
circumstances

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Function of receiving claim for
compensation

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Power to agree to extend time
for making claim

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Power to apply to the VCAT for
an enforcement order

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Function of making a
submission to the VCAT where
objections are received

CEO, DUL, MSSP, Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers, SSP
and PIO

Power to apply for an interim
enforcement order where s
114 application has been
made

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Power to carry out work
required by enforcement order
and recover costs

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Power to sell buildings,
materials, etc salvaged in
carrying out work under
s123(1)

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Function of recovering
penalties

CEO, DUL and MSSP

Power to allow person served
with an infringement notice
further time

CEO, DUL and MSSP, Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Power to refer a matter to the
VCAT for determination

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Power to apply to VCAT for the
determination of a matter
relating to the interpretation of
a s.173 agreement

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s 123(1)

s 123(2)

s 129
s 130(5)

s 149A(1)
s 149A(1A)
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 156

s 171(2)(f)
s 171(2)(g)
s 172C

Duty to pay fees and
allowances (including a
payment to the Crown under s
156(2A)), and payment or
reimbursement for reasonable
costs and expenses incurred
by the panel in carrying out its
functions unless the Minister
directs otherwise under s
156(2B)power to ask for
contribution under s 156(3)
and power to abandon
amendment or part of it under
s 156(4)

CEO, DUL and MSSP, SSP,
SSTRP, STP

Power to carry out studies and
commission reports

CEO, DUL, MSSP, MACP, CD

Power to grant and reserve
easements

CEO, DUL, MSSP, MACP, CD

Power to compulsorily acquire
any outer public purpose land
that is specified in the
approved infrastructure
contributions plan

CEO, DUL, DPS
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 172D(1)

s 172D(2)

s 173(1)

s 173(1A)

Power to compulsorily acquire
any inner public purpose land
that is specified in the plan
before the time that the land is
required to be provided to
Council under s 46GV(4)

CEO, DUL, DPS

Where Council is a collecting agency specified in an
approved infrastructure contributions plan

Power to compulsorily acquire
any inner public purpose land,
the use and development of
which is to be the responsibility
of Council under the plan,
before the time that the land is
required to be provided under
s 46GV(4)

CEO, DUL, DPS

Where Council is the development agency specified
in an approved infrastructure contributions plan

Power to enter into agreement
covering matters set out in s
174

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, and MCS

Power to enter into an
agreement with an owner of
land for the development or
provision of land in relation to
affordable housing

CEO, DUL, DCS, MSSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

---

---

s 177(2)

Power to decide whether
something is to the satisfaction
of Council, where an
agreement made under s173
of the Planning and
Environment Act 1987 requires
something to be to the
satisfaction of Council or
Responsible Authority

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS and CD

Power to give consent on
behalf of Council, where an
agreement made under s 173
of the Planning and
Environment Act 1987 requires
that something may not be
done without the consent of
Council or Responsible
Authority

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS and CD

Power to end a s 173
agreement with the
agreement of all those bound
by any covenant in the
agreement or otherwise in
accordance with Division 2 of
Part 9

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS and CD
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 178

s 178A(1)

s 178A(3)

s 178A(4)

s 178A(5)

s 178B(1)

Power to amend a s 173
agreement with the agreement
of all those bound by any
covenant in the agreement or
otherwise in accordance with
Division 2 of Part 9

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, and CD

Function of receiving
application to amend or end an
agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD,
Specific Statutory Planning Officers,
TLPP and PSO

Function of notifying the owner
as to whether it agrees in
principle to the proposal under
s 178A(1)

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Function of notifying the
applicant and the owner as to
whether it agrees in principle
to the proposal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Specific Statutory Planning Officers

Power to propose to amend or
end an agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Duty to consider certain
matters when considering
proposal to amend an
agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, TLSP,
CD, SPP, STRP, STP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 178B(2)

s 178C(2)

s 178C(4)

s 178E(1)

s 178E(2)(a)

Duty to consider certain
matters when considering
proposal to end an agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, TLSP,
CD, SPP, STRP, STP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to give notice of the
proposal to all parties to the
agreement and other persons
who may be detrimentally
affected by decision to amend
or end

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, TLSP,
CD, SPP, STRP, STP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Function of determining how to
give notice under s 178C(2)

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, TLSP,
CD and Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty not to make decision until
after 14 days after notice has
been given

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, TLSP,
CD and Specific Statutory Planning
Officers

Power to amend or end the
agreement in accordance with
the proposal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

Where there is between 1 and no more than 5
objections received (under s. 178D) the delegate in
Column 3 may make a decision. Before making a
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matters in s.178B
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Power to amend or end the
agreement in a manner that is
not substantively different from
the proposal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where there is between 1 and no more than 5
objections received (under s. 178D) the delegate in
Column 3 may make a decision. Before making a
decision the delegate must consult with and consider
the views of the Statutory Planning Advisory
Committee (SPAC).

Must consider
matters in s.178B

Power to refuse to amend or
end the agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where there is between 1 and no more than 5
objections received (under s. 178D) the delegate in
Column 3 may make a decision. Before making a
decision the delegate must consult with and consider
the views of the Statutory Planning Advisory
Committee (SPAC).

Must consider
matters in s.178B

Power to amend or end the
agreement in accordance with
the proposal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where there is between 1 and no more than 5
objections received (under s. 178D) the delegate in
Column 3 may make a decision. Before making a
decision the delegate must consult with and consider
the views of the Statutory Planning Advisory
Committee (SPAC).

After considering
objections,
submissions and
matters in s.178B

Power to amend or end the
agreement in a manner that is
not substantively different from
the proposal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where there is between 1 and no more than 5
objections received (under s. 178D) the delegate in
Column 3 may make a decision. Before making a
decision the delegate must consult with and consider
the views of the Statutory Planning Advisory
Committee (SPAC).

After considering
objections,
submissions and
matters in s.178B

s 178E(2)(b)

s 178E(2)(c)

s 178E(3)(a)

s 178E(3)(b)
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Power to amend or end the
agreement in a manner that is
substantively different from the
proposal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where there is between 1 and no more than 5
objections received (under s. 178D) the delegate in
Column 3 may make a decision. Before making a
decision the delegate must consult with and consider
the views of the Statutory Planning Advisory
Committee (SPAC).

After considering
objections,
submissions and
matters in s.178B

Power to refuse to amend or
end the agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Where there is between 1 and no more than 5
objections received (under s. 178D) the delegate in
Column 3 may make a decision. Before making a
decision the delegate must consult with and consider
the views of the Statutory Planning Advisory
Committee (SPAC).

After considering
objections,
submissions and
matters in s.178B

Duty to give notice of its
decision under s 178E(3)(a) or
(b)

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, TLSP,
CD, SPP, SSTRP, STP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Duty to give notice of its
decision under s 178E(2)(c) or
(3)(d)

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, TLSP,
CD, SPP, SSTRP, STP and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

s 178E(3)(c)

s 178E(3)(d)

s 178F(1)

s 178F(2)
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 178F(4)

s 178G

s 178H

s 178I(3)

s 179(2)

s 181

Duty not to proceed to amend
or end an agreement under s
178E until at least 21 days
after notice has been given or
until an application for review
to the Tribunal has been
determined or withdrawn

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Duty to sign amended
agreement and give copy to
each other party to the
agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD and
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers

Power to require a person who
applies to amend or end an
agreement to pay the costs of
giving notices and preparing
the amended agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MSSP, MCS and CD

Duty to notify, in writing, each
party to the agreement of the
ending of the agreement
relating to Crown land

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MSSP, MCS, TLSP, CD, SPP,
SSTRP, STP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Duty to make available for
inspection copy agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, TLSP, SPP,
SSTRP, STP, CD, Specific Statutory
Planning Officers, TLPP and PSO

Duty to apply to the Registrar
of Titles to record the
agreement and to deliver a
memorial to Registrar-General

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS, MACP
MSSP, MSSP and MCS
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 181(1A)(a)

s 181(1A)(b)

s 182

s 183

s 184F(1)

s 184F(2)

Power to apply to the Registrar
of Titles to record the
agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, CD,
TLSP, and Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to apply to the Registrar
of Titles, without delay, to
record the agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, SSP, CD,
TLSP, and Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers

Power to enforce an
agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, CD,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers and PIO

Duty to tell Registrar of Titles
of ending/amendment of
agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MACP, MSSP, MCS, CD and
Specific Statutory Planning Officers

Power to decide to amend or
end an agreement at any time
after an application for review
of the failure of Council to
make a decision

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MSSP, MSSP and MCS

Duty not to amend or end the
agreement or give notice of the
decision after an application is
made to VCAT for review of a
failure to amend or end an
agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MSSP, MSSP and MCS

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara
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GUIDELINES
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 184F(3)

s 184F(5)

s 184G(2)

s 184G(3)

s 198(1)
s 199(1)
s 201(1)

Duty to inform the principal
registrar if the responsible
authority decides to amend or
end an agreement after an
application is made for the
review of its failure to end or
amend the agreement

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MSSP, MCS, TLSP, SPP, SSTRP,
STP, Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, SSP and SO

Function of receiving advice
from the principal registrar that
the agreement may be
amended or ended in
accordance with Council's
decision

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MSSP, MCS, TLSP, SPP, SSTRP,
STP, Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers, SSP and SO

Duty to comply with a direction
of the Tribunal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MSSP, MCS, Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers, SSP and SO

Duty to give notice as directed
by the Tribunal

CEO, DUL, DCT, DCS, DPS,
MSSP, MCS, Supervising Statutory
Planning Officers, SSP and SO

Function to receive application
for planning certificate

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Duty to give planning
certificate to applicant

CEO, DUL and Specific Statutory
Planning Officers

Function of receiving
application for declaration of
underlying zoning

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

S 201(3)

Duty to make declaration

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

-

Power to make a decision
relating to the conduct of a
mediation or compulsory
conference before VCAT,
including a decision to settle
the mediation or compulsory
conference

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Specific
Statutory Planning Officer

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES

In the event that a decision made under s61(a) or (b) (decision to grant a
permit or decision to grant a permit subject to conditions) results in an
application for review through the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal
(VCAT), the exercise of this power is limited to the following circumstances:




There are no objector parties;
All objector parties consent (either conditionally, or otherwise) either
through a written consent order or mediation/compulsory conference;
If the matter has previously been subject to a determination by the Urban
Planning Special Committee, can only be exercised if, in the opinion of
DUL, MSSP or Supervising Statutory Planning Officers the matter being
mediated/settled is of a minor nature and the intent of the Council’s
decision is not compromised.

In the event that a decision made under s61(c) (decision to refuse to grant a
permit) results in an application for review through VCAT, the exercise of this
power is limited to the following circumstances:




Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising Statutory Planning Officers if there are
no objector parties;
CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising Statutory Planning Officers if all
objector parties consent (either conditionally, or otherwise) either through
a written consent order or mediation/compulsory conference.
If the matter has previously been subject to a determination by the Urban
Planning Special Committee, can only be exercised if, in the opinion of
DUL, MSSP or Supervising Statutory Planning Officers the matter being
mediated/settled is of a minor nature and the intent of the Council’s
decision is not compromised.
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

-

-

-

-

-

s 201UAB(1)

Determine that a matter be
considered at a mediation or
compulsory conference before
VCAT

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Power to decide, in relation to
any planning scheme or
permit, that a specified thing
has or has not been done to
the satisfaction of Council

CEO, DUL, MSSP, Specific
Statutory Planning Officers and PIO

Power, in relation to any
planning scheme or permit, to
consent or refuse to consent to
any matter which requires the
consent or approval of Council

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Specific Statutory Planning Officers

Power to approve any plan or
any amendment to a plan or
other document in accordance
with a provision of a planning
scheme or condition in a
permit

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP and
Specific Statutory Planning Officers

Power to give written
authorisation in accordance
with a provision of a planning
scheme

CEO, DUL, MSSP, TLSP,
Supervising Statutory Planning
Officers and SSP

Function of providing the
Victorian Planning Authority
with information relating to any
land within municipal district

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara
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GUIDELINES
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Duty to provide the Victorian
Planning Authority with
information requested under s
201UAB(1) as soon as
possible

CEO, DUL, MSSP and Supervising
Statutory Planning Officers

s.201UAB(2)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

IMPLEMENTATION
GUIDELINES
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RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES ACT 1997
Column 1
PROVISION
s 91ZU(1)

s 91ZZC(1)

s 91ZZE(1)

s 91ZZE(3)

Column 2

Column 3
THING DELEGATED

Power to give a renter a notice to vacate rented premises

Power to give a renter a notice to vacate rented premises

Power to give a renter a notice to vacate rented premises

Power to publish Council’s criteria for eligibility for the
provision of housing

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

DELEGATE
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Column 4
CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS
Where Council is a public statutory authority
engaged in the provision of housing
Note: this power is not yet in force and will
commence on 1 January 2021, unless proclaimed
earlier
Where Council is a public statutory authority
authorised to acquire land compulsorily for its
purposes
Note: this power is not yet in force and will
commence on 1 January 2021, unless proclaimed
earlier
Where Council is a public statutory authority
engaged in the provision of housing
Note: this power is not yet in force and will
commence on 1 January 2021, unless proclaimed
earlier
Where Council is a public statutory authority
engaged in the provision of housing
Note: this power is not yet in force and will
commence on 1 January 2021, unless proclaimed
earlier
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s 142D

Function of receiving notice regarding an unregistered
rooming house

s 142G(1)

Duty to enter required information in Rooming House Register
for each rooming house in municipal district

s 142G(2)

Power to enter certain information in the Rooming House
Register

s 142I(2)

Power to amend or revoke an entry in the Rooming House
Register if necessary to maintain the accuracy of the entry

s 206AZA(2)

Function of receiving written notification

s 207ZE(2)

Function of receiving written notification

s 311A(2)

Function of receiving written notification

s 317ZDA(2)

Function of receiving written notification

s 518F

Power to issue notice to caravan park regarding emergency
management plan if determined that the plan does not comply
with the requirements

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH,
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DCS ,
DPS, DUL,
MLEPAA, CPH,

Note: this function is not yet in force and will
commence on 1 January 2021, unless proclaimed
earlier
Note: this function is not yet in force and will
commence on 1 January 2021, unless proclaimed
earlier
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s 522(1)

Power to give a compliance notice to a person

s 525(2)

Power to authorise an officer to exercise powers in s526
(either generally or in a particular case)

s 525(4)

Duty to issue identity card to authorised officers

s 526(5)

Duty to keep record of entry by authorised officer under s 526

s 526A(3)

Function of receiving report of inspection

s 527

Power to authorise a person to institute proceedings (either
generally or in a particular case)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
CEO, DUL,
MSSP & MBS
CEO, DUL,
MSSP & MBS
CEO, DUL,
MSSP & MBS
CEO, DUL,
MSSP & MBS
CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS and EHO
CEO, DUL,
MSSP & MBS
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 11(1)

Power to declare a road by publishing a notice in the
Government Gazette

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

s 11(8)

Power to name a road or change the name of a road by
publishing notice in Government Gazette

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

s 11(9)(b)

Duty to advise Registrar

s 11(10)

Duty to inform Secretary to Department of Environment,
Land, Water and Planning of declaration etc.

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

s 11(10A)

Duty to inform Secretary to Department of Environment,
Land, Water and Planning or nominated person

s 12(2)

Power to discontinue road or part of a road

s 12(4)

Power to publish, and provide copy, notice of proposed
discontinuance

s 12(5)

Duty to consider written submissions received within 28 days
of notice

s 12(6)

Function of hearing a person in support of their written
submission

s 12(7)

Duty to fix day, time and place of meeting under subsection
(6) and to give notice

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
MCP,
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
MCP
CEO, DPS,
DCT, MACP,
MCP, MT&T
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
MCP
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
MCP
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
MCP

Obtain consent in circumstances specified in s 11(2)

Clause subject to s 11(10A)

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Were Council is the coordinating road authority

Power of coordinating road authority where it is the
discontinuing body unless s 12(11) applies
Duty of coordinating road authority where it is the
discontinuing body unless s 12(11) applies
Function of coordinating road authority where it is the
discontinuing body unless s 12(11) applies
Duty of coordinating road authority where it is the
discontinuing body unless s 12(11) applies
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION
s 12(10)

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Duty to notify of decision made

s 13(1)

Power to fix a boundary of a road by publishing notice in
Government Gazette

s 14(4)

Function of receiving notice from the Head, Transport for
Victoria

s 14(7)

Power to appeal against decision of the Head, Transport for
Victoria

s 15(1)

Power to enter into arrangement with another road authority,
utility or a provider of public transport to transfer a road
management function of the road authority to the other road
authority, utility or provider of public transport

s 15(1A)

Power to enter into arrangement with a utility to transfer a
road management function of the utility to the road authority

s 15(2)

Duty to include details of arrangement in public roads register

s 16(7)

Power to enter into an arrangement under 15

s 16(8)

Duty to enter details of determination in public roads register

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

CEO, DPS,
DCT, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

CEO, DPS,
DCT, MCP,
MT&T, MACP
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MACP,
MWI
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP

Duty of coordinating road authority where it is the
discontinuing body
Does not apply where an exemption is specified by the
regulations or given by the Minister
Power of coordinating road authority and obtain consent
under s 13(3) and s 13(4) as appropriate

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS
Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Power to decide that a road is reasonably required for general
public use

CEO, DPS,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

s 17(3)

Duty to register a road reasonably required for general public
use in public roads register

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

s 17(4)

Power to decide that a road is no longer reasonably required
for general public use

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

s 17(4)

Duty to remove road no longer reasonably required for
general public use from public roads register

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

s 18(1)

Power to designate ancillary area

s 18(3)

Duty to record designation in public roads register

Where Council is the coordinating road authority, and
obtain consent in circumstances specified in s18(2)
Where Council is the coordinating road authority

s 19(1)

Duty to keep register of public roads in respect of which it is
the coordinating road authority

CEO, DPS,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 19(4)

Duty to specify details of discontinuance in public roads
register

CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 19(5)

Duty to ensure public roads register is available for public
inspection

CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 21

Function of replying to request for information or advice

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP

s 17(2)

Duty to register public road in public roads register

s 17(3)

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Obtain consent in circumstances specified in section
11(2)
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 22(2)

Function of commenting on proposed direction

s 22(4)

Duty to publish a copy or summary of any direction made
under s 22 by the Minister in its annual report

s 22(5)

Duty to give effect to a direction under s 22

s 40(1)

Duty to inspect, maintain and repair a public road.

s 40(5)

Power to inspect, maintain and repair a road which is not a
public road

s 41(1)

Power to determine the standard of construction, inspection,
maintenance and repair

s 42(1)

Power to declare a public road as a controlled access road

s 42(2)

Power to amend or revoke declaration by notice published in
Government Gazette

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP
CEO, DPS, DCT,
MACP & MBD
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MCP,
MWI,MACP
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MCP,
MWI, MACP, All
Asset and Capital
Planning Staff, All
Road and Path
Maintenance
Staff, All Traffic
and Transport
Staff
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MCP,
MACP, MWI
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

Power of coordinating road authority and Schedule 2 also
applies
Power of coordinating road authority and Schedule 2 also
applies
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T

s 42A(3)

Duty to consult with VicRoads before road is specified

s 42A(4)

Power to approve Minister's decision to specify a road as a
specified freight road

s 48EA

Duty to notify the owner or occupier of land and provider of
public transport on which rail infrastructure or rolling stock is
located (and any relevant provider of public transport)

CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T

s 48M(3)

Function of consulting with the relevant authority for purposes
of developing guidelines under s 48M

CEO, DPS,
MT&T

s 49

Power to develop and publish a road management plan

s 51

Power to determine standards by incorporating the standards
in a road management plan

CEO, DPS,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MCP

s 53(2)

Power to cause notice to be published in Government
Gazette of amendment etc of document in road management
plan

CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 54(2)

Duty to give notice of proposal to make a road management
plan

CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 54(5)

Duty to conduct a review of road management plan at
prescribed intervals

CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 54(6)

Power to amend road management plan

CEO, DPS,
MACP, MCP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

Where Council is the coordinating road authority if road is
a municipal road or part thereof
Where Council is the coordinating road authority if road is
a municipal road or part thereof and where road is to be
specified a freight road
Where Council is the responsible road authority,
infrastructure manager or works manager
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 54(7)

Duty to incorporate the amendments into the road
management plan

CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 55(1)

Duty to cause notice of road management plan to be
published in Government Gazette and newspaper

CEO, DPS,
MACP

s 63(1)

Power to consent to conduct of works on road

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

s 63(2)(e)

Power to conduct or to authorise the conduct of works in, on,
under or over a road in an emergency

s 64(1)

Duty to comply with cl 13 of sch 7

s 66(1)

Power to consent to structure etc

s 67(2)

Function of receiving the name & address of the person
responsible for distributing the sign or bill

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP, CT, CTM,
SCTA, All Traffic
and Transport
Staff
CEO, DPS,
MCPMCP, MWI,
MT&T, MACP,
CT, CTM, SCTA
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, DUL,
MT&T, MCS

s 67(3)

Power to request information

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

s 68(2)

Power to request information

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP, MCS, CT
CEO, DPS, DUL,
MT&T, MACP,
MCS, CT

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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Where Council is the infrastructure manager

Where Council is the infrastructure manager or works
manager
Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Where Council is the coordinating road authority
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

s 71(3)

Power to appoint an authorised officer

s 72

Duty to issue an identity card to each authorised officer

s 85

Function of receiving report from authorised officer

s 86

Duty to keep register re s 85 matters

s 87(1)

Function of receiving complaints

s 87(2)

Duty to investigate complaint and provide report

s 112(2)

Power to recover damages in court

s 116

Power to cause or carry out inspection

s 119(2)

Function of consulting with the Head, Transport for Victoria

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

CEO, DPS, DUL,
MT&T, MCS
CEO, DPS, DUL,
MT&T, MCS
CEO, DPS, DUL,
MT&T, MCS
CEO, DPS, DUL,
MT&T, MACP,
MCS
CEO, DPS,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MWI,
MCP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
MCP, MWI, CT,
CTM, SCTA, All
Traffic and
Transport Staff
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP, CT, CTM,
SCTA, All Traffic
and Transport
Staff
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP, CT, CTM,
SCTA
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP, CT, CTM,
SCTA
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MWI,
MACP, MCP, CT
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MWI,
MACP, MCP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T

s 120(1)

Power to exercise road management functions on an arterial
road (with the consent of the Head, Transport for Victoria)

s 120(2)

Duty to seek consent of the Head, Transport for Victoria to
exercise road management functions before exercising power
in s 120(1)

s 121(1)

Power to enter into an agreement in respect of works

s 122(1)

Power to charge and recover fees

s 123(1)

Power to charge for any service

sch 2
cl 2(1)

Power to make a decision in respect of controlled access
roads

sch 2
cl 3(1)

Duty to make policy about controlled access roads

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

sch 2
cl 3(2)

Power to amend, revoke or substitute policy about controlled
access roads

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

August 2020
Page 94 of 108
Attachment Page 94 of 108

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION
sch 2 cl 4

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

Function of receiving details of proposal from the Head,
Transport for Victoria

CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
CT, CTM, SCTA
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

sch 2
cl 5

Duty to publish notice of declaration

sch 7 cl 7(1)

Duty to give notice to relevant coordinating road authority of
proposed installation of non-road infrastructure or related
works on a road reserve

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MT&T, MACP

Where Council is the infrastructure manager or works
manager

sch 7 Clause
8(1)

Duty to give notice to any other infrastructure manager or
works manager responsible for any non-road infrastructure in
the area, that could be affected by any proposed installation
of infrastructure or related works on a road or road reserve of
any road

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP

Where Council is the infrastructure manager or works
manager

sch 7 cl 9(1)

Duty to comply with request for information from a
coordinating road authority, an infrastructure manager or a
works manager responsible for existing or proposed
infrastructure in relation to the location of any non-road
infrastructure and technical advice or assistance in conduct of
works

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP

Where Council is the infrastructure manager or works
manager responsible for non-road infrastructure

sch 7 cl 9(2)

Duty to give information to another infrastructure manager or
works manager where becomes aware any infrastructure or
works are not in the location shown on records, appear to be
in an unsafe condition or appear to need maintenance

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP

Where Council is the infrastructure manager or works
manager
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

sch 7 cl
10(2)

Where sch 7 cl 10(1) applies, duty to, where possible,
conduct appropriate consultation with persons likely to be
significantly affected

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP

Where Council is the infrastructure manager or works
manager

sch 7 cl
12(2)

Power to direct infrastructure manager or works manager to
conduct reinstatement works

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

sch 7 cl
12(3)

Power to take measures to ensure reinstatement works are
completed

sch 7 cl
12(4)

Duty to ensure that works are conducted by an appropriately
qualified person

sch 7 cl12(5)

Power to recover costs

sch 7 cl
13(1)

duty to notify relevant coordinating road authority within 7
days that works have been completed, subject to sch 7 cl
13(2)

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP, CT
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP

sch 7
cl 13(2)

Power to vary notice period

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

sch 7, cl
13(3)

Duty to ensure works manager has complied with obligation
to give notice under sch 7 cl 13(1)

sch 7
cl 16(1)

Power to consent to proposed works

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP, CT, CTM,
SCTA
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

sch 7 cl
16(4)

Duty to consult

sch 7 cl
16(5)

Power to consent to proposed works

sch 7 cl16(6)

Power to set reasonable conditions on consent

sch 7 cl
16(8)

Power to include consents and conditions

sch 7
cl 17(2)

Power to refuse to give consent and duty to give reasons for
refusal

sch 7
cl 18(1)

Power to enter into an agreement

sch 7
cl 19(1)

Power to give notice requiring rectification of works

sch 7 cl
19(2) & (3)

Power to conduct the rectification works or engage a person
to conduct the rectification works and power to recover costs
incurred

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
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CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MWI,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MWI, CT,
MACP, CAP&P,
CTM, SCTA
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MWI, CT,
MACP, CAP&P,
CTM, SCTA
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MWI, CT,
MACP, CAP&P,
CTM, SCTA
CEO, DPS,
MCPMCP, MWI,
MT&T, MACP,
CT, CAP&P,
CTM, SCTA
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T

Where Council is the coordinating road authority,
responsible authority or infrastructure manager
Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

Where Council is the coordinating road authority
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ROAD MANAGEMENT ACT 2004
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

sch 7
cl 20(1)

Power to require removal, relocation, replacement or upgrade
of existing non-road infrastructure

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

sch 7A cl 2

Power to cause street lights to be installed on roads

sch 7A cl
3(1)(d)

Duty to pay installation and operation costs of street lighting where road is not an arterial road

CEO, DPS, MCP,
MWI, MT&T,
MACP
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MACP,
CAP&P
CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MACP,
CAP&P

sch 7A cl
3(1)(e)

Duty to pay installation and operation costs of street lighting –
where road is a service road on an arterial road and adjacent
areas

CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MACP,
CAP&P

Where Council is the responsible road authority

sch 7A cl
(3)(1)(f)

Duty to pay installation and percentage of operation costs of
street lighting – for arterial roads in accordance with cls 3(2)
and 4

CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MACP,
CAP&P

Duty of Council as responsible road authority that
installed the light (re: installation costs) and where
Council is relevant municipal council (re: operating costs)

PROVISION
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT REGULATIONS 2015
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

r 6

Function of receiving notice, under s 19(1)(c) of the Act, from
a planning authority of its preparation of an amendment to a
planning scheme

CEO, DUL,
MSSP

Where Council is not the planning authority and the
amendment affects land within Council's municipal
district; or
Where the amendment will amend the planning scheme
to designate Council as an acquiring authority.

r 21

Power of responsible authority to require a permit applicant to
verify information (by statutory declaration or other written
confirmation satisfactory to the responsible authority) in an
application for a permit or to amend a permit or any
information provided under s 54 of the Act

CEO, DUL,
MSSP, CSP,
PAC, SSP, PP &
SP

r 25(a)

Duty to make copy of matter considered under s 60(1A)(g)
available for inspection free of charge

CEO, DUL,
MSSP

Where Council is the responsible authority

r 25(b)

Function of receiving a copy of any document considered
under s 60(1A)(g) by the responsible authority and duty to
make the document available for inspection free of charge

CEO, DUL,
MSSP

Where Council is not the responsible authority but the
relevant land is within Council's municipal district

r 42

Function of receiving notice under s 96C(1)(c) of the Act from
a planning authority of its preparation of a combined
application for an amendment to a planning scheme and
notice of a permit application

CEO, DUL and
MSSP

Where Council is not the planning authority and the
amendment affects land within Council's municipal
district; or
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT (FEES) REGULATIONS 2016
Column 1

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

PROVISION

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

r 19

Power to waive or rebate a fee relating to an amendment of a
planning scheme

CEO, DUL &
MSSP

r 20

Power to waive or rebate a fee other than a fee relating to an
amendment to a planning scheme

CEO, DUL,
MSSP

r 21

Duty to record matters taken into account and which formed
the basis of a decision to waive or rebate a fee under r.19 or
20

CEO, DUL, DPS,
MSSP, MSSP,
PP, PAC, CSP
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RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES (CARAVAN PARKS AND MOVABLE DWELLINGS REGISTRATION AND STANDARDS) REGULATIONS 2020
Column 1
PROVISION
r7

Column 2

Column 3
THING DELEGATED

Power to enter into a written agreement with a caravan park
owner

DELEGATE

Function of receiving application for registration

r 11

Function of receiving application for renewal of registration

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 12(1)

Duty to grant the registration if satisfied that the caravan park
complies with these regulations

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 12(1)

Power to refuse to renew the registration if not satisfied that
the caravan park complies with these regulations

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 12(2)

Duty to renew the registration if satisfied that the caravan
park complies with these regulations

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
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RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES (CARAVAN PARKS AND MOVABLE DWELLINGS REGISTRATION AND STANDARDS) REGULATIONS 2020
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3
THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

r 12(2)

Power to refuse to renew the registration if not satisfied that
the caravan park complies with these regulations

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 12(3)

Duty to have regard to matters in determining an application
for registration or an application for renewal of registration

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Duty to issue certificate of registration

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Function of receiving notice of transfer of ownership

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Power to determine where notice of transfer is displayed

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Duty to transfer registration to new caravan park owner

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 12(4) & (5)

r 14(1)

r 14(3)

r 15(1)
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RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES (CARAVAN PARKS AND MOVABLE DWELLINGS REGISTRATION AND STANDARDS) REGULATIONS 2020
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3
THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

r 15(2)

Duty to issue a certificate of transfer of registration

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 15(3)

Power to determine where certificate of transfer of registration
is displayed

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 16(1)

Power to determine the fee to accompany applications for
registration or applications for renewal of registration

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 17

Duty to keep register of caravan parks

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 18(4)

Power to determine where the emergency contact person's
details are displayed

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 18(6)

Power to determine where certain information is displayed

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
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RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES (CARAVAN PARKS AND MOVABLE DWELLINGS REGISTRATION AND STANDARDS) REGULATIONS 2020
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3
THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

r 22(1)

Duty to notify a caravan park owner of the relevant
emergency services agencies for the caravan park, on the
request of the caravan park owner

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 22(2)

Duty to consult with relevant emergency services agencies

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 23

Power to determine places in which caravan park owner must
display a copy of emergency procedures

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 24

Power to determine places in which caravan park owner must
display copy of public emergency warnings

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 25(3)

Duty to consult with relevant floodplain management authority

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 26

Duty to have regard to any report of the relevant fire authority

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Instrument of Delegation to Members of Council Staff
City of Boroondara

Column 4
CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

August 2020
Page 104 of 108
Attachment Page 104 of 108

Council Meeting

24/08/2020

RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES (CARAVAN PARKS AND MOVABLE DWELLINGS REGISTRATION AND STANDARDS) REGULATIONS 2020
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3
THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

r 28(c)

Power to approve system for the collection, removal and
disposal of sewage and waste water from a movable dwelling

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 40

Function of receiving notice of proposed installation of
unregistrable movable dwelling or rigid annexe

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 40(b)

Power to require notice of proposal to install unregistrable
movable dwelling or rigid annexe

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 41(4)

Function of receiving installation certificate

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

r 43

Power to approve use of a non-habitable structure as a
dwelling or part of a dwelling

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS

Sch 3 cl 4(3)

Power to approve the removal of wheels and axles from
unregistrable movable dwelling

CEO, DCS,
MLEPAA, CPH
TLHS, EHO &
AOHS
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ROAD MANAGEMENT (GENERAL) REGULATIONS 2016
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

r 8(1)

Duty to conduct reviews of road management plan

CEO, DPS

r 9(2)

Duty to produce written report of review of road management
plan and make report available

CEO, DPS,
MACP

r 9(3)

Duty to give notice where road management review is
completed and no amendments will be made (or no
amendments for which notice is required)

CEO, DPS,
MACP

r 10

Duty to give notice of amendment which relates to standard of
construction, inspection, maintenance or repair under s 41 of
the Act

CEO, DPS,
MACP, MCP,
MT&T, MWI

r 13(1)

Duty to publish notice of amendments to road management
plan

CEO, DPS,
MACP

r 13(3)

Duty to record on road management plan the substance and
date of effect of amendment

CEO, DPS,
MACP

r 16 (3)

Power to issue permit

CEO, DPS,
MACP, MT&T,
MCP, CAP&P,
CT

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

r 18(1)

Power to give written consent re damage to road

CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MCP,
MWI, MACP, CT

Where Council is the coordinating road authority
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ROAD MANAGEMENT (GENERAL) REGULATIONS 2016
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

r 23(2)

Power to make submission to Tribunal

CEO, DPS

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

r 23(4)

Power to charge a fee for application under s 66(1) Road
Management Act

CEO, DPS

Where Council is the coordinating road authority

r 25(1)

Power to remove objects, refuse, rubbish or other material
deposited or left on road

CEO, DPS, MWI,
MT&T, MACP,
MCP, MCS, CT,
All Waste and
Infrastructure
staff

Where Council is the responsible road authority

r 25(2)

Power to sell or dispose of things removed from road or part
of road (after first complying with regulation 25(3)

CEO, DPS, MWI

Where Council is the responsible road authority

r 25(5)

Power to recover in the Magistrates' Court, expenses from
person responsible

CEO, DPS
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ROAD MANAGEMENT (WORKS AND INFRASTRUCTURE) REGULATIONS 2015
Column 1
PROVISION

Column 2

Column 3

Column 4

THING DELEGATED

DELEGATE

CONDITIONS & LIMITATIONS

r 15

Power to exempt a person from requirement under clause
13(1) of Schedule 7 of the Act to give notice as to the
completion of those works

CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MCPMIS,
MACP

Where Council is the coordinating road authority and
where consent given under s 63(1) of the Act

r 22(2)

Power to waive whole or part of fee in certain circumstances

CEO, DPS,
MT&T, MCP,
MIS, MACP

Where Council is the coordinating road authority
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